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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY 1 & 81 #5 5 2

2010 2011
—E-TF —F——F
HK$'000 HKS$'000
BEFR BT
(restated)
(&s51)
Total assets BB E 10,814,596 82,663,490 85,934,537 89,703,818 94,440,825
Total liabilities BaE 4308272 71721422 74275957 77,410,789 81,424,503
Total net assets B R ELEE 6,506,324 10942,068 11,658,580 12,293,029 13,016,322
Net assets value pershare  GY AR FE /B HKS1710 7T B HKS2890 7T 7BME HKS3080 T /BHE HKS3247 7T 7B HKS34.38 T
Profit for the year DERANAE]
attributable to BRERZ 356,091 507,958 600,371 480,010 543,460
owners of the Company AREZ T
Basic earnings per share SREREF BEHKCM4T BEHK4T BB HKS9T BB HKS127 T B HKS1.44 T
Dividend per share TRBRE A HKs018 7T AW HKS025 7T BHE HKS030 T M HKS028 T B HKS0.28 TT
Dividend payout ratio IR B b & 19% 19% 19% 22% 19%

note 1:  Total assets, total liabilities, total net assets, net assets value per share for the year ended 31 December 2009, profit for the year attributable to owners
of the Company and basic earnings per share for the year ended 31 December 2009 and 2010 have not been restated as it is not cost effective.

Mizt—: BE_TENF+_A=T-RLFEZRRE #AE BEFEERE SREEFERBE_ZTTNFR_Z-ZTF+_H=t+—HLHF
ERRRARARR 2 AFEE 5 il RBREABINERARGRE - WESEF| o

note 2: Dividend per share in 2013 not include special cash dividend of HK$2.80 per share due to the completion of Partial Offer (the meaning ascribed
thereto in the Company’s circular to shareholders dated 4 December 2013) for disposal of Chong Hing Bank Limited shares (“CHB Shares”) and the
special dividend by way of distribution in specie to the shareholders of the Company in the proportion of 1 share in the issued share capital of Chong

04 Hing Bank Limited (“CHB") for every 10 shares in the issued share capital of the Company.

M= —Z-=FESRERETeFERATRHERRRITERARRN ([RIERTRG D MBI B (EART —2—=F+_— M A BBRERNTE
FBMRENFHIRSKREFRAEE 2807T * RABMDRFAIRAR B S EHITRAT 10D B 1 RAIFERITER AR ([AIEIRTT]) B %
TRAZ RIS

note 3: Dividend payout ratio in 2013, if including the special cash dividend and distribution in specie, the ratio should be adjusted to 418%.

3= MeEFIRERERSHIENDRKRE T =F2IRELEEGHES 418% °

£10Z 1¥OJIY IVANNY | @1LIWI LNFWLSIANI ONIH ONOHD NIl



FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS CHARTS hFE M2 E %
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT @R ES

| am pleased to present to you a review of the Group's performance
some observations from the overall macro-economic environmen

2013 and expectations for the year ahead.

KARAR BTLRARE-T—=%7 2HEEH  UARAAS
BEIERME  HREBRZHD -

(=]
[}

Dr. Liv Lit Mo B2 18+

LLD, MBE, J.P. Chairman % /&
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Dear Shareholders,

| am pleased to present to you a review of the Group’s performance as
well as some observations from the overall macro-economic

environment for the year 2013 and expectations for the year ahead.

ECONOMIC REVIEW

2013 was generally a good year with the global economy recovering and
progressing at a moderate pace. There were, however, increasing risks of
sovereign debts amongst the economically weaker countries. We
observed a gradual shift in strategic focus from developed to emerging
markets. In the US, economic growth has shifted gears amidst over-
budget concerns. The US government has been keen to create jobs
which in turn led to a buoyant US housing market and Wall Street
performance. We are optimistic towards the Federal Reserve’'s monetary
policy under the leadership of Janet Yellen. In Europe, Germany has had
a solid year with reduced unemployment while other EU nations are
heading towards light at the end of the tunnel. There are still looming
debt risks within the EU but we believe 2014 will be an even better year

than 2013 with more balanced growth.

Nearer to home, China achieved a 7.7% GDP growth in 2013. Although
there were signs of slowdown in economic growth, China has
maintained steady growth and remains in a favourable position amongst
other global economies. In 2013, 85 Chinese companies were named in
the Global Fortune 500 list of the world's largest corporations. China'’s
new leadership has shown steadfast determination in continuing
economic growth and reforms, promoting measures against corruption
and lavish government spending as well as working towards the goal of
doubling the size of her economy and per capita household income by
2020.

For Hong Kong, GDP growth has remained weak in 2013 as illustrated
by the continued drop in quarterly figures. The property sales market
had grinded almost to a halt in light of the anti-inflationary stamp duty

measures.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT @R ES

BUSINESS RESULTS

For the accounting year ended 31 December 2013, the audited profit
attributable to owners of the Company amounted to approximately
HKS$543.5 million (basic earnings per share: HK$1.44), an increase of

approximately 13.2% over the previous year.

The Board of Directors has proposed to recommend at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting to be held on Tuesday, 22 April 2014, the
payment of a final cash dividend of HK$0.18 per share. Together with
the interim cash dividend of HK$0.10 per share paid on 26 September
2013, the total cash dividend amounted to HK$0.28 per share for the
year 2013.

In addition, the Board of Directors recommends a special cash dividend
of HK$2.80 per share due to the completion of Partial Offer for disposal
of CHB Shares and a special dividend by way of distribution in specie to
the shareholders of the Company in the proportion of 1 share in the
issued share capital of CHB for every 10 shares in the issued share capital

of the Company.

e

1

Chong Hing Bank Centre, Hong Kong & 7% Il & 17 * /0
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BUSINESS REVIEW

BANKING BUSINESS

The Company holds a 50.2% shareholding interest in CHB. CHB has
announced that its audited consolidated profit for the year ended 31
December 2013 amounted to HK$557.4 million, an increase of 2.6% over
that for the year before. Total customers’ deposits increased 5.4% to
HK$71.2 billion. Total loans and advances to customers increased by
15.1% to HKS$45.1 billion. Tortal assets increased 5.5% to HK$85.2 billion.
Shareholders’ funds (before final dividend), compared with the
shareholders’ funds for the previous year, increased 4.9% to HK$7,732
billion. A final dividend of HK$0.33 has been declared and will be paid by
CHB to its shareholders. Details on CHB's financial results for the year
ended 31 December 2013 could be found in its annual report, which is

also published on www.chbank.com.

HK PROPERTY BUSINESS

CHONG HING SQUARE

Chong Hing Square maintained a high occupancy rate throughout the
year, which stood at 100% as at 31 December 2013. This 20-storey retail/
commercial building is located in the heart of Mongkok, Kowloon, and
provides over 182,000 square feet of retail space and entertainment

facilities.

CHONG YIP CENTRE

With an occupancy rate of 80% as at 31 December 2013, Chong Yip
Centre remains one of the favourite shopping centres in the western
part of Hong Kong Island with over 54,000 square feet of retail space

and entertainment facilities.

WESTERN HARBOUR CENTRE

This is currently a 28-storey full sea-view Grade A office building with a
gross floor area of over 140,000 square feet is located at Connaught
Road West and within close proximity to the Western Harbour Tunnel.
In order to realize a better gain for the Group, the Board of Directors has

resolved to re-consider and re-structure the use of this property.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT @R ES

PERFORM

Challenges push us to do better w
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT B &8

FAIRVIEW COURT
This low-rise deluxe apartment block located in Repulse Bay is 60% let

and its rental revenue is in line with market conditions.

CHATHAM GATE

Chatham Gate is a redevelopment project undertaken by the original
shareholders of The Belcher’s, in which the Group holds a 10% equity
interest. The project calls for the erection of two blocks of 32-storey
residential building on top of a 2-storey commercial complex and
carports. Construction of this property has been completed and the sale

results have been encouraging.

TAI PO PROJECT
The Group acquired this 262,000 square feet plot of land in Tai Po, New
Territories, for long-term investment. Ongoing feasibility studies are

being carried out and the Group will implement its development when

the opportunity arises.

Chong Hing Bank Centre, Hong Kong & 7 £l S 88 17 /1
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PRC PROPERTY BUSINESS

CHONG HING FINANCE CENTER, SHANGHAI

This flagship property of the Group was completed in 2008. Located at
288 Nanjing Road West in Huangpu District of Shanghai, this 36-storey
Grade A commercial building commands a strategic location and
enviable view over The People’s Square just across the street. With a
total floor area of over 516,000 square feet of office and commercial
space and 198 carparks, this property was 85% let in terms of office
space and 100% let in terms of retail space as at 31 December 2013. The
Group has invested more than RMB1.2 billion in this asset and intends
to hold it as a long term investment. Total rental revenue generated
from this property in 2013 was approximately HK$138.2 million, similar
to the year 2012. Service standards and building facilities will be
upgraded from time to time in the Group’s continued strive to improve

the quality and revenue income of this material asset.

ch B ith 2= K ¥

LFigRIEE RN

HAREBEEDE R_TEZN\FEK-
ZRGREEER =T E EERLEME
P [ R 70 25 288 5% th BhAR ALSRER B S - 1]
HMEHMARBS CBERE - ZWERM
B T8 N 5 AR TH E AR 8 516,000 F 77 R K
198 &R RZTE—=F+_-_A=+—8H"
WYEZ S TEEBRESY  TEHBXA
B0 AEERLEBEREBARK
TET BEERARE - AYER=-T
—ZFE4AZHSBRABBLORBE
1382000007C * B =T — —FIHE - AEE
BETNRAGFELSENEZRBSKA -
TN B 54 ) 2 B PR ISR 2 e W) 26 3R bt

2RV N[O HFE IDNVNYIAOD ILVIOJHO0D ANV MIIATY SSINISNG

-
w

CV HEXI NS

=-&= |

¥ 5 EHE



-
S

€107 1¥OJIY IVANNY | @ILIWI INFWLSIANI ONIH ONOHD N

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT £ E#HR&EE

THE GRAND RIVIERA, FOSHAN

The Grand Riviera is a large-scale development project currently
undertaken by the Group. Situated on a over 260,000 square metres
plot of land at 1 Guilong Road, Luocun in the Nanhai District of Foshan,
it is conveniently located within half an hour's drive from the Foshan
financial district and within an hour’s drive from downtown Guangzhou.
The project boasts a landscape ratio of more than 40% and adopts a
southern French approach to its design. With its unique characteristics
which include a 1 km-long car-free “avenue of trees”, scenic lakes and
landscape features, The Grand Riviera will offer a luxurious, relaxed and
healthy living environment for its residents whilst at the same time

becoming the new centre of attraction in Foshan.

The first phase development named The Grand Riviera was completed
in 2011. As at year ended 2013, a total of 417 residential units and 169
car parking units were sold out returning a total sale proceeds of
approximately RMB339 million.

GRAND JARDIN, FOSHAN

The second phase development named the Grand Jardin was
commenced since 2013. A total of 632 residential units were put up for
sales since January 2014. Up to the date of this report, a total of 242
residential units were sold out returning a total sale proceeds of
approximately RMB137.2 million.

BUDGET HOTEL PROJECT
The Group has invested in a budget hotel project currently consisting of
two budget hotels in Shanghai, one in Guangzhou and another one in

Chatham Gate 5 P9
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Beijing, all of which are operated under the PRC domestic budget hotel
chain known as “Hanting”. Total revenue recorded in 2013 from such
operations was approximately HK$51.2 million.

PROPERTY MANAGEMENT

Liu Chong Hing Property Management and Agency Limited, established
in 1976, is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and is principally
responsible for managing certain properties developed by the Group. In
recent years, it also expanded its operations to cover third party
properties. Its revenue had slightly increased in 2013.

ECONOMIC OUTLOOK

We observed increased momentum in global economic growth during
the second half of 2013 and expect this trend to continue in 2014-2015,
largely on account of recovery in the developed economies and barring
any major political events. Monetary policies should remain
accommodative while fiscal consolidation continues. We expect the
emerging markets and developing economies to grow steadily in 2014

but domestic weaknesses in certain countries remain a concern.

In China, we believe the slowdown in economic growth will continue at
least for much of 2074 but remain confident that the national GDP
growth targets will be met. The continued quota system and anti-

inflationary measures on the China residential property market will keep

The Westwood 73 B 3

AR IR 0 2501 DA AP B N b 38 g A P AL
BEEE| 22BEE - BEEBR_Z
— = F 85 2 B 4 A PSTE 51,200,000 7T °

MxEREE
BRIEYXERBRREARDFN—ALR
FRY - BARF2ENBRA TB8E
BEAEEER2ETYWE LFR EXE
BNEREBEE=TYVWE - ZRFANR_F
—=F WM ETT -

SR

BMBRE —F =TT 2REANE
BHEMIRA BME-T-—MEE-F
~AEMLESRAR TEXERAHED
ROEAER - U RUMEABATH R -
BT SRR EEIR - BEETHR
B AMEH-F-NEFETHRERE
TERBRRBS L BRI BROAH
RS AJEE -

EHE - APEEEERRRIE=E D
FABABMBENE  BRANEELS
P 2 P A (S R VS A 0 - R B
B THORIBEER R2 AR T I 1646 02 55

Chong Yip Centre ] ¥ 5

2RV N[O HFE IDNVNYIAOD ILVIOJHO0D ANV MIIATY SSINISNG

-
(%}

CV HEXI NS

=-&= |

¥ 5 EHE




-t
()

€107 1¥OJIY IVANNY | @ILIWI INFWLSIANI ONIH ONOHD N

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT @R ES

housing prices on check but we expect sales volume to grow mildly
despite difficult operating environments and increasing competition
from other property developers, particularly at the local level.

Hong Kong has been shrouded with issues concerning political reforms
and we expect this to continue for much of 2014. We sincerely hope
that politicians and other vocal activists will place Hong Kong's long-
term growth and competitiveness at heart. GDP growth in Hong Kong
has been very slow and it must have significant impact on businesses,
particularly the small and medium enterprises. The Shanghai Free Trade
Zone is likely to have a big and quick impact on Hong Kong.

Earlier in February 2014, the Group completed its disposal of
75% of its shareholding interest in CHB to Yuexiu Financial Holdings
Limited. Subject to the approval by the shareholders in the forth
coming Annual General Meeting, the Group will transfer some of
its residual shareholding in CHB to the Company’s shareholders
by way of distribution in specie, upon completion of which the
Group will hold less than 5% of CHB's issued share capital. The Yue Xiu
Group is a China state-owned enterprise with the largest assets
and leading performance in overall economic efficiency in Guangzhou.
According to its published information, as at the end of 2013,
the Yue Xiu Group had total assets of around RMB200 billion.
The transaction with Yue Xiu Group is a significant milestone

achievement in the corporate history of both the Company and CHB.
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FEAEEBRE BEEERBENET
TE=FR BFEEBEENARARE
200,000,000,000 7T © HAE AL B H) I 5 H AR
AIRAIFEBITHARELYBERRAERE




We are confident that CHB will continue to grow from strength to
strength under the new management and leadership of the Yue Xiu
Group.

SINCERE ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

As announced on 26 February 2014, | have stepped down as Managing
Director of the Company with effect from 26 February 2014 after having
served this position for some 42 years. Mr. Liu Lit Chi will take over the
role of Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer of the Company
and | have every confidence in his management skills and leadership to
take the Group to the next level.

| would like to express my heartfelt thanks to stakeholders and
shareholders for their continued trust and support, to all my fellow
directors for their wise stewardship, and to our senior management and

staff for their commitment and dedication.

Dr. Liu Lit Mo

Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 February 2014
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The Board of Directors of Liu Chong Hing Investment Limited (the
“Directors”) has pleasure in presenting to the Shareholders its annual
report together with the audited financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2013.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the principal subsidiaries and associates are shown

in note 53 to the financial statements respectively.

RESULTS AND STATE OF AFFAIRS
The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013 and the
state of the Company’s and the Group’s affairs at that date are set out

on pages 116 to 304 of this annual report.

I
(T
F

Chong Hing Finance Center, Shanghai i £ 8 & @& & /0

BRIEGXARARESFE(EFTE)ARE
BEE_FT—=Ft+-_HA=+— Htifz
FEREERLEL IV BHRE - MARRES
JINEREE -

FT2EH
RARRETEEBRREZER - ZXEWBR
A NEE SRR EBRBE D RIEE5I R BRIEM
FEESEA -

FKEREWBIRR
AEBBE_ZT—=F+_A=+—HIEF
EREBERA N R RAEERZBOEBRK
AR EFIHRE 116304 8 ©




DIVIDENDS

An interim cash dividend of HK$0.10 per share was paid to shareholders
on 26 September 2013. The Directors recommend a final cash dividend
of HK$0.18 per share for the year ended 31 December 2013 and a special
cash dividend of HK$2.80 per share due to the completion of Partial
Offer for disposal of CHB Shares. The Board also announced a special
dividend by way of distribution in specie to the shareholders of the
Company in the proportion of 1 share in the issued share capital of CHB

for every 10 shares in the issued share capital of the Company.

Based on the closing price of HK$27.10 per CHB share as traded on the
Stock Exchange on 25 February 2014 (the date prior to the declaration
of the special dividend), the market value of the CHB share to be
distributed under the distribution amounted HKS$2.71 per share.
Together with the cum dividend entitlement of CHB's 2013 final cash
dividend of HK$0.33 per share, the total dividend declared amount to
HK$6.02.

=]
ARRBERZZE—=F A=+ "AIREF
HESREEGREK 10T - EESEBRE
BHE-_T—=Ft+-A=t—BLEXHHES
1% B G AR 0.18 7T KR SE AR 4 B ELERTTAR
P BN MRBERANR SR ETRBE 280
T BEEERINEEFHIREKAEDH IR
FBRRTFAABRRE - RAABEZEITRA
F10RH B 1 RAIEIRITE BITARAS o

BR-E-—NF-A=+HAB (FRIREEIRAT
B H) B EERTTAR (D B X PR T (B B AR
B0 E E - IR BIEIRITIRDBE
EFRBE 27170 o Bt ARFE D IRAIIRAD B
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RESERVES

Movements in reserves of the Group during the year are set out in
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the movements in
reserves of the Company during the year are set out in note 44 to the

financial statements.

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to shareholders as at
31 December 2013 comprised the accumulated profits of
HK$1,673,693,000 (2012: HK$1,758,458,000).

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
Movements in investment properties during the year are set out in note

29 to the financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Movements in property, plant and equipment during the year are set

out in note 30 to the financial statements.

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT/PROPERTIES UNDER
DEVELOPMENT FOR SALE/PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE
Movements in properties under development/properties under
development for sale/properties held for sale during the year are set out

in note 24 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note 43 to the

financial statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”), was adopted
pursuant to a resolution passed on 9 May 2012, which replaced the
previous share option scheme, for the primary purpose of providing
incentives to directors and eligible employees, and will expire on 8 May
2022. Under the Scheme, the Company may grant options to eligible
employees, including executive directors of the Company and its
subsidiaries, to subscribe for shares in the Company. Additionally, the
Company may, from time to time, grant share options to outside eligible

third parties at the discretion of the Board of Directors.

The total number of shares in respect of which options may be granted
under the Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any point in time, without prior approval from the
Company'’s shareholders. The number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted to any individual is not permitted to exceed
10% of the shares of the Company in issue at any point in time, without

prior approval from the Company's shareholders.

53]
REEANRNEBREE 2 ZDFINGEAER
BE}KR NFERRAIFE 2 EBHFINER
TEMIEESE 44BN ©

N-ZZEBE—=%F+_HA=+—8 ' XAFAE
T IR 2 [ E e E R & TS ¥ 1,673,693,000
TL(ZZF——F : A% 1,7584580007T) °

BrREME
RERREMFEZ I NRIEBEM T FE 2018
A o

I N
FESE30THA -

BROME SHEXRDIME &
HEME

REBERTYE HHEREPWE
B EYEZ BT R IRIEMESE 241EA ©

BN L

BB 7K
AR TRAEFIRE BN E BN -

A% fn) HA & 51 &l

AR BEFE(ZAEDER-F
——FRANABBRET AMREAHN
B S T2ZRARRABSESER
EEREES  ZEEBNR-_Z__FRHAN
BE® - Rigazat &l - AAR AR E RS
TREWRREER  BEAARERENER A
ZHITEERTEN  UARBEBARRRKRE -
AN RAR AR EMKR CEEERE
A{ERE BERE = E R B -

BIEZE - ERBEEEARRAIREE LM
AT ROBEARERDEBENGEL R
RNAEITREBEITRA 2 10% ° ML BEFAE
NRIRRELRIET BREKTEMER A
T2 BRE - FAIRIE RN EBTEEL AR A
P B BEITIRANZ 10% °



Options may be exercised at any time from the date of grant of the
share option to the 5th anniversary of the date of grant. The exercise
price is determined by the directors of the Company, and will not be
less than the higher of the nominal value of the Company'’s share on the
date of grant, the average closing price of the shares for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of grant, or the closing price of the

shares on the date of grant.

No options have been granted under the above mentioned scheme

since the Scheme was adopted.

SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES
Particulars relating to the subsidiaries and associates are set out in notes

53 and 28 to the financial statements respectively.

GROUP BORROWINGS AND INTEREST CAPITALISED
Details of bank loans and other borrowings repayable within five years

are set out in note 39 to the financial statements.

The Group’s interest capitalised during the year amounted to
HK$12,575,000 (2012: HKSNIl).

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of

this report are shown on page 83 of this annual report.

The term of office of each director, who has been longest in office, shall
retire by rotation and offer themselves for re-election in accordance

with the Company’s Articles of Association.

Mr. Tong Tsia Ka, Mr. Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher, Mr. Liu Chun Ning,
Wilfred and Mr. Liu Kwun Shing, Christopher shall retire by rotation in
accordance with Articles 99 of the Company’s Articles of Association
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election. In accordance with
Article 92 of The Company’s Articles of Association, any director so
appointed by the Board Shall hold office only until the next following

annual general meeting and Shall then be eligible for re-election.

The biographical details of directors and senior management are set out

on pages 88 to 98.

The Company has received from each Independent Non-executive
Director an annual confirmation of his independent pursuant to rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Company considered all Independent

Non-executive Director are independent.
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COMPLIANCE OF THE MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS OF LISTED ISSUERS

All directors have confirmed that they complied with the required
standards set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules

throughout the review period.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARE CAPITAL OF THE

COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2013, the interests of the Directors and the Chief
Executive Officer in the Shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) which have been notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO, or
have been recorded in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or have been notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for

Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers were as follows:

INTERESTS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS

(A) THE COMPANY

Liu Chong Hing Investment Limited

BT LHLIESETESXZNIR
E<THI

REEHRE *REFHIARSTDETLED
RAMSE &Sz EMRARAEFETESFR
HEFLETAUZRTE ©

SESERALANEBEZEESE 2R
INE &
R-ZZE—Z=ZF+-_A=+—H BEERTHK
BENRARR REBBEE (F&ER(FHF R
HEFRGIDEXVER) 2 & H - HERND REH
THBERBESRIEROIEXVIHBEIRES
DEEMERRA] R P 2 L - RIRE
(FBHLHEERDINE 352 (6B LARRRFTF
BEEnMo s KRB ETETAESE
TRFRHZFETAD NG AR R RHBER
FRZ RERRIAT -

ERr A KHIBEZBAMD - 18R
RiKREZFPHIESR

(A) RRT
BEIHPEAF R A]

NUMBER OF ORDINARY SHARES HELD 575 & & M ik 13 2 B

Family interests

Total interests

(interests of spouse as approximate %

Personalinterests ~or child under 18) Corporate interests of the relevant

(held as Rk (interests of controlled issued share capital

Long/short beneficial owner) (B8R 1857 corporation) EmAgh

Name of Director position AR UTFZ A RS Total interests BRITRA

BEpg He/ X (BEEA) Z2iEs)  (REHARzER) BRER LR EpIES

Dr. Liu Lit Mo Lon 795,600 — 171,840,189 172,635,789 45.60%
BRREL e (notes Tand 2)
GEabY

Mr. LiuLit Chi Long 141,668 — 210,963,253 211,104921 55.76%
BRI % E HE (notes 1and 3)
GEAVE)

Mr. Liu Kam Fai, Winston Long 3,270,400 — — 3,270,400 0.86%

BeRBEE HE

Dr. LiuLit Chung Long — — 165,840,189 165,840,189 4381%
BRAREE e (note 1)
(P

Mr. Andrew Liu Long 600,000 — — 600,000 0.16%

BERAE e




notes:

(B)

165,840,189 Shares are beneficially held by Liu’s Holdings Limited (“L. Holdings”), of
which Dr. Liu Lit Mo, Mr. Liu Lit Chi and Dr. Liu Lit Chung are amongst its shareholders.
The above numbers of shares are duplicated under the corporate interests for each of
these Directors.

Eternal Wealth Limited, of which Dr. Liu Lit Mo and his associates are shareholders,
beneficially holds 6,000,000 Shares, and thus is included in the corporate interests of Dr.
Liu Lit Mo.

Alba Holdings Limited (“Alba"), of which Mr. Liu Lit Chi and his associates are
shareholders, beneficially holds 45,123,064 Shares, and thus is included in the corporate
interests of Mr. Liu Lit Chi.

SUBSIDIARY

Chong Hing Bank Limited (“CHB)

GEE

(B)

BRIREL  BREAERBRUABRE AP KEE
BRAB(BEREE]) ZBR - ZARE£ERSE
BAR B 165840189 A Ll iRl - ERES
ET 2 RARERIER NESE °

BRRETREBMBEATATEARAAZKE
ZA A B A AN A B9 6000000 AR ¢ I 5 AR
BRIRE+E T2 AaEEEER -
BREGAEREBEATAEEEEERAR (B
B ZRFR - AR Em A AN AR 45,123,064
B WEMEBRE AR T2 ARERERA -

i3

BIERTT B IR 2B ([BI#RTT )

NUMBER OF ORDINARY SHARES HELD #5753 i At it 17 2 B

Family interests

Total interests

(interests of spouse as approximate %
Personalinterests ~or child under 18) Corporate interests of the relevant
(held as FikkER (interests of controlled issued share capital
Long/short beneficial owner) (BB 185% corporation) EmAgh
Name of Director position EARER UTF% ATER Total interests BRITRAE
BEEpg #R/ %R (B&EA) ZHEs)  (ZEHARZER) B BHEL=
Or. Liu Lit Mo Long 1,002,450 = 258,359,628 259,362,078 59.62%
BRRET i) (note 1)
(M)
short = = 218,359,628 218,359,628 50.20%
KR (note 3)
(MaE3)
Mr. LiuLit Chi Long 313,248 = 260,622,839 260,936,087 59.99%
BRERAE i) (notes 182)
(M1 R2)
short = = 220,622,839 220,622,839 50.72%
KR (notes 3&:4)
(M3 R4
notes: BiaE -
1. The corporate interests in 258,359,628 CHB Shares are attributed as follows: 1. N E R 2 258359628 AR AR TT R - BD 51
I8 :
(i) 218,359,628 CHB Shares held by the Company’s wholly-owned subsidiary, Liu Chong (i) ARRZEWMBRARERIRERXER DA ([EAIH
Hing Estate Company, Limited (“LCH Estate”), in which each of Dr. Liu Lit Mo, Mr. Liu B ) 5218359628 A EERTTAAD © IRIZFH
Lit Chi and Dr. Liu Lit Chung is deemed under the SFO to be interested through L. NG GG - BRREL BB EERBERLE
Holdings, a private company holding approximately 43.81% of the Company's issued EFEBEREE  DRIRERERZZRG 2 #m
and fully-paid share capital; and (BREER—FLART - BEARFR4381% 2 2
TIRBRZER) &
(i) 40,000,000 CHB Shares held by The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Limited (“BTMU"). (i) HURREH=FRRUARITARAR(=ZERR])

Pursuant to an agreement in 1994, BTMU has granted an option to LCH Estate
exercisable at any time during the term of that agreement to purchase all such CHB
Shares and BTMU is required to offer to sell all such CHB Shares to LCH Estate in
certain circumstances. By virtue of the interests of Dr. Liu Lit Mo, Mr. Liu Lit Chi and Dr.
Liu Lit Chung in LCH Estate through L. Holdings, each of them is deemed under the
SFO to be interested in such CHB Shares.

F5A 2 40000000 IR B ELERFT AR5 o BAR— L ALIUEF
Z2hE —ERRETEAEEX —BELERRK
T - (5B AIFE ¥ 0] & ik M AT B R 1T R 7%
BELRABEREZSARRITRG  TESTHE
AT ZERRNEBAZSAIRBTROEL
ETERIHEE - REZHFRARKO - BRRE
T+  BRBEERBRBRBESREBERERE
EPRIEERX  w  SANTERAEEZSAIE
RITRRD 2 42 o
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2. 2,263,211 CHB Shares are held by Alba, shareholders of which include Mr. Liu Lit Chi
and his associates. Accordingly, Mr. Liu Lit Chi is deemed under the SFO to be
interested in such CHB Shares.

3. 218,359,628 CHB Shares are the LCH Estate IU Shares, in which each of Dr. Liu Lit Mo
and Mr. Liu Lit Chi is deemed under the SFO to be interested through L. Holdings. On
25 October 2013, Yue Xiu Enterprise (Holdings) Limited (“Yuexiu”), the Company, LCH
Estate, L. Holdings and Alba entered into the LCHI Irrevocable Undertaking, under
which, among other things, the Company and LCH Estate have irrevocably undertaken,
jointly and severally, to Yuexiu that the Partial Offer will be accepted by LCH Estate in
respect of all of the LCH Estate U shares not later than three business days after the
Despatch Date and that LCH Estate will not withdraw such acceptance.

4. 220,622,839 CHB Shares are the IU Shares, which comprise (i) the LCH Estate IU Shares
in which each of Dr. Liu Lit Mo and Mr. Liu Lit Chi is deemed under the SFO to be
interested through L. Holdings; and (ii) 2,263,211 CHB Shares held by Alba, which is a
substantial shareholder of the Company and of which Mr. Liu Lit Chi and his associates
(as defined in the Listing Rules) are shareholders. Pursuant to the LCHI Irrevocable
Undertaking, Alba has irrevocably undertaken to Yuexiu that the Partial Offer will be
accepted by Alba in respect of all of the CHB Shares held by it not later than three
business days after the Despatch Date and that Alba will not withdraw such

2. BEERFE 22263211 RAIHRITAG - BB

EREBEAT AR o Bt - BRIEESF KRB K
7] - BRUE AR A E RS A ERIT R 2 1

5o

3, 218,359,628 A% Bl B SR 1T Ak 11 /4 B2 Bl L & 31U i 1
RESFRBEEFBEIIRIE L RERE LG IES
BEREERNZEROTFEAER - N _T—=F
+AZ+HB  UFELEEER)ARAR ([MER
¥ ARR) BRAIHEXE BPREEREZEEK
BRIFE M ET A M AE RS - Bt (EPRRE) -
ARERBAIFEEXEE RMEFEEEL T HED
HRARERFE - BRDBDENTEBEEIBEAIE
BRXURMNBESERIEEXERHWBE=ARS
B - mEBAIEEETSHE L IBEER -

4, 220622839 R Bl T ER 1T IR 9 RIUAR 1) + & R B 3E )

ZiEAF NS RABERE L RBERIE R ERIEE
BEREERERHEAERNEEIEEZE VRS
(i) BEEEAE® 226321 IREIFRITHD - MEE
ARARNEEZRER  BRESEEREBEA(E
R EMAA) MAERRE - BIBEAIS BT
B F#E R EECRERCEEL T HEH
A B BHNPBERERFENEIPAIRBITRG

acceptance. HESEEARKBA=-AXSBRER MEE
BT SRE R -
AMOUNT OF DEBENTURES 1& 2 (%8
Family interests
(interests of spouse

Personal interests o child under 18)) Corporate interests

(held as Kk (interests of controlled

Long/short beneficial owner) (BefBR 18 5% corporation)
Name of Director position B AR 2= LT F%& N AR Total interests
EEHE Ha/ RE (BE&EEFH) ZHEm) (REFIQFz2ER) R
Mr. Liu Kwun Shing, Long US$200,000 — — US$200,000
Christopher 5] 6% notes 6% notes
EE R 5 A due 2020 due 2020
(note 1) 200,000 3 7T
200,000 € 7T 2020 5| B 6%
2020 5F 51| A 6% e

E
(Bt 1)
note: I 5E
1. The notes were issued by CHB pursuant to the offering circular issued by CHB dated 28 1. ZRTDBEIHRITRBEFEIBTINR - F+

October 2010 and were listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 4327).

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2013, none of the Directors
or the Chief Executive Officer of the Company had any interests or
short positions in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) which has been notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Division 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO, has
been recorded in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, or has been notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions

by Directors of Listed Issuers.

A=\ BRIBOBEBRET - NIRRT

(BRRIR = 4327) ©
BRIALERBEEN R-_FT—=F+_A
=+—H BEARFTEFHITHAINAK
NAEIEHEEARRER (R (BHFLPE
GRBIDEXVER) < Bty - HEARMDAES T HE
BERB(EH LB IGHDEXVEE 7 REs 7
HEMGEARARBRERIZERIORE - 3K
RIBCEH MHEEH)EE 352 IRERLRARRT]
FiFEERMERIORR » HIRIELHE
TAEFETBEFRGZIBETAEHER
NEI MR EmEOAR



INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND
OTHER PERSONS

As at 31 December 2013, so far as is known to the Company, the
following persons (other than the Directors or the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company) had interests or short positions in the Shares
and underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed
to the Company under the provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of
the SFO, or were directly or indirectly interested in 10% or more of the
nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all

circumstances at general meetings of any other member of the Group:

TERRREMALTHIESD

RZBE—=F+ZA=+—8 " ®AXRFEMR
Ao PIAL(ESHARBITRAEZERIN)
RARRZ B RABBEB P A RB(ES
FEIEGRPIDEXVERE 2R FE 3D A2 RTER
AARRBWE ZEDIOKR - RERKEE
BEAEEFABR TRARBEREMKE
RRBRAE LT 2 L IE R B E(E 10%
oAb #Eas

Name of Substantial Shareholder  Long/short position  Capacity No. of ordinary share held % of the issued share capital
FERRERE B/ %R 517 FrisE BB mEE B BEITRAB DL
L. Holdings Long Beneficial owner 165,840,189 43.81%
BIK&EE (55} EmfFAA (note 1)
(FF5ET)
Alba Long Beneficial owner 45,123,064 11.92%
BE 55} EmfFAA (note 2)
(MI7E2)
notes: Bf5E -
1. L. Holdings, a private company incorporated in Hong Kong, are owned by, amongst 1. BPREETREBEMALZAARR  BEAR

others, Dr. Liu Lit Mo, Mr. Liu Lit Chi and Dr. Liu Lit Chung. Such corporate interests
are also disclosed in the sub-section under “Directors’ interests in Share Capital of the
Company and its Associated Corporations.”

2. Alba, a private company incorporated in Hong Kong, is owned by Mr. Liu Lit Chi and
his associates. Such corporate interests are also disclosed in the sub-section under
“Directors’ interests in Share Capital of the Company and its Associated Corporations.”

Save as disclosed above, the Company had not been notified by any
person (other than the directors or Chief Executives Officer of the
Company) who had interests or short positions in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company of 5% or more as at 31 December
2013 which were required to be disclosed to the Company under Part
XV of the SFO or which were recorded in the register required to be

kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO.

FEEAREL  BREEERBULEE - ZERQ
AERFEN LB A [EFEAREREMBA
BER 2R R | DEHE o

2 BEDRESEMRLZAADE HHIEERE
SEAERAMBAT AR - ZEQFAESTFER
5% R TEEEAD A RAEREEES 2 B4
HEiE ) D ETRE -
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 51 to the Financial Statements, “Related Party
Disclosures”, no contracts of significance in relation to the Group'’s
business, to which the Company or any of the Company’s subsidiaries
was a party and in which a director of the Company had, whether
directly or indirectly, a material interest, subsisted at the end of the year

or at any time during the year.

At no time during the year was the Company or any of the Company’s
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the directors of the
Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares, or

debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

None of the directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with the Company which
is not terminable within one year without payment of compensation

(other than statutory compensation).

CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(1) RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
The related party transactions between the Group and CHB and its

subsidiaries (“CHB Group”) during the year are described as follows:

(a) CHB Group handled routine banking transactions for the Group.
Services provided by CHB are cheque clearing, current, savings and

deposit accounts, remittances and other banking facilities.

(b) CHB Group provided securities and futures brokerage, nominee,
data processing services, insurance agency and underwriting
services to members of the Group under normal commercial

terms.

(c) The Company through Liu Chong Hing Property Management
and Agency Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary, has provided
property management, property consultant and property

maintenance services to CHB Group.

Dr. Liu Lit Mo, Mr. Liu Lit Chi, Dr. Liu Lit Chung, Mr. Andrew Liu, Mr. Liu
Kam Fai, Winston, Mr. Ng Ping Kin, Peter and Mr. Au Kam Yuen, Arthur
are interested, directly or indirectly, in the respective share capitals of

the Company and/or CHB.
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(I1) CONNECTED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In March 2012, the Company entered into a lease agreement with the
landlord, a Company wholly owned by Dr. Liu Lit Mo, Chairman, and his
spouse. The Company leased the property for a monthly rent of
HK$400,000 with retrospective effect from 1 January 2012 for a term of
two years. For the year ended 31 December 2013, the aggregate rent
paid by the Company amounted to HK$4,800,000.

The Company also entered into a lease agreement with Dr. Liu Lit
Chung, our Non-executive Director. Dr. Liu leased the property for a
monthly rent of HK$75,000 and the lease was renewed with the same
term, effective from 1 March 2012, for another two years ending on 28
February 2014. For the year ended 31 December 2013, the aggregate
rent paid by the Company amounted to HK$900,000.

In March 2011, the Company entered into a service agreement with K.A.
Kho & Associates for its architectural and consultancy services provided
to the Company. Mr. Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher, our Non-executive
Director, is the sole director and the sole shareholder of KA. Kho &
Associates. For the year ended 31 December 2013, the aggregate service

fee paid by the Company amounted to HK$1,306,000.

The connected transactions between our subsidiary, CHB, and COSCO
(Hong Kong) Group Limited and its associates (“COSCO Group”)

during the year ended 31 December 2013 are as follows:

CHB provided banking and related financial services to COSCO Group
including cheque clearing, current and savings accounts, fixed deposits,

foreign exchange, remittances and nominee services.
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DIRECTORS REPORT EE& R &2

The connected transactions between CHB and its directors and their

associates during the year ended 31 December 2013 are as follows:

(A)

CHB handled routine banking transactions for its directors and
their associates including cheque clearing, current and savings
accounts, fixed deposits, foreign exchange, remittances and other
banking facilities. Such transactions are exempt from the reporting,
annual review, announcement and independent shareholders’
approval requirements pursuant to Rule 14A.33(1) of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) as such banking services
are provided on normal commercial terms and are, among other
things, (i) of a type ordinarily supplied for private use; (i) for the
directors and their associates’ own use; (i) of a total consideration
that represents less than 1% of the total revenue of CHB as shown
in its latest published audited consolidated financial statements;
and (iv) on terms no more favourable to the directors and their

associates than those available to independent third parties.

CHB entered into a tenancy agreement with Alba Securities &
Investment Limited as the landlord, a company owned as to about
80% by Mr. Liu Lit Chi, a director, and as to about 20% by his
associates (within the meaning ascribed to it under the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on Stock Exchange), on 28
November 2012 for the lease of a property for a monthly rent of
HK$280,000 (exclusive of utilities, maintenance charges and other
charges and outgoings) with effect from 1 November 2012 for a
term of two years. For the year ended 31 December 2013, the rent,
utilities, maintenance charges and other charges and outgoings
paid by CHB amounted to HK$4,447,000 which is below the
annual cap in question as set forth in CHB's announcement dated

28 November 2012 about this matter.
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The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group's
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor
has issued his unqualified letter containing his findings and conclusions
in respect of the continuing connected transactions, details of which are
also disclosed by the Group in note 57 to the financial statements, in
accordance with Main Board Listing Rule 14A.38. A copy of the auditor’s
letter has been provided by the Company to Stock Exchange.

In the opinion of the directors who do not have any interest, whether
directly or indirectly, in the above transactions, the transactions were
conducted in the ordinary course of business of the Group on normal

commercial terms.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the Group’s purchases attributable to the Group's five
largest suppliers and the Group's turnover attributable to the Group’s
five largest customers were less than 30% respectively. None of the
directors, their associates or any shareholder (which to the knowledge
of the directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital) has any interest in the Group's five largest suppliers or

customers.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES
During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Company and its
subsidiaries have not purchased, sold or redeemed any of the shares in

the Company.
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SHAREHOLDINGS INFORMATION

HRER

TOP 10 LARGEST SHAREHOLDERS FREKRSMN10IRER
According to the register of members of the Company as at 31 REAQXAFARREFZMOER  RZT—=
December 2013, the top 10 largest shareholders are as follows: FH_A=+—BEREFEMI0L AT
T
Number of Shares held %
Name of Shareholder RREE BERDER BAL
1. Chong Hing (Nominees) Ltd. AR () BRAF 159,837,256 )
2. HKSCCNominees Limited BERPREE (REAN)BERAA 131,411,130 3471
3. AlbaHoldings Ltd. EESEERAR 35,000,222 975
4. BTMU Nominees (HK) Ltd. BTMU Nominees (HK) Ltd. 10,000,000 264
5. Leung Hok Pang Leung Hok Pang 8,020,000 212
6. Win Ever (Nominees) Ltd. Win Ever (Nominees) Ltd. 8,000,000 M
7. Wragg Ltd. Wragg Ltd. 2,538,000 067
8. Cheng Kee Hong Cheng Kee Hong 2,000,000 053
9. Cheng Kee Man Cheng Kee Man 1,850,000 0.49
10.  ToMan Tuen To Man Tuen 1,738,000 0.46
Total £R 360,394,608 9520




LOCATION OF SHAREHOLDERS
According to the register of members of the Company as at 31

December 2013, the location of shareholders are as follows:

B3R 4 1
READAREERMO LR - R-B—=
A=+ —EREHHIT :

Number of Shares held %
Location of Shareholders R4 BERRPYE Bk
Hong Kong &b 378,521,140 99.9835
China and South East Asia FERREE 36,060 0.0095
Europe BOM 800 0.0002
US and Canada ZERMER 16,860 0.0045
Others ity 8,580 0.0023
Total &t 378,583,440 100

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT RARARERE

The Group has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the year
ended 31 December 2013.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Companies Ordinance requires the directors to prepare financial
statements for each financial year which give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at the end of the
financial year and of their respective profit or loss for the year then
ended. In preparing the financial statements, the directors are required
to select suitable accounting policies and apply them on a consistent
basis, making judgments and estimates that are prudent, fair and
reasonable; state the reasons for any significant departure from
accounting standards; prepare the financial statements on the going
concern basis, unless it is not appropriate to presume that the Company

and the Group will continue in business for the foreseeable future.

The directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records, for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and of the Group and taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other

irregularities.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The members of the Audit Committee are shown on page 84. The
principal duties of the Audit Committee are reviewing the internal
controls and the financial reporting requirements of the Group. The
Audit Committee meeting will normally hold twice of each financial
year immediate before the Board of Directors meeting for approving the
interim and final results. The Committee is satisfied with the Company’s

internal control procedures and the financial reporting disclosures.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Nomination Committee report is shown on page 39. The report showed
the main duty and the work performed by the Committee during the
year of 2013.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Remuneration Committee report is show on page 40. The report stated
the main duty and work done by the Committee during the year of
2013.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company has substantially complied throughout the year ended 31
December 2013 with those paragraphs of the Corporate Governance
Code as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on Stock Exchange, with which it is required to report

compliance.

Guidelines and procedures for corporate governance of the Company

are set out on pages 60 to 82.
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AUDITORS

The financial statements for the year have been audited by Messrs.
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu who have expressed their willingness to
continue in office. Accordingly, a resolution will be submitted to the
forthcoming annual general meeting to reappoint Messrs. Deloitte

Touche Tohmatsu as auditors of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Mr. Liu Lit Chi

Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 26 February 2014
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT BiZZ 88K &

The Audit Committee is made up of five members, a majority of whom

are Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company.

The Committee oversees the financial reporting system and internal
control procedures. In this process, management is principally
responsible for the preparation of group financial statements including
the selection of suitable accounting policies. External auditors are
responsible for auditing and attesting to group financial statements and
will report to the management of the Company from time to time on
any weakness in controls which come to their attention. The Audit
Committee oversees the respective work of management and external
auditors to ensure the management has discharged its duty to have an

effective internal control procedures.
The Audit Committee had performed the works were as follows:

To review the audited financial statements of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2013;

To review the interim results of the Company for the six months
ended 30 June 2013;

To review and monitor the external auditors’ independence;
To review the system of internal control of the Company;

To review the audit plan and the engagement from external

auditors;

. To make recommendation on the re-appointment of external

auditors; and

. To review the sufficiency of manpower resources of account and

finance team of the group in order to carry out the duties.

It was reported that no major internal control weakness was found and
all the recommendations previously suggested by auditors were agreed

and implemented by the management in 2013.

Based on these review and discussions, and the report of the external
auditors, the Audit Committee recommended to the Board of Directors
approval of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31

December 2013 with the Auditors’ Report thereon.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT Bl L 88 &2

The Committee recommended to the Board that the shareholders be
asked to re-appoint Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as the Company’s

external auditors for 2014.

Members of the Audit Committee
Mr. Tong Tsin Ka (Chairman)

Dr. Cheng Mo Chi, Moses

Mr. Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher

Mr. Au Kam Yuen, Arthur

Dr. Ma Hung Ming, John

Hong Kong, 25 February 2014

BERZEENEZTEER SHRRIER
By . aRsetmiTAsrEE—F—0
F R 2 SNISAZBRED ©

EREEERE
BRFSTE(EE)
BREFL

FPERR LS

& 8RR 5T 4
HIEsRE L

FE5 —E—WFE_A_-+HH



NOMINATION COMMITTEE REPORT & Z 88K EE

The Nomination Committee (“NC”) consists of six members, a majority
of whom are Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company.

The main duty of the Committee is (i) to review the structure, size and
composition of the Board and make recommendations on any
proposed changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy; (ii) to identify individuals suitably qualified to
become directors of the Company and select or make
recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals
nominated for directorships; (iii) to assess the independence of
Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company; and (iv) make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-appointment
of the directors and succession plan for directors, in particular the
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company.

The NC discharges its responsibilities by reference to the terms of
reference which setting out their roles, responsibilities and duties. The
terms of reference were duly authorized by the Board.

In year 2013, the NC had reviewed and discussed the following issues at
its meetings:

1. to review the composition and structure of Board of Directors of
the Company.

2. toreview the attendance record of directors of the Company.
3. toreview the scope of responsibilities of directors of the Company.

4. to recommend the Board for the appointment of additional
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in order to
comply with the requirement under the Listing Rules.

5. to review and confirm the independence of all the Independent
Non-executive Directors.

The NC is accountable to the Board and minutes of the meeting are
circulated to the Board for information.

The NC meets when required but at least once per year.

Members of the Nomination Committee
Dr. Liu Lit Mo (Chairman)

Dr. Cheng Mo Chi, Moses

Mr. Tong Tsin Ka

Mtr. Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher

Mr. Au Kam Yuen, Arthur

Dr. Ma Hung Ming, John

Hong Kong, 25 February 2014
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE REPORT &8l &

The Remuneration Committee (“RC”) consists of five members, a
majority of whom are Independent Non-executive Directors of the

Company.

The main duty of the Committee is to formulate the Company’s
remuneration policy as well as to determine and/or make
recommendation to the Board with regard to the structure of
remuneration packages for all directors and senior management. When
necessary and appropriate, the Chairman and Managing Director are

consulted on such issues.

The RC discharges its responsibilities by reference to the terms of
reference which setting out their roles, responsibilities and duties. The

terms of reference were duly authorized by the Board.

The RC, having consulted with the Chairman of the Board, had reviewed

and discussed the following issues at its meeting;

To review the Company’s policy, structure and the remunerations

packages for all directors and senior management

To determine and/or make recommendation to the Board of the

Directors'’ fees and other allowance for the year 2014; and

To review and approve the annual performance bonus and its
policy.

The RC is accountable to the Board and minutes of the meeting are

circulated to the Board for information.

The RC meets when required but at least once per year.

Members of the Remuneration Committee
Dr. Cheng Mo Chi, Moses (Chairman)

Mr. Tong Tsin Ka

Mtr. Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher

Mr. Au Kam Yuen, Arthur

Dr. Ma Hung Ming, John

Hong Kong, 25 February 2014
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SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS &1 #5 #§ 2

2012
—E—_F
HK$’000 HKS$'000
BT I BT
Revenue Wz 403,488 365,428 10.4
Profit for the year attributable to DEERARFIREZ
owners of the Company REERF 543,460 O 132
Basic earnings per share BREREF BHE HKS1.44 7T T HKS1.27 7T 134
Net assets value per share BREEFE B HKS34.38 7T TS HKS3247 7T 59
Dividend per share FRRE
Interim FHj B¥EHKS0.10 T 75 #E HK$0.10 7T =
Final AR EA ¥ HKS0.18 7T P55 HKS0.18 7T =
Total AH B ¥ HKS0.28 7T 75 HE HKS028 T =
Dividend payout ratio R B b =R 19% 22% (3)
Special cash dividend (note) KRR MR B (MisE) B HKS2.8 7T - 100
Distribution in specie (note) Bk (M) 1 share of CHB - N/A
for every 10 shares T EA

of the Company
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note:  The payment of special cash dividend and distribution of CHB Shares were due to the completion of Partial Offer for disposal of CHB Shares.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS &2 [z 51 m & 9 i
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BUSINESS REVIEW AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE % #CIAK A 8 &5
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS &2 [z 51 m & 9 i

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the consolidated profits of the
Group amounted to approximately HK$825.7 million (basic earnings
per share of HK$1.44) comparing to the year 2012 of HK$758.3 million
(basic earnings per share of HK$1.27), representing an increase of

approximately 8.9%.

Profit from continuing operations amounted to approximately
HK$273.5 million while profit from discontinued operations amounted

to approximately HK$552.2 million.

CONTINUING OPERATIONS
Revenue mainly referred to the revenues generated from property
investment, property development, property management, treasury

investment, trading & manufacturing and hotel operations.

Other income referred to various miscellaneous incomes other than the

main revenue.

Administrative and operating expenses decreased by 12.5% from
approximately HK$165.2 million in 2012 to approximately HK$144.6

million in 2013.

Other gains and losses mainly comprised of gain on changes in fair value
on investment properties, gains on disposal of available-for-sale

investments, and net exchange gains.

The Grand Riviera, Foshan {# 111 22 34 £ M 18
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DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

Discontinued operations represented the operating results of CHB and
its subsidiaries. In 2013, the profit from CHB had increased from
approximately HK$544.7 million in 2012 to approximately HK$552.2
million in 2013. Profit for the year from CHB attributable to the owners
of the Company increased from approximately HK$269.6 million in 2012
to approximately HK$274.6 million in 2013.

CHB's operating profits for the year had increased by 17.8% to HK$1,352
million which include the increase of net interest income (21.2% up)
and net fee and commission income (10.9% up). However, the net profit
for the year was heavily reduced by the new impairment allowance on
loans and advances of approximately HK$100.5 million, resulting in a

modest increase of 1.4% growth.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS &2 [z 51 m & 9 i

DISPOSAL OF CHONG HING BANK SHARES

On 25 October 2013, Yuexiu Financial Holdings Limited (the “Offeror”)
announced to make a voluntary conditional cash Partial Offer to acquire
a maximum of 326,250,000 CHB Shares (representing 75% of the CHB
Shares in issue as at the date of the announcement) from qualifying
Bank shareholders at an offer price of HK$35.69 per CHB Share.

The Offeror also announced that CHB entered into the property
agreement with the Company, the controlling shareholder of CHB, for
the property transfer and the lease. Completion of the property transfer
is conditional upon the receipt by LCH Estate of payment in full of the
consideration for the LCH Estate irrevocable undertaking shares taken

up by the Offeror in accordance with the terms of the Partial Offer.

Upon the Partial Offer becoming unconditional, each shareholder of
CHB:

(1) will receive a payment of HK$35.69 in cash for every Share of CHB
in respect of which that Shareholder of CHB validly accepts the
Partial Offer and which is taken up by the Offeror under the
Partial Offer;

(2)  will receive a special interim dividend of HK$4.5195 in cash for
every Share of CHB which that Shareholder of CHB holds as at the

record date.
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Upon settlement of the Partial Offer on 14 February 2014, the Group
had disposed a total of 167,951,210 CHB Shares in returning for net total
cash proceeds of approximately HK$5,963.2 million and making gains on
disposal of CHB Shares of approximately HK$3,466.7 million. The Group
continued to hold 50,408,418 CHB Shares which representing 11.59% of
CHB issued shares.

Due to the undertaking made to Stock Exchange to procure the Group
to reduce the remaining CHB Shares for the purpose of maintaining the
minimum public float of CHB Shares, the Company declared the
distribution of CHB Shares to be satisfied by way of a distribution in
specie. For such, the Group will distribute one CHB Shares for every
whole multiples of 10 shares of the Company, a total of 37,858,344 CHB
Shares would be distributed to the shareholders of the Company. After
the distribution, the Group continued to hold 12,550,074 CHB Shares, it

represents 2.89% shares interests in CHB.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS &2 [z 51 m & 9 i

POSITIVE FINANCIAL IMPACT

The transaction with Yue Xiu group for the disposal of CHB Shares
certainly brought positive financial impact to the Group. Through the
shares disposal, the investment potential and the intrinsic value of CHB
could be realized. The long undervalue investment in CHB as showing in
the balance sheet were now realized and had turn into a significant cash
balance. The Group’s net asset value and profits were therefore
increased. Shareholders value was further enhanced and shareholders
were also beneficial to receiving special cash dividend and the
distribution of CHB Shares. After repaying all bank borrowings, the
Company will become debt free with stronger cash resources for future
other investment.

CHONG HING BANK CENTRE, HEADQUARTER

Immediately after the completion of disposal of CHB Shares, the
Company had acquired the Chong Hing Bank Centre, CHB's previous
headquarter located at 24 Des Voeux Road, Central, at total cash
consideration of HK$2,230 million. All the net sale proceeds received by
CHB were paid out by way of special dividend to those existing
shareholders on the record date. As a result, the Group had received a
special dividend of approximately HK$986.8 million.

According to the tenancy agreement entered into between CHB, having
retained several floors for the Company’s own use, the building was
leased to CHB for five years with option for another five years at annual
rental (excluding management fees, government rent and rates, and
services charges) of approximately HK$67.92 million. Such move could
definitely strengthen the Group’s investment property portfolio and
recurring rental revenue in the coming years.

—
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FUTURE DEVELOPMENT

Having completed the disposal of CHB Shares, the Company could
continue to focus on its core business including property investment
and development, property management, hotel business, treasury
investment and trading and manufacturing business and at the same
time consider other investments opportunities.

As the above transactions were completed in February 2014, all financial
figures relating to the transaction will be updated and reported in the
financial statements for the year of 2014.

SPECIAL CASH DIVIDEND

On 26 February 2014, the Board announced that due to the completion
of Partial Offer for disposal of CHB Shares, a special cash dividend of
HK$2.80 was declared to the shareholders of the Company to show the
appreciation of their continuous support of the Company in the past
years.

DISTRIBUTION IN SPECIE

The Board also announced that a special dividend in the form of a
Distribution in Specie being 37,858,344 CHB Shares will be distributed to
the shareholders of the Company on a pro-rata basis in proportion of
one CHB Shares for every 10 Shares of the Company. Based on the
closing price of HK$27.10 per CHB Share as traded on the Stock
Exchange on the last trading date before the date of announcement,
the aggregate market value to be distributed under the Distribution
amount approximately HK$1,026 million.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS &2 [z 51 m & 9 i

PROPERTY INVESTMENT

OVERALL RENTAL REVENUE

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group recorded gross rental
revenue of HK$268.0 million, representing 4.4% increase comparing to
that of 2012. Increase of rental revenue of HK$11.7 million (13.2% up)
from Chong Hing Square was partially offset by the decrease of rental
revenue of HK$2.9 million from Western Harbour Centre since all

tenants had been moved out of the office building in May 2012.

OVERALL OCCUPANCIES
The Group's overall occupancies from their major investment properties

was successfully maintained at 90% as at year ended 2013.

HONG KONG PROPERTIES

CHONG HING SQUARE

Chong Hing Square, a 20-storey popular ginza-type retail/commercial
development situated in the heart of Mongkok, Kowloon, offers over
182,000 square feet of retail and recreational space. For the year ended
31 December 2013, Chong Hing Square was well performed. It generated
annual revenue of approximately HK$100.1 million, representing an
increase of HK$11.7 million (13.2% up) and the building was fully let as

at year end.
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CHONG YIP CENTRE

Chong Yip Centre is located at 402-404 Des Voeux Road West, it
provides over 54,000 square feet of retail and commercial space. For the
year ended 31 December 2013, this retail and commercial shopping
centre generated rental revenue of HK$20 million (4.1% up) with 80%

occupancy.

FAIRVIEW COURT

Fairview Court is located at 94 Repulse Bay Road. It provides 5 units,
each of areas over 4,100 square feet, luxury apartment on a low-rise
building. For the year ended 31 December 2013, Fairview Court recorded

rental revenue of HK$5.5 million (13.8% down) with 60% occupancy.

WESTERN HARBOUR CENTRE

Western Harbour Centre, a 28-storey grade A office building, located at
181-183 Connaught Road West, Hong Kong, close proximity to the
Western Harbour Tunnel, provides over 140,000 square feet office space
for lease. The management planned to renovate the Western Harbour
Centre into a lifestyle business hotel or service apartment. Application
to Town Planning Board for changing the existing usage into hotel use
by the Group had been approved. Since all tenants had been moved
out of the building in May 2012, no rental revenue was recorded in
2013.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS &2 [z 51 m & 9 i

PRC PROPERTIES

CHONG HING FINANCE CENTER, SHANGHAI

Chong Hing Finance Center, Shanghai is located at 288, Nanjing Road
West, Huang Pu District, Shanghai. This 36-storey grade A office/
commercial building, completed in 2008, provides over 516,000 square
feet of office and commercial space and 198 carparking spaces for lease.
For the year ended 31 December 2013, this grade A office/commercial
building generated rental revenue of HK$138.2 million, similar to the
year 2012. Office tower was 85% let and commercial and retail areas

were fully let as at year ended 2013.

PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT

HONG KONG

TAI PO, NEW TERRITORIES

The group had acquired a 262,000 square feet plot of land in Tai Po
district, New Territories. The management had initiated the studies for
rezoning and intended to seek eventual conversion of this land for

future residential use.
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PRC

THE GRAND RIVIERA, FOSHAN

In 2007, the Group acquired a plot of land with site area of over 260,000
square metres in Luocun, Foshan through government land auction at a
cash consideration of RMB476 million. This is a comprehensive
development and will be developed by phases. The first phase
development constructed 12 blocks of 6-14 storey residential flats above
the ground. A total of 847 residential flat units with sizes ranging from
55 to 400 square metres are provided. It also provides retail and
commercial areas of approximately 8,600 square metres and a stand-
alone clubhouse of approximately 6,800 square metres, if including
other recreational facilities areas and 1,246 car parking spaces mainly
built at the basement level, total construction areas are over 181,000

square metres.

The first phase development was completed in 2011 and the
construction completion certificate was also obtained in December
2011. As at the year ended 2013, a total of 417 residential flat units
(representing 49% of the total units) and 169 car parking units

(representing 15% of the total units) were successfully sold out fetching

total cash proceeds of approximately RMB339 million.
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GRAND JARDIN, FOSHAN

The Group commenced the construction of phase Il Grand Jardin since
June 2013. In the phase Il development, it constructed 12 blocks of
14-storey residential flats above the ground. A total of 1,542 residential
flat units with developable areas over 145,000 square metres. If including
the retail and commercial areas of approximately 2,100 square metres,
other amenities areas of approximately 3,500 square metres and 1,196
car parking spaces mainly built at the basement levels, the total
developable areas of phase Il was over 191,000 square metres. For the
size of residential units, it only provided three typical sizes with areas of

60,90 and 120 square metres.

The Group started the pre-sale of phase Il in January 2014. Block 13 to
block 17 with areas of approximately 55,478 square metres, providing
over 632 residential flats units (mainly 90 square metres for each unit)
were put up for sale in the market. Due to the popular size areas and
quality of the property, the sale response was overwhelming. As at the
board meeting on 26 February 2014, a total of 242 residential flat units,
representing 38% of flat units for pre-sale, were successfully sold out

returning sale proceeds of approximately RMB137.2 million.

According to the construction schedule and the time line for getting
pre-sale consent, the remaining blocks of phase Il would be scheduled
to launch in May 2014.
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BUDGET HOTEL PROJECT

Since 2008, the Group had started to operate budget hotel business. In
2013, the Group continued to operate four budget hotels, two in
Shanghai, one in Beijing and one in Guangzhou. All of these budget

hotels are managed by and under the brand name of Hanting.

For the year ended 31 December 2013, all hotels had achieved
improvements in business revenue, occupancies and average room rate.
The total revenue had increased from approximately HK$49.1 million in
2012 to approximately HK$51.2 million in 2013. The management is

optimistic about the future hotel business.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Group's shareholders’ funds increased from HK$8,596.3 million as at
37 December 2012 to HKS$9,119.3 million as at 31 December 2013,
representing a net increase of HK$523.0 million. The increase in
shareholders’ funds was attributed to (a) profit attributable to the
owners of the Group of HK$543.5 million; (b) net increase of investment
revaluation reserves and exchange reserves totalling HK$85.5 million;
and (c) dividend paid of HK$106 million.
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FINANCE AND TREASURY OPERATIONS

BANK BORROWINGS MOVEMENT

As at 31 December 2013, the Group’s consolidated net debts being
bank borrowings less cash and bank deposits increased from HK$2,992.3
million to HK$2,961.7 million.

The management is well aware that a high gearing level will not only
undermine the company’s long-term stability but also restrict its
flexibility for any new business venture. The management would
continue to closely monitor the gearing level so as to maintain a low

debt-to-equity ratio.

The Board had decided that the Company would primarily reduce the
existing bank borrowings by using the cash proceeds from the disposal
of CHB Shares. After repaying all bank borrowings, the Company will

become debr free and will record positive cash balance.

BANKING FACILITIES
The total outstanding bank borrowings as at 31 December 2013 was

77% unsecured with almost 100% being on committed basis.

In managing the debt portfolio, the Group has endeavoured to maintain
diversified sources of funding. Currently, the major source of financing is
still coming from the banking sector, in which the Group has bilateral
banking facilities with over 13 banks, most of which have established

long relationship with the Group.

The Group has also raised funding from arranging syndicated loans in
the past. The management will consider to widen the funding source
from capital market if both of the market conditions and terms are

favourable to the Company.
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COST OF FUNDING
In this year, the net borrowing margins in the money market were

increased.

The Group’s weighted average cost of borrowing was increased slightly
during the year. The management expected that the cost of funding
paid for renewing of banking facilities would be increased gradually as
most banks would charge a higher interest rate to protect their business

risk.

LIQUIDITY RISK AND CASH BALANCES

It is the Group’s financial policy to maintain low leverage and high
liquidity. To maintain sufficient liquidity will not only help the Group to
fulfill all short term payment obligations but also to improve the

Group’s working capital.

Liquidity mainly comes from recurring rental income of various
investment properties, cash sale proceeds from various completed and
uncompleted development projects, dividend from CHB and

committed banking facilities.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS &2 8z 51 5m & 7 i

LOAN MATURITY ANALYSIS

Liquidity risk could also be reduced by extending the loan tenors. The
Group’s debt maturity portfolio is spread out over a medium term, with
11% of debts becoming due within 2 years, and 41% of debts becoming
due over 2 but within 5 years respectively. Such a maturity structure

allows the Group taking more flexibility on refinancing measures.

RISK MANAGEMENT

In managing interest rate and foreign exchange exposures, the Group
may use certain derivative instruments such as interest rate swaps, Cross
currency swaps, forward rate agreements and foreign exchange
contracts. It is the Group's policy to allow using derivatives as hedging

purposes only.

With respect to the counterparty risk of the derivatives, the Group
transacts only with financial institutions with strong investment-grade

ratings.

INTEREST RATE EXPOSURE

The volatility and uncertainty of the movement of interest rate may
result in a potential negative impact to the Group’s financial position.
Given that, the management will actively involve and review the

movement of interest rate so as to minimize the financial impact.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE
It is the Group’s policy to minimize mismatch in currency and not to

speculate in currency movement.

As at year ended 31 December 2013, other foreign exchange exposure
related to some major investments in Guangzhou, Shanghai and Foshan
projects which altogether amounted to the equivalent of about
HK$4,557 million or 47.7% of the Group's assets.

EMPLOYEE AND EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Group’s remuneration policy, having been advised and determined
by the Remuneration Committee, will ensure that the pay levels of its
employees are reasonable and competitive in the market and their total
rewards including basic salary and bonus system are linked with their
performance. The members and the work done of Remuneration

Committee are shown on page 40.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES
The Group continues to participate and sponsor various activities

organised by various charitable activities.

The Hong Kong Council of Social Service conferred the Caring Company

to the Group for the sixth consecutive years.

ANNUAL REPORT AWARDS

The Group's annual report in 2012 won Silver Winner in “Property
Development: Mid-to-High End Residential” category and Bronze
Winner in “Investment Holding Company” category of International
ARC Awards. These awards exhibited the high quality of contents and

production of the annual reports has been affirmed and appreciated.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT [t X EBIREE

During the financial year ended 31 December 2013, the Company has
substantially complied with the Provisions of the Corporate Governance
Code (the “Corporate Governance Code” or the “Code”) as set out in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing
Rules”) on Stock Exchange with the exception of part of deviation as set
out under the paragraphs on “Chairman and Managing Director: clear

division of responsibilities” below.

GUIDELINES AND PROCEDURES FOR CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY

(A) CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CHART

The Board is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance for the purpose of enhancing long term shareholders value.
The corporate governance chart adopted by the Company could refer
to Liu Chong Hing Investment Limited Simplified Organization Chart

on page 36.

(B) DIRECTORS

(1) THE BOARD: RESPONSIBILITY FOR LEADERSHIP AND
CONTROL OF THE COMPANY
The Board is accountable to the shareholders for leadership and
supervision of the senior management for the purpose of creating
long term shareholders value by sustaining a growing and

successful business.

The principal task of the Board is to set objective, formulate

strategy and to monitor the operating and financial performance.

Duties of the Board include approving interim reports and annual
reports, announcements and press release of interim and final
results, considering the dividend policy, and approving the issue,
allotment or disposal or grant of options in respect of unissued

new shares of the Company.
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CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR: CLEAR DIVISION
OF RESPONSIBILITIES

During the year of 2013, the role of Chairman and the Managing
Director of the Company has not been segregated as required by
the code provision A2.1 of the Code. The Board considers this
arrangement is in the best interest of the Company that by nature
of the Group'’s business which requires considerable market
expertise and Dr. Liu Lit Mo, with his profound expertise in the
property and banking business, shall continue in his dual capacity

as the Chairman and Managing Director.

On 26 February 2014, the Board of Directors of the Company
announced that Dr. Liu Lit Mo, ceased to be the Managing
Director of the Company with immediate effect. Dr. Liu continued
to be the Chairman of the Board and Mr. Liu Lit Chi was
appointed as Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer of
the Company. The clear division of responsibilities under the code

provision was then complied.

Managing Director assumes overall responsibility for Group’s
operation and performance by delegating duties to different
executive directors and senior management to achieve targeted
objectives. The Board gives clear directions to management as to
their powers of management, circumstance in which the

management should make report.

BOARD COMPOSITION: BALANCE AND INDEPENDENCE

The Board currently comprises five Executive Directors, four Non-
executive Directors and four Independent Non-executive
Directors of the full Board. During the year ended 31 December
2013, the number of Independent Non-executive Directors of the
Company was less than one-third of the Board as required under
Rule 3.10A of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
Stock Exchange. The Company, however, on 7 March 2014 had
appointed one additional Independent Non-executive Director, so
that the requirement for meeting one-third Independent Non-

executive Directors of the Board was then complied.
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The appointment of Independent Non-executive Directors strictly
adheres to the guidelines for assessing independence set out in
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company has received written
confirmation of their independence from each of the Independent

Non-executive Directors.

The Board considers that the four Independent Non-executive
Directors are free from any business or other relationship which
might interfere with the exercise of their independent judgment
and each of Independent Non-executive Directors brings their

own relevant expertise to the Board.

The presence of all Independent Non-executive Directors could

ensure that the Board functions effectively and independently.

All of the Independent Non-executive Directors are also the
Committee Members of the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee. In short, the three
committees have a majority of Independent Non-executive

Directors.

In addition, the Company has set up the Corporate Governance
Committee on 7 March 2012 comprising four Executive Directors
and two Independent Non-executive Directors to perform the

corporate governance duties.

The biographies of the Directors appear on pages 88 to 96. These
demonstrate diversity of experience and calibre of the Board in

making management decisions.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT [t X EBIREE
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(Iv) APPOINTMENTS, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL

The Nomination Committee is mainly responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-

appointment of directors and succession planning for directors.

Those Directors who have been longest in office as at each annual
general meeting will retire from office and be subjected to re-

election.

For newly appointed directors, they are required to submit
themselves to shareholders for re-election to the Board at the first

annual general meeting following their appointment.

The Directors have entered into a letter of appointment with the
Company and were appointed for a specific term, subject to
re-election and retirement by rotation at least once every three

years in accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association.

Code Provision A.4.2 stipulates that every director shall be subject
to retirement by rotation at least once every three years. Under
the Article 99 of the Company’s articles of association, all directors
are subject to retirement by rotation except the Managing
Director who shall not be subject to retirement by rotation under

Avrticles 107 of the Company’s articles of association.

Details of the term of appointment of all the Non-executive

Directors and Independent Non-executive Directors are as follows:

(i)  to perform such functions and exercise such powers as are
appropriate to your position as an Independent Non-
executive Directors or Non-executive Directors of the

Company;

(i)  to comply with all laws, rules and regulations applicable to
you as a director of the Company, including but not limit to
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on Stock

Exchange; and

(i) to notify the Board of Directors of the Company
immediately upon the occurrence of, or the directors
becoming aware of, any matter which may affect their

independence.
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(V)

(vn

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS: GENERAL DUTIES,
SHARE DEALINGS

The Directors fully appreciate their role and duties as directors
with supportive commitment of creating a healthy corporate

governance culture.

On appointment, new Directors will be given an introduction to
the Group’s major business activities, induction into their

responsibilities and duties, and other regulatory requirements.

The Company Secretary is responsible for keeping all Directors
updated on Listing Rules and other relevant regulatory

requirements.

Throughout the year, Directors complied with the required
standard set out in the Model Code in Appendix 10 of the Listing
Rules regarding Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed

[ssuers.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT
Code Provision A6.5 proposes that all directors should participate
in continuous professional development to develop and refresh

their knowledge and skills.

All directors are well aware of the requirement of attending
continuous professional training for the year ending 31 December
2014.
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(C) BOARD PROCESS

m

MEETINGS: MATTERS RESERVED FOR FULL BOARD
DECISION AND GENERAL PROCEEDINGS

In order to achieve a high standard of corporate governance and
in compliance with the requirement as mentioned under
Appendix 14 — Corporate Governance Code, the Board has
performed to hold full Board meeting at least quarterly during the
year 2013.

Matters reserved for full Board decision include material bank
facilities arrangement, material acquisitions and disposals of assets,
material transactions with connected parties, significant
investments including large capital projects, delegation of
authority, treasury and risk management policy, any matters
involving a conflict of interest for a substantial shareholder or

director.

All Directors have access to the Company Secretary who is
responsible for ensuring that the Board procedures are complied
with and advises the Board on corporate governance and

compliance matters.

The Company Secretary is responsible for taking minutes of Board
and Board Committee meetings, which are normally circulated to
Directors for comment within a reasonable time after each
meeting and the final signed version is sent to all Directors for

their records and open for Directors’ inspection.

All Directors are allowed to take independent professional advice

at Company’s expense.

There is in place a directors’ and officers’ liabilities insurance cover.
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Details of Directors’ 2013 meetings attendance are set out below:

ST CAEEERRRT L AR
o -

Number of Attendance
meeting attended Rate
HESZERA HEE
Executive Directors HTEE
Liu Lit Mo, BoIR
Chairman and Managing Director (FEHFEEHETE) 8/8 100%
Liu Lit Chi B 8/8 100%
Liu Kam Fai, Winston, BeE
Deputy Managing Director (BIEFHLE) 8/8 100%
Liu Kwun Shing, Christopher 2851
(also alternate director to Dr. Liu Lit Chung) (TBBFEBEZELESE) 8/8 100%
Lee Wai Hung FEE 8/8 100%
Non-executive Directors *HTES
Liu Lit Chung BALE 8/8 100%
Andrew Liu B 4/3 50%
Liu Chun Ning, Wilfred BiE 7/8 88%
Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher B 8/8 100%
Independent Non-executive Directors BAFHTES
Ng Ping Kin, Peter HRE 0/4 0%
Cheng Mo Chi, Moses 58 7/8 88%
Tong Tsin Ka EEXR 8/8 100%
Au Kam Yuen, Arthur &SRR 7/8 88%
Ma Hung Ming, John Btk 6/8 75%

(1) SUPPLY OF INFORMATION: QUALITY AND TIMELINESS
The Company attaches great importance to continually improve
on the quality and timeliness of the dissemination of information

to the Directors.

The Chairman is responsible for ensuring adequate supply of

information to the Directors.

The agenda and accompanying board papers will be sent in full to
all Directors in a timely manner (we aim to give relevant
documents at least five clear days replacing current practice of at
least three clear days in advance of meeting). Where appropriate,

communications are sent electronically.

(m

SRHR M - SRR
BENENETEREN 2GRN
HRARNA BRI -

IRARAREAESRETRER -

AIEMEEN 2 EF X RE R
RXFBES(BEREEEARESE S
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BR&D=HZEH) - FABEBAKIA
ETREABRMNER)



(D)

All Directors are currently provided with quarterly management
reports which showing the Group’'s financial and operating results
with detailed analysis of those major rental properties, property

under development and other investments.

A full Board meeting, held by each quarter, were regularly taken
for the purpose of reviewing and updating the Company’s
business and operating results with reference to the quarterly

management report.

Managing Director is currently holding monthly internal
management meeting with various department heads to update
Directors on their lines of business and to review performance for

delegated assignment.

All Executive Directors are currently provided with monthly
management accounts of the Company which give an updated

position/performance of the Company.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS
Procedures for Remuneration Committee to set Directors and

Senior Management’s remuneration policy:

The Company has set up Remuneration Committee on 3 March
2005. Its terms of reference are to review and determine the

remuneration packages for all Directors and Senior Management.

The Remuneration Committee is chaired by the Independent
Non-executive Director, Dr. Cheng Mo Chi, Moses and has a

majority of Independent Non-executive Directors.

Its other current members are Mr. Tong Tsin Ka, Mr. Au Kam
Yuen, Arthur and Dr. Ma Hung Ming, John (those are
Independent Non-executive Directors) and Mr. Kho Eng Tjoan,

Christopher (a Non-executive Director).
The Committee meets at least once per annum.
The main duties of the Committee include the followings:

(i)  to make recommendations to the Board on or determine
the Company’s policy and structure for all directors and
senior management remuneration and on the establishment
of a formal and transparent procedure for developing

remuneration policy;

(D)
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(i) to determine, with delegated responsibility, the
remuneration packages of individual executive directors and
senior management, including benefits in kind, pension
rights and compensation payment, including any
compensation payable for loss or termination of their office

or appointment;

(ii)  to make recommendations to the Board on or determine

the remuneration of Non-executive Directors;

(iv) to review and approve the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board's corporate goals and

objectives.

Details of 2013 Remuneration Committee meeting attendance are

set out below:

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT [t X EBIREE

(i) EEBIENATEERSRE
BABZHMEFE SREEDH
7 RAREBMNEEEER 2
BEMRERKIEBBREREL

BR1E

(i) BEEFATEEZFMARES
SRR

(v BREEFSZAFERIENSE
B MBI B

—T - =EFMESReRZ AR
0T :

Number of Attendance
meeting attended Rate
HEEZRA HEE

Members of Remuneration Committee FHWEESHE
Cheng Mo Chi, Moses, Chairman B2 (1E) 01 0%
Ng Ping Kin, Peter h3RER 01 0%
Tong Tsin Ka EEX 11 100%
Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher B 17 100%
Au Kam Yuen, Arthur [ 11 100%
Ma Hung Ming, John 5tk 11 100%
Cavior Liu, Secretary BHEm2) 11 100%

[}
)

£10Z 1¥OJ3Y IVANNY | @ILIWI LNFWLSIANI ONIH ONOHD N

The Committee is authorized by the Board to oversee and
determine the remuneration of Executive Directors and Senior

Management.

No Director is involved in deciding his own remuneration. On
matters other than those concerning him, the Chairman or
Managing Director may be invited to Committee meetings to give

advices.

Committee members are allowed under certain procedures to
take independent professional advice at Company’s expense for

making and determining the remuneration package proposal.

The Committee will present a report to the Board after each

meeting, which addresses its work and findings.

FESEEESREERKETENTE
ENESREBABZHFN  WattiRg
e
EEVELEABETHEARAZHFHIRTE
KREMESHAS TR EFELE
ZEIEN EFREFREEA ERH
FBEEGZEHNRERE
BEETERF  ZEeXERERER
MNETFNEEIREMABIEEES
R AXBAARRE)HEE -
ZEENEBAEHEEARNEESERE

BETHEBARENER 2RE -



(E)
m

()

The Committee will make recommendation to the Board
regarding the remuneration, comprising directors’ fees for all Non-
executive Directors, for shareholders approval at the Annual

General Meeting.

Details on the mandate and summary of the work by the
Remuneration Committee during the year are set out in the

Remuneration Committee Report on page 40.

The terms of reference of Remuneration Committee are available

on the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange'’s website.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

FINANCIAL REPORTING: BALANCED, CLEAR AND
COMPREHENSIVE ASSESSMENT OF COMPANY’S
PERFORMANCE, POSITION OF PROSPECTS

The Board believes that it presents a comprehensive, balanced and
understandable assessment of the Group position and prospects

in all shareholder communications.

The Board fully appreciates its responsibilities regarding the

preparation of financial statements.

AUDIT COMMITTEE AND AUDITORS: TERMS OF
REFERENCE AND RELATIONSHIP WITH MANAGEMENT
AND EXTERNAL AUDITORS

The Audit Committee is chaired by the Independent Non-
executive Director, Mr. Tong Tsin Ka and has a majority of

Independent Non-executive Directors.

Its other current members are Dr. Cheng Mo Chi, Moses, Mr. Au
Kam Yuen, Arthur and Dr. Ma Hung Ming, John (those are
Independent Non-executive Directors) and Mr. Kho Eng Tjoan,
Christopher (a Non-executive Director). All members have
experience in reviewing and analyzing audited financial statements

of public companies or major organization.

The Committee meets not less than twice per annum. Meetings
are also attended by invitation by the Chairman, the Managing
Director and Executive Director who is in charge of finance
matters. The Committee also meets not less than twice per

annum with the Company’s auditors.
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The main duties of the Committee include the followings:

()

(ii)

(i)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

x)

to be primarily responsible for making recommendations to
the Board on the appointment, reappointment and removal
of the external auditor, and to approve the remuneration
and terms of engagement of the external auditor, and any

questions of its resignation or dismissal;

to review and monitor the external auditor’s independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in

accordance with applicable standards;

to develop and implement policy on engaging an external

auditor to supply non-audit services;

to monitor integrity of the Company’s financial statements
and annual report and accounts, half year report and, if
prepared for publication, quarterly reports, and to review
significant financial reporting judgements contained in

them;

to review the Company’s financial controls, internal control

and risk management systems;

to discuss the internal control system with management to
ensure that management has performed its duty to have an

effective internal control system;

to consider major investigation finding on internal control
matters as delegated by the Board or on its own initiative

and management’s response to these findings;

to review the Group’s financial and accounting policies and

practices;

to review the external auditor’s management letter, any
material queries raised by the auditor to management about
the accounting records, financial accounts or systems of

control and management’s response; and

to ensure that the Board will provide a timely response to

the issues raised in the external auditor’'s management letter.

RESZEIZREBEBENIISA

@

(i)

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)
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Details of 2013 Audit Committee meetings attendance are set out T CHEERZBEEERIHER Z

wv

below: BT : -

m

<

m

3

Number of Attendance :Z>

meeting attended Rate g

EEEERY LR ©

o

Members of Audit Committee EREEENE 9
Tong Tsin Ka, Chairman EER(£E) 22 00% A
Ng Ping Kin, Peter hR2 0/2 0% o
Cheng Mo Chi, Moses B 02 % fe
Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher R 2/2 100% =
AuKam Yuen, Arthur RBR 22 100% £
Ma Hung Ming, John SR 22 100% P
Lee Wai Hung, Secretary R (BE) 2/2 100% m
He

e 5 S

Under its terms of reference, the Committee is required, amongst REHEBESRE Z8eLAHPE (@
other things, to oversee the relationship with external auditors, to 1B EREINEZEE 2 BIR - B 3
review the Company'’s interim and annual financial statements, NAIZ P AR FEME®RE - AR l«;j
and to evaluate Group system of internal controls. SENFREIEHE - i

or

EREZBEEeKEARERERRF - K
BYBXER  BABAARAFEN -

There is an agreed procedure for Audit Committee members to

take independent professional advice at Company’s expense.

The Committee presents a report or makes advice to the Board ZEENBAEZRNEFTGIRREH

after each meeting, which addresses its work and findings. HTIEBARERERZREHREHE
ﬁ' o

Details on the mandate and work performed by the Audit FABZZEGZREMITEHBER

Committee during the year are set out in the Audit Committee FIRBEAZEREZEGHREERN -

Report on pages 37 and 38.

ERBEZREGZHERE 2%
DR SR BRFAEE -

() iz S 6 B =
HE-_ZT—=F+-A=T—HLEFE &
NEI R E B AR 2 MBS E R R E XA
28 AR 745 U BX 4978 #5 8,600,000 70 ( = F — = 4F -
7 72600007 ) -+ BE IE B 2 AR S WOEUE 8
1,760,000 7T (ZF — —4F : ¥ 690000 7T) °

The terms of reference of Audit Committee are available on the

Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website.

(1) AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION
For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Auditors had received from
the Company and its subsidiaries approximately HK$8.60 million for

audit and audit related services (2012: HK$7.26 million) as well as
HK$1.76 million for non-audit services (2012: HK$0.69 million).
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(1V) INTERNAL CONTROL: SOUND AND EFFECTIVE SYSTEM

(F)

TO SAFEGUARD SHAREHOLDER INTERESTS AND
COMPANY ASSETS

Risk management is a crucial part of the Group’s strategic
management to monitor the Company’s overall financial position

and to protect its assets.

The Group is committed to implementing effective risk
management policies and internal control procedures to identify

and manage the risks that the Group may be exposed to.

These policies and procedures are reviewed regularly by
management together with the assistant by external auditors
during the course of audit to ensure their effectiveness and

compliance with Code on Corporate Governance Practices.

The Managing Director and Executive Director will discuss with
external Auditors in the Audit Committee meeting at least twice
a year on key issues in relation to internal controls, audit finding

and risk management.

As concluded in 2013 Audit Committee meeting, no irregularities

and major weakness in control were found by the Auditors.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has set up the Nomination Committee on 7 March
2012, which is mainly responsible for making recommendations to
the Board on the appointment or re-appointment of directors

and succession planning for directors.

The Nomination Committee is chaired by the Chairman of the
Board. The Committee shall comprise members not less than
three and a majority of the Committee was Independent Non-

executive Directors.

On the date of establishment, the Nomination Committee is
chaired by the Dr. Liu Lit Mo, Chairman of the Board and has a

majority of Independent Non-executive Directors.

av) AEPE

(F)
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Its other current members are Dr. Cheng Mo Chi, Moses, Mr.
Tong Tsin Ka, Mr. Au Kam Yuen, Arthur and Dr. Ma Hung Ming,

John (those are Independent Non-executive Directors) and Mr.

Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher (a Non-executive Director).

The Committee will meet at least once per annum.

The main duties of the Committee include the followings:

(i)

to review the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience required) of the Board at
least annually and make recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the Company’s

corporate strategy;

to identify individuals suitably qualified to become directors
of the Company and select or make recommendations to
the Board on the selection of individuals nominated for

directorships;

to assess the independence of Independent Non-executive

Directors of the Company; and

to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of the directors and
succession plan for directors, in particular the Chairman and

Chief Executive Officer of the Company.

Details of 2013 Nomination Committee meeting attendance are

set out below:

ZESRIBHEMKE BB IENITE
FEREHL  BEREE  BRIRL
EREERBTUANERITEEHER
g o
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ZEEZIERERETIRE
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THEESFSIBRNEETSRHE
R

(i) AEARRBIUIRNTESZHE
hvA Y4

vy BHEFZEXEHZEREEF
BRI RN A EFE RITHABEL) #E 1T
FrElmEEEREER -

T CFRALBEERILEERHF

Number of Attendance
meeting attended Rate
EEERAH HEE

Members of Nomination Committee BEZZEEHE
Liu Lit Mo, Chairman BIIR () 11 100%
Cheng Mo Chi, Moses R 11 100%
Tong Tsin Ka EER 11 100%
Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher T 17 100%
Au Kam Yuen, Arthur B3R 11 100%
Ma Hung Ming, John BB 11 100%
Lee Wai Hung, Secretary TR (W2E) 11 100%
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(G)

According to the Rule 3.10A, the appointment of additional
Independent Non-executive Director to fulfill the requirements

had completed in year 2014.

Committee members are allowed to take independent

professional advice at Company’s expense.

Details of the mandate and summary of the work by the
Nomination Committee during the year are set out in the

Nomination Committee Report on page 39.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are
available on the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s

website.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE
The Company has set up the Corporate Governance Committee
on 7 March 2012, which is mainly responsible for performing the

corporate governance duties of the Board.

The Corporate Governance Committee is chaired by Dr. Liu Lit

Mo, Chairman of the Board.

Its other current members are Mr. Liu Kam Fai, Winston, Mr. Liu
Kwun Shing, Christopher and Mr. Lee Wai Hung, all of them are
Executive Directors of the Company and Dr. Cheng Mo Chi,
Moses and Mr. Tong Tsin Ka (both are Independent Non-

executive Directors).
The Committee will meet at least once per annum.

The Corporate Governance Committee determines the policy for
the corporate governance of the Company. The duties preformed

by the Corporate Governance Committee include the following:

(i)  to develop and review the Company's policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations to
the Board;

(i) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of the directors of the Company

and the senior management;

(G)

PRERBHKRSE
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(iii)  to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices (i) MAMERARAZBREER
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; ERETERENEERTE

(iv) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct (iv) HIET - e RESEEANAKR A
applicable to the directors and the employees of the EFEREEZTRSFAL:
Company;

(v) to review the Company's compliance with the Corporate v) BIAARFREEFTLEERT
Governance Code and disclosure in the Corporate BIREERE EWAHRNZBEER
Governance Report as required under the Listing Rules; and PEEAMEELRE &

(vi) to hold regular meetings with all department heads from v) TREMAHNMAEIEECHETS
time to time requesting them to review their corporate & BREEMATHIFARNZ B
governance within the department and require them to ¥Bh VIREBZNMBITH
submit proposal or remedy action to redress the matters. AFEBEEH -

Details of 2013 Corporate Governance Committee meeting R CHEPEERLTECERCEE

attendance are set out below: KFBWT -

Number of Attendance
meeting attended Rate
HREEERH HEX

Members of Corporate Governance Committee ¥EAZESHE
Liu Lit Mo, Chairman B (FE) 1/1 100%
Cheng Mo Chi, Moses BiE A 11 100%
Tong Tsin Ka BER 11 100%
Liu Kam Fai, Winston B4 17 100%
Liu Kwun Shing, Christopher B, 11 100%
Lee Wai Hung g 1 100%

Committee members are allowed to take independent ZEEKERARDBYEXER &

professional advice at Company’s expense. FAHBRARRIEYE -

The terms of reference of the Corporate Governance Committee BRACXECETEG v BESE  f3l

are available on the Company’s website. BEARRFHEE
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(H) DELEGATION BY BOARD

m

()

RELATIONSHIP WITH MANAGEMENT
The Board and management (include different departmental
heads) fully appreciate their respective roles with supportive

commitments of creating a healthy corporate governance culture.

The Board is responsible for overseeing the processes that
management (include different departmental heads) has in place

to identify business opportunities and risks.

The Board’s role is not to manage the business which responsibility
remains vested with management and different departmental

heads. The management is accountable to the Board.

BOARD COMMITTEES: SPECIFIC TERMS OF REFERENCE
AND REPORT TO FULL BOARD

The Board currently has four Board Committees, namely the
Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination
Committee and Corporate Governance Committee with specific

written terms of reference.

The Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee, each has a
100% non-executive membership with a majority of Independent

Non-executive Directors.

The Nomination Committee is chaired by the Chairman of the

Board and has a majority of Independent Non-executive Directors.

The Corporate Governance Committee comprises four Executive
Directors and two Independent Non-executive Directors of the

Company.

Board Committees present their respective reports to the Board

after each meeting, which addresses their work and findings.
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(1) SHAREHOLDER COMMUNICATION POLICY
(1) PREAMBLE

This policy sets out the Company’s standards and practice in relation to

communicating with its shareholders and prospective investors.

The Company is committed to maintaining a policy of open and

timely disclosure of relevant information on its activities to

shareholders, subject to applicable legal requirements.

The Company believes that providing regular communications to

its shareholders and the market is important to ensure they have

the available information reasonably required to make informed

assessments of the Company's strategy, operations and financial

performance.

Communication channels

Communication is made through:

the Company’s annual and interim reports, which have been
enhanced to present a comprehensive, balanced and
understandable assessment of the Group position and

prospects.

notices of and explanatory memoranda for annual and other
general meetings, which have been enhanced to provide
shareholders with additional information in an

understandable manner.

press releases on major developments of the Company and

its subsidiaries.

disclosures to the Stock Exchange and relevant regulatory
bodies.

Company’s website at http://www.lchi.com.hk from which
shareholders can access information on the Group. The
website provides, inter alia, corporate announcements,
business development and operations, press releases, annual

reports, and corporate information of the Group.
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(1) SHAREHOLDERS’ MEETINGS

The Board welcomes moves towards a more constructive use of
Annual General Meetings and regards the Annual General
Meetings as the principal opportunity to meet private

shareholders.

Details of Directors’ attendance of the general meeting and

extraordinary general meetings of the Company held for year

ended 31 December 2013 are set out below:

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT [t X EBIREE

m BRRAS

EXgRIBRRERREFAS LiEH
BERMEZEZ  URBRREFAER
HEFRREE T ERE -

BE—_Z—=%F+-HA=+—RHIEE
ZARARNRBERERBREIAS 2E
EHERFBOT

Number of Attendance
meeting attended Rate
HESZRH HE=
Executive Directors HITEE
Liu Lit Mo, Chairman and Managing Director BAIR (FE#EEELE) 3/3 100%
Liu Lit Chi BRE 313 100%
Liu Kam Fai, Winston, Deputy Managing Director BeE 5z FmmeE) 3/3 100%
Liu Kwun Shing, Christopher PR
(also alternate director to Dr. Liu Lit Chung) (BRI BE 7 HELESE) 3/3 100%
Lee Wai Hung TR 3/3 100%
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Liu Lit Chung BRIS 3/3 100%
Andrew Liu B 0/3 0%
Liu Chun Ning, Wilfred Bk= 0/3 0%
Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher FRR 33 100%
Independent Non-executive Directors BIFHTES
Ng Ping Kin, Peter hEZ 0/2 0%
Cheng Mo Chi, Moses B 3/3 100%
Tong Tsin Ka BEER 3/3 100%
Au Kam Yuen, Arthur BRI 313 100%
Ma Hung Ming, John B 3/3 100%

The Company arranges for the annual report and financial
statements and related papers to be posted for shareholders so as
to allow at least 20 clear business days (exclude Saturdays, Sundays
and public holidays in Hong Kong) for consideration prior to the
Annual General Meeting. And all other general meetings to be
sent at least 10 clear business days (exclude Saturdays, Sundays

and public holidays in Hong Kong).
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The Board encourages and supports shareholder participation in
general meetings. Shareholders are encouraged to appoint proxies
to attend and vote at meetings for and on their behalf if they are

unable to attend such meetings.

Mechanisms for enabling shareholder participation will be
reviewed on a regular basis by the Board to encourage the highest

level of participation.

Chairman of the Board, appropriate members of the Board
committees and the external auditors of the Company will attend
the annual general meetings to answer questions from the

shareholders.

SHAREHOLDERS’ ENQUIRIES

Inquiries from shareholders, investors, media or the public are
responded by the Executive Directors, Chief Financial Officer,
Company Secretary or the appropriate members of senior

management.

The Company will respond in a timely manner to shareholder

queries and concerns.

THE ADMINISTRATION OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
All ordinary shares of the Company have equal voting rights.
Annual General Meeting proceedings are continually reviewed in

the light of Code on Corporate Governance Practices.

Separate resolutions are proposed at the meeting on each
substantially separate issue, including the election of individual

Directors.

Preparation of a comprehensive Annual General Meeting circular

containing;
re-election of Directors;
general Mandate to Repurchase Shares;
general Mandate to Issue Shares;
. amendments to the Articles of Association, if any;
voting at Annual General Meeting and

comprehensive information on each resolution to be

proposed.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT [t X EBIREE

The Company’s Articles contain the rights of shareholders to
demand and the procedures for a poll voting on resolution at
shareholders’ meetings. Details of such rights to demand a poll
and the poll procedures are included in all circulars in relation to
shareholders’ meetings and will be explained during the
proceedings of shareholders’ meetings. In case poll voting is
conducted, the poll results will be posted on the websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company on the business day following

the shareholders’ meeting.

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains
a website at http://www.lchi.com.hk where the Company’s
announcements, business development and operations, financial
information, corporate governance practices and other information are

posted.

Information on top 10 largest shareholders and location of shareholders

are set out in Directors’ Report on pages 32 and 33 respectively.

(V) PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO CONVENE AN
EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING (“EGM”)
Shareholders holding not less than one-tenth (1/10) of the paid-
up capital of the Company which carries the right of voting at

general meetings can deposit a written request to convene an
ECM.

The written request must state the objects of the meeting and
must be signed by the shareholders making such request, and may
consist of several documents in like form each signed by one or
more of those shareholders. A request by joint holders of shares

must be signed by all such holders.

The request should be deposited at the registered office of the

Company for the attention of the Company Secretary.

The request will be verified with the Company’s share registrar
and upon its confirmation that the request is valid, the Company
Secretary will convene an EGM on behalf of the Board of Directors
by serving sufficient notice in accordance with the statutory
requirements or applicable rules or regulations to all the registered

shareholders.
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If the request is verified to be not in order, shareholders concerned

will be advised of the result and no EGM will be convened.

If the Directors do not within 21 days from the date of the deposit
of the request proceed to convene an EGM, the shareholders
concerned or any of them representing more than one-half of the
total voting rights of all of them may themselves convene an
EGM, but any EGM so convened shall not be held after the
expiration of three months from the date of the deposit of the

request.

In the case of an EGM at which a resolution is to be proposed as a
special resolution, the Directors shall be deemed not to have duly
convened the EGM if they do not give such notice as is required

by section 116 of the Companies Ordinance (Laws of Hong Kong).

PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO PUT FORWARD
PROPOSALS AT GENERAL MEETINGS

A request in writing must be made by:

(i)  Shareholders holding not less than one-fortieth (1/40) of the
total voting rights of all shareholders having the right to

vote at the meeting; or

(i) not less than 50 shareholders holding shares in the Company
on which there has been paid up an average sum, per
shareholder, of not less than HK$2,000.

to the Company to give to shareholders notice of any resolution
which may properly be moved and is intended to be moved at an
annual general meeting, or to circulate to shareholders any
statement of not more than 1,000 words with respect to the
matter referred to in any proposed resolution or the business to

be dealt with at any general meeting.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT [t X EBIREE

The written request must be signed by all the shareholders
concerned in one or more documents in like form and deposited
at the registered office of the Company for the attention of the
Company Secretary not less than six weeks before the meeting in
the case of a requisition requiring notice of a resolution, and not
less than one week before the meeting in the case of any other
requisition.

The request will be verified with the Company’s share registrar
and upon its confirmation that the request is valid, the Company
will give notice of the resolution or circulate the statement
provided that the shareholders concerned have deposited a sum
reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s expenses in regard
thereto.

If the request is verified to be not in order or the shareholders
concerned have failed to deposit sufficient money to meet the
Company’s expenses for the said purposes, the shareholders
concerned will be advised of the result and no action will be taken
by the Company in that regard.

(VIl) PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO PROPOSE A
PERSON FOR ELECTION AS A DIRECTOR

Subject to applicable laws, rules and regulations, including Companies
Ordinance (Laws of Hong Kong), the Listing Rules and the articles of
association of the Company as amended from time to time, if any
Shareholder(s) of the Company intends to propose a person other than
a director of the Company for election as a director of the Company at
any general meeting, the following procedures shall apply:

a notice signed by a Shareholder (other than the person to be
proposed) duly qualified to attend and vote at the meeting for
which such notice is given of his intention to propose such person
for election and also a notice signed by the person to be proposed
of his willingness to be elected shall have been lodged with the
Board of Directors of the Company at the registered office of the
Company;

the minimum length of the period during which such notice(s)
are given shall be at least seven days and that the period for
lodgement of such notice(s) shall commence no earlier than the
day after the despatch of the notice of the general meeting
appointed for such election and end no later than seven days
prior to the date of such general meeting; and

. in order for the Company to inform shareholders of the Company
of that proposal, such notice(s) for the nomination of a director
must state the full name of the person nominated for election as a
director and include the person’s biographical details as required
by the Listing Rules.
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Asat 26 February 2014 R=Z—mF=A=+<H

HONORARY CHAIRMAN

Mr. Liu Lit Man, GBS, JP, FIBA.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Liu Lit Mo, LLp, MBE JP.

(Chairman)
Mr. Liu Lit Chi

(Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Liu Kam Fai, Winston

(Deputy Managing Director)
Mr. Liu Kwun Shing, Christopher

(also alternate director to Dr. Liu Lit Chung)
Mr. Lee Wai Hung

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Liu Lit Chung, m8Bs (Lon), MRCP(UK), FRCP. (Lon)
Mr. Andrew Liu
Mtr. Liu Chun Ning, Wilfred
Mr. Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher
BES, M. Arch, HKIA, RIBA, ARAIA, MRAIC,

Assoc, AIA, Registered Architect, A.P. (Architect), MHKIoD

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Ng Ping Kin, Peter, msc, /.
(resigned on 13 September 2013)
Dr. Cheng Mo Chi, Moses, Gas, 0B, LLB (HK), /.
Mr. Tong Tsin Ka, FcA (AUST), FCPA, FCIs
Mr. Au Kam Yuen, Arthur
Dr. Ma Hung Ming, John, php, 88s

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Lee Wai Hung

RETRF
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Assoc, AlA, Registered Architect, A.P. (Architect), MHKIoD
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CORPORATE INFORMATION @ & il

Asat 26 February 2014 R=Z—mF=A=+<H

AUDIT COMMITTEE
Mr. Tong Tsin Ka (Chairman)

Dr. Cheng Mo Chi, Moses

Mtr. Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher
Mr. Au Kam Yuen, Arthur

Dr. Ma Hung Ming, John

Mtr. Lee Wai Hung (Secretary)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Dr. Liu Lit Mo (Chairman)

Dr. Cheng Mo Chi, Moses

Mr. Tong Tsin Ka

Mtr. Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher
Mr. Au Kam Yuen, Arthur

Dr. Ma Hung Ming, John

Mr. Lee Wai Hung (Secretary)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Dr. Cheng Mo Chi, Moses (Chairman)

Mr. Tong Tsin Ka

Mtr. Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher
Mr. Au Kam Yuen, Arthur

Dr. Ma Hung Ming, John

Ms. Cavior Liu (Secretary)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE
Dr. Liu Lit Mo (Chairman)

Dr. Cheng Mo Chi, Moses

Mr. Tong Tsin Ka

Mr. Liu Kam Fai, Winston

Mr. Liu Kwun Shing, Christopher

Mr. Lee Wai Hung
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

DEPARTMENT HEADS

Mes. Eva Liy,
Mr. Luk Chi Chung,

M:s. Cavior Liu,

Ms. Yan Yuet Lam,

Charmaine,
Mr. Lam Shiu Cheung,

Mr. Wong Yuk Chi,

Allen,

Mtr. Pan Sze Yuen,

Cecll,

Mr. Lau Ping Leung,

Stephen,
Mr. Jan Kwok Wai,
Kim
MANAGERS

Mr. Tong Tse Hon,
Mr. Tam King Hung,

Mes. Tsia Fung Yee,

Tina

Director of projects and maintenance
Director of finance

Director of human resources
and administration

Director of business development

Director of China property

Director of property department

Assistant Director of projects

Assistant Director of maintenance

Assistant Director of projects

Property manager (sale & leasing)

Project manager

Accounting manager
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CORPORATE INFORMATION @ & il

Asat 26 February 2014 R=Z—mF=A=+<H

SOLICITORS

Deacons
Gallant Y.T. Ho & Co.
P.C. Woo & Co.

AUDITORS

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

BANKERS
Chong Hing Bank Limited

Australia and New Zealand Banking Group Limited
Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

Bank of Communications Company, Limited
Citibank N.A. Hong Kong

China CITIC Bank International Limited

Credit Suisse AG Hong Kong Branch

Dah Sing Bank, Limited

DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

Fubon Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

Hang Seng Bank Limited

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited

Nanyang Commercial Bank, Limited

Shanghai Commercial Bank Limited

Shanghai Pudong Development Bank Company, Limited

Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Limited

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

The Royal Bank of Scotland
Wing Hang Bank, Limited

Wing Lung Bank Limited
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REGISTERED OFFICE
25th Floor Chong Hing Bank Centre

24 Des Voeux Road Central
Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 3768 9038  Fax: (852) 3768 9008

GUANGZHOU OFFICE
18A Office Tower A

339 Huan Shi Dong Road
Yue Xiu District
Guangzhou, PRC

Tel: (8620) 8375 8993  Fax: (8620) 8375 8997

SHANGHAI OFFICE
Room 3105, Chong Hing Finance Center

288 Nanjing Road West
Shanghai, PRC

Tel: (8621) 6359 1000  Fax: (8621) 6327 6299

FOSHAN OFFICE
The Grand Riviera

1 Guilong Road

Luocun Social Management Office, Shishan Town
Nanhai District, Foshan

Guangdong Province, PRC

Tel: (86757) 6386 0888 Fax: (86757) 6386 2218
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

ESKSREBAEBN

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
DR. LIU LIT MO

LLD, MBE, J.P.

aged 76, is the Chairman of Liu Chong Hing Investment Limited. He was
appointed as the Managing Director of the Company since 1972 (Dr. Liu
had resigned as the Managing Director of the Company with effect
from 26 February 2014). And he has also served as the Chairman of
Nomination Committee and Corporate Governance Committees of the
Company. Dr. Liu is also the Chairman of Chong Hing Bank Limited (Dr.
Liu had resigned as the Chairman and an Executive Director of Chong
Hing Bank Limited with effect from 14 February 2014) and an
Independent Non-executive Director of China Motor Bus Company
Limited, both are public companies listed on the Stock Exchange in
Hong Kong. As for community service, Dr. Liu was the Chairman of
Tung Wah Group of Hospitals in 1967 and is now serving as an Adviser
of the Group. He had also been President of the Hong Kong Chiu Chow
Chamber of Commerce, Chairman of Hong Kong Football Association
and District Governor of District 3450, Rotary International. Presently,
he is a member of the Board of Trustees of United College, The Chinese
University of Hong Kong and a Manager of Liu Po Shan Memorial
College. He was awarded Silver Jubilee Medal by Her Majesty the Queen
in 1977. Dr. Liu was conferred an Honorary Degree of Doctor of Laws by
Lingnan University in 2005. Dr. Liu is the brother of Mr. Liu Lit Chi and
Dr. Liu Lit Chung, the father of Mr. Liu Kam Fai, Winston and an uncle
of Mr. Andrew Liu, Mr. Liu Chun Ning, Wilfred and Mr. Liu Kwun Shing,
Christopher.

MR. LIU LIT CHI

aged 74, was appointed as Managing Director and Chief Executive
Officer of the Company with effect from 26 February 2014. Mr. Liu has
been an Executive Director of Liu Chong Hing Investment Limited since
1972. Mr. Liu, who was educated in Hong Kong and the United
Kingdom, is also a director of a number of other companies in Hong
Kong and elsewhere. Mr. Liu is the brother of Dr. Liu Lit Mo and Dr. Liu
Lit Chung, an uncle of Mr. Andrew Liu, Mr. Liu Chun Ning, Wilfred, Mr.
Liu Kam Fai, Winston and Mr. Liu Kwun Shing, Christopher.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
MR. LIU KAM FAI, WINSTON

BA, MSc.

aged 47, was appointed an Executive Director of the Company since
1997. He was re-designated as the Deputy Managing Director of the
Company in August 2008 and is also serving as a member of Corporate
Governance Committee of the Company. Mr. Liu holds a Master degree
in Economics from the University of London, specializing in Finance and
Macro Economic Policy. Mr. Liu oversees the Company’s strategic
development, project implementation, as well as all aspects of business
operations. Mr. Liu also served as a Director of number of subsidiaries of
the Company. Besides, he has been appointed as a Non-executive
Director of Freeman Financial Corporation Limited since January 2011,
which is a public company listed on the Stock Exchange in Hong Kong.
Save as disclosed above, Mr. Liu did not hold any directorship in any
other listed public company in the last three years. Mr. Liu is the son of
Dr. Liu Lit Mo, a nephew of Mr. Liu Lit Chi and Dr. Liu Lit Chung, a
cousin of Mr. Andrew Liu, Mr. Liu Chun Ning, Wilfred and Mr. Liu Kwun
Shing, Christopher.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

ESKSREBAEBN

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

MR. LIU KWUN SHING, CHRISTOPHER

aged 38, is an Executive Director of the Company, a position which he
has held since August 2008 following a re-designation from his previous
role since 2000 as Non-executive Director of the Company and
Alternate Director to Dr. Liu Lit Chung (who is a Non-executive Director
of the Company). Mr. Liu has also been a director of Chong Hing Bank
Limited since the year 2000 (Mr. Liu had resigned as a Non-executive
Director of Chong Hing Bank Limited with effect from 14 February
2014). A holder of a Master of Arts degree in Jurisprudence from the
University of Oxford, Mr. Liu is a qualified solicitor in both Hong Kong
and England & Wales. Prior to joining the Company on a full-time basis,
he was a partner of Deacons in Hong Kong focusing on corporate
finance, mergers and acquisitions and private equity matters, and
currently remains an advisory legal counsel of the international law firm.
Mr. Liu is a member of the Foshan Municipal Committee of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference (CPPCC) as well as a director
of both Beijing Chinese Overseas Friendship Association and Shanghai
Chinese Overseas Friendship Association (COFA). Mr. Liu is also a
Director of Hong Kong Chiu Chow Chamber of Commerce, an
executive director of Guangdong Chamber of Foreign Investors, a Vice-
chairman of Foshan Investment Chamber of Private Enterprises and a
board member of Entrepreneurs’ Organisation (Hong Kong). With a
passion for the betterment of society and education, he is also a
member of the Institutional Review Board of Hong Kong University/
Hospital Authority Hong Kong West Cluster and a school manager of
Liu Po Shan Memorial College. Mr. Liu serves as a member of the
Corporate Governance Committee, and as a director of a number of
subsidiaries, of the Company, as well as (prior to his resignation as a
Non-executive Director of Chong Hing Bank Limited) a member of the
Risk Management and Compliance Committee and the Private Banking
Steering Committee of Chong Hing Bank Limited. He is the son of Dr.
Liu Lit Chung, a nephew of Dr. Liu Lit Mo and Mr. Liu Lit Chi, a cousin of
Mr. Andrew Liu, Mr. Liu Chun Ning, Wilfred and Mr. Liu Kam Fai,

Winston.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
MR. LEE WAI HUNG

LLB, FCCA, FCPA (Practising), ATIHK, MBA, PgD in CRE

aged 51, is an Executive Director and Company Secretary of the
Company. Mr. Lee is also serving as a member of Corporate Governance
Committee of the Company and as a director of a number of
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Lee holds a Bachelor of Law degree, a
Master of Business Administration degree and Postgraduate Diploma in
Construction and Real Estate. He is also a fellow of Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (Practising) and a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Before joining the
Company, Mr. Lee had worked in an international accounting firm for
over six years. Mr. Lee has over twenty five years of experience in
corporate finance and accounting. Mr. Lee joined the Company in 1992
and was appointed as Director in 1994. Mr. Lee is primarily responsible

for the Company'’s finance and secretarial matters.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
DR. LIU LIT CHUNG

MBBS (Lon), MRCP (UK), FR.C.P. (Lon)

aged 64, became a Director in 1979 and also the Deputy Managing
Director of the Company for over ten years. He holds a Medical degree
from King's College Hospital, London University and is a Member of the
Royal College of Physicians of the United Kingdom. He was awarded the
Fellowship of Royal College of Physician of London for his work in
Motor Neuron Disease. In 2005, he was further awarded the Honorary
Fellowship by the Hong Kong College of Physicians. Dr. Liu is the brother
of Dr. Liu Lit Mo and Mr. Liu Lit Chi, an uncle of Mr. Andrew Liu, Mr. Liu
Chun Ning, Wilfred and Mr. Liu Kam Fai, Winston and the father of Liu
Kwun Shing, Christopher.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

ESKSREBAEBN

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

MR. ANDREW LIU

aged 58, has been a Director since 1979. Mr. Liu is the Chairman of
Unitas Capital Pte. Ltd. (formerly known as CCMP Capital Asia Pte. Ltd.).
Mr. Liu, holder of a Master of Arts degree from the Oxford University in
England, was a solicitor with Slaughter and May in London before
joining Morgan Stanley & Co Inc in New York in 1981. Mr. Liu was
promoted to Managing Director in 1990 before relocating to Morgan
Stanley Asia Limited in Hong Kong, where he assumed the position of
President and Managing Director until his resignation in September
1997. Mr. Liu remains associated with Morgan Stanley as an Advisory
Director. Besides, he has been appointed as a Non-executive Director of
Freeman Financial Corporation Limited since November 2010, which is
a public company listed on the Stock Exchange in Hong Kong. His other
directorships in public listed companies in the last three years include
Chong Hing Bank Limited which is a public listed company in Hong
Kong. Save as disclosed above, Mr. Liu did not hold any directorship in
any other listed public company in the last three years. Mr. Liu is a
nephew of Dr. Liu Lit Mo, Mr. Liu Lit Chi and Dr. Liu Lit Chung, a cousin
of Mr. Liu Chun Ning, Wilfred, Mr. Liu Kam Fai, Winston and Mr. Liu
Kwun Shing, Christopher.

MR. LIU CHUN NING, WILFRED

BSc.

aged 52, has been appointed as Director of the Company since 1997. He
holds a Bachelor’'s degree in economics from University of
Newcastleupon-Tyne (UK). Mr. Liu is also an Executive Director of
Chong Hing Bank Limited (Mr. Liu had resigned as an Executive Director
of Chong Hing Bank Limited with effect from 14 February 2014). Besides,
he is an Independent Non-executive Director of S.AS. Dragon Holdings
Limited and Get Nice Holdings Limited respectively, both are public
companies listed on the Stock Exchange in Hong Kong. His other
directorships in public listed companies in the last three years include
Seamless Green China (Holdings) Limited which is a public listed
companies in Hong Kong. Save as disclosed above, Mr. Liu did not hold
any directorship in any other listed public company in the previous
three years. Mr. Liu is a nephew of Dr. Liu Lit Mo, Mr. Liu Lit Chi and Dr.
Liu Lit Chung, a cousin of Mr. Andrew Liu, Mr. Liu Kam Fai, Winston and

Mr. Liu Kwun Shing, Christopher.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
MR. KHO ENG TJOAN, CHRISTOPHER
BES, M. Arch, HKIA, RIBA, ARAIA, MRAIC, Assoc. AlA,

Registered Architect, A.P. (Architect), MHKIoD

aged 51, served as Non-executive Director of the Company since May
2011 and he is now serving as a member of Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of the
Company. Mr. Kho holds a Bachelor of Environmental Studies degree
on Urban and Regional Planning and a Master of Architecture degree.
He is an Authorized Person under the Buildings Ordinance, a Registered
Architect under the Architects Registration Ordinance, a member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Architects, a corporate member of Royal
Institute of British Architects, an associate member of Royal Australian
Institute of Architects, a member of Royal Architectural Institute of
Canada and an associate member of American Institute of Architects.
Mr. Kho was an Executive Committee of the University of Waterloo
Alumni Association and a Committee Member of the University of
Manitoba Alumni Association from 1989 to 1990. During the year from
1997 to 2003, he was a Director and Council Member of the Wah Yan
(Hong Kong) Past Students Association Limited. Mr. Kho is also a
Committee Member of the Professional Committee of the Hong Kong

Federation of Fujian Associations since 2009.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

ESKSREBAEBN

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
DR. CHENG MO CHI, MOSES

GBS, OBE, LLB (HK), .P.

aged 64, was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director of
the Company in August 1999 and he has served as Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit Committee,
Nomination Committee and Corporate Governance Committee of the
Company. Dr. Cheng is a practising solicitor and the senior partner of
Messrs. P.C. Woo & Co. Dr. Cheng was a member of the Legislative
Council of Hong Kong. He is the Founder Chairman of the Hong Kong
Institute of Directors of which he is now the Honorary President and
Chairman Emeritus. He was also the President of International
Association of Practising Lawyers. Dr. Cheng currently holds
directorships in Hong Kong Television Network Limited (formerly
known as City Telecom (H.K.) Limited), China Mobile Limited, China
Resources Enterprise, Limited, K. Wah International Holdings Limited,
Guangdong Investment Limited, Tian An China Investments Company
Limited, Towngas China Company Limited and Kader Holdings
Company Limited, all being public listed companies in Hong Kong. Dr.
Cheng is also an Independent Non-executive Director of ARA Asset
Management Limited, a company whose shares are listed on Singapore
Exchange Limited. His other directorships in public listed companies in
the last 3 years include Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and
China COSCO Holdings Company Limited, both companies are public
listed companies in Hong Kong. Save as disclosed above, Dr. Cheng did
not hold any directorship, whether in Hong Kong or overseas, in any

other public listed companies in the previous 3 years.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
MR. TONG TSIN KA

FCA (AUST.), FCPA, FCIS

aged 75, was appointed an Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company in September 2004 and he has served as the Chairman of
Audit Committee and a member of the Remuneration, Nomination and
Corporate Governance Committees of the Company. Mr. Tong is a
fellow of The Institute of Chartered Accountants in Australia, The
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators and The Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants respectively. In 1968, Mr.
Tong commenced his own public accountancy practice and in 1970
founded his own accountancy firm, T. K. Tong & Co. (Chartered
Accountants (AUST.). Certified Public Accountants), and has remained

its principal to date.

MR. AU KAM YUEN, ARTHUR

aged 74, was appointed an Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company on 3 December 2012 and he also serves as a member of the
Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee of the Company. Mr. Au studied Law in Sydney and London
respectively. He was admitted as a solicitor in England in 1975 and in
Hong Kong in 1976. He is a sole proprietor of Arthur Au & Co, a firm of
solicitors established since 1979. Mr. Au is a Notary Public and was a
member of the Notary Public Disciplinary Tribunal Panel. He was also a
School Management Committee of the Clementi Secondary School. He
now serves as legal adviser to the Association of Hong Kong Nursing
Staff (previously named as the Association of Government Nursing
Staff) and The New Territories North District Manufacturers Association
of Hong Kong Limited. Mr. Au is an active Rotarian, he was a District
Governor of Rotary International District 3450 (Hong Kong/Macao/
Mongolia) in 1990-1991.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

ESKSREBAEBN

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
DR. MA HUNG MING, JOHN

PhD, BBS

aged 47, was appointed an Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company on 3 December 2012 and he has also served as a member of
the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee of the Company. Dr. Ma currently is the managing director
of Carrianna Holdings Limited, a subsidiary of Carrianna Group Holdings
Company Limited (formerly known as Tak Sing Alliance Holdings
Limited), is responsible for property development operations. He has
extensive experience in the catering industry, as well as property
management and development. He was awarded the Bronze Bauhinia
Star (BBS) from The Government of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region in 2003 and a Honorary Doctorate of Philosophy
by Morrison University in 2004. As for the community service, Dr. Ma
was the Chairman of Tung Wah Group of Hospitals for the year 2002.
He is a member of Tung Wah Group of Hospitals Advisory Board, the
Standing Committee of Shenzhen Committee of Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference and the President of Youth Council.
He also serves as the Vice Chairman of Federation of Hong Kong
Guangdong Community Organisations and the Vice President of
Kowloon Federation of Associations. In addition to his directorship in
the Company, Dr. Ma is an executive director of Carrianna Group
Holdings Company Limited. This is a public company listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Save as disclosed above, Dr. Ma
did not hold any directorship in any other public listed company in the

last three years.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT
MS. EVA LIU

MA (Cantab), DipArch (Kingston), MA (City), ARB (UK), RIBA

aged 50, Director of Projects & Maintenance. Ms. Liu is a Chartered
Architect (UK), holding Master of Arts Degrees, in Architecture from
the University of Cambridge, and Property Valuation And Law from The
City University in London. She was in architectural practice in England
before joining the Company in 1999. She is the daughter of Dr. Liu Lit

Mo and the sister of Mr. Liu Kam Fai, Winston.

MR. LUK CHI CHUNG

FCCA, CPA (Practising), MAEB

aged 46, Director of Finance. Mr. Luk is a professional accountant,
holding Master of Arts Degree in Electronic Business and has over
twenty five years of experience in finance and accounting. Mr. Luk
joined the Company in 1995 and is in charge of Finance Management

Department and Information Technology Department.

MS. CAVIOR LIU

aged 49, Director of Human Resources & Administration. Ms. Liu holds
a Bachelor degree in Psychology from University of British Columbia.
She joined the Company in 2000, in charge of Human Resources &
Administration Department. Ms. Liu is a school manager of Liu Po Shan
Memorial College. She is the daughter of Dr. Liu Lit Mo and the sister of
Mtr. Liu Kam Fai, Winston.

MS. YAN YUET LAM, CHARMAINE

aged 39, Director of Business Development. Ms. Yan was educated in
Vancouver, Canada. Before joining the Company, Ms. Yan had worked
with various mainland companies at senior management post for
leading and handling numerous successful real estate projects including
the Shanghai Forest Manor, one of the top residential villa projects in
Shanghai. In addition, Ms. Yan has extensive experience in business club
operations both in Beijing and Shanghai. Ms. Yan is currently in charge
of searching investment opportunities, the Company’s hotel business

and education project in China.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

ESKSREBAEBN

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
MR. LAM SHIU CHEUNG

MRICS

aged 53, Director of China Property. Mr. Lam joined the Company in
1994. He holds a Bachelor Degree in Civil Engineering and has over
twenty years of experience in development, construction and sales of

real estate projects in the PRC.

MR. WONG YUK CHI, ALLEN

MSc, MBA, MRICS, MHIREA, FCIPFM

aged 54, Director of Property Department. Mr. Wong joined the
Company in 1997. He holds double Master Degrees in Property &
Facility Management and Business Administration, and has over twenty

years of experience in Property and Facility Management.

MR. PAN SZE YUEN, CECIL

MA (Cantab), DipArch (Cantab), RIBA

aged 50, Assistant Director of Projects. Mr. Pan is a Chartered Architect
(UK), holding Master of Arts Degree in Architecture from the University
of Cambridge, and has over twenty years of experience as a practising
architect in both UK and Hong Kong. Mr. Pan joined the Company in
2006.

MR. LAU PING LEUNG, STEPHEN

FHKIS, FRICS, MHKIE, MHKICM, P.FM, RPE, RPS

aged 61, Assistant Director of Maintenance. Mr. Lau is a professional
surveyor and professional engineer and has over thirty years of
experience in property development, building construction and

quantity surveying. Mr. Lau joined the Company in 2009.

MR. JAN KWOK WAI, KIM

BEng (Civil), CEng, MICE

aged 45, Assistant Director of Projects. Mr. Jan joined the Company in
2008. Mr. Jan is a professional engineer with over twenty years of
construction and project management experience representing Clients,
Consultants and Contractors on both private-sector and government

funded projects in China, Hong Kong and Macau.
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING IR SRBRIFA S B S

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the annual general meeting of Liu
Chong Hing Investment Limited (the “Company”) for the year 2014 will
be held at 27th Floor, Chong Hing Bank Centre, 24 Des Voeux Road
Central, Hong Kong on Tuesday, 22 April 2014 at 12:00 noon for the

following purposes:

1.

To receive and adopt the audited Financial Statements together
with Reports of the Directors and Auditors of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2013.

To approve the payment of the final cash dividend of HK$0.18 per
share for the year ended 31 December 2013.

To approve the payment of a special cash dividend of HK$2.80 per
share for the disposal of Chong Hing Bank Limited (“CHB") shares.

To approve the payment of a special dividend in the form of a
distribution in specie (the "Distribution in Specie”) of a total of
37,858,344 ordinary shares of HK$0.50 each in the capital of CHB
held by Liu Chong Hing Estate Company, Limited to be distributed
to the shareholders of the Company whose names appear on the
register of members of the Company on 25 April 2014 on the basis
of 1 share of CHB for every 10 shares of the Company held and on
the terms and conditions described in the circular of the
Company dated 20 March 2014 (a copy of which is produced to
the Meeting marked “A” and initialled by the Chairman of the

meeting for the purpose of identification.

To authorise the directors of the Company to do all acts and
things, and to approve, sign and execute all documents, which in
their opinion may be necessary, desirable, appropriate or
expedient to implement or to give effect to any and/or all

transactions in relation to the Distribution in Specie.

To re-elect Directors and fix the directors’ remuneration for the

year ending 31 December 2014.

To re-appoint Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as Auditors and to

authorize the Board of Directors to fix their remuneration.
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING IR SRBRIFA S B S

As special business to consider and, if thought fit, pass with or without

modifications the following ordinary resolutions:

WERFHIFEE  BEZRBER(TWELRE

) THE

ORDINARY RESOLUTION &Zi@R:EER

8  “THAT:

(a)

(©)

subject to paragraph (b) below, the exercise by the directors
of the Company during the Relevant Period (as hereinafter
defined) of all the powers of the Company to repurchase
shares of the Company on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) or on any other stock
exchange on which the shares of the Company may be
listed and which is recognized by the Securities and Futures
Commission in Hong Kong and the Stock Exchange for this
purpose, subject to and in accordance with all applicable
laws and the requirements of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange or of any other
stock exchange (as amended from time to time), be and is

hereby generally and unconditionally approved;

the aggregate nominal amount of the shares of the
Company which the Company is authorized to repurchase
pursuant to the approval in paragraph (a) above shall not
exceed 10% of the aggregate nominal amount of the share
capital of the Company in issue as at the date of passing of
this resolution, and the said approval shall be limited

accordingly; and
for the purpose of this resolution,

“Relevant Period” means the period from the passing of this

resolution until whichever is the earliest of:

(i)  the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of

the Company;

(i)  the expiration of the period within which the next
annual general meeting of the Company is required by
the articles of association of the Company or the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) to be held; or

(i) the date on which the authority set out in this
resolution is revoked, renewed or varied by an ordinary
resolution of the shareholders of the Company in

general meeting.”
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9.

“THAT:

(@)

subject to paragraph (c) below, the exercise by the directors
of the Company during the Relevant Period (as hereinafter
defined) of all the powers of the Company to allot, issue and
deal with additional shares in the capital of the Company
and to make or grant offers, agreements and options
(including bonds, warrants, debentures, notes and any
securities which carry rights to subscribe for or are
convertible into shares of the Company) which would or
might require the exercise of such power be and is hereby

generally and unconditionally approved;

the approval in paragraph (a) above shall authorize the
directors of the Company during the Relevant Period (as
hereinafter defined) to make or grant offers, agreements and
options (including bonds, warrants, debentures, notes and
any securities which carry rights to subscribe for or are
convertible into shares of the Company) which would or
might require the exercise of such power after the end of

the Relevant Period;

the aggregate nominal amount of share capital allotted or
agreed conditionally or unconditionally to be allotted
(whether pursuant to an option or otherwise) and issued by
the directors of the Company pursuant to the approval in
paragraph (a) above, otherwise than pursuant to (i) a Rights
Issue (as hereinafter defined); (ii) the exercise of any rights of
subscription or conversion under any warrants, bonds,
debentures, notes and any securities of the Company which
carry rights to subscribe for or are convertible into shares of
the Company; (iii) an issue of shares of the Company upon
the exercise of the subscription rights attaching to any
options granted under any share option scheme adopted by
the Company; (iv) an issue of shares as scrip dividends or
similar arrangement providing for the allotment of shares in
lieu of the whole or part of a dividend on shares of the
Company in accordance with the Company’s memorandum
and articles of association from time to time; or (v) specific
authority granted by the shareholders of the Company in
general meeting, shall not exceed 20% of the aggregate
nominal amount of the share capital of the Company in
issue at the date of passing of this resolution, and the said

approval shall be limited accordingly; and
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING IR SRBRIFA S B S

(d)

for the purpose of this resolution,

“Relevant Period” means the period from the passing of this

resolution until whichever is the earliest of:

(i)  the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of

the Company; or

(i)  the expiration of the period within which the next
annual general meeting of the Company is required by
the articles of association of the Company or the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) to be held; or

(iii) the date on which the authority set out in this
resolution is revoked, renewed or varied by an ordinary
resolution of the shareholders of the Company in

general meeting and

“Rights Issue” means an offer of shares open for a period
fixed by the directors of the Company to holders of shares
or any class of shares of the Company whose names appear
on the register of members of the Company on a fixed
record date in proportion to their then holdings of such
shares as at that date (subject to such exclusions or other
arrangements as the directors of the Company may deem
necessary or expedient in relation to fractional entitlements
or having regard to any restrictions or obligations under the
laws of, or the requirements of any recognized regulatory
body or any stock exchange in, any territory applicable to

the Company)”.

(d)

BAURZBRME -
[EEHH] BRARBRERE L
HEZETH&RF B 2 B

() ARBTEERRBFERSHE
REF ;3K

iy EBBEBEOFERERF
(L% YN CIA/NCIE-RE
ARE - XAR TEKREAE
FRGRATETHRERZ
= =1

(i) ARRBRRABRRAE L@
i8R B - BT
BRI RRBRAED 2 KA
2B Kk

[EEEHR] BARRZEENIE
E HAE A 1 45 E R 8% B #3451 R
DA PR A M2 AN R B R D AT
MERBRNDZBAEA  BREER
& B 2 B L B 2 B E B (1
ARRZEFA BTN
ZREARARRABZEMBEE
BRI 2 ERR I LT EKE
MRUEERBREMNESFRS
FRZRER  (FHBRERRUHE
SEE ZBURENITBRNAIER
BE) © |



10.

11.

“THAT conditional upon Ordinary Resolutions Nos. 8 and 9 set
out in the notice convening this meeting being passed, the general
mandate granted to the directors of the Company to exercise the
powers of the Company to allot, issue and deal with additional
shares pursuant to Ordinary Resolution No. 9 set out in the notice
convening this meeting be and is hereby extended by the addition
thereto of an amount representing the aggregate nominal amount
of the share capital of the Company repurchased by the Company
under the authority granted pursuant to Ordinary Resolution No.
8 set out in the notice convening this meeting, provided that such
extended amount of shares so repurchased shall not exceed 10%
of the aggregate nominal amount of the share capital of the

Company in issue at the date of passing of this resolution.”

To transact any other business.

By Order of the Board

Dr. Liu Lit Mo

Chairman

Hong Kong, 20 March 2014
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING IR SRBRIFA S B S

notes:

A member of the Company entitled to attend and vote at the 2014 annual general
meeting is entitled to appoint another person as his proxy to attend and vote in his
stead. A member who is the holder of two or more shares may appoint more than one
proxy to attend on the same occasion. A proxy need not be a member of the
Company.

To be valid, a form of proxy, together with any power of attorney or other authority (if
any) under which it is signed, or a notarially certified copy thereof, must be lodged with
the Company's Share Registrars, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
at 17M Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, not less
than 48 hours before the time appointed for holding the meeting or any adjournment
thereof.

Record dates of entitlements of the Members:

(a) For the purpose of determining shareholders who are entitled to attend and
vote at the 2014 Annual General Meeting to be held on Tuesday, 22 April 2014
(2014 AGM”"), whose name should be recorded in the Company's shareholders
book on Wednesday, 16 April 2014. The Register of Members of the Company
will be closed from Tuesday, 15 April 2014 and Wednesday, 16 April 2014, both
days inclusive. In order to qualify for attending and voting at the 2014 AGM, all
share certificates with completed transfer forms either overleaf or separately
must be lodged with the Company’s Share Registrars, Computershare Hong
Kong Investor Services Limited, Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on
Monday, 14 April 2014.

(b) For the purpose of determining shareholders who qualify for the 2013 Final
Dividend and a special cash dividend, whose name should be recorded in the
Company's shareholders book on Friday, 9 May 2014. The Register of Members
of the Company will be closed from Wednesday, 7 May 2014 to Friday, 9 May
2014, both days inclusive. In order to qualify for the final dividend and special
cash dividend, all share certificates with completed transfer forms either
overleaf or separately must be lodged for registration with the Company’s
Registrars, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, Shops 1712—
1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong not later
than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 5 May 2014.

(0) For the purpose of determining shareholders who qualify for the CHB Shares to
be distributed pursuant to the LCHI Distribution in Specie, whose name should
be recorded in the Company's shareholders book on Friday, 25 April 2014. In
order to qualify for the LCHI Distribution in Specie, all share transfers,
accompanied by the relevant share certificates, must be lodged with the
Company's share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712—1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen's Road East, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30
p.m. on Friday, 25 April 2014.

As at the date hereof, the Board of Directors of the Company comprises Executive
Directors: Dr. Liu Lit Mo (Chairman), Mr. Liu Lit Chi (Managing and Chief Executive
Officer), Mr. Liu Kam Fai, Winston (Deputy Managing Director), Mr. Liu Kwun Shing,
Christopher (also alternate director to Dr. Liu Lit Chung) and Mr. Lee Wai Hung; Non-
executive Directors: Dr. Liu Lit Chung, Mr. Andrew Liu, Mr. Liu Chun Ning, Wilfred and
Mr. Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher; and Independent Non-executive Directors: Dr. Cheng
Mo Chi, Moses, Mr. Tong Tsin Ka, Mr. Au Kam Yuen, Arthur, Dr. Ma Hung Ming, John
and Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo.
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LIU CHONG HING GROUP SIMPLIFIED CORPORATE STRUCTURE CHART

EalR

As at 31 December 2013
R=B-—=F+=A=+—H
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SCHEDULE OF MAJOR PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP AND ASSOCIATES
SERBMESL I ETSMER

As at 31 December 2013 R=E—=F+=f=+—H

Interest in
the property Approximate Total gross
attributable site area floor area
Description to the Group (sq.ft.) (sq.ft.) Existing use
rEEEEZ BONEERE AREEERE
Bt ES S (FAR) (FAR) BRAZR

Investment properties
REN %

Hong Kong:

E

1. Chong Yip Centre 100% 32,400 54,000 (/P
402—404 Des Voeux Road West
RS
1= 78 78 40404 5%

2. Fairview Court 100% 30,000 26,000 R/P
94 Repulse Bay Road
BEEE

KB U
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3. Chong Hing Bank Centre 50.20% 7,100 110,000 0
24 Des Voeux Road Central
B EERITHRL

EERET U5

190,000

Kowloon and New Territories:
NERFHR :

4. (Chong Hing Square 100% 12,300 182,000 C
593—601 Nathan Road, Mongkok
Bl ES
W fA 3 2E 593-601 57

5. Fung Shun Commercial Building 50.20% 2,200 33,000 0
591 Nathan Road, Mongkok
LIRmEAE
£ 38 208 591 5%

6. Bonsun Industrial Building 100% 18,000 8,200 /P
364-366 Sha Tsui Road, Tsuen Wan
BRIXKE
S8 DB 78 364-366 5%

-
o
N

7. Chatham Gate 10% 40,700 305,000 R
388 Chatham Road North 61,000 C
Hung Hom
FEIF
AR
RAEIL388 5%

v HBXITERS

&= |

589,200
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SCHEDULE OF MAJOR PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP AND ASSOCIATES

SERBESL A ETSMER

As at 31 December 2013 R=E—=F+=f=+—H

Interestin
the property Approximate Total gross
attributable site area floor area
Description to the Group (sq.ft.) (sq.ft.) Existing use
AEBELEZ BAREERE ARFEAESE
Bt Ve (FAR) (FAR) BRAZR
Investment properties
REWF
Peaple’s Republic of China:
P -
8. (Chong Hing Finance Center 100% 55,000 103,000 C
No. 288 Nanjing Road (W) 413,000 0
Huang Pu District 180,000 P
Shanghai
SRS
g
EHE
R 288 5%
696,000
1,475,200




Interestin
the property ~ Approximate Total gross Expected
attributable site area floor area completion
Description to the Group (sq.ft.) (sq.ft) Existinguse  Status date
AEEELz HONEEE LRFEEEE
Bt VES S (FAR) (FAR) BRAE IREE et R A H

Properties under development/Properties under development for sale

BRIYE HHERRTYF

Hong Kong:

BB

9, Western Harbour Centre 100% 11,500 n/a n/a  Planning
181-183 Connaught Road West TEA TER  EH
EERDL

B 18-85
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0. Various Lotsin D.D. 29 100% 262,000 n/a n/a  Planning o
Ting Kok Road, Tai Po N TER  FrElF ®
AT AR
ZHNSHE

Peaple’s Republic of China:

Fa
1. The Grand Riviera/Grand Jardin 90% 2,755,000 5,842,000 R Firstphase:
West of Luocun 350,000 C Completed
Luocun Social Management Office 2,099,000 P F-H:E%K
Shishan Town 32,000 S
Nanhai District 115,000 T Second phase: 2014
Foshan Construction in
BENER/ EBRE progress
Il FoH:IR “T-mE
HEE T
WUEENHEERE
7 [ 1 ER Third and Fourth
phase:
Planning stage
E=RIUE
B
109
8,438,000 m
a
(=Commercial % |=Industrial T3 P=(ar Park B R=Residential £ 0=0ffice T2 "
S=Clubhouse and recreational facilities & Fr } B2 3% 1fe T= Others (including kindergarten, property management office, etc.) 2
Hit (BEHHE  WEERRES) .
I
L]
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SHAREHOLDERS' INFORMATION A% 5 &

FINANCIAL CALENDAR As at 26 February 2014

B EHER - E—mE_F—+/<H

RESULTS ANNOUNCEMENT
L3 WNiF

Interim Results
for six-month ended 30 June 2013
BE—_ZT—=F,A=1+HL
NERZHEES

Annual Results
for year ended 31 December 2013
BHE_ZE-—=F+-"HA=+—HIt
FREZEFEE

Announced on 7 August 2013

ERZT—=F\ALHRH

Announced on 26 February 2014

BRZE—NE-A=-+ B2 M

SHAREHOLDERS’ MEETING
BRERKS

Annual General Meeting

BREAFAE

Latest time to lodge transfer forms

BR3P X RIEHIR

Closure of Register of Members
(for purpose of ascertaining entitlements
to attend and vote at the 2014 Annual
General Meeting)
BiEERimhBrRELTFE

To be held on 22 April 2014
KR —ZE—NFOA -+ - H8T

430 pm on 14 April 2014
—E-MENA+TEBE TFERE=+5

From 15 April 2014 to 16 April 2014
(both days inclusive)

—E-NENA+REHE-_ZT—NOFMNA/+~H

(EERRUFE _T—HF (BEEMABREN)
RREFAGRIRE
CASH DIVIDENDS
RERS
Interim cash dividend HKS$0.10 per share
PHEIIR SIS BB 00T
Paid on 26 September 2013
SERIEE! —E—=FhAZ+AXAH

Proposed final cash dividend and special
cash dividend
BIRERPRESRELFRHREEKRE

Payable on

SENIEE

Ex-dividend date of final dividend
RHAME B B H

Latest time to lodge transfer forms

B P XA R R

Closure of Register of Members
(for purpose of ascertaining entitlements
to receive the final dividend)
TERERNBFELFE
(FEE A R UHCR AR S

HK$O 18 per share and HK$2.8 per share
BRIBE 08T REEEE 28T

15 May 2014
—mERA+HERA

2 May 2014

—T-mEAA-H

4:30 pm on 5 May 2014
—E-NERARR TFER=
From 7 May 2014 to 9 May 2014

(both days inclusive)

—EHFRATRE_T—
(EEMRBEEAN)

MERANE




DISTRIBUTION IN SPECIE
SRk

Distribution of CHB Shares
kB EERTTRY (D

Record date

EMERE

Last day of dealing in the Company shares on a
cum-entitlement basis

NEREEREERMMKREKEH

Commencement on dealing in the Company’s
shares on an ex-entitlement basis
R ERELERKER RN BB

Latest time to lodge transfer forms
BB X MR HR

Completion date of share transfer
P tn 8858 ek B

Share certificate despatch date
IREEH A

1 CHB Share for every 10 shares of LCHI
10 A% 22 8| 8 10 3 R 170 35 1 AR B R TT AR 1

25 April 2014
—E-NEPA=+HA

23 April 2014

—ET-NFEEAZ+=H

24 April 2014

—E-mEmPA-—+ImA

4:30 pm on 25 April 2014
—ENFOAZTRATFUE=1T%

On or before 30 April 2014
—E-MEPA=+HKZA

On or before 5 May 2014
—E-WHERARBARZA]
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SHAREHOLDERS' INFORMATION A% 5 &

Share Registrars and transfer office : Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East Wanchai,
Hong Kong

BipE L REEE BRRRIFELERAA
BEBFERKNER 18355
BMPLTEB—E—ZE -t IR

Share listing : The Company's shares are listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

AR B KRATRENEBHARSAERLDA
HEEE

Stock Code : 194

Ao (5% 194

Board lot : 2,000 shares

BEEEBN 2,000 %

No. of issued ordinary share 3 378,583,440 shares

ERTEBRRBMNEAR 378,583,440 %

Company's e-mail address : info@Ichi.com.hk

Nl EEHE info@lchi.com.hk

Investors and Shareholders contact : Attention: Mr. Lee Wai Hung/Ms. Nelly Ng

23rd Floor, Chong Hing Bank Centre
24 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong
Tel: (852) 3768 9050
Fax: (852) 3768 9009
Website: http://www.lchi.com.hk
K& E MIRRE AR B REMEE HEENE
BEARHET —_TORAIERITR O T=18
BaE  (852) 3768 9050
EE : (852) 3768 9009
#E : heep//wwwilchicomhk
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT & 3 i% S{ 6 iR &5 =

Deloitte.
=2

TO THE MEMBERS OF LIU CHONG HING
INVESTMENT LIMITED
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Liu Chong
Hing Investment Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 116 to 304,
which comprise the consolidated and company statements of financial
position as at 31 December 2013, and the consolidated statement of
profit or loss, consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity
and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory

information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with section 141 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with
Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial

statements are free from material misstatement.

HERIBIERBRLIAISKR

(REEZMA L2 HREA])

AAZEAD (AT RS [ 349 )) B e E|AZ R
FN6E304EMBERIENTEFRAF(TER

ADREMBAR (& @J)i‘/*\ﬂﬁ%
WE WHEEMBRREER_F—=F
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY (CONTINUED)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In
making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall

presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31
December 2013 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
26 February 2014
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

o O\ 33 €
meoBa&

For the year ended 31 December 2013 EIZ=F—=#+_-A=+—HBILFE

2013 2012
—E-=F —E—_fF
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
fiazE BET T BETT
(restated)
(/=7
Continuing operations HELE
Revenue Wi 8 403,488 365,428
Direct costs BERA (107,905) (95,949)
295,583 269,479
Other income HElA 9 10,079 10,669
Administrative and operating expenses U REERY (144,645) (165,219)
Other gains and losses Hipliam ke 10 229,412 243,263
Finance costs BARS R R i (89,133) (109,124)
Share of profits of joint ventures Frih e et ERmF 107 118
Profit before tax BTt A s 301,403 249,186
Income tax expense it 12 (27,830) (35,548)
Profit for the year from continuing operations BERERFR G 273,573 213,638
Discontinued operations BRIEEE
Profit for the year from discontinued operations BRI EEREREH 3 552,163 544,666
Profit for the year AEEH 14 825,736 758,304
Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company ARERARRRRAAFZREF
— from continuing operations —RERELE 268,905 210,447
— from discontinued operations —REBR R 274,555 269,563
543,460 480,010
Profit for the year attributable to non-controlling interests 43 B SEZ2 IR IR S48 25 40 AR E FE A 7
— from continuing operations —RERELE 4,668 3,191
— from discontinued operations —REBR | HEE 277,608 275,103
282,276 278,294
825,736 758,304
Basic earnings per share BREREF
— from continuing and discontinued operations —REREREKRIEE 17 BHHKS1.44 T BEEHKS1.27 8
— from continuing operations —KERBERE 17 BEHKS0.71 7T AEEHKS0.56 7T




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
B RaRHMEEHRER

For the yearended 31 December 2013 BZ=F—=F+-A=1+—HItFE

2013 2012
—E-=F —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Profit for the year AEFGEH 825,736 758,304
Other comprehensive income (expense) Hip 2 EKE (i)
ltems that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss RGN EN B2 Rnk B -
Exchange differences arising on translation BEMEECERER 115,527 9,879
Fair value gains on available-for-sale investments AHHEREZ AT EERS 55,251 262,852
Income tax relating to fair value change of available-for-sale investments ~ BRA A/t HERE A FEE
23 FEH 514 (29,914)
Amount reclassified to the profit or loss upon disposal of HEHREEREEYEN
available-for-sale investments PEIEREC EE (62,303) (594)
Income tax relating to disposal of available-for-sale investments BNHEMHEERE EH 261 98
Share of other comprehensive income of associates PRIEERE AR E M 2 E 464 430
Other comprehensive income for the year (net of tax) AFEEME2ERE (BFE) 109,714 242,751
Total comprehensive income for the year AEERENREHE 935,450 1,001,055
Total comprehensive income attributable to: 2EMREESIR :
Owners of the Company NARRE 628,052 641,789
Non-controlling interests RS R R R 307,398 359,266
935,450 1,001,055
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

nTCI ji‘kﬂﬁ R?‘%

Asat 31 December 2013 %

“2—=%+-A=1+-H

2013 2012
—E-=f —E—_fF
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
s BET T BETT
Assets EE

Cash and short-term funds EFERENEHES 18 465,682 17,845,583

Placements with banks and other financial institutions FHRE R A SEE
maturing between one to twelve months N—ZE+-@ARNEEBHz B 122,620 4,844115
Derivative financial instruments TEERIA 20 — 187,911
[nvestments in securities BEERE 21 444,545 15,504,832
Advances and other accounts — financial services ER R EMRE — 2R R% 22 — 42,069,072
Advances to an investee company BRI ERT 23 193,424 322,539
Trade and other receivables — non-financial services ZHNEMERET —EL IR 26 113,929 91,292
Properties under development for sale FHERRDYE 24 642,547 457,617
Properties held for sale FHEYE 24 590,967 584722
Inventories zE 25 18,467 17,417
Interests in joint ventures AEERER 27 2,768 2,661
Interests in associates NIl ey 28 — 182,970
Investment properties HEME 29 5,962,913 5,868,769
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB KRG 30 303,522 966,907
Prepaid lease payments ENHEES N 31 — 2423
Properties under development BEAYE 24 702,200 702,200
Deferred tax assets EIEHBEE 32 630 2,182
Goodwill S 33 — 50,606
9,564,264 89,703,818
Assets classified as held for sale NEAGFHERE 13 84,876,561 —
Total assets BEE 94,440,825 89,703,818




2013 2012
—E-=F —E-—F
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
ik BET T BT
Liabilities s
Deposits and balances of banks and other financial institutions [ % & E th 81 S I 17 30\ i 64 — 1,843,477
Financial assets sold under repurchase agreements REERZETHEZSRERE 34 — 433,681
Deposits from banking customers BOIBPER 35 — 67,361,446
Certificates of deposit e ) 36 — 667,636
Derivative financial instruments fTES®MIA 20 — 248,656
Trade and other payables 23 REMEMNER 37 212,665 979,327
Taxation payable RN 5,413 34,480
Loan capital BEER 38 — 1,898,957
Borrowings N 39 3,782,176 3,730,120
Deferred tax liabilities ELHBEER 32 209,887 213,009
4,210,141 77,410,789
Liabilities associated with assets classified as held for sale NEARHESEZHBARE 13 77,214,362 —
Total liabilities FeN=RE 81,424,503 77,410,789
Equity R
Share capital %N 43 378,583 378,583
Reserves i 8,739,736 8,217,687
Equity attributable to: FAED B -
Owners of the Company ANBIIRE 9,118,319 8,596,270
Non-controlling interests FEFE PR R B R 3,898,003 3,696,759
Total equity IRAEEE 13,016,322 12,293,029
Total liabilities and equity SENREARE 94,440,825 89,703,818
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The consolidated financial statements on pages 116 to 304 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 26

February 2014 and are signed on its behalf by:

119

DR. LIU LIT MO MR. TONG TSIN KA %
BRREL ERRAE .
CHAIRMAN CHAIRMAN OF AUDIT COMMITTEE :a;
EY: ELEERTE o

:
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Bt #5 1A I R
Asat31December 2013 R=T—=F+=A=+—H
2013 2012
—E-=f —E—_fF
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
s BT T BETT
Non-current assets FRBER
Property, plant and equipment WE BB NRE 30 2,150 2,332
Investments in subsidiaries HBRRZIE 40 363,454 315,755
Investments in joint ventures RELEIRE 27 3 3
Investments in securities EHE 21 130,399 158,035
Amounts due from subsidiaries TEW B A RIBR R 41 4,210,408 4,483,707
Deferred tax assets ERBEAE 32 680 680
4,707,094 4,960,512
Current assets REEE
Properties held for sale FHEME 24 2,808 2,808
Trade and other receivables B 5 REMEUERR 2 5122 5,992
Investments in securities BHRE 2 20,004 43,463
Fixed bank deposits with more than REIBRTTAR A A ([BIEHRTT))
three months to maturity when raised with REMBAR([RIEBTERE])
Chong Hing Bank Limited ("CHB") and BAZEARIIS
its subsidiaries ("CHB Group") EHRITER 19 91,624 16,524
Fixed bank deposits with more than BAZEAREHZ
three months to maturity when raised EHRITER — B RIT
— other banks 19 114,098 52,135
Pledged bank deposits with CHB Group REIERITEE 2 EER
RITER 19 33,672 33,299
Pledged bank deposits with other bank REMBT EERBITER 19 1,897 —
Bank balances with CHB Group REIRFTER 2 RITER 19 107,242 89,161
Other bank balances and cash EtBRIIERRRS 19 269,817 170,406
646,284 413,788




s
z
>
2013 M E
—E-=F —E——F =
NOTES HK$'000 Hsooo
A AWT T et B
Current liabilities REEE %
Trade and other payables B NEMENEDR 37 10,352 8,238 e
Taxation payable JADEiEN — 13,918 P
Borrowings — due within one year R —RN—EREH 39 1,813,601 3,100,255
1,823,953 3,122,411
Net current liabilities TBBEFE (1,177,669) (2,708,623)
Total assets less current liabilities BEERREEE 3,529,425 2,251,889
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Borrowings — due after one year fER—RN—FBEH 39 1,364,144 —
Non-interest bearing advances from subsidiaries MBAR & EBH ) 143,933 120,957
1,508,077 120,957
2,021,348 2,130,932
Capital and reserves BERRGHE
Share capital A 43 378,583 378,583
Reserves i 44 1,642,765 1,752,349
2,021,348 2,130,932
DR. LIU LIT MO MR. TONG TSIN KA
BRREL BRXRX%E
CHAIRMAN CHAIRMAN OF AUDIT COMMITTEE
TE ERLZEETE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

HOREBHE

For the year ended 31 December 2013 EIZ=F—=#+_-A=+—HBILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company 7% 2 &) i 5 FE 45

Property  Investment Capital
Share Special revaluation  revaluation  redemption Exchange  Accumulated Non-controlling
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests Total
mE  RESME REEE FEER
BRA  HkhEE  BhEE % #E ERRE EREN @ RRER ‘st
HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
BETT BB Tr  E%Tr BT BT BT BT B%Tn E%Tr B%Trx
(note a) (note b) (note )
(Bi5te) (F#ED) (izEo)
At 1 January 2012 RZE——F—A—H 378,583 75,747 1,711,859 93,514 2952 497,696 5,366,417 8,126,768 3531812 11,658,580
Profit for the year REDEF — — — — — — 480,010 480,010 218,294 758304
Exchange differences arising on translation 2 EFREA 7 [EX Z5 — — — — — 6,638 — 6,638 34 9,879
Fairvalue gains on avallable-for-sale ~ AI{HHERE 2
investments ATEEKE — — — 169,941 — — — 169,941 929 262,852
Income tax relating to far value change of  BERA T 4 1 & 1 B N F{E
available-for-sale investments BE 2 FEH — — — (14,768) — — — (14,768) (15,146) (29914)
Amount reclassified to the profitor loss HEAMREEREEH
upon disposal of available-for-sale B EBEEER
investments i) — — — (293) — — — (293) (301) (594)
Income tax elating to disposal of BREETHNERE
available-for-sale investments ZHEH — — — 49 — — — 49 4 9%
Share of other comprehensive income  FFAT A AR £ b2 E
of assodiates Uz — — — 12 — — — N2 218 430
Other comprehensive income for the year K4 [ ELAth 2 2% — — — 155,141 — 6,638 — 161,779 80,972 242,751
Total comprehensive income for the year N 4E [ 2 E Ui a5 4858 — — — 155,141 — 6,638 480,010 641,789 359,266 1,001,055
Acquisition of additional interests in ERERB AR 2 Ea
subsidiaries — (61832) — — — (4452) — (66,284) (92,449) (158,733)
Dividends recognised s distribution BRRBDIEZIKZE
(note 16) (Bt &% 16) — — — — — — (106,003) (106,003) — (106,003)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests 37 1<F 3 2 AR A B AE 25 A 5. — — — — — — — — (101,870) (101,870)
At31 December 2012 RZE—ZF+=f
=+—H 378,583 13915 1,711,859 248,655 2952 499,882 5,740,424 8,596,270 3,696,759 12,293,029




Attributable to owners of the Company < 723 & B 3R FE A%

Property  Investment (apital
Share Special  revaluation  revaluation  redemption Exchange  Accumulated Non-controlling
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests Total
WEER REER RAEE FER
BRA  HKREE e i e ERRE EEEA @/ BRRER ‘st
HK'000 HKS000 HKS'000 HK$000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
BT BETT BT B%Tr B%Tx A% Tx  ESTr  B¥Tr BETT BETrx
(notea) (note b) (note )
CiE2) (FizED) (PiEo)
At 1 January 2013 RZ_E—=F—A—H 378,583 13915 1,711,859 248,655 2952 499,882 5,740,424 8,596,270 3,096,759 12,293,029
Profit for the year AEEEF — — — — — — 543,460 543,460 282,276 825,736
Exchange differences arising on translation ¥R FIEA 2 [EH Z 5 — — — — — 88,212 — 88,212 27315 115,527
Fairvalue gains on available-forsale AT HERE 2
investments AT EERS — — — 57,273 — — — 57,273 (2022) 55,01
Income tax relating to fair value change of - B RA AT 42t i &5 1 B A B
available-for-sale investments ZEHEHR — — — 258 — — — 258 256 514
Amount reclassified to the profitorloss Pt & AT H 51 B E
upon disposal of available-for-sale Epipap CEE s
investments e — — — (61515) — — — (61,515) (788) 62,303)
Income tax elating to disposal of BREETHNERE
avalable-for-sale investments ZFEH — — — 131 — — — 131 130 21
Share of other comprehensive income (AT & A R A 2E
of associates W — — — 233 — — — 233 DE] 464
Other comprehensive income for the year 74 [ At 2 T s — — — (3,620 — 88,212 — 84,592 55,12 109,714
Total comprehensive income for the year N7 [F 2 Uk 25 48 %8 — — — (3,620 — 88,212 543,460 628,052 307,398 935,450
Dividends recognised as distribution BRRADRZRE
(note 16) (FiE16) — — — — — — (106,003) (106,003) — (106,003)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests 52 1<} 332 A A 3R 4 25 % 5. — — — — — — — — (106,154) (106,154)
At31 December 2013 RZE—=F+=A
=+ 318,583 13915 1,711,859 245,035 2952 588,094 6,177,881 9,118,319 3,898,003 13,016,322
notes: 5T
(@)  The special reserve represents the difference between the consideration paid and ~ (a)  BHEEEASEREZE_ZTNF+ _A=+—HIEFERHEZE
the carrying values of the underlying assets and liabilities attributable to the ZE—ZHF+Z A=t -RIEFERA—FEMB AR A REEE
additional interest in a subsidiary acquired during the year ended 31 December EEMBARBIMER  EREER AERAECEM -
2004 and the year ended 31 December 2012.
(b)  The property revaluation reserve represents the reserve arising from revaluation of ~ (b) VX ELFEREETFERAREMEE  EMYE  BELREE
properties under property, plant and equipment upon transfer to investment T FTE R R o
properties in previous years.
(c)  The regulatory reserve is set up in compliance with the requirement of the Hong ()  ZZEEREIZBEESRERR([€ER)) ZREKTL » I B

Kong Monetary Authority ("HKMA”) and is distributable to owners of CHB
subject to consultation with the HKMA. As at 31 December 2013, regulatory
reserve of HK$221,372,000 (2012: HK$194,265,000) and HK$219,628,000 (2012:
HK$192,735,000) are included under accumulated profits and non-controlling
interests, respectively.

HHEERBRAUDRTAERITHRR - RZFE—=F+=A
=+—8 ' DBIEEE2213720007T (=T —ZF : #8194,2650007T)
F 8219628000 7T (= — Z4F « 15 192,735000 7T ) BE TE AT
ABTE R FI R IEE IR R 2 o
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 EIZ=F—=#+_-A=+—HBILFE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

mEREMER

2013 2012
—E-=f —E—_fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BETT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REER
Profit before tax BRABEAT R A
— from continuing operations —REEERE 301,403 249,186
— from discontinued operations (note 13) —REBHKIEEE () 664,600 647,711
966,003 896,897
Adjustments for: HE
Net interest income — financial services FBWAFE — 2R R (1,015,502) (837,597)
Net charge (reversal) of impairment allowances on loans and advances ETREEENG (E5) 35,237 (65,228)
Gain on changes in fair value on investment properties BRENELNTEEEH NS (148,302) (270,630)
Gain on disposal of investment properties HEREME LS (2,327) (2,816)
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE—AlBRREE — 41
Net gains on disposal of available-for-sale-investments HEEEEREFRE (63,011) (745)
Share of profits of associates PGB A RLE R (32,103) (36,028)
Dividend income from investments REBREMA (11,108) (10910)
Interest income — non-financial services FBWA — FERBIRTE (20,593) (16,792)
Imputed interest income on non-current interest-free advances to M=K E A RELIERE
aninvestee company REBS HENBWA (2,951) (2,561)
Share of profits of joint ventures b a et RT (107) (118)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment MmE - WERRERTE 66,626 72,991
Finance costs — non-financial services BBHAR— e RR% 89,133 109,124
Net gains on fair value hedge ATEE 2 RS (536) (1,200)
Net (gains) losses on disposal of property and equipment HEMERRET Us) B (6,303) 2,115
Exchange adjustments b 1 R 17,697 819
Release of prepaid lease payments for land BNTMEEERER 66 66
Impairment losses of other receivables Hit YRR EEE = (20,092)
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital R BEELEHEEBEERE (128,081) (182,664)




2013 2012
—E-=F —Z-——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BETT
Decrease (increase) in operating assets: LEBEZRDCEM) :
Other advances to customers Hin&ZPER (4,200,689) 2,342,761
Financial assets at fair value through profit o loss BAFEEFABEZEREE 1,148,425 648,604
Trade and other receivables B 5 RE M EWER (29,404) 57,403
Bills receivable FERE & (33,523) 30,328
Properties held for sale FHEME 4,967 20,995
Investments held for trading BEBERBRE — 5
Placements with banks and other financial institutions with B=EANBERRAZER
original maturity over three months Hib B g soE (2,663,657) (1,975,578)
Money at call and short notice with original maturity over three months B=-ERIHy BAREHER 249,906 (1,738,466)
Advances to banks and other financial institutions FZEREMTBERBEER 2,164,842 (659,433)
Other accounts HiBRIE 36,851 (254,426)
Trade bills EV L (1,711,314) (151,188)
Exchange fund bills with original maturity over three months BEANBINEELEE (509,278) (50,061)
Properties under development for sale BEAGHEYE (157,978) (5,346)
Inventories 5 (1,050) (2,724)
Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities: HEABEZEMCED)
Deposits from banking customers BIRPER 3,656,156 2,692,649
Deposits and balances of banks and other financial institutions with B=EANBRITREM
original maturity over three months B EETR &S (202,593) 1,003,864
Trade and other payables B 5 RHMERERN 93,994 55,081
Financial assets sold under repurchase agreements REERE THE L SREE 822,976 13,029
Certificates of deposit B (104,633) (877,926)
Derivative financial instruments fTEeMIA (106,862) (51,127)
Cash (used in) generated from operations meER (MR M55 (1,670,945) 915,780
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid EREBFER (69,366) (118,883)
The Peaple’s Republic of China Enterprise Income Tax paid ERREARRMBECEMAER (2,253) (11,860)
Overseas tax paid BN (23,050) (16,409)
Dividend received on investments EHIRERE 11,108 10,910
Interest paid 2ERFIE (522,745) (602,958)
Interest received RGNS 1,328,167 1,232,792
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES RexB (R AE2ReFE (949,084) 1,409,372
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

mEREMER

For the year ended 31 December 2013 EIZ=F—=#+_-A=+—HBILFE

2013 2012
—E-=F —T——F
NOTE HK$'000 HK$'000
s BT T BETT
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REXHK
Purchase of held-to-maturity securities BARBEHHAZES (18,738,706) (20,184,070)
Additional investments in available-for-sale investments KAt HERE 7 BB (1,400,026) (2,875,603)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BENE  BERLE (39,060) (77,562)
Increase in bank deposits with more than BEAZEA%RESHZ
three months to maturity when raised RITEREM (162,475) (44,523)
Purchase of investment properties BELENE — (37,010)
Advance to an investee company BANBRERA 130,000 (5,000)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—EHBAT 47 = (8)
Proceeds from redemption of held-to-maturity securities BROSEEBEAERA 20,012,004 18,872,132
Proceeds from sale and redemption of HEREDATHEE
available-for-sale investments REMGEFE 87,781 703,621
Interest received on available-for-sale investments and WEAEHEREREE
held-to-maturity securities HEABEAR A 302,391 276,023
Dividend received from associates e BR B & 1 B 2 IS, 16,100 7,360
Proceeds from disposal of investment properties HEREMENESTE 9,697 4316
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment HEME BERRGREIE 8,472 16
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEBHE (A 2RETE 226,178 (3,360,108)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES HETEH
New borrowings raised HEGER 1,310,660 1,327,126
Repayments of borrowings BRER (1,252,816) (956,426)
Dividends paid to owners of the Company ERARAERERE (106,003) (106,003)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests B FERERRERE (106,154) (101,870)
Additional investment in a subsidiary R—ENB AR ZEIMNEE = (158,733)
Interest paid on borrowings BRERHE (101,708) (109,124)
Interest paid on loan capital BREEERFHE (62,006) (65,225)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES BETEMACESFE (318,027) (170,255)




sl
=
2013 M E
—E-=F —Z-——F =
HKS'000 Hksooo [
BT et B
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RERRESEEE R FE (1,040,933) (212099 §
#
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING FNzReRA&%EER ol
OF THE YEAR 15,382,661 17,489,556
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES IR Y e (18,918) 14,096
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR FRZAGRASEHEER 14,322,810 15,382,661
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year, represented by:  F&R 7R E& KBS EEEA - B -
Money at call and short notice with original maturity of REHNHAPR=ZEAZ
less than three months BAREHER 9,132,026 7,565,351
Cash and balances with banks and other financial Be RERRITREM
institutions BB IR 3,830,463 6,574,516
Placements with banks and other finandial RESHALR=AZ
institutions with original maturity of FHRREREMRE
less than three months WigE 1,776,448 1309116
Exchange fund bills with original maturity of REHHAIR=MEAZ
less than three months HEESZE 300,000 499,995
Deposits and balances of banks and other financial FEHHALR=EAZ
institutions with original maturity of less than BRITRE M A BHE
three months BRkEH (716,127) (566,317)
14,322,810 15,382,661
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

= © B #5 ¥ X B 5
For the year ended 31 December 2013 EIZ=F—=#+_-A=+—HBILFE

1. GENERAL

The Company is a public limited liability company incorporated in
Hong Kong and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the "Hong Kong Stock Exchange”). The address of the
registered office and principal place of business of the Company is 25/F,

Chong Hing Bank Centre, 24 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong

dollars (“HKS"), which is also the functional currency of the Company.

The principal activities of the Company are property investment and
investment holding. The principal activities of the principal subsidiaries,
joint ventures and associates are shown in notes 53, 27 and 28

respectively.

2.  APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

The Group and the Company have applied the following new and

revised HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public

Accountants (“HKICPA”) for the first time in the current year:

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Disclosures — Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of ltems of Other Comprehensive

Income
HK(IFRIC)-Int 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of

a Surface Mine

Except as described below, the application of the new and revised
HKFRSs in the current year has had no material impact on the Group’s
financial performance and the Group’s and the Company’s financial
positions for the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set

out in these consolidated financial statements.

1. —MRSBIA

KAl B—HEESEMK L ARBRA
Al ERMDREBBMAERSHBRAR(E
PEEEZFT ) BhE o AN Bz s = R bk
REELEEMMUABEBEHET —+TREA
FERITHR LT AIE -
REMBREAARQB 2 BB ([
DRI

KRR EFBEBRMERERKRETR -
TEMBAR AEERBEARZE
B0 BIESI M EES3 ~ 27 28 °

b

2. ERAMIIRKEEITISEBMBRS
HAN(TBBUMBERSER )
AEERARBRRAFEERER T AR
BEMAR(EFEGEAE]) EMHZH

I REER] BB MBI E LR

BEMBREER BEMBREEN _TTNF
CHES ECT-ERHEEME

BEMBEEE BE-—HHeREERERER
15 (BT

BEMBaEE NYEEHE
F1B%

ERGTHEAIE IR Eth2ENEER 225
CHES)

&b (ARMHRERE
Z2Be)-REZH
B NPT & SN - AN F R B A Bl RT &
RIEFTEEVBRE LN LEHAEENA
RARANFENBEFE Z2MBRFARK
SEZUBRAR,KZSEEWBERRA
HBBREREATE -

EXBGLERRZARRA



2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

AMENDMENTS TO HKFRS 7 DISCLOSURES — OFFSETTING

FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

The Group has applied the amendments to HKFRS 7 Disclosures —

Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities for the first time in the

current year. The amendments to HKFRS 7 require entities to disclose

information about:

(a) recognised financial instruments that are set off in accordance

with HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation; and

(b) recognised financial instruments that are subject to an enforceable
master netting arrangement or similar agreement, irrespective of
whether the financial instruments are set off in accordance with
HKAS 32.

The amendments to HKFRS 7 have been applied retrospectively. The
application of the amendments has had no material impact on the
amounts reported in the Group’s consolidated financial statements but
has resulted in more disclosures about rights of offset and related
arrangements (such as collateral posting requirements) for financial
instruments under an enforceable master netting arrangement or

similar agreement. Detailed disclosures are set out in note 6.

2. [EHEMIREESTEBUBRS
HA(EBUBHHRSER]) (&)

SBMBRSENF 7% (BTN HEF —
HHTHEERTHMARE

AEERAFEERRAEEMBHRE LR
FIRUEATRN)KE — HiHeMEERTH

B - BAWHREERE 75 (BRI RE
ERNEETIIERENER

(@) LBEBGHENERNHREHMTA: 27
EIRIEME RS T E &

(b) RAEHMITHRFEEE L REL
HERFINEERSB TR BERad
MTARTRREBGTERIE 25EE
i e

BEMBRSENESF(BITR) 2 EWE

Ao BRZFEIALEHANEEES T

BERAEBROSHEBNEATE  BREH

FREEZREANAGRTHEFREER
BERELUMERETHSRTAGHIEHELA
B2 Pk (AR 30 an ARR B3R BRI - R
TBE L6 ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

= © B #5 ¥ X B 5
For the year ended 31 December 2013 EIZ=F—=#+_-A=+—HBILFE

2.  APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

HKFRS 13 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

The Group and the Company have applied HKFRS 13 for the first time

in the current year. HKFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance for,

and disclosures about, fair value measurements. The scope of HKFRS 13

is broad: the fair value measurement requirements of HKFRS 13 apply to

both financial instrument items and non-financial instrument items for
which other HKFRSs require or permit fair value measurements and
disclosures about fair value measurements, except for share-based
payment transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based

Payment, leasing transactions that are within the scope of HKAS 17

Leases, and measurements that have some similarities to fair value but

are not fair value (e.g. net realisable value for the purposes of measuring

inventories or value in use for impairment assessment purposes).

HKFRS 13 defines the fair value of an asset as the price that would be
received to sell an asset (or paid to transfer a liability, in the case of
determining the fair value of a liability) in an orderly transaction in the
principal (or most advantageous) market at the measurement date
under current market conditions. Fair value under HKFRS 13 is an exit
price regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated
using another valuation technique. Also, HKFRS 13 includes extensive

disclosure requirements.

HKFRS 13 requires prospective application. In accordance with the
transitional provisions of HKFRS 13, the Group and the Company have
not made any new disclosures required by HKFRS 13 for the 2012
comparative period (please see notes 6 and 29 for the 2013 disclosures).
Other than the additional disclosures, the application of HKFRS 13 has
not had any material impact on the amounts recognised in the

consolidated financial statements.

2. EAMIIREEIISBUMBRS
HA(BBUBHHRSER]) (&)

EBUMBRESENB13RA FEETE
AEBEARARAFEERERAET LY

EEAE 135 - BEMBHREERE 1357
AIVERYAFEFERATFEAEZRE
2B KR - BEMBREERFE 135
HEER: FEVBREENFE 3HROQF
BEMERTEAREME BN K REER
REREFERAFEEFEREHEATE
AERECERMT ARA KIFERTAER -
BBV BREERE 2RUBAAEEAD
MBERHR S BEGERNEVREER
BANHEERZERI  MEFERAFER
M EFE LR ZEEIIFAFEE
Blan7F B e R B3R E S LR E SR A (£ A
EfE-

EEVBMELENERHEEEATEEL
EEARBRITTRAT A EAMEEE (HE
RANZ) ST ETEFRZAHEEER
WhEEAE(HETRENRFEER)
SN2 B - BEVHHRELENFEBRTZ
RYFEEL/TRE THZERETEERR
SR F M EAMF G TAMAETFH o I
FEVHREENEBRESFELREZEE
ZHE °

FRM B REERNE 137 B RIRAE L LESE
A RBEBVBERESLEINE 3RABEN
X - REBIWEN T — ZF L EHRME
& B B 75 R 2R RIS 13 5% AR E VAR (R T
BEM(BEE_Z—=FREF2RMEcR
29) - BRERSMEEE RSN BAARABMBRE
EHE BRI BHGEAVBRRCERND
HBREATE -



2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

AMENDMENTS TO HKAS 1 PRESENTATION OF ITEMS OF

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

The Group has applied the amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of

Items of Other Comprehensive Income. Upon the adoption of the

amendments to HKAS 1, the Group's ‘consolidated statement of

comprehensive income’ is renamed as the ‘consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income’ and the ‘consolidated
income statement’ is renamed as the ‘consolidated statement of profit
or loss’. The amendments to HKAS 1 retain the option to present profit
or loss and other comprehensive income in either a single statement or
in two separate but consecutive statements. Furthermore, the
amendments to HKAS 1 require additional disclosures to be made in
the other comprehensive income section such that items of other
comprehensive income are grouped into two categories: (a) items that
will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss and (b) items that
may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss when specific
conditions are met. Income tax on items of other comprehensive
income is required to be allocated on the same basis — the
amendments do not change the option to present items of other
comprehensive income either before tax or net of tax. The amendments
have been applied retrospectively, and hence the presentation of items
of other comprehensive income has been modified to reflect the
changes. Other than the above mentioned presentation changes, the
application of the amendments to HKAS 1 does not result in any
impact on profit or loss, other comprehensive income and total

comprehensive income.

2. [EHEMIREESTEBUBRS
HA(EBBUWHHRSER]) (&)

SBEHENF1R(EBIRN)EM2EK
wHAEZZ3

AEBDEATAGEE 1R (BTN E
2 E R HA 225 - RAEBGTER
F1RUERTA)E - AEE [ A2 EEER]
FEAIFAREMEMEEWGER ] M 4R
AlhER|AERAHREaBRER] BB
FHERIZE 1 5 (BRI A) (RE A B — Mm@ 3L
BEEHREIER N EM PGS 2 B2 -

AN BB EFHERISE 158 (BRI A) RN E
2 ERSE B EHBEINE  EEME2@E

WeTH B REKMEER : @QERTSEH
NEERBZBBARO)ENARBTIGERS -
HEFMEeEFN I REBEECHEBE - A2
E IR B Z ISR BERIBHEREESE —
A FIER BB AR AT R IRR 2
FREVNEMEEKEER ZEE - RFE
RIDEPER BUHEtEEKREREZE
JIERRIRABEESHMELER - R ERZ
FIBIN - RAFBEERE 15 (BETA)
HEm Etemia ke aEamI s
BRERTE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

= © B #5 ¥ X B 5
For the year ended 31 December 2013 EIZ=F—=#+_-A=+—HBILFE

2.  APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

The Group and the Company have not early applied the following new

and revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

2. ERMWMIIREEITIESBUBHRS
HA(EBWHHRSER]) (&)

AEBRARBALEITEEM TS RME
RARERRZ #Ta] RIERT BB B ISR -
BEMBRSEAE R RAER

(BATE) - #0i

(BETR) AR BBt

Amendments to HKFRS 10, Investment Entities’
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27
Amendments to HKAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions?
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2.  APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

ANNUAL IMPROVEMENTS TO HKFRSs 2010-2012 CYCLE

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle include a number

of amendments to various HKFRSs, which are summarised below.

The amendments to HKFRS 2 (i) change the definitions of ‘vesting
condition” and ‘'market condition’; and (ii) add definitions for
‘performance condition” and ‘service condition” which were previously
included within the definition of ‘vesting condition’. The amendments
to HKFRS 2 are effective for share-based payment transactions for which

the grant date is on or after 1)July 2014.

The amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify that contingent consideration that
is classified as an asset or a liability should be measured at fair value at
each reporting date, irrespective of whether the contingent
consideration is a financial instrument within the scope of HKFRS 9 or
HKAS 39 or a non-financial asset or liability. Changes in fair value (other
than measurement period adjustments) should be recognised in profit
and loss. The amendments to HKFRS 3 are effective for business

combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after 1 July 2014.

The amendments to HKFRS 8 (i) require an entity to disclose the
judgements made by management in applying the aggregation criteria
to operating segments, including a description of the operating
segments aggregated and the economic indicators assessed in
determining whether the operating segments have ‘similar economic
characteristics’; and (ii) clarify that a reconciliation of the total of the
reportable segments’ assets to the entity’s assets should only be
provided if the segment assets are regularly provided to the chief

operating decision-maker.

The amendments to the basis for conclusions of HKFRS 13 clarify that
the issue of HKFRS 13 and consequential amendments to HKAS 39 and
HKFRS 9 did not remove the ability to measure short-term receivables
and payables with no stated interest rate at their invoice amounts

without discounting, if the effect of discounting is immaterial.
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2.  APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

ANNUAL IMPROVEMENTS TO HKFRSS 2010-2012 CYCLE

(CONTINUED)

The amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 remove perceived

inconsistencies in the accounting for accumulated depreciation/

amortisation when an item of property, plant and equipment or an

intangible asset is revalued. The amended standards clarify that the

gross carrying amount is adjusted in a manner consistent with the

revaluation of the carrying amount of the asset and that accumulated

depreciation/amortisation is the difference between the gross carrying

amount and the carrying amount after taking into account

accumulated impairment losses.

The amendments to HKAS 24 clarify that a management entity
providing key management personnel services to a reporting entity is a
related party of the reporting entity. Consequently, the reporting entity
should disclose as related party transactions the amounts incurred for
the service paid or payable to the management entity for the provision
of key management personnel services. However, disclosure of the
components of such compensation is not required.

The directors do not anticipate that the application of the amendments
included in the Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 20710-2012 Cycle will
have a material effect on the Group'’s consolidated financial statements.

ANNUAL IMPROVEMENTS TO HKFRSs 2011-2013 CYCLE

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2071-2013 Cycle include a number
of amendments to various HKFRSs, which are summarised below.

The amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify that the standard does not apply
to the accounting for the formation of all types of joint arrangement in

the financial statements of the joint arrangement itself.

The amendments to HKFRS 13 clarify that the scope of the portfolio
exception for measuring the fair value of a group of financial assets and
financial liabilities on a net basis includes all contracts that are within
the scope of, and accounted for in accordance with, HKAS 39 or HKFRS
9, even if those contracts do not meet the definitions of financial assets
or financial liabilities within HKAS 32.
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2.  APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

ANNUAL IMPROVEMENTS TO HKFRSs 2011-2013 CYCLE

(CONTINUED)

The amendments to HKAS 40 clarify that HKAS 40 and HKFRS 3 are not

mutually exclusive and application of both standards may be required.

Consequently, an entity acquiring investment property must determine

whether:

(@) the property meets the definition of investment property in terms
of HKAS 40; and

(b) the transaction meets the definition of a business combination
under HKFRS 3.

The directors do not anticipate that the application of the amendments
included in the Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle will

have a material effect on the Group'’s consolidated financial statements.

HKFRS 9 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9 was
subsequently amended in 2010 to include the requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial liabilities and for
derecognition, and further amended in 2013 to include the new

requirements for hedge accounting.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described as follows:

. All recognised financial assets that are within the scope of HKAS
39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement are
subsequently measured at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically,
debt investments that are held within a business model whose
objective is to collect the contractual cash flows, and that have
contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal outstanding are generally measured at
amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods. All
other debt investments and equity investments are measured at
their fair values at the end of subsequent reporting periods. In
addition, under HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable
election to present subsequent changes in the fair value of an
equity investment (that is not held for trading) in other
comprehensive income, with only dividend income generally

recognised in profit or loss.
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2.  APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

HKFRS 9 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities designated
as at fair value through profit or loss, HKFRS 9 requires that the
amount of change in the fair value of the financial liability that is
attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability is
presented in other comprehensive income, unless the recognition
of the effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in other
comprehensive income would create or enlarge an accounting
mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair value of financial
liabilities attributable to changes in the financial liabilities’ credit
risk are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. Under HKAS
39, the entire amount of the change in the fair value of the
financial liability designated as fair value through profit or loss was

presented in profit or loss.

The new general hedge accounting requirements retain the three types
of hedge accounting. However, greater flexibility has been introduced to
the types of transactions eligible for hedge accounting, specifically
broadening the types of instruments that qualify for hedging
instruments and the types of risk components of non-financial items
that are eligible for hedge accounting. In addition, the effectiveness test
has been overhauled and replaced with the principle of an ‘economic
relationship’. Retrospective assessment of hedge effectiveness is also no
longer required. Enhanced disclosure requirements about an entity’s risk

management activities have also been introduced.

The directors anticipate that the adoption of HKFRS 9 in the future may
have significant impact on amounts reported in respect of the Group’s
financial assets and financial liabilities. However, it is not practicable to
provide a reasonable estimate of that effect until a detailed review has

been completed.

AMENDMENTS TO HKAS 19 DEFINED BENEFIT PLANS:
EMPLOYEE CONTRIBUTIONS

The amendments to HKAS 19 clarify how an entity should account for
contributions made by employees or third parties to defined benefit
plans, based on whether those contributions are dependent on the

number of years of service provided by the employee.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

AMENDMENTS TO HKAS 19 DEFINED BENEFIT PLANS:

EMPLOYEE CONTRIBUTIONS (CONTINUED)

For contributions that are independent of the number of years of

service, the entity may either recognise the contributions as a reduction

in the service cost in the period in which the related service is rendered,
or to attribute them to the employees’ periods of service using the
projected unit credit method; whereas for contributions that are
dependent on the number of years of service, the entity is required to

attribute them to the employees’ periods of service.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the application of
these amendments to HKAS 19 will have a significant impact on the
Group's consolidated financial statements as the defined benefit plans

had no contribution made by the employees or third parties.

AMENDMENTS TO HKAS 32 OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS
AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

The amendments to HKAS 32 clarify existing application issues relating
to the offset of financial assets and financial liabilities requirements.
Specifically, the amendments clarify the meaning of ‘currently has a
legally enforceable right of set-off’ and ‘simultaneous realisation and

settlement’.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the application of
these amendments to HKAS 32 will have a significant impact on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements, after the disposal of CHB as
detailed in notes 13 and 52, as the Group does not have any financial

assets and financial liabilities that qualify for offset.

AMENDMENTS TO HKAS 36 RECOVERABLE AMOUNT
DISCLOSURES FOR NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS

The amendments to HKAS 36 remove the requirement to disclose the
recoverable amount of a cash generating unit (CGU) to which goodwill
or other intangible assets with indefinite useful lives had been allocated
when there has been no impairment or reversal of impairment of the
related CGU. Furthermore, the amendments introduce additional
disclosure requirements regarding the fair value hierarchy, key
assumptions and valuation techniques used when the recoverable
amount of an asset or CGU was determined based on its fair value less

costs of disposal.
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2.  APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

AMENDMENTS TO HKAS 36 RECOVERABLE AMOUNT

DISCLOSURES FOR NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the application of

these amendments to HKAS 36 will have a significant impact on the

Group's consolidated financial statements.

AMENDMENTS TO HKAS 39 NOVATION OF DERIVATIVES
AND CONTINUATION OF HEDGE ACCOUNTING

The amendments to HKAS 39 provide relief from the requirement to
discontinue hedge accounting when a derivative hedging instrument is
novated under certain circumstances. The amendments also clarify that
any change to the fair value of the derivative hedging instrument arising
from the novation should be included in the assessment of hedge

effectiveness.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the application of
these amendments to HKAS 39 will have any effect on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements as the Group does not have any

derivatives that are subject to novation.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by
the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for certain properties and financial
instruments that are measured at fair values, as explained in the

accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration

given in exchange for goods and services.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In
estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or
liability at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or
disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial statements is
determined on such a basis, except for share-based payment
transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS 2, leasing transactions
that are within the scope of HKAS 17, and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable
value in HKAS 2 or value in use in HKAS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are
categorised into Level 1,2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs
to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of
the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are

described as follows:

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the

measurement date;

. Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within
Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly

or indirectly; and

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company

and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:
has power over the investee;

is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement

with the investee; and

has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION (CONTINUED)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the

three elements of control listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting rights of an
investee, it has power over the investee when the voting rights are
sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct the relevant activities of
the investee unilaterally. The Group considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether or not the Group’s voting rights in

an investee are sufficient to give it power, including:

the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights relative to the size

and dispersion of holdings of the other vote holders;

potential voting rights held by the Group, other vote holders or

other parties;
rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that the
Group has, or does not have, the current ability to direct the
relevant activities at the time that decisions need to be made,

including voting patterns at previous shareholders’ meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control
over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss from the date the Group gains control until the date

when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to
the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests even if

this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the Group’s

accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash
flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are

eliminated in full on consolidation.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
CHANGES IN THE GROUP’S OWNERSHIP INTERESTS IN
EXISTING SUBSIDIARIES

Changes in the Group's ownership interests in existing subsidiaries that
do not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are
accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the
Group's interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to
reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any
difference between the amount by which the non-controlling interests
are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is

recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss is recognised
in profit or loss and is calculated as the difference between (i) the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair
value of any retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount of
the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any
non-controlling interests. All amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for
as if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of
the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another
category of equity as specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The
fair value of any investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date
when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for
subsequent accounting under HKAS 39, when applicable, the cost on

initial recognition of an investment in an associate or a joint venture.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred in a business combination is
measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-
date fair values of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred
by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree.
Acquisition related costs are generally recognised in profit or loss as

incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities

assumed are recognised at their fair value, except that:

deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities related to
employee benefit arrangements are recognised and measured in
accordance with HKAS 12 Income Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee

Benefits respectively;

liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree or share-based payment
arrangements of the Group entered into to replace share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree are measured in
accordance with HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment at the acquisition

date (see the accounting policy below); and

assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in
accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations are measured in accordance with that

standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree,
and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after re-
assessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests
in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held
interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised immediately in

profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (CONTINUED)

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests and
entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the entity’s net assets in
the event of liquidation may be initially measured either at fair value or
at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the recognised
amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of
measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction basis. Other
types of non-controlling interests are measured at their fair value or,

when applicable, on the basis specified in another HKFRS.

GOODWILL
Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost as
established at the date of acquisition of the business (see the accounting

policy above) less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of
the Group’s cash-generating units (or groups of cash-generating units)

that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment annually or more frequently when there is indication
that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in
a reporting period, the cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment before the end of that reporting
period. If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than
its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the
other assets of the unit on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying
amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is
recognised directly in profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for

goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable
amount of goodwill is included in the determination of the amount of

profit or loss on disposal.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint

control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have
joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the
joint arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of
control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the
relevant activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing

control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates and joint ventures are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using the equity
method of accounting, except when the investment, or a portion
thereof, is classified as held for sale, in which case it is accounted for in
accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations. Under the equity method, an investment in an
associate or a joint venture is initially recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to
recognise the Group's share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the associate or joint venture. When the
Group's share of losses of an associate or joint venture exceeds the
Group's interest in that associate or joint venture (which includes any
long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group's net
investment in the associate or joint venture), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised
only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate or joint

venture.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES
(CONTINUED)

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted for using
the equity method from the date on which the investee becomes an
associate or a joint venture. On acquisition of the investment in an
associate or a joint venture, any excess of the cost of the investment
over the Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included
within the carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the
Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
over the cost of the investment, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss in the period in which the investment is

acquired.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine whether it is
necessary to recognise any impairment loss with respect to the Group's
investment in an associate or a joint venture. When necessary, the entire
carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is tested for
impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets as a
single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in use
and fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any
impairment loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount of the
investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised in
accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of

the investment subsequently increases.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES
(CONTINUED)

The Group discontinues the use of the equity method from the date
when the investment ceases to be an associate or a joint venture, or
when the investment (or a portion thereof) is classified as held for sale.
When the Group retains an interest in the former associate or joint
venture and the retained interest is a financial asset, the Group measures
the retained interest at fair value at that date and the fair value is
regarded as its fair value on initial recognition in accordance with HKAS
39. The difference between the carrying amount of the associate or joint
venture at the date the equity method was discontinued, and the fair
value of any retained interest and any proceeds from disposing of a part
interest in the associate or joint venture is included in the determination
of the gain or loss on disposal of the associate or joint venture. In
addition, the Group accounts for all amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to that associate or joint
venture on the same basis as would be required if that associate or joint
venture had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive
income by that associate or joint venture would be reclassified to profit
or loss on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the Group
reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a

reclassification adjustment) when the equity method is discontinued.

The Group continues to use the equity method when an investment in
an associate becomes an investment in a joint venture or an investment
in a joint venture becomes an investment in an associate. There is no

remeasurement to fair value upon such changes in ownership interests.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an associate or a
joint venture but the Group continues to use the equity method, the
Group reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion of the gain or loss that
had previously been recognised in other comprehensive income relating
to that reduction in ownership interest if that gain or loss would be
reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or
liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint venture of
the Group (such as a sale or contribution of assets), profits and losses
resulting from the transactions with the associate or joint venture are
recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial statements only to the
extent of interests in the associate or joint venture that are not related

to the Group.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale if
their carrying amount will be recovered principally through a sale
transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition is
regarded as met only when the asset (or disposal group) is available for
immediate sale in its present condition subject only to terms that are
usual and customary for sales of such asset (or disposal group) and its
sale is highly probable. Management must be committed to the sale,
which should be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale

within one year from the date of classification.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving loss of control of
a subsidiary, all of the assets and liabilities of that subsidiary are classified
as held for sale when the criteria described above are met, regardless of
whether the Group will retain a non-controlling interest in its former

subsidiary after the sale.

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as held for sale are
measured at the lower of their previous carrying amount and fair value

less costs of disposal.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for
capital appreciation (including properties under construction for such
purposes). Investment properties include land held for undetermined

future use, which is regarded as held for capital appreciation purpose.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including any
directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at their fair values. Gains or losses
arising from changes in the fair value of investment properties are

included in profit or loss for the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in the profit or loss in the period in which the property

is derecognised.

For a transfer from properties under development for sale to investment
properties (which is evidenced by commencement of an operating
lease), any difference between the fair value of the property at that date

and its previous carrying amount is recognised in profit or loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

For a transfer from investment properties to properties under
development for sale which is evidenced by the commencement of
development with a view to sale, any difference between the fair value
of the property at the date of transfer and its previously carrying
amount is recognised in profit or loss. The property’s deemed cost for

subsequent accounting is the fair value at the date of change in use.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment including buildings and leasehold land
(classified as finance leases) held for use in the production or supply of
goods or services, or for administrative purposes are stated in the
statements of financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated

depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets less their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line
method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the

effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the

carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Investments in subsidiaries are included in the Company’s statement of
financial position at cost (including deemed capital contribution), less
any identified impairment loss. The results of subsidiaries are accounted

for by the Company on the basis of dividends received or receivable.

INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES
In the Company’s statement of financial position, investments in joint

ventures are stated at cost, less any identified impairment loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR SALE/PROPERTIES
UNDER DEVELOPMENT

Properties under development for sale/properties under development
in the ordinary course of business are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. It comprises the consideration for development
expenditure (which includes cost of land use rights, construction costs
and capitalised interest) directly attributable to the development of the

properties.

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE
Properties held for sale are stated at the lower of the cost and net

realisable value.

INVENTORIES

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs
of inventories are determined on a weighted average method. Net
realisable value represents the estimated selling price for inventories less

all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a group

entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or
issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets
or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities,
as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or

loss.

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into the following specified categories:
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL"), loans and
receivables, held-to-maturity investments and available-for-sale (“AFS”)
financial assets. The classification depends on the nature and purpose of
the financial assets and is determined at the time of initial recognition.
All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the

marketplace.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial assets (Continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest income over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees and points
paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the debt instruments, or, where appropriate, a shorter

period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Financial assets at FVTPL
Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the financial asset is

either held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the

near term; or

on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified financial
instruments that the Group manages together and has a recent

actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging

instrument.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 3. FE8HHR(E) (:Z:
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) = TH (&) P
Financial assets (Continued) SRIEE (F) %
Financial assets at FVTPL (Continued) AN TFIEEGA B2 MEE (&) G
A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading may be #WHBEEERARUIINZERHEE 4 %
designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if: VIRERRHIETE RIBE A FEEFAER - Bl
o S
- such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a .  ZIETHHKEZREFEREMTRXB
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would otherwise IRz EE RT3 3
arise; or
the financial asset forms part of a group of financial assets or - RERzeMEEBK —HERMEER
financial liabilities or both, which is managed and its performance TRHAEGEZHIIME  HREBREAR
is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with the Group's SERHE RARERSIRERKIEA T
documented risk management or investment strategy, and BEEENML  MBEEIEZ ERIRZ
information about the grouping is provided internally on that BN NERRMH ¢ 3
basis; or

it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded .  EAARBE—EAxZEHRARITETA

derivatives, and HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and ZERES - MEB G ERAE 9K
Measurement permits the entire combined contract (asset or MITA: ERARTEATREGHEH

liability) to be designated as at FVTPL. (BEXBE)ETREQATEETAR

o

Bk

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses  EAFEEFABZ 2 SMEER A FEE
arising on remeasurement recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or 52 * AEH 2 HE 2 Wk BERIE
loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any dividend or interest earned 5 BRHERR ° MBS IRER 2 S B 185 5
on the financial assets and is included in other gains and losses in the — ~81 3% bA & Bt & 2= W& 2 A % S I8
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial assets (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including cash
and short-term funds, placements with and advances to banks and
other financial institutions, interest receivable, bills receivable, trade bills
and other advances to customers, trade and other receivables and other
accounts, advances to an investee company, fixed bank deposits with
more than three months to maturity when raised and amounts due
from subsidiaries of the Company) are measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less any identified impairment (see

accounting policy on impairment of financial assets below).

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate,
except for short-term receivables where the recognition of interest

would be immaterial.

Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity dates that the
Group has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity other

than:

those that the entity upon initial recognition designates as at fair

value through profit or loss;
those that the entity designates as available for sale; and
those that meet the definition of loans and receivables.

Subsequent to initial recognition, held-to-maturity investments are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any
impairment (see accounting policy on impairment losses on financial

assets below).
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial assets (Continued)

AFS financial assets

AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated as
available-for-sale or are not classified as (a) loans and receivables, (b)

held-to-maturity investments or (c) financial assets at FVTPL.

Equity and debt securities held by the Group and the Company that are
classified as AFS financial assets and are traded in an active market are
measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Changes in
the carrying amount of AFS monetary financial assets relating to interest
income calculated using the effective interest method and dividends on
AFS equity investments are recognised in profit or loss. Other changes
in the carrying amount of AFS financial assets are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading of
investment revaluation reserve. When the investment is disposed of or
is determined to be impaired, the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve is reclassified to
profit or loss (see the accounting policy in respect of impairment loss on

financial assets below).

Dividends on AFS equity instruments are recognised in profit or loss
when the Group’s and the Company’s right to receive the dividends is

established.

AFS equity investments that do not have a quoted market price in an
active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured and
derivatives that are linked to and must be settled by delivery of such
unquoted equity investments are measured at cost less any identified
impairment losses at the end of each reporting period (see the
accounting policy in respect of impairment loss on financial assets

below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for indicators of
impairment at the end of the reporting period. Financial assets are
considered to be impaired when there is objective evidence that, as a
result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition
of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the financial

assets have been affected.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For AFS equity investment, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value of that security below its cost is considered to be objective

evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment could

include:

significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest or

principal payments; or

it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or

financial re-organisation; or

disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because

of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as advances to customers,
assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually are, in addition,

assessed for impairment on a collective basis.

Individual impairment allowances are assessed by a discounted cash
flow method for loans and advances that are individually significant and
have objective evidence of impairment. The individual impairment
allowances are measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows

discounted at the original effective interest rate.

Individually insignificant advances or advances where no impairment
has been identified individually are assessed for collective impairment by
considering the historical loss experience of advances with similar credit

risk characteristics adjusted for current conditions.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows

discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the impairment loss is
measured as the difference between the financial asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar financial

asset. Such impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced through the use of
an allowance amount with the exception of trade and other receivables,
where the carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly. When the financial assets are considered to be
uncollectible, the amounts are written off against the allowance
account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are

credited to the profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
investment at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not

been recognised.

When an AFS financial asset carried at fair value is considered to be
impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in other

comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in the period.

In respect of AFS equity investments, impairment losses previously
recognised in profit or loss are not reversed through profit or loss. Any
increase in fair value subsequent to an impairment loss is recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading of
investment revaluation reserve. In respect of AFS debt investments,
impairment losses are subsequently reversed through profit or loss if an
increase in the fair value of the investment can be objectively related to

an event occurring after the recognition of the impairment loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified as
either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance
of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial

liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds

received, net of direct issue costs.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points
paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter

period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liabilities
are either held for trading or those designated as at FVTPL on initial

recognition.
A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

it has been acquired principally for the purpose of repurchasing it

in the near term; or

on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified financial
instruments that the Group manages together and has a recent

actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging

instrument.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with any gains or
losses arising on remeasurement recognised in profit or loss. The net
gain or loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any interest paid on the

financial liabilities.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value, net of
transaction costs. Other financial liabilities (including bank and other
borrowings, trade and other payables, advances from subsidiaries of the
Company, deposits and balances of banks and other financial
institutions, financial assets sold under repurchase agreements, deposits
from banking customers, certificates of deposit and loan capital) are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest

method.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the statements of financial position when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the financial asset and settle

the financial liability simultaneously.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Derivative financial instruments and hedging

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date derivative
contracts are entered into and are subsequently remeasured to their fair
value at the end of the reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss immediately unless the derivative is
designated and effective as a hedging instrument, in which event the
timing of the recognition in profit or loss depends on the nature of

hedge relationship.

Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts are treated as
separate derivatives when they meet the definition of a derivative, their
risks and characteristics are not closely related to those of the host

contracts and the host contracts are not measured at FVTPL.

Hedge accounting

The Group designates certain derivatives as hedges of the fair value of
available-for-sale securities and fixed-rate subordinated notes (fair value
hedges).

At the inception of the hedging relationship, the Group documents the
relationship between the hedging instrument and hedged item, along
with its risk management objectives and its strategy for undertaking
various hedge transactions. Furthermore, at the inception of the hedge
and on an ongoing basis, the Group documents whether the hedging
instrument is highly effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash

flows of the hedged item attributable to the hedged risk.

Fair value hedges

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as
fair value hedges are recognised in profit or loss immediately, together
with any changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability that are
attributable to the hedged risk. The change in the fair value of the
hedging instrument and the change in the hedged item attributable to
the hedged risk are recognised in profit or loss in the line item relating

to the hedged item.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the Group revokes the hedging
relationship, when the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated,

or exercised, or when it no longer qualifies for hedge accounting.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Hedge accounting (Continued)

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to
make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs
because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in

accordance with a debt instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group and the Company
are initially measured at their fair values and, if not designated as at

FVTPL, are subsequently measured at the higher of:

(i)  the amount of obligation under the contract, as determined in
accordance with HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and

Contingent Assets; and

(i)  the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate, cumulative
amortisation recognised in accordance with the revenue

recognition policies.

Derecognition

The Group and the Company derecognise a financial asset only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it
transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Group and the Company
neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
and the Company continue to recognise the asset to the extent of its
continuing involvement and recognises an associated liability. If the
Group and the Company retain substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group and the Company
continue to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a

collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Derecognition (Continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognised

in profit or loss.

The Group and the Company derecognise financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s and the Company’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and

payable is recognised in profit or loss.

REPURCHASE AGREEMENTS

Financial assets sold subject to repurchase agreements continue to be
recognised and recorded as available-for-sale securities and held-to-
maturity securities as appropriate. The corresponding liability is included

in financial assets sold under repurchase agreements.

The difference between purchase and sale price is recognised as interest
expense in profit or loss over the life of the agreements using the

effective interest method.

PROVISIONS

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal
or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that the Group
will be required to settle that obligation, and a reliable estimate can be

made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of the
reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the
cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying
amount is the present value of those cash flows (where the effect of the

time value of money is material).
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
IMPAIRMENT ON TANGIBLE ASSETS OTHER THAN
GOODWILL (SEE THE ACCOUNTING POLICY IN RESPECT OF
GOODWILL ABOVE)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group and the Company review
the carrying amounts of its tangible assets with finite useful lives to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of
the impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group and the Company
estimate the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation
can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-
generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group
of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent

allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows

have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable

amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount
of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate
of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is

recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

For the purposes of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents comprise balances with less than three months’
maturity from the date of acquisition, including cash, balances with
banks and other financial institutions, money at call and short notice,
placements with and deposits of banks and other financial institutions

as well as exchange fund bills.

REVENUE RECOGNITION
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated customer returns, rebates

and other similar allowances.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods are
delivered and titles have passed, at which time all the following

conditions are satisfied:

the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and

rewards of ownership of the goods;

the Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement to
the degree usually associated with ownership nor effective control

over the goods sold;
the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the

transaction will flow to the Group; and

the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction

can be measured reliably.

(i) Property development

Revenue from sale of properties in the ordinary course of business is
recognised when the respective properties have been completed and
delivered to the buyers. Deposits and instalments received from
purchasers prior to meeting the above criteria for revenue recognition
are included in the consolidated statement of financial position under

current liabilities (as deferred income).

(ii) Dividend income

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been established (provided
that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group

and the amount of income can be measured reliably).
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
REVENUE RECOGNITION (CONTINUED)

(iii) Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis by reference to
the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable.
The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial
instrument or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset on initial recognition. The calculation
includes significant fees and transaction costs that are an integral part of

the effective interest rate, and premiums or discounts.

Once an impairment loss of a financial asset has been recognised,
subsequent interest income is recognised using the rate of interest used

to discount the future cash flows measuring the impairment losses.

(iv) Fees and commission income
Fees and commission income that are integral to the effective interest
rate on a financial asset are included in the measurement of the effective

interest rate.

Other fees and commission income, including account servicing fees,
investment management fees, sales commission, placement fees and

syndication fees, are recognised as the related services are performed.

(v) Sales of goods
Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when the goods are delivered

and titles have passed.

(vi) Management fee of property management

Management fee income is recognised when services are rendered.
(vii) Agency fee of property management
Agency fee income is recognised when services are rendered.

(viii) Hotel operation income

Hotel operation income is recognised when services are provided.

(ix) Service income
Service income (including safe deposit box rentals and other banking

service income) is recognised when services are provided.

The Group’s accounting policy for recognition of revenue from

operating leases is described in the accounting policy for leasing below.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
LEASING

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee.

All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to
the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised as an expense

on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-

line basis over the lease term.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into operating
leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability. The aggregate benefit
of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a straight-

line basis.

Leasehold land and buildings

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the Group
assesses the classification of each element as a finance or an operating
lease separately based on the assessment as to whether substantially all
the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both elements are
operating leases in which case the entire lease is classified as an
operating lease. Specifically, the minimum lease payments (including
any lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated between the land and
the building elements in proportion to the relative fair values of the
leasehold interests in the land element and building element of the lease

at the inception of the lease.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
LEASING (CONTINUED)

Leasehold land and buildings (Continued)

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made reliably,
interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an operating lease is
presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the consolidated statement of
financial position and is released over the lease term on a straight-line
basis except for those that are classified and accounted for as
investment properties under the fair value model. When the lease
payments cannot be allocated reliably between the land and building
elements, the entire lease is generally classified as a finance lease and

accounted for as property, plant and equipment.

TAXATION

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and
deferred tax. The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax’ as reported in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss because of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the

end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax base used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary difference to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects

neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 EIZ=F—=#+_-A=+—HBILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
TAXATION (CONTINUED)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and associates, and interests
in joint arrangements, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences associated with
such investments and interests are only recognised to the extent that it
is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to
utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected

to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or

part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the
asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted

or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the

carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or deferred tax
assets for investment properties that are measured using the fair value
model, the carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to be
recovered entirely through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The
presumption is rebutted when the investment property is depreciable
and is held within a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the investment

property over time, rather than through sale.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when
they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the

accounting for the business combination.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are

substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted

from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in

which they are incurred.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS AND TERMINATION
BENEFITS

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans and the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are recognised as an expense when

employees have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

For defined benefit retirement benefit plans, the cost of providing
benefits is determined using the projected unit credit method, with
actuarial valuations being carried out at the end of each annual
reporting period. Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses,
the effect of the changes to the asset ceiling (if applicable) and the
return on plan assets (excluding interest), is reflected immediately in the
statement of financial position with a charge or credit recognised in
other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur.
Remeasurement recognised in other comprehensive income is reflected
immediately in retained earnings and will not be reclassified to profit or
loss. Past service cost is recognised in profit or loss in the period of a
plan amendment. Net interest is calculated by applying the discount
rate at the beginning of the period to the net defined benefit liability or

asset. Defined benefit costs are categorised as follows:

service cost (including current service cost, past service cost, as

well as gains and losses on curtailments and settlements);

net interest expense or income; and

remeasurement.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS AND TERMINATION BENEFITS
(CONTINUED)

The Group presents the first two components of defined benefit costs
in profit or loss. Curtailment gains and losses are accounted for as past

service costs.

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position represents the actual deficit or surplus in
the Group's defined benefit plans. Any surplus resulting from this
calculation is limited to the present value of any economic benefits
available in the form of refunds from the plans or reductions in future

contributions to the plans.

A liability for a termination benefit is recognised at the earlier of when
the Group entity can no longer withdraw the offer of the termination

benefit and when it recognises any related restructuring costs.

FOREIGN CURRENCIES

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchanges
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items
carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of

historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in profit or loss

in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements,
the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign operations are translated
into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. HKS) using exchange
rates prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income and
expenses items are translated at the average exchange rates for the
period. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the heading
of exchange reserve (attributed to non-controlling interests as

appropriate).
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
FOREIGN CURRENCIES (CONTINUED)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the Group's
entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of
control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, or a partial
disposal of an interest in a joint arrangement or an associate that
includes a foreign operation of which the retained interest becomes a
financial asset), all of the exchange differences accumulated in equity in
respect of that operation attributable to the owners of the Company

are reclassified to profit or loss.

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual

results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in
the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both

current and future periods.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving
estimations (see below), that the directors have made in the process of
applying the Group’s accounting policies and that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated

financial statements.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or deferred tax

assets arising from investment properties that are measured using the

fair value model, the directors of the Company has reviewed the

Group's investment property portfolios in Hong Kong and the People’s

Republic of China (the “PRC”") and concluded that (a) the Group’s

investment properties in Hong Kong and certain investment properties

in the PRC are not held under a business model whose objective is to
consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the
investment properties over time, (b) the Group’s remaining investment
properties in the PRC are held under a business model whose objective
is to consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in
the investment properties over time. Therefore, in measuring the
Group's deferred taxation on investment properties in Hong Kong and
certain investment properties in the PRC, the directors of the Company
have determined that the presumption that the carrying amounts of
investment properties measured using the fair value model are
recovered entirely through sale is not rebutted. As a result, the Group
has not recognised any deferred taxes on changes in fair value of
investment properties located in Hong Kong as the Group is not subject

to any income taxes on disposal of these investment properties.

Deferred taxation in respect of temporary differences attributed to
the accumulated profits of the PRC subsidiaries and CHB’s PRC
branch

The directors have determined that the Group and CHB are able to
control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
attributable to accumulated profits of the PRC subsidiaries and CHB's
PRC branch amounting to HK$18,139,500 (2012: HK$223,446,000) and
that it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Accordingly, deferred taxation relating to such

temporary differences is not provided.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Held-to-maturity investments

The Group classified certain non-derivative financial assets with fixed or

determinable payments and fixed maturity as held-to-maturity. This

classification requires judgement. In making this judgement, the Group
evaluates its intention and ability to hold such investments to maturity.

If the Group fails to keep these investments to maturity other than for

the specific circumstances — for example, selling an insignificant

amount close to maturity — it will be required to reclassify the entire
class as available-for-sale. The investments would therefore be measured

at fair value instead of amortised cost.
Details of these assets are set out in note 21.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period,
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the

carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Fair value of investment properties

Investment properties are carried in the consolidated statement of
financial position at 31 December 2013 at their fair value, details of
which are disclosed in note 29. The fair value of the investment
properties was determined by reference to valuations conducted on
these properties by independent firms of property valuers using
property valuation techniques which involve certain assumptions of
prevailing market conditions. Favorable or unfavorable changes to these
assumptions may result in changes in the fair value of the Group’s
investment properties and corresponding adjustments to the changes
in fair value reported in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
profit or loss and the carrying amount of these properties included in
the consolidated statement of financial position. The carrying amount
of investment properties at 31 December 2013 is HK$5,962,913,000
(2012: HK$5,868,769,000).
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

(CONTINUED)

Estimated impairment of advances to an investee company

When there is objective evidence of impairment loss, the Group takes

into consideration the estimation of future cash flows. The amount of

the impairment loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows

(excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted

at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective

interest rate computed at initial recognition). Where the actual future
cash flows are less than expected, a material impairment loss may arise.

The carrying amount of advances to an investee company at 31

December 2013 is HK$193,424,000 (2012: HK$322,539,000) respectively.

Impairment of properties under development for sale/properties
held for sale

The Group and the Company’s properties under development for sale
and properties held for sale in the PRC and Hong Kong, details of which
are set out in the consolidated statement of financial position and note
24, are expected to be recovered through future sales. In case the future
selling prices, less all related direct selling expenses, are less than their
current carrying value plus further costs to complete the properties
under development for sale to a saleable condition, the Group and the
Company will recognise losses. Future selling prices of properties in the
PRC will be affected by a combination of political, economic and other
factors that are beyond accurate prediction. The carrying amount of
properties under development for sale of the Group and properties held
for sale of the Group at 31 December 2013 is HK$642,547,000 (2012:
HK$457,617,000) and HK$590,967,000 and (2012: HK$584,722,000),

respectively.

Recognition and allocation of construction cost on properties
under development for sale

Development costs of properties are recorded as properties under
development for sale during the construction stage and will be
transferred to profit or loss upon the recognition of the sale of the
properties. Before the final settlement of the development costs and
other costs relating to the sale of the properties, these costs are accrued

by the Group based on management’s best estimate.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

(CONTINUED)

Recognition and allocation of construction cost on properties

under development for sale (Continued)

When developing properties, the Group typically divides the

development projects into phases. Specific costs directly related to the

development of a phase are recorded as the cost of such phase. Costs
that are common to phases are allocated to individual phases based on
the estimated cost of each phase as a percentage of the total estimated
cost of the entire project, or if the above is not practicable, the common

costs are allocated to individual phases based on saleable area.

Where the final settlement of costs and the related cost allocation is
different from the initial estimates, any increase or decrease in the
development costs and other costs would affect the profit or loss in

future years.

Impairment allowances on loans and advances

The Group establishes, through charges against profit, impairment
allowances in respect of estimated incurred losses in loans and advances.
The allowances consist of individual impairment allowances and
collective impairment allowances. The overall impairment allowances
represent the aggregate amount by which management considers
necessary to write down its loan portfolio in order to state it in the

statements of financial position at its estimated net recoverable value.

In determining individual impairment allowances, management
considers objective evidence of impairment. When a loan is impaired, an
individual impairment allowance is assessed by a discounted cash flow
method, measured at the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
discounted at the original effective interest rate. The quantum of the
allowance is also impacted by the collateral value and this, in turn, may
be discounted in certain circumstances to recognise the impact of

forced sale or quick liquidation.

In determining collective impairment allowances, management uses
estimates based on historical loss experience on a collective basis for
loans and advances with similar credit risk characteristics to assess the

impairment loss. More details are set out in note 6.

Details of the impairment allowances movements are disclosed in note
22.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

(CONTINUED)

Fair value of derivatives and other financial instruments

The directors use their judgement in selecting an appropriate valuation

technique for financial instruments not quoted in an active market.

Valuation techniques commonly used by market practitioners are

applied. For derivative financial instruments, convertible bonds and

structured products with embedded derivatives, assumptions are made
based on quoted market rates adjusted for specific features of the
instruments.

Details of the assumptions used are disclosed in note 6.

Estimated impairment of goodwill

According to HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets, impairment losses are
made when the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable
amount, which is calculated at the higher of the fair value less costs to
sell and value in use.

Management has reviewed goodwill for impairment by comparing the
carrying amount and value in use of an acquired subsidiary (the smallest
cash-generating unit) to which the goodwill has been allocated. The
acquired subsidiary is involved in insurance business.

The value in use calculations primarily use cash flow projections based
on three year financial budgets approved by management of the
subsidiary and estimated terminal value at the end of the three-year
period. There are a number of assumptions and estimates involved for
the preparation of cash flow projections for the period covered by the
approved budget. Key assumptions include the expected growth in
revenues and selection of discount rates.

Details of the recoverable amount calculation are disclosed in note 33.

Income taxes

As at 31 December 2013, a deferred tax asset of approximately HK$50
million (2012: HK$48 million) in relation to unused tax losses has been
recognised the Group's consolidated statement of financial position. No
deferred tax asset has been recognised on the tax losses of
approximately HK$307 million (2012: HK$256 million) due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. The realisability of the deferred
tax asset mainly depends on whether sufficient future profits or taxable
temporary differences will be available in the future. In cases where the
actual future profits generated are less than expected, a material reversal
of deferred tax assets may arise, which would be recognised in profit or
loss for the period in which such a reversal takes place.
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5. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities within the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return
to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity

balance.

FINANCIAL SERVICES OPERATIONS (DISCONTINUED IN
2013 (NOTE 13))
The CHB Group has adopted a policy of maintaining a strong capital

base to:

. comply with the capital requirements under the Banking (Capital)

Rules of the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance; and

support the CHB Group's stability and business growth so as to

provide reasonable returns for shareholders.

The capital adequacy ratios as at 31 December 2013 and 31 December
2012 are computed on the consolidated basis of CHB and certain of its
subsidiaries as specified by the HKMA for its regulatory purposes, and
are in accordance with the Banking (Capital) Rules of the Hong Kong

Banking Ordinance.

The CHB Group has established a capital planning process to assess the
adequacy of its capital to support current and future activities. The
process states the CHB Group’s capital adequacy goals in relation to risk,
taking into account its strategic focus and business plan. Key factors to
consider in this process include additional capital required for future
expansion, results of the stress test programme regularly conducted,

dividend policy, income recognition and provisioning policies.

NON-FINANCIAL SERVICES OPERATIONS

The capital structure of the Group, other than financial services
operations consists of debts, which include the borrowings disclosed in
note 39, and equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising

issued share capital and various reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure periodically.
As part of this review, the directors consider the cost of capital and their
associated risks. Based on recommendations of the directors, the Group
will balance its overall capital structure through the payment of
dividends, new share issues as well as the issue of new debt or the

redemption of existing debt.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 EIZ=F—=#+_-A=+—HBILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
6A. CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group’s financial services
operations were discontinued. The disclosures in 2013 as set out below

do not include any amounts of financial instruments of these

discontinued operations.
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THE GROUP A5 THE COMPANY 7 &)
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-=F —E2——F —E-=F —Z——F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT BET T BT
Financial assets CREE
FVTPL BT EER AR
Held for trading HEEERR 11,042 30,063 11,042 8,656
Designated at fair value EBERATEYER 27,215 1,269,944 27,215 56,795
Derivative instruments in ITETERETE
designated hedge accounting e aEsR
relationship — 166,765 — —
Loans and receivables (including ERREWRT (B
cash and cash equivalents) BeRRSZEER) 866,013 65,149,831 4,833,598 4,850,898
Available-for-sale investments At HERE 406,288 4,625,951 112,146 136,047
Held-to-maturity securities BEIHBEESH — 9,600,020 — —
Financial liabilities LREE
Amortised cost BHKA 3,891,527 76,826,068 3,328,140 3,227,673
FVTPL BAFEER AR
Held for trading HIEEERA — 118,154 — —
Derivative instruments in ITETERETE
designated hedge accounting e aEsR
relationship — 130,502 — —
6B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 6. FERMBREEEELEKR
POLICIES

AEEZTIECRMIACEERRS REY
Be HFRARXRKEMFEERER -2+
EARZRH KA — RE - FA=Z@EA
BRIz EHRITESR  ITESRTA &
FRE  BERREMEKE — 2RRE - 824
WRIRE QA EHREMBYRIRR  RER
Hi P e ER k& REBHETH
EZERMEE  ROBEPHFEH  HFHE &
BEAR  EFRRE S REMENERK -

The Group’s major financial instruments include cash and short-term
funds, placements with banks and other financial institutions maturing
between one to twelve months — financial services, fixed bank deposits
with more than three months to maturity when raised, derivative
financial instruments, investments in securities, advances and other
accounts — financial services, advances to an investee company, trade
and other receivables, deposits and balances of banks and other financial
institutions, financial assets sold under repurchase agreements, deposits
from banking customers, certificates of deposit, loan capital, borrowings

and trade and other payables.



6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

6B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

The Company’s major financial instruments include investments in

securities, amounts due from subsidiaries, trade and other receivables,

bank accounts with CHB Group and other bank balances and cash,

borrowings, trade and other payables and non-interest bearing advances

from subsidiaries.

Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes.
The risks associated with these financial instruments include market risk
(currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk), liquidity risk and
credit risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The management manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective

manner.

For financial services operations which were discontinued in 2013 (note
13), risk management is carried out by the Asset and Liability
Management Committee (the “ALCO”") and the Loans Committee
under policies approved by the Board of Directors of CHB and the Risk
Management and Compliance Committee (the “RMCC"). The ALCO
identifies, evaluates and mitigates financial risks in close co-operation
with the CHB Group’s operating units. The Board and the RMCC
provide written principles for overall risk management, as well as written
policies covering specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk, interest
rate risk, credit risk, use of derivative financial instruments and non-
derivative financial instruments. In addition, internal audit is responsible
for the independent review of risk management and the control

environment.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 EIZ=F—=#+_-A=+—HBILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

6B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Market risk

Financial services operations (discontinued in 2013 (note 13))

The Group, through the CHB Group, takes on exposure to market risk,
which is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market
risks arise from open positions in interest rate, currency and equity
products, all of which are exposed to general and specific market
movements and changes in the level of volatility of market rates or
prices such as interest rates, credit spreads, foreign exchange rates and
equity prices. The Group separates exposures to market risk into either

trading or non-trading portfolios.

Trading portfolios include those positions arising from market-making
transactions where the Group acts as principal with clients or with the

market.

Non-trading portfolios primarily arise from the interest rate
management of the CHB's retail and commercial banking assets and
liabilities. Non-trading portfolios also consist of foreign exchange and
equity risks arising from the Group’s held-to-maturity, available-for-sale

investments and those financial assets at FVTPL.

The management of market risk is principally undertaken in treasury
function using risk limits approved by the senior management or its
designated committee. Limits are set for each portfolio, product and risk
type, with market liquidity being a principal factor in determining the
level of limits set. The Group has dedicated standards, policies and
procedures in place to control and monitor the market risk. The market
risks which arise on each business are assessed and managed under the

supervision of the ALCO.

In addition, the Group, through the CHB Group, uses derivatives to

mitigate interest rate and foreign exchange risks.

Stress tests are carried out to provide an indication of the potential size
of losses that could arise in extreme conditions. The results of the stress
tests are reviewed by senior management in each business unit and by
the Board of Directors of CHB. The stress-testing is tailored to the

business segments and typically uses scenario analysis.

6. EHEIE‘(HIE)

6B. HIERARBILERRIKK (&)

™5 AR

CHBBEFRHEER T —ZFLRIUIKLE
(et 13))
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

6B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Market risk (Continued)

Non-financial services operations

Certain group entities engaging in non-financial services operations also

expose the Group to currency, interest rate and equity price risks.

(i) Currency risk

The Group and the Company undertake certain transactions
denominated in foreign currencies and, hence exposures to exchange
rate fluctuations arise. Exchange rate exposures are managed within
approved policy parameters utilising forward foreign exchange

contracts.

For financial services operations which were discontinued in 2013 (note
13), day-to-day foreign exchange management is performed by the
Treasury Department within approved limits. The senior management
or its designated committee sets limits on the level of exposure by
currency and in total for both overnight and intra-day positions, which
are monitored daily. The CHB Group takes on exposure to the effects of
fluctuations in the prevailing foreign currency exchange rates on their

financial positions and cash flows.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group's financial services
operations were discontinued. The disclosures in 2013 as set out below

do not include any amounts for these discontinued operations.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 EIZ=F—=#+_-A=+—HBILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

6B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Market risk (Continued)

(i) Currency risk (Continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the Company'’s financial assets

and financial liabilities at the end of the reporting period that are

6. EHEIE‘(HIE)
6. HITERKRERERRIKK (8

miEEkE (&)
0 EREE

RBEHR  ARERARRAEBERS
REEUIINEEIIEZEREERERAE

(%)

)

%)

denominated in currencies other than the functional currency of the  BREIEZAT :
relevant entities are as follows:
THE GROUP TEH
HKS Us$ MOP RMB Others Total
B E ke AR Hit ek
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETrT BETx B¥Tx A¥Tn  B¥Tr  B¥Tx
(note)
(FiEE)
At31 December 2013 RIE-=F
+=ZR=+-H
Assets BE
(ash and short-term funds BERRSREHES — 78,311 — 305,656 — 383,967
Placements with banks and other FRREREM
financial institutions maturing BHRERN—2
between one to twelve TZEARIE
months-banking operations TIB—RITER — 45,122 — 68,976 — 114,098
Financial assets at FVTPL BAFEENAER
JEREE — 18,358 — 8,857 — 27,215
Available-for-sale investments EHERE — 109,333 — — 473 109,806
Total financial assets in foreign currency  SMNES R E EETE — 251,124 — 383,489 473 635,086
Liabilities afE
Bank borrowings SRITIERR 258,292 — — — — 258,292
Total financial liabilities in INES R B BB
foreign currency 258,292 — — — — 258,292
Net position — total financial assets %8 — SNESRIEER
and liabilities in foreign currency BEHE (258,292) 251,124 — 383,489 473 376,794




sl

z

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 6. =TI EH(E) :z:
6B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 6B. UIERERESEERLBR (&) P
POLICIES (CONTINUED) %
Market risk (Continued) G Rk () =
(i) Currency risk (Continued) () EXREER(E) %
THE GROUP rEH B
HKS USss MOP RMB Others Total 4

B e R ARE Aty A
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
BETT BTt BTt BTt BTt  B¥Tn

(note)
(HizE)
At 31 December 2012 R-E-——&
+ZA=+-H
Assets BE
Cash and short-term funds ErRekERES 9029 2,559,347 77404 1,681,400 2,021,144 6,348,324
Placements with banks and FRREREMETS
other financial institutions BER—Z+-EA
maturing between one to twelve 5|2 58
months — 1,008,613 — 749,387 765,481 2,523,481
Derivative financial instruments MESRITA — 167,381 — — 15,459 182,840
Finandial assets at FVTPL BATEERMA
Ba/eHEE — 579,557 — 19,254 — 598,811
Available-for-sale investments AHEEERE — 4133261 — 31,090 3,49 4,167,600
Held-to-maturity securities BRIHA &S — 4,270,494 — 643,456 1,835,506 6,749,456
Advances to customers ZEEH — 1,355,011 25,591 726,984 96,311 2,203,897
Advances to banks and other EEJSET g
financial institutions BEER — — — 2134228 — 2134228
Other financial assets Hih e mEE — 142,257 2372 319,790 9,588 474,007
Total financial assets in foreign currency  SMNE4 Bh & /%R 9,029 14,215,921 105,367 6,305,589 4,746,738 15,382,644
Liabilities =15
Deposits and balances of hanks %R EMEHKE
and other financial institutions GaRR&ES — 510,438 — 422,824 27,365 960,627
Financial assets sold under REERE THEZ
repurchase agreements SREE — 433681 — — — 433 681
Deposits from banking customers RIIRPHER — 6,052,056 47384 3875490 6,069,485 16,044,415
Certificates of deposit FRGE — 77,378 — 124331 — 201,709
Derivative financial instruments TESBMTA — 129,581 — — 624 130,205
Loan capital EEER — 1,898,957 — — — 1,898,957
Bank borrowings Bi7iEs 238,008 — — — — s
Other finandial liabilities HivemaE — 44,931 604 33,671 27,228 106,434 =
Total financial liabiltes n INES A ERE a
foreign currency 238,008 9,147,022 47988 4456316 6,124,702 20,014,036 :
Net position — total financial assets ~ FHE—SMNESREER s
and liabilities in foreign currency BEEE (228979) 5,068,899 57,379 1,849,273  (1377964) 5,368,608 T
L)

note: Currencies included in “Others” mainly represented Australian dollars and New Mz : Hih & H E B e IZRE AR -
Zealand dollars.

B HEY
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 EIZ=F—=#+_-A=+—HBILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 6. ERTHR(#E)
6B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 6B. HIIEERESIEEREREKR(E)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Market risk (Continued) s EE (&)
() Currency risk (Continued) () EEERE)
THE COMPANY ¥ NN
Us$ RMB Total
E ARE ok
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BB BETT
At 31 December 2013 WZZ-=ZF+=-A=+-H
Assets BE
Available-for-sale investments Tt ERE 109,333 — 109,333
Financial assets at FVTPL RATBEFANBREZEREE 18,358 8,857 27,215
Bank accounts with CHB Group REIBIRITER Z RITER 84,465 144,129 228,594
Other bank balances and cash HMBTEaZRES 78,311 305,656 383,967
Total financial assets in foreign currency INE SR EELEE 290,467 458,642 749,109
Net position — total financial assets in BRI SREERR
foreign currency 290,467 458,642 749,109
Us$ RMB Total
T ARE kS
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT
At 31 December 2012 R® E+=-B=+-0
Assets BiE
Available-for-sale investments At HERE 133,190 — 133,190
Financial assets at FVTPL BATEEMABRZEREE 37,541 19,254 56,795
Bank accounts with CHB Group REIERITER 7 RITFER 62,813 74,162 136,975
QOther bank balances and cash HMBTEaZRES 48,911 152,569 201,480
Total financial assets in foreign currency INESREERT 282,455 245,985 528,440
Net position — total financial assets in FEINEEREELS
foreign currency 282,455 245,985 528,440




6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

6B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Market risk (Continued)

(i) Currency risk (Continued)

Foreign currency sensitivity

The Group is mainly exposed to US dollars, Renminbi and Macau

Pataca. The Company is mainly exposed to US dollars and Renminbi.

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 1% (2012: 1%)

change in Hong Kong dollars against the US dollars and Macau Pataca,

and 10% (2012: 10%) change in Hong Kong dollars against Renminbi.

The respective percentages are the rates used when reporting foreign

currency risk internally to key management personnel and represent

management’s assessment of the possible change in foreign exchange

rates. The sensitivity analyses of the Group’s and the Company’s

exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting period

have been determined based on the foreign exchange rates adjusted at

the end of the reporting period. During the year ended 31 December

2013, the Group's financial services operations were discontinued. The

disclosures in 2013 as set out below do not include any amounts for

these discontinued operations.

6. =MITHR(&)

6B. MIKEMESIEEERIKER (&)
IS EE (&)

() EXREER(E)

SIE B 12

AEEFZEEHET  ARBKORPIEE X
BHrER ARRETEBHETRARE
EXFE s RR - TRFMINEAEEHET
Z—(:;—:¢ TEAZT)BEHET
RPVBEXNERBED 2 H(ZE—ZF:
DZH)BERARBERRBHOGURE -
ﬁﬁ%}i&%ﬂﬂZEn LbAmMEZEEEABFINER
BREREREACHBELE  REEEE
MINBERTREEE 2B EEMEL 257
iy o MEMAEE BAREE RARQFIMNER

ROBERELTERENGRENHEERD
SMNEFBMAE - BE-FT—=F+_F

=T—BUEFE AEECRIKETRR
BEE TXAHEN T =FREITE
RAEMER LEERHE

Change in currency rate [E & 2 th &

US Dollars Renminbi Macau Pataca
E AR ke
Appreciate  Depreciate  Appreciate  Depreciate  Appreciate  Depreciate

FHE B1E FHE B1E HE B{E

+1% -1% +10% -10% +1% -1%
THE GROUP r&E
Hong Kong dollars equivalents BT TZE

(HKS$'000)

2013 —T-=F
Profit after tax BB T 1,184 (1,184) 32,021 (32,021) — —
Other comprehensive income Hiamkzs 1,093 (1,093) — — — —
2012 —E-—fF
Profit after tax BEi &R A 7,813 (7,813) 151,818 (151,818) 479 (479)
Other comprehensive income HEprmEba 41,333 (41,333) 3,109 (3,109) — —

m
Z
>
4
o
>
—
P
m
9
2
_|
T
=
o
E
it

-
oo
w

EVHBXITERS

=-&= |

B HEY



=y
-
S

£102 1¥Od3Y TYNNNY | @ILIWI LINJWLSIANI DNIH ONOHD NIt

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
w6 B F5 ¥k K B 5F

For the year ended 31 December 2013 EIZ=F—=#+_-A=+—HBILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 6. @I (@)

6B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 6B. UIERERESEERLEKR ()
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Market risk (Continued) s EE (&)

() Currency risk (Continued) () EXEER(E)

The following table details the Company's sensitivity to a 1% (2012: 1%) T RHAMAIN LA RRHEH 2 —(ZET—=
change in Hong Kong dollars against the US dollars, and 10% (2012: F: BA2— ) BA¥EETEXNEREH 2
T(ZE—ZF  BozH)BERAAREE
RNEOBRE -

Change in currency rate [ & 2 th &

10%) change in Hong Kong dollars against Renminbi.

US Dollars Renminbi
E AR
Appreciate Depreciate Appreciate Depreciate

FE BE FE LE

+1% -1% +10% -10%
THE COMPANY RAT
Hong Kong dollars equivalents BETTEE

(HK$'000)

2013 —T-=F
Profit after tax BB EF 1,512 (1,512) 38,297 (38,297)
Other comprehensive income Hip2Eha 1,093 (1,093) — —
2012 —E-—F
Profit after tax bR a7 1,246 (1,246) 20,540 (20,540)
Other comprehensive income Hin2EhaE 1,332 (1332) — —
Numbers in bracket mean decrease. AR ETFRTRD



6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

6B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Market risk (Continued)

(i) Interest rate risk

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a

financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest

rates. Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial

instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.
Financial services operations (discontinued in 2013 (note 13))

The Group, through the CHB Group, takes on exposure to the effects of
fluctuations in the prevailing levels of market interest rates on both fair
value and cash flow risks. Interest margins may increase as a result of
such changes but may reduce or create losses in the event that
unexpected movements arise. Limits are set on the level of mismatch of
interest rate repricing that may be undertaken, which are monitored

regularly.

Exposures of its assets and liabilities to fluctuations in interest rates are
measured primarily by way of interest rate gap analysis which shows the
Group’s and the Company's interest rate risk arising from the mis-matches
between contractual maturities and re-pricing of interest-generating

assets and interest-bearing liabilities.
Non-financial services operations

The Company and group entities engaging in non-financial services
operations currently do not have an interest rate hedging policy.
However, the management monitors interest rate exposure and will
consider hedging significant interest rate exposure should the need

arise.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

6B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Market risk (Continued)

(i) Interest rate risk (Continued)

The tables below summarise the Group'’s exposure to interest rate risk.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group's financial services

operations were discontinued. The disclosures in 2013 as set out below

do not include any amounts for these discontinued operations. Included

in the tables are the Group’s assets and liabilities at carrying amounts,

categorised by the earlier of contractual repricing or maturity dates.

Upto 3-12
3 months months
=lAR =Z+=f@A

HK$'000 HK$'000
BRETT  BETR

6. =T HR(E)
6B. HIIFREREIZERRER (&)

miE R (&)

(i) FIEmEE (&)
TIZERBERNREZNERAR - BE=
EZ—=F+_A=1+—BHLFE AEECE
RIERZEBRBEL - TXAEN_F
—=FERBEW T EIEEA DRI LR -
BxBERASEZEERBERAE WK
ERENEEARINAEAREESE -

THE GROUP A&
=5 Over Non-interest
years 5years bearing Total
—Z5E HBERE REBR k]

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT  E¥Tn  BE%Tx  BETx

At31 December 2013 RIE-=F
+-ZR=+-H

Assets BE

Cash and short-term funds BEEFRSREHES 47,777 19,342 398,563 — — 465,682

Placements with banks and other 2R R ZE R E

financial institutions maturity BERER -2
between one to twelve months +ERFH
B — 122,620 — — — 122,620
Financial assets at FVTPL BAFEERA
BaleREE — — 27,215 — 11,042 38,257

Available-for-sale investments AEHERE — — 1,164 — 405,124 406,288

Advances to an investee company  EMT IR E N A — — — — 193,424 193,424

Other financial assets EthepEE — — — — 84,287 84,287
Total financial assets BEMEE 47,777 141,962 426,942 — 693,877 1,310,558
Liabilities BE

Borrowings N 22,059 1,811,715 1,948,402 — — 3,782,176

Other financial liabilities HusmaE — — — — 109,351 109,351
Total financial liabilities LemAas 22,059 1,811,715 1,948,402 = 109,351 3,891,527
Net position- total financial assets FEBEREE

and liabilities LBE 25718  (1,669,753)  (1,521,460) — 584,526 (2,580,969)




6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
6B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

6. EMTHR(#&)

6B. WIFREIREIRBEIRKLBR (&)

Market risk (Continued) G Rk ()
(i) Interest rate risk (Continued) () FIEER (&)
THE GROUP R &
Upto 3-12 1=5 QOver  Non-interest
3 months months years 5 years bearing Total
=EARN =2=t+=f@A —E0F HBBhE 2EBR ks
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT BT BT BB BETT
At 31 December 2012 RZT—ZF
+-A=+—-H
Assets BE
Cash and short-term funds ERFREREHES 17,265,140 98,531 — — 481,912 17,845,583
Placements with banks and other 77 AR 2 R E
financial institutions maturity BBEERN—2
between one to twelve months +-AAZH
B 3,948,937 895,178 — — — 4844115
Derivative financial instruments TTESRTA — — — — 187,911 187,911
Financial assets at FVTPL BATEEFA
BaZemEE 1,225,187 = 44,757 — 8,917 1,278,861
Available-for-sale investments A EERE 3,990,868 — 1,164 — 633,919 4,625,951
Held-to-maturity securities BRIHA &S 7,061,580 1,837,563 459,439 239,438 2,000 9,600,020
Advances to customers TEEW 37,923,395 975,072 102,911 24,158 166,653 39,192,189
Advances to banks and other FErest g
financial institutions BEER 1,470,328 694,514 — — — 2,164,842
Advances to an investee company BT HRE A A — — — — 322,539 322,539
Other finandial assets HEthemEE 133,194 112,616 — — 534,753 780,563
Total finandial assets BEREE 73,018,629 4.613,474 608,271 263,596 2,338,604 80,842,574
Liabilities B
Deposits and halances of banks BESERutps
and other financial institutions WEES LS 1,469,018 344,484 — — 29,975 1,843,477
Financial assets sold under RNEERE T HE
repurchase agreements ZEmEE 354,801 78,880 — — — 433,681
Deposits from customers BRER 55,285,426 6,748,130 88,972 — 5,238,918 67,361,446
Certificates of deposit GFIGE 590,258 77,378 — — — 667,636
Derivative finandial instruments THESRTA — — — — 248,656 248,656
Loan capital BEER 1,898,957 — — — — 1,898,957
Borrowings EES 3,719,798 — — — 10,322 3,730,120
Other financial liabilities HivemBE — — — — 890,751 890,751
Total financial liabilities HeRmAR 63,318,258 7,248,872 88,972 — 6418622 77,074,724
Net position- total financial assets ~ HE — B4 REBE
and liabilities L& 9,700,371 (2,635,398) 519,299 263,596  (4,080,018) 3,767,850
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

6. EHEIE‘("IQ)

6B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 6B. HIIEERESIEEREREKR(E)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Market risk (Continued) s EE (&)
(i) Interest rate risk (Continued) () FIEER (&)
THE COMPANY 2R A B
Upto 3-12 1-5 Over  Non-interest
3 months months years 5 years bearing Total
=EAR =Z+={8A —ZRE BERE REBH %
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BET T BET T BETT BETT
At 31 December 2013 NZE—=F
+=ZA=+-H
Assets EE
Bank balances and cash ROERRETFRS 378,796 239,394 — — 160 618,350
Financial assets at FVTPL BATEEBFA
BR/eREE = == 27,215 — 11,042 38,257
Available-for-sale investments AftEERE — — 1,164 — 110,982 112,146
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUT P B A RIBEFN 2,673,878 — — — 1,536,530 4210,408
Other financial assets EthepEE — — — — 4,840 4,840
Total financial assets BeRMEE 3,052,674 239,394 28,379 — 1,663,554 4,984,001
Liabilities BE
Borrowings B% 22,059 1,791,542 1,364,144 — — 3,177,745
Other financial liabilities HusmaE — — — — 150,395 150,395
Total financial liabilities BewER 22,059 1,791,542 1,364,144 — 150,395 3,328,140
Net position- total financial assets FEBEREE
and liabilities Lats 3,030,615 (1,552,148)  (1,335,765) — 1,513,159 1,655,861
At 31 December 2012 RZE—Z&
+=A=1+-8
Assets EE
Bank balances and cash BITERREFRE 361,437 — — — 88 361,525
Financial assets at FVTPL BRATEBRA
BR/eREE 42,780 — 14,015 — 8,656 65,451
Available-for-sale investments AfEERE — — 1,164 — 134,883 136,047
Amounts due from subsidiaries NG E 4,111,613 — — — 372,094 4,483,707
Other financial assets HMsmEE — — — — 5,666 5,666
Total financial assets BemEE 4,515,830 — 15,179 — 521,387 5,052,396
Liabilities BE
Borrowings N 3,100,255 — — — — 3,100,255
Other financial liabilities EthepaE — — — — 127,418 127,418
Total financial liabilities BewER 3,100,255 — — — 127,418 3,227,673
Net position- total financial assets ~ HE — B4 REBE
and liabilities L& 1,415,575 — 15,179 — 393,969 1,824,723




6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

6B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Market risk (Continued)

(i) Interest rate risk (Continued)

Interest rate sensitivity

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the

exposure to floating interest rates for the Group’s and the Company’s

derivative and non-derivative instruments at the end of the reporting

period and the stipulated change taking place at the beginning of the

financial year and held constant throughout the reporting period. A 100

basis point (2012: 100 basis point) change in upwards and 10 basis point

(2012: 10 basis point) change in downwards are used when reporting

interest rate risk internally to key management personnel and represents

management’s assessment of the possible change in interest rates.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group’s financial services

operations were discontinued. The disclosures in 2013 as set out below

do not include any amounts for these discontinued operations.

6. EMTHR(#&)
6. MFRREIZEIRREK (&)

™G R (&)

(i) FIEE R (&)
NTHERESMHERRNEERARFITE
RIFTETERBREAHLEERFMEY 2 F
A ERR  URMBFERBREEER
BEREHARELENMRTEDET -
1002 F(ZE—ZF 1002 F)MEFHA K0
BT (ZZ—ZF 0% F)NTERAEE
EBABRFERBRENTRERTA 2K
B RREBEMANERAIGEELEZEH 2T
HoBEZT—=F+-A=+—BLLFE
AEBEERIECESRRGEER - TXAH
W_ZT-—=ZFRBEUTEEEMERILEESE
HOKEE o

2013 2012
—F-=F —F-F
Change in basis points (Change in basis points
E¥oyg B %
+100 -10 +100 -10
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BRI BETT BT
THE GROUP XEE
Profit after tax BiiesH 3,535 (353) 72,121 (7,212)
THE COMPANY ARF
Profit after tax BrEii& 38,740 (3,874) 12,143 (1,214)

Numbers in bracket mean decrease.

(iii) ~ Price risk

The Group and the Company are exposed to equity price risk through
their investments in equity securities. The management will closely
monitor the price movement of the securities and regularly review the

performance and asset allocation of the portfolio.

The Group’s and the Company’s equity price risk are mainly

concentrated on listed and unlisted equity securities.

AR B FRRED ©

(i) 1B E b
REBRARABBEBERRAE S 2 RE R
ERERR EEERENERZEZSFZ
EREE TEBRIGHAEEcRRARE
EDHL °
AEBRAARZREBBFEERN LW
RIEETRAES o
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 EIZ=F—=#+_-A=+—HBILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
6B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Market risk (Continued)
(iii) ~ Price risk (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis below is determined based on 10% (2012: 10%)

changes in the price of the underlying investments.

6. =TI E(E)
6. WHRKREEERNIR (&)

™ i5 Bk (&)

(i) 1EEE b (&)

AT ZHEED T ERHERBIRE R 10% (=
T—ZF 10%) BEREEET o

Sensitivity analysis FREE DT
2013 2012
—E-=F —F=F
Change in price Change in price
BREH ERED
+10% -10% +10% -10%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BETT BT BT
THE GROUP X&E
Profit after tax BiieRH 922 (922) 744 (744)
Other comprehensive income HEn2mEKE 33,925 (33,925) 49,833 (49,833)
2013 2012
—2-=F “B-CF
Change in price Change in price
BREE By
+10% -10% +10% -10%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BET T BT BT
THE COMPANY VAN
Profit after tax B A 922 (922) 723 (723)
Other comprehensive income Hin 2 mEE 9,364 (9,364) 11,360 (11,360)

Numbers in bracket mean decrease.

EIMAR B FRRRD ©



6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

6B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Liquidity risk

Financial services operations (discontinued in 2013 (note 13))

Liquidity risk is the risk that the CHB Group is unable to meet its

payment obligations associated with its financial liabilities when they fall

due and to replace funds when they are withdrawn. The consequence

may be the failure to meet obligations to repay depositors and fulfill

commitments to lend.

The ALCO is responsible for monitoring the CHB Group’s liquidity
position, and does so through the periodic review of the statutory
liquidity ratio, the maturity profile of assets and liabilities, loan-to-
deposit ratio and inter-bank transactions. Liquidity Risk management
Policy is reviewed by the ALCO and approved by the RMCC of the CHB
Group, and key features of liquidity position are reviewed regularly by
the senior management and the RMCC of the CHB Group. The CHB
Group's policy is to maintain a conservative level of liquid funds on a
daily basis so that the CHB Group is prepared to meet its obligations
when they fall due in the normal course of business and to satisfy
statutory liquidity ratio requirements. The policy provides a foundation
to other risk management tools including stress-testing and contingent

funding plan.

6. EMTHR(#&)
6. MFRREIZEIRREK (&)

RBESRR

ERIRBER (ER-F—=F4F (K5t 13))
MENE TR EEABUERITRBEREREITRN
ERABIHANNRET REESKIE
A REEMSEEBERESR - HERWBE
EARBEEEFRGTFRE RBITEFORE -

BEEZSAREBAARTREENRDE
RN HEEBREBEMBRIDEEADE
X -BERBENIHER  BEFLX
LEERZS nHERAREERREHE
BEZEEZNAGERTEEZARERE
FIEPIBITZ B @EI  MRBE SR
TERUESHAERTEEZSNEERER
R E R REPIMITE B G TSR - 815
RITEBENBREEBRABRENRDRS
IKFUEMNBEBEENIMAREETRAT
EEMRBDEERLERNENR - I BRAEAME
RERETARETRE BREENAANE
=BT -
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 EIZ=F—=#+_-A=+—HBILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

6B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Financial services operations (discontinued in 2013 (note 13)) (Continued)

The CHB Group’s RMCC recommends internal target levels in respect
of the liquidity ratios and loan to deposit ratio. The CHB Group's Head
of Treasury Department is responsible for monitoring these ratios and,
where a tight liquidity position remains for a prolonged period, the
Head of Treasury Department reports his findings to the ALCO and
RMCC who, after consultation with members of the Executive
Committee, decide the appropriate corrective actions to be taken. The
liquidity positions of the CHB's overseas branches in Shantou, San
Francisco and Macau are monitored through the submission of monthly
management accounts and daily cash flow positions to the CHB's head
office. The CHB has strong capital base and stable customer deposits
which are its main funding sources. The CHB has also diversified to
other funding sources including inter-bank deposit takings, certificates
of deposit programme and through financial assets sold under

repurchase agreements.

Non-financial services operations

In the management of the relevant group entities’ liquidity risk other
than those relating to the financial services operations, the relevant
group entities and the Company monitor and maintain a level of cash
and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the management to finance
its operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The
management monitors the utilisation of bank borrowings and ensures
compliance with loan covenants. The Group and the Company rely on
bank borrowings as a significant source of liquidity. As at 31 December
2013, the Group and the Company had available unutilised bank loan
facilities of approximately HK$656 million and HK$548 million (2012:
HKS$511 million and HK$471 million), respectively. Details of the
amounts utilised at the end of the reporting period are set out in note
39.

6. EHEIE‘(HIE)

6B. HIIFREREIZERRER (&)
RBE SR (E)

ERREZES (ER=ZF—=F4£F (K5t 13))
(%)

AIBSRTEEZARERMGIATEES
BERERBDES L RRERE TR XA
BIEKF - AIRIRTTEEZESHEERA
BEEENLEXRERDECBERARBESR

B2 HEEREEEZ G LEREIEREM
HITREEWE  EAAFBEFZREENX
Bi&  REEEOMIETE - LNAIRRTT
SEDNEE - =% RRPIZBINDITENRE
B2 BRREBEAMAIRRTEBERD
EEEBLBARBESHAKREE - AIH
RITHEEHEENEAER RIBENTF T

ERETIZNES IR - BIERITIHIA DK
E'Jﬁﬁtﬁi)!(ﬁ ERIZFME - FREE

BERLBHETHESREE -

2 BIREFT5

EEENEREERNER ZRDESRARE (T
BREZSAHESBRREEBNER) - £ER
HEERRARRERLRFHEEERRR
MR MREFEEBKTY  REXRBKE
BRHESYBRERSRENDNTE - F
BESZRITERZERLLMERETE
KR - AEE A RRRBERITERIES
MBELZEERR - R_F—=F+_H
=t— B AEBERARREABHAMER

FEEN 2 SR 1T B FREE 4975 & 656,000,000 7T N2 7B B
548,000,000 7T ( —F— —F : # ¥ 511,000,000 7T
K & & 471000000 7T ) - Rk &S BB A E H

BB IR R RE39 ©



6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

6B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Non-financial services operations (Continued)

The following tables detail the Group'’s and the Company’s remaining

contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities and

financial guarantee contracts. During the year ended 31 December 2013,

the Group’s financial services operations were discontinued. The

disclosures in 2013 as set out below do not include any amounts for

these discontinued operations. The tables below have been drawn up

based on the contractual maturities of the undiscounted financial

liabilities including interest that will accrue, with reference to their

respective contractual interest rate, and for those variable rate

instruments, by using the appropriate prevailing market rates as at the

end of the reporting period as stated in their contracts.

Repayable

Repayable within -~ but within
on demand Tmonth  3months

6. =T R(E)
6. HFRREIZEIRREK (&)

mEE SR ()

2 BIRIEFT5 (B)
REBRARRNENTESRAE LT HE
RENABIPAFIR TR -BE-F
—=F+ZA=+—HBLFE FAEEER
IRESBBRBERS - TXAEN_FT—=
FRELATEBREEMNDRELENTE T
KERBAMACRABEERRAEIENSG
MEIFB M SR - M&EDFIHNE RM X
MEBMNETA  H2RAREMRERFH
MIHMEMIE

THEGROUP A 5@

Repayable  Repayable Total

Repayable after T month after3months after Tyear ~ Repayable undiscounted
butwithin ~ but within after ~ financial (arrying
Tyear 5 years Syears liabilities  amounts
—fBAZ =MAZ —£Z REUFH
EER —@EAUA =AM
B8 EE B2

notes HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS$'000
(i3 BT B¥Tn  BETx

e hER  BBRE  ERER
&g EE &8 aE  REE
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000
BETr BBt  BETn  BBTn  BETxn

At 31 December 2013 R-E-=%
+ZA=1-H

Bank borrowings with repayable on BEREERES

demand clause B2 TER (i) 80,000 — — — — — 80,000 80,000
Other bank borrowings HipFTER ) — — — 1,732,667 1,948,402 — 3,681,009 3,680,117
Other financial liabiliies HEtemat 131,410 — — — — — 131,410 131,410
Total Fek] M40 — — 1730667 1948402 — 38924719 3891527
At 31 December 2012 WoE-—fF

tZA=1-H

Depositsand halances of banks and A% R At BT i

other financial institutions BHRkEH 35,287 814592 673,006 351,040 — — 187395 1843477
Financial assets sold under repurchase  AEIBE I T HE

agreements LERERE — 354,818 — 79,452 — — 434,270 433,681
Deposits from banking customers ROIRFER 26690508 19923589 14023233 6,844,017 90,110 —  O15TIA4T 67,361,446
Certificates of deposit BERE — 99,991 390,267 177378 — — 667,636 667,636
Loan capital EEER — — — 104,071 418,608 2,058,156 2,580,835 1,898,957
Bank borrowings with repayableon A& REEER(ER

demand clause 2 BITIER (i) 180,000 — — — — — 180,000 180,000
Bank borrowings with breach of BREZZN 2

oan covenants BITEHR (ii) 3,229,623 — — — — — 32963 3229623
Other bank borrowings HipFIER (v) — — — 306,412 — — 306,412 299,067
Other financial iabilities Enmemas 422,845 159,613 60,677 105,047 14907 — 763,089 912,181
Total 8% 30,558,263 21352603 15,147,173 7967417 523,625 205,15 77,607,237 76,826,068

m
Z
>
z
o
>
=
P
m
9
2
_|
T
=
o
E
it

-
o
w

EVHBXITERS

=-&= |

B HEY



-
()
S

£10Z [4Od3Y IVNNNY | @3LIWI LNFWLSIANI ONIH ONOHD NI

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
w6 B F5 ¥k K B 5F

For the year ended 31 December 2013 EIZ=F—=#+_-A=+—HBILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 6. =TI E(E)
6B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 6. WHRKREEERNIR (&)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Liquidity risk (Continued) RBESER (&)
THE COMPANY A2 ]
Repayable  Repayable  Repayable Total
Repayable after Tmonth after3months after Tyear  Repayable undiscounted
Repayable within -~ butwithin ~ butwithin  butwithin after  financial (anying
ondemand ~ Tmonth 3 months Tyear 5 years Syears liabilities  amounts

-fiAZ =Z{EAZ -5 BARF AEEH

EER —@EAUA =AM —FR RER BB <REE
&E & fEs BE B &R et REE
notes HKS000  HKS000  HKY'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
ME BT BBTx  B%TR  BETx  E%Tr BT ERTx  E%Trn

At 31 December 2013 R-Z-=f
+ZR=+-H
Trade and other payables B REMENES — 6,462 — — — — 6,462 6,462
Bank borrowings with repayable on ALBEBELRES
demand clause ES oot -t (i) 80,000 — — — — — 80,000 80,000
Other bank borrowings HiRTER () — — — 1783840 1,493,710 — 3277550 3,095,859
Amount due to ajoint venture ER-HaEtE
215 1,886 — — — — — 1,886 1,886
Non-interest bearing advances from WEBARZGEBH
subsidiaries — — — — 143,933 — 143,933 143,933
Financial quarantee contracts BIRERAY (i) — — — — 728 464 — 728 464 —
Total ek 81,886 6,462 — 1783840 2,366,107 — 4238295 3328140
At 31 December 2012 RIE-—&
T=A=t+-H
Trade and other payables B 5 REMERER — 6,461 = = = = 6,461 6,461
Bank borrowings with repayable on BEKEEERES
demand clause 1 Y2 HTER (i) 180,000 — — — — — 180,000 180,000
Bank borrowings with breach of REZZN
oan covenants fEm EE 0 (il 2,619,549 — — — — — 2619549 2619549
Other bank borrowings HiRTER (v) — — — 306,412 — — 306,412 299,067
Amount due to  oint venture N —EAL0E
Er] 1639 — — — — — 1639 1639
Non-interest bearing advances from WELRZE BN
subsidiaries — — — — 120,957 — 120,957 120,957
Financial quarantee contracts BIRERAY (i 684,600 — — — — — 684,600 —

Total 2% 3.485,788 6,461 = 306412 120,957 — 3919618 3227673




6.
6B.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

notes:

@)

(i)

(iii)

(v)

The Group'’s and the Company’s bank loans with a repayment on demand clause
are included in the “repayable on demand” time band in the above maturity
analysis. As at 31 December 2013, the aggregate carrying amounts of these bank
loans were HK$80,000,000 (2012: HK$180,000,000). Taking into account the
Group's and the Company's financial position, the directors do not believe that it
is probable that the banks will exercise their discretionary rights to demand
immediate repayment. The directors believe that such bank loans will be repaid
after one year but within five years after the end of the reporting period in
accordance with the scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan agreements.
At that time, the aggregate principal and interest cash outflows will amount to
HK$81,896,000 (2012: HK$182,914,000).

During the year ended 31 December 2012, as a result of the consolidation of CHB,
certain bank loan covenants in respect of the ratio of the Group’s total liabilities
to total equity were breached. Upon discovery of the breaches, the directors of
the Company informed the relevant lenders and commenced negotiation for the
revision of the terms of the loans with the relevant lenders. As at 31 December
2012, such negotiations had not been concluded and accordingly, the Group had
reclassified all relevant loans as current liabilities. In March 2013, consents for non-
compliance of such loan covenants were obtained by the Group from all relevant
lenders. Accordingly, the directors are of the opinion that all such borrowings will
continue to be repaid in accordance with their original repayment schedules from

one to five years.

Financial guarantee contracts are the maximum amounts the Company could be
required to settle under the arrangement for the full guaranteed amount if that
amount is claimed by the counterparty to the guarantee. Based on expectations
at the end of the reporting period, the Company considers that it is more likely
than not that no amount will be payable under the arrangement. However, this
estimate is subject to change depending on the probability of the counterparty
claiming under the guarantee which is a function of the likelihood that the
financial receivables held by the counterparty which are guaranteed suffer credit
losses.

The amounts included above for variable interest rate instruments for non-
derivative financial liabilities are subject to change if changes in variable interest
rates differ from those estimates of interest rates determined at the end of the

reporting period.

6. EMTHR(#&)

6. MFRREIZEIRREK (&)
RBE SR (E)

FRE -

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

RERBIBE ST - BERERERERIKZ A%
BRADRRITER ﬂr/\ [EZkEE] 2 WA
A RZT-—=F+=A=+—8 " ZEHKTEXK
2 BRI A8 (E A7 158000000070 (Z T —ZF : B
180,000,000 7T ) © 4% E AR B KA A B 2 B SRR
% EBRIRE BOUTSTEARBEETREEE
Ao BRIRGE  ZSFROTEFEBBEERBR 25

ZERBHRBERRE—FRERAFNEE - B
B RS KA B2 AEREAS 578 81,896,000
T (ZZ— 4 : #%1829140007T) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 EIZ=F—=#+_-A=+—HBILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

6B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The following tables detail the Group’s expected maturity for its

derivative financial instruments. The tables have been drawn up based

on the undiscounted net cash inflows (outflows) on the derivative

financial instruments that settle on a net basis and the undiscounted

gross inflows and (outflows) on those derivatives that require gross

settlement. When the amount payable or receivable is not fixed, the

amount disclosed has been determined by reference to the projected

interest rates as illustrated by the yield curves existing at the end of the

reporting period.

At 31 December 2012

6. =T HR(E)
6B. HIIFREREIZERRER (&)

RBE SR (E)

TRAMVNPAREBFAFENITESBH TR
MR EIHA - ZRERBETESHTAN
REEBFRERA ORE) FORE (WZITAET
AN ZRIZFEAEN) BWZITETA
MR 5 ZREETE - BIZARBRIRER
SIRMAMORE) EHIEER - B R HEY
THEITEEER  ERBETSRETLEUR
SHIMARNZE SRR RBENRETE -

R-ZE——-F+=-A=+-—H

Less than 1-3 3 months 1-5 Over
1Tmonth months to Tyear years 5 years Total
PR—EA —Z=EA =@AAE—% —ZhE ik ol @
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
THE GROUP rEE
Derivatives settled net WEBRH ITEIR
Interest rate contracts MEEHEH
— inflow (outflow) —RAGRE) (44) (20,829) 16,361 (7,943) 40,534 28,079
Derivatives settled gross NRBERHITETAR
Exchange rate contracts EEaL
— inflow —mA 2,198,901 2,514,355 1,324,502 — — 6,037,758
— outflow — (219,427)  (2,530,816)  (1,309,173) — —  (6,036,416)
2,474 (16,461) 15,329 — — 1,342

As at 31 December 2013, the Group did not hold any derivative financial

instruments except for those classified as held for sale (note 13).

RZIBE—=FE+-A=+—H A&E£EKH

HAGEENESRIT A
PTEEBT A (MsE13) ©

W EF AT



6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 6. =TI EH(E)

6B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 68. MHEARSIPEEREKFR ()
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Liquidity risk (Continued) REES R (F)

The dates of the contractual amounts of the Group’s commitments and ~ BFAR A B R G L 8k 4R 6 BT 5 AR St 38 ) &
contingencies unrecorded in the consolidated statement of financial #ER&KEBENEHSEIH AT EHAER
position that commit them to extending credit to customers and other & F {5 B RIEE M= AL HE - BB ERE
facilities and financial guarantees are set out in note 49 to the 23R AEMIEHREM T4 - RBEIMTE
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consolidated financial statements and summarised in the table below.

No later than 1 year

THB—F
2013 2012
—E-—=F —T——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT
THE GROUP Kr&E
Direct credit substitutes HEERRER 1,041,747 1,077,350
Trade-related contingencies RBESEH N HER 479,056 425,309
Undrawn formal standby facilities, crediit lines and APACEAEREE
other commitments excluding those that are EEBREMAG
unconditionally cancellable AR GBI ERBRA 10,111,868 10,557,895
11,632,671 12,060,554
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 EIZ=F—=#+_-A=+—HBILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

6B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Analysis of assets and liabilities by remaining maturity

The maturity analysis of financial assets and liabilities shown on the

consolidated statement of financial position of the Group, based on the

remaining period at the end of the reporting period to the contractual

maturity date is shown below. During the year ended 31 December

2013, the Group's financial services operations were discontinued. The

disclosures in 2013 as set out below do not include any amounts for

these discontinued operations. Specifically, bank loans with a repayment

on demand clause are included in the earliest time band regardless of

the probability of the banks choosing to exercise their rights.

6. EMTR(#&)

6B. HIIFREREIZERRER (&)
RBE SR (E)

BERRERTFIHIE H W

AEBEGFAMBRAARANEBREERBEDN
AHBESMTRUBRSHREEAES O
Bz RABREESTOT -BE_T—=F
TZA=+T—RLFE AEHEDR LS
CRMBER - TXFHEN T —=FKE
W ABEEFAERIEEEHRE - LEED
WIRTTEDREBTEEREN > Ba3BHEX
BEGEXZRITERIFARR 2 KEAR -

THE GROUP x5
Repayable
within ~ Repayable ~ Repayable  Repayable
Tmonth after after after
(exceptthose ~ Tmonth 3 months Tyear  Repayable
Repayable repayableon  butwithin  butwithin  butwithin after
ondemand  demand)  3months Tyear 5 years Syears  Undated Total
—f{8A
NhEE -@AZ =@AZ —EZ
EZXR (EEXEE =@EAR %R Ifpn BBELF  BHE
BE  ERM EiE BE BiE EE B g
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000
BETT B¥Tr BT BETz BT B¥TR E%Tr  E%Tx
At31 December 2013 WoE-=F
+ZA=+-H
Assets BE
(ash and short-term funds EFBLREHES 47771 19,342 398,563 — — — — 465,682
Placements with banks and other FHR%RE %
financial institutions between BER—Z2+=@A
one to twelve months N E|E Y 20E — — — 122,620 — — — 122,620
Finandial assets at fairvalue though AT BEE AB#HZ
profit or loss SRHEE — — — 8,857 18,358 — 11,082 38,257
Available-for-sale investments A EEE — — — — — 294,824 111,464 406,288
Advances to an investee company BRIFIRENT — — — — — — 193,424 193,424
(Other financial assets HiepeE — 84,287 — — — — — 84,287
Total financial assets BeREE 47777 103609 398563 131,477 18358 294824 315930 1310558




-
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 6. =MITHR(&) :z:
6B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 6B. MIBRMREEEIERIER (&) E
POLICIES (CONTINUED) E
Liquidity risk (Continued) REE SRR (E) C’_%'
Analysis of assets and liabilities by remaining maturity (Continued) BERE EEFIG PR A S (&) %
&
THE GROUP & ££. &
Repayable &
within Repayable  Repayable
Tmonth  Repayable after after
(exceptthose afterTmonth 3 months Tyear  Repayable
Repayable repayableon  butwithin  butwithin  butwithin after
ondemand ~ demand) 3 months 1year 5 years Syears  Undated Total
—f8A

NREE —-fEAZ Z=Zf@AE -2
BER (BRREE =@EAA —FR IFK BBRF  BHR
&g BRI EE &= EE EE =k b
HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS$'000
BETT BETz BRTx BETT BETx BRI B%Tn E%Tx

At 31 December 2013 R-E-=Z%
+ZA=+-H
Liabilities =1
Bank borrowings PITER — — — 1731715 1,948,402 — — 3,680,117
Bank borrowings with repayable on BERRHELREER
demand dause IS BITER 80,000 — — - - - — 80000
Other financial liabiliies HitRaE 2,059 109,351 — — = = — 131410
Total finandial liabilities BeRMAR 102,059 109,351 — 173715 1,948,402 — — 3891527
Net position — tofal financial assets ~ %%4E — @S BAE
and liabilities LaE (54,282) (5722) 398,563 (1,600238) (1930,044) 294824 315930 (2,580,969)
Of which debt securities included in: EREFERAE:
Financial assets at FVTPL RATEEAER
ZERAE
— Designated as atfair value —ERATEI%R — — — 8857 18358 — e 38
Avalable-for-sale investments ARHERE — - - - — 1484 TTAGE 406,288

= = = 8,857 18358 294824 122506 444,545
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 EIZ=F—=#+_-A=+—HBILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

6B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Analysis of assets and liabilities by remaining maturity (Continued)

6. EMTR(#&)

6B.

RBESRR ()

MFRRKRERBRRECR (&)

BERRERTFIHIEE W (&)

THE GROUP 78 55
Repayable
within ~ Repayable  Repayable  Repayable
1 month after after after
(except those Tmonth 3 months Tyear — Repayable
Repayable repayableon  butwithin ~ butwithin ~ butwithin after
on demand demand) 3 months T year 5 years Syears  Undated Total
—f&A
WAEE —EAE =@AE &%
EEX (REXREE =FEAR —ER TERN BBLE  EHR
BE  ERN fE& (Ehed fE& (b HH# B
HKY000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKS'000  HKS'000
BETT A¥Tn A%t AT BETr B%Tr AT AT
At 31 December 2012 WZE-——F
+ZA=+-H
Assets &E
(ash and short-term funds ERR4LEHES 6,137,235 11147922 461,895 98,531 — — — 17845583
Placements with banks and other HFRAERA MRS
financial institutions between R—Z2+ZEARE
one to twelve months Hi Y 21g — — 3948937 895,178 — — — 4844115
Derivative financial instruments fTESBIA = 6,562 3987 6,106 — 171,25 — 187911
Finandial assets at fair value through BATLEESABEY
profit or loss SREE — — 15,531 85450 1,018,963 — 8917 1,278861
Available-for-sale investments AEHERE = = — — 2005897 1635948 364,106 4,625,951
Held-to-maturity securities SEIMA RS — 125799 2576757 2538779 2519363 739322 — 9600020
Advances to customers REEH 1600361 228499 2398222 7369363 12717092 12,619,406 168,157 39,157,597
Advances to banks and other REREMABEEER
financial institutions — 105497 1364831 694514 — — — 1164842
Advances to an investee company BAHIRENT — — — — — — 322539 322539
Other financial assets HtheREE 321,586 196,652 193,336 181311 94,216 — (111946 815155
Total finandial assets BERARE 8059182 14967428 10963496 12019232 18975531 15,165,932 691,773 80,842,574




6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
6B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Liquidity risk (Continued)
Analysis of assets and liabilities by remaining maturity (Continued)

6. =MITHR(&)
6. WIFERERBEIRKLBR (&)

RBE SR (E)
BERE ERFIFEIEE 29 (&)

THEGROUP R &R &

Repayable
within ~ Repayable ~ Repayable  Repayable
Tmonth after after after
(exceptthose ~ Tmonth 3 months Tyear  Repayable
Repayable repayableon  butwithin -~ butwithin ~ butwithin after
on demand demand) 3 months T year 5 years 5 years Undated Total
—fEA
NAEE —fAZ =@AZ —F=
BEk (BEXERE =fAR —FR TER  HBAERE ERE
B BRI &g (Ete g {Et =] Fet ]
HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
AETrT A%Tr B%Tr BT BT B%Tr BETr A%Tx
At 31 December 2012 R-Z-=F
+=A=+-¢
Liabilities &f
Deposits and balances of banks and AL EMmBBEETR
other financial institutions Rt 35,287 803,806 659,900 344 484 — — — 1843477
Financial assets sold under REEBETHEY
repurchase agreements SREE — 354,801 — 78,880 — — — 433,681
Deposits from banking customers RIIRPER 26690300 19872678 13961059 6748437 88,972 — — 67361446
Certificates of deposit T — 99,991 390,267 1773718 — — — 667,636
Derivative financial instruments TESRIA — 3,131 17,943 21942 142,985 56,65 — 248,656
Loan capital EEER — — — — — 1898957 — 1898957
Bank borrowings ﬂ%ﬂa By 299,067 — — — — — — 299,067
Bank borrowings with repayable on ek EkEE
demand clause Z%Ema BN 180,000 — — — — — — 180,000
Bank borrowings with breach of REBRL 2 RITHER
covenants 3,229,613 — — — — — — 32963
Other financial liabilities Hidmas 422,895 210,398 102,005 161,879 15,004 — — 912,181
Total finandial liabilities BEBMAR 30857172 21344805 15,131,174 7,539,000 246,961 1,995,612 —  TI014724
Net position — total financial assets TS ENAE T B (&
and liabilities (22,797990)  (6377377)  (4167678) 4480232 18728570 13,210,320 9773 3,767,850
Of which certificates of deposit GHEBERAE:
included in:
Held-to-maturity securities BRIBAZE — 2543 2110648 1,357,430 — — — 3693
Of which debt securities included in: BEEEMAE
Financial assets at FVTPL BATEEFABEL
& m@ BE
— Designated as at fair value ETERATEYE — — 15,531 25450 1,018.963 — — 1,269,944
Available-for-sale investments ;i(Hj ERE — — — — 2605897 1368807 — 3994704
Held-to-maturity securities BEEHA Y BA — 1205799 2576757 2538779 2519363 739322 — 9600020
— 1205799 2592288 2774209 6164223 2108129 — 14,864,668
As at 31 December 2013, other than the financial assets and liabilities RZE—=F+ZA=+—8 " 'BREXRMT
shown in the above table, the remaining financial assets and liabilities TARMEBERAGBYI  HELREBERAR

included in the consolidated statement of financial position are financial

assets and liabilities included in assets classified as held for sale and

liabilities associated with assets classified as held for sale.

BREFABEMBMRARNDBRFHE
BERDBERBHEEEZHBAE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 EIZ=F—=#+_-A=+—HBILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

6B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Credit risk

In managing credit risks, the Group has developed separate procedures

and policies for its financial services operations, represented by the CHB

Group, and for its other segments. The following describe the Group's

credit risks in the context of these procedures and policies.

Financial services operations (discontinued in 2013 (note 13))

For financial services operations, the Group, through CHB, takes on
exposure to credit risk, which is the risk that a counterparty will be
unable to pay amounts in full when due. Impairment allowances are
made for losses that have been incurred at the end of the reporting
period. Significant changes in the economy, or in the health of a
particular industry segment, could result in losses that are different from
those provided for at the end of the reporting period. Management

therefore carefully manages its exposure to credit risk.

CHB'’s lending policies have been formulated on the basis of its own
experience, the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance, the Hong Kong
Monetary Authority guidelines and other statutory requirements (in
the case of overseas branches and subsidiaries, the relevant local laws

and regulations).

CHB's primary credit approval bodies are the Loans Committee, which
comprises senior staff members of the CHB Group, and the Executive
Loans Committee, comprising all the Executive Directors of the CHB
Group. The Executive Loans Committee has overall responsibility for the
CHB Group's credit policies and oversees the credit quality of the CHB
Group's loan portfolio. Under the oversight of the Executive Loans
Committee, officers of the CHB Group are authorised to approve credit
based on the size of the loan, the collateral provided, the credit standing

of the applicant and other prescribed credit guidelines.

6. EHEIE‘(HIE)
6. HITERIREIEERRIKR (&)

FERR

RERFEERR  ARECOHSEE AR
i‘%%ﬁk(iﬁiﬂaﬂiﬁifﬁﬂ)&ﬁ‘r&”* RIIEFF
RIR - L‘ATamﬂ$§%lE§2%&F¥&ﬂlﬁ
THEER
ERIRFES (ER =
(Bt 13))
RERRBERBMNE  AEEEBA IR
fw%ﬁZTéEﬂﬁﬁ  RETT R B HI R R e
BXNERZER ReSHEHEEREH
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

6B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Credit risk (Continued)

Financial services operations (discontinued in 2013 (note 13)) (Continued)

The Credit Assessment Department is responsible for reviewing all
credit applications. When a customer fills out a loan application or
requests a credit line, the branch or lending department account officer
collects information through customer interviews, documentation
requests and feasibility studies as well as other sources. The account
officer then prepares and submits a credit proposal based on the
information gathered for the review of the Credit Review Officers. Credit
Review Officers are required to check the accuracy of the information
submitted and that the credit proposal meets the underwriting
standards required, and are required to provide an independent credit
evaluation in support of a recommendation for granting or rejecting the

loan and the subsequent renewal applications.

Credit approval is performed by the Loans Committee in accordance
with the delegated lending authority from the Lending Policy of the
CHB Group with reference to a customer’s objective of borrowing,
financial strength, repayment ability, past account performance and
collateral being offered as security, as appropriate. Approval from the
Executive Loans Committee is required as and when the requested
amount of the loan exceeds the delegated authority of the Loans

Committee.

The CHB Group structures the levels of credit risk it undertakes by
placing limits on the amount of risk accepted in relation to one
borrower, or groups of borrowers, and to geographical and industry
segments. Such risks are typically monitored on a revolving basis and are
subject to periodic reviews. Limits on the level of credit risk by product,
industry sector and by country are approved annually by the senior

management of CHB Group.

Exposure to credit risk is managed through regular reviews of the ability
of borrowers and potential borrowers to meet interest and capital
repayment obligations and by changing these lending limits where
appropriate. Exposure to credit risk is also managed in part by obtaining

collateral and corporate and personal guarantees.

6. EMTHR(#&)
6. MFRREIZEIRREK (&)
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 EIZ=F—=#+_-A=+—HBILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

6B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Credit risk (Continued)

Financial services operations (discontinued in 2013 (note 13)) (Continued)

Risk mitigation policies
Some specific control and mitigation measures are outlined below.

(a) Collateral
The CHB Group implements guidelines on the acceptability of specific
classes of collateral or credit risk mitigation. The principal collateral

types for loans and advances are:
Mortgages over residential and commercial properties;

Charges over business assets such as premises, inventory and

accounts receivable; or

Charges over financial instruments such as debt securities and

equities.

In addition, in order to minimise the credit losses, the CHB Group will
seek additional collateral from the counterparty as soon as impairment
indicators are noticed for the relevant individual loans and advances.

Estimates of fair value of collateral are based on the fair value of
collateral determined using valuation techniques commonly used for
the corresponding assets at the time of borrowing, and generally not
updated except when a loan is individually impaired. When a loan is
identified as impaired, the corresponding fair value of collateral of that
loan is updated by reference to market value such as recent transaction

price of properties.

(b)  Other risk mitigations

The CHB Group uses guarantees as credit risk mitigations. Whilst the
CHB Group may accept guarantees from any counterparty, it sets a
threshold internally for considering guarantors to be eligible for credit

risk mitigation.

Impairment and provisioning policies
Impairment allowances are recognised for financial reporting purposes
and only for losses that have been incurred at the end of each reporting

period based on objective evidence of impairment.

6. =T HR(E)
6B. HFREREIZBIRRER (&)

FERRE ()

ETRREER (ER—F—=F#I
(KizE13)) (&)

TR Z BOR

BT E B SRR R A AT

(@) HEHER
BIEIRITE BEE TR RERSORE
FERRELIES - TEMNEREKFREL
T

RIBZEEMEMBEDE

EEEBENET HeREWIREE
BRI

K& B T RINERE 5 LRSI -

o EHRBEEPZERHRBETR - A
B8R 17 & [ R bR 2 SR 77 R BRSO KR
mAREEERRE

Efmz A FHEFHEREABEERTAN
HERMNERERE @ BIFEIEFURE -
BRI EEH - BERWERRER
HEM M2 A FEB2EMSER (&KLY
ERXFER) AEEH

(b) HARERRE

HEEBRENSEREHRGEADER
MBAREBENREEBREDFNHERE 2
A o



6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 6. =TI EH(E)

6B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 68. MKERSIPEER KR (&)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Credit risk (Continued) EERKE(E)

Financial services operations (discontinued in 2013 (note 13)) (Continued)

Impairment and provisioning policies (Continued)

Based on the loan usage or the principal business activities of the

borrowers, where applicable with reference to the regulatory reporting

criteria, the Group’s gross advances to customers (including advances

booked in overseas branches and subsidiaries) are analysed and reported

as follows:

TRIREES (ER —F—=F#I
(Bfaz13)) (%)

AEBZEFPEFER(BRBINITRIE
RAFRANER)  REFKBEHERA (W
ER)2REEREEANTIEXRH LS 20

rRBEMT

31 December 2012

e i e i =
Loans and
Gross loans Collective Individual advances Gross
and  impairment  impairment  secured by impaired
advances  allowances  allowances collateral advances
ERRE [@EE BEAR  REER
EREE b £ BEIEXR ks
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT A%t  A%Tr A%t AETx
(note a)
(Fi3Ea)
Loans for use in Hong Kong EABFERZER
Industrial, commercial and financial T BERER
— Property development —WEERE 1,366,467 1,347 — 769,767 —
— Property investment —NERE 8,924,108 — 1774 8,857,224 1,774
— Financial concerns — BB 1,741,910 — — 1,131,827 —
— Stockbrokers —BHRE 594,689 150 — 438,481 —
— Wholesale and retail trade —HERTEE 1,460,007 5,157 3,273 1085418 3,273
— Manufacturing —BlE% 1,677,166 557 1,098 994,699 1,098
— Transport and transport equipment —BRMERRE 754,094 — — 696,577 —
— Recreational activities — REEH 2,154 8 — 2,154 —
— Information technology — &R 15,320 108 — 75 —
— Others (note b) — H b (BisED) 7,114,661 25,619 4669 3,556,824 4,669
Individuals {ERIAL
— Loans for the purchase of flats in —BEIEEEEE]
the Home Ownership Scheme, [FLAME2 S
Private Sector Participation [fREEHEE] B
Scheme and Tenants Purchase ZER
Scheme 475,392 — — 475392 —
— Loans for the purchase of —REEMFREFZER
other residential properties 6,613,370 238 — 6,611,275 —
— (redit card advances —ERFER 109,491 4,883 328 2,947 375
— Qthers (note ¢) — E i (ffE0) 1,717,229 6,561 2,181 1,354,133 2,181
32,566,058 44,628 13323 25,976,793 13,370
Trade finance BoRE 1,246,727 29,924 8,516 427,959 8,516
Loans for use outside Hong Kong ERBUIMERZ BT 5,344,812 89,954 2215 2,564,067 2,308
39,157,597 164,506 24,054 28,968,819 24,194
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 EIZ=F—=#+_-A=+—HBILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

6B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Credit risk (Continued)

Financial services operations (discontinued in 2013 (note 13)) (Continued)

Impairment and provisioning policies (Continued)
No analysis of gross advances to customers as at 31 December 2013 is
provided as the CHB Group’s advances to customers are presented as

assets classified as held for sale as at 31 December 2013.

(@) The amount of loans and advances secured by collateral is determined as the
lower of the market value of collateral or outstanding loan principal.

(b)  Major items included in “Others” are for electricity and gas, hotels, catering,
margin lending and other business purposes.

()  Major items mainly included loans to professionals and other individuals for
various private purposes.

The CHB Group’s policy requires the review of individual financial assets
that are above materiality thresholds at least annually or more regularly
when individual circumstances require. Impairment allowances on
individually assessed accounts are determined by an evaluation of the
incurred losses at the end of the reporting period on a case-by-case
basis, and are applied to all individually significant accounts. The
assessment normally encompasses the fair value of collateral held and

the anticipated receipts for that individual account.

Collectively assessed impairment allowances are provided for: (i)
portfolios of homogenous assets that are individually below materiality
thresholds; and (ii) losses that have been incurred but have not yet been
identified by considering the historical loss experience in portfolios of
similar credit risk characteristics. The management has also made
judgement as to whether the current economic and credit conditions
are such that the actual level of inherent losses is likely to be greater or

less than that suggested by historical experience.

Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk exposure
Concentration of credit risk exists when changes in geographical or
industry factors similarly affect counterparties whose aggregate credit

exposure is material in relation to the Group's total exposures.

The geographical locations of the financial assets are determined by the
locations of the counterparties with the ultimate credit exposures, as

assessed by the management.

6. EHEIE‘(HIE)
6. HITERREEERNIKR (&)

FERRE ()

ETRREER (ER—F—=F#I

(Kt 13)) (%)

1B R R (EE R ()
“E-=%+_-A=+—8B flERTEE
MEFEREIBERFHEEERD Mk

Y AMREER -T—=F+_A=1+—HBHN

REREPERBEIT -

(a) BEERZERUBERTSEREAB TNTERLAS
MERIEE RE -
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 6. SRMTE(M@) z
6B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 6B. MIREMEEEEREKR (&) E
POLICIES (CONTINUED) E
Credit risk (Continued) BEERE (&) o
_|

Financial services operations (discontinued in 2013 (note 13)) (Continued) — & BIRIEFE 5 (ERZF— = F4&4F @
(Ktat13))(#) =

o

o

Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk exposure EHEENEEEREF ()
(Continued)

An analysis of geographical and industry sector concentration of the TXHEBEHERKAFEBTEENSREE
Refs ARRZ B REBHNEFRDN

CHB Group’s financial assets that best represent the maximum exposure
by the management is disclosed below.

No analysis of geographical and industry sector concentration of the —Z—=F®+_A=+—H gEHETEE
MEMEERIPBRFHEEERY WA
U MR ZEEENRE M EEER T

CHB Group’s financial assets as at 31 December 2013 is provided as such
assets are presented as assets classified as held for sale as at 31 December

2013.
Geographical locations =&
THE CHB GROUP &I &R 1T&E
Asia Pacific
excluding
Hong Kong Hong Kong Others Total
YN
0 BRASLAIN Ht ks
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT BT BT
(note ) (note i)
(Bi) (Btzxin)
At 31 December 2012 RZBE--%+=A
=t-H
Short-term funds EHES 6,884,344 6,751,760 332,717 16,958,821
Placements with banks and other FHRRZEREMISERE
financial institutions maturing R—2+_EARNEH
between one to twelve months 2B 312,939 4,290,656 185,918 4,789,513
Derivative financial instruments TESRTIA 14,263 8,146 165,502 187,911
Financial assets at FVTPL BAFEEABGRLZ
SHEE 555,726 238,322 419,101 1,213,149
Available-for-sale investments At ERE 2,203,479 327,725 1,462,336 3,993,540 207
Held-to-maturity securities BRIHB &S 2,291,716 6,128,890 1,179,414 9,600,020 ]
Advances and other accounts ERREMIRE 37,635,486 3,496,657 936,929 42,069,072 E
49,897,953 21,242,156 7,671,917 78,812,026 g
notes: N o
0) The countries reported in “Asia Pacific excluding Hong Kong” mainly included the (i) 2RV [TREREAEUIN ZBEREEBEPHE - L;

PRC, Japan, Australia and other Asian countries. AR EMEEMEMER -

RN [EM] CEREBEENER - KBRS
BB -

(i) The countries reported in “Others” covered mainly Canada, United States and (i)
some European countries.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 EIZ=F—=#+_-A=+—HBILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
6B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 6. HITERIREIEERRIKR (&)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Credit risk (Continued)

Financial services operations (discontinued in 2013 (note 13)) (Continued)

Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk exposure

(Continued)

6. EMTR(#&)

FERR (&)

(Kizt13)) (&)
EREENFERBRETFL(E)

TRREREE (ER—F—=F#KI

Industry sectors B
THE CHB GROUP £ &R 115 &
Banks Central
and other  government Public
financial  and central sector Corporate
institutions banks entities entities Others Total
EEJ
Hip#i®%  RETA
BE PRRT LEKRE =3 Hith ks
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
BT ATt B¥%Tr A%t B¥%Tr  A%Tn
At 31 December 2012 R-Z--%
T=A=+-H
Short-term funds NEEe 16,060,006 898,815 — — — 16,958,821
Placements with banks and other FHRE R AT
financial institutions maturing BER—Z2T-@EAR
between one to twelve months B8 2 7R 4,789,513 — — — — 4789513
Derivative financial instruments fTESBIA 183,024 — — 4817 70 187,911
Financial assets at FVTPL BAFEESFAEBZZ
TREE 419,101 — — 794,048 — 1,213,149
Available-for-sale investments AftHERE 323,709 — 56,016 3,613,815 — 3,993,540
Held-to-maturity securities BEIHMA 2 EF 7,809,345 3,382 196,401 1,590,892 — 9,600,020
Advances and other accounts ERNMAEMERE 2,798,881 78,607 176,750 28,341,391 10,673,443 42,069,072
32,383,579 980,804 429,167 34344963 10,673,513 78,812,026
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 6. =TI EH(E) :z:
6B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 6B. UIERERESEERLBR (&) P
POLICIES (CONTINUED) E
Credit risk (Continued) FERB (&) %
Financial services operations (discontinued in 2013 (note 13)) (Continued) — & BRFFEH (ER =T — = F4L4F g
(Htat13)) (#) g
Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held or other credit EF ARG H M BXEnnSsry |
enhancements ety
Maximum exposure to credit risk relating to financial assets classified as  BHEDEAFLHEEE (AR HWEREE
assets held for sale (note 13) is as follows: W= EERRIT
THE CHB GROUP £ B3R 1T E
2013 2012
—E-=F —T--F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT
Short-term funds RHER = 16,958,821
Placements with banks and other financial institutions FRRAEXREMHBEER—Z+ @A
maturing between one to twelve months AEE 2z FIB — 4,789,513
Derivative financial instruments fTESRIA — 187,91
Finandial assets at FVTPL ROTEBEFAEG SREAE — 1,213,149
Available-for-sale investments EHERE — 3,993,540
Held-to-maturity securities BERIEE 2 ES — 9,600,020
Advances and other accounts EXREMRE — 42,069,072
— 78,812,026
Maximum exposure to credit risk relating to items unrecorded in the ARARARLRAGZAEVBRAKXREBENESE
consolidated statement of financial position are as follows: ERBIAT
THE CHB GROUP £| R 1TEE
2013 2012
—EB-=F —E—_F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT
Direct credit substitutes BERERRER 1,041,747 1,077,350
Trade-related contingencies HESEH@ S EER 479,056 425,309
Undrawn formal standby facilities, credit lines and AP ERREE  FEERAMAR
other commitments excluding those that are BE:3ELs=T0]03 2;9
unconditionally cancellable 10,111,868 10,557,895 :
11,632,671 12,060,554 %
=
u
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 EIZ=F—=#+_-A=+—HBILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 6. @I (@)
6B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 6B. UIERERESEERLEKR ()
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Credit risk (Continued) FERB: (&)
Financial services operations (discontinued in 2013 (note 13)) (Continued) — £ BRFFEH (ER =T — = F4L4F
(B1aE13)) ()
Credit quality FEEx

Credit quality of loans and advances to customers, excluding interest RFERZEEEZ  REKFE RS EA

receivable and assets classified as held for sale (note 13), are summarised ~ FHEEE (F7E13)4h - W -

as follows:
THE CHB GROUP IR 1TEE

2013 2012
—E2-=F T
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Neither past due nor impaired FE I IERE — 38,900,200
Past due but not impaired EafEFRE — 233,203
Impaired ERE — 24,194
— 39,157,597
Less: Allowances for impairment W OREERE — (188,560)
— 38,969,037
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 6. =TI EH(E) :z:

6B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 6B. MIBRMREEEIERIER (&) =

POLICIES (CONTINUED) %

Credit risk (Continued) FERB (&) =

Financial services operations (discontinued in 2013 (note 13)) (Continued) — & BRFFEH (ER =T — = F4L4F §

(Btat13)) () P

Credit quality (Continued) EEEZ (&) &
(i)  Loans and advances neither past due nor impaired () ERERsIEREER

The credit quality of the portfolio of loans and advances that were  JE@EISKIFREEREENEELEZRELE
neither past due nor impaired can be assessed by reference to the BIFEITEBAIABTRRGHMEFH - &
internal rating system adopted by the CHB Group which is also the thEREEELHMERERERRANDERLSE -

classification system required to be adopted for reporting to the Hong

Kong Monetary Authority.
THE CHB GROUP &1 B R 17 5
Foreign Personal
Instalment Term — Syndication currency Trade  loansand
Overdrafts loans loans loans loans finance faxloans Others Total
AAER
PDHEE R
BX BX EHER FEEF NEER EIRE HRBEX Eft 28
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
AETT ABETT BT BT B%Tr A%Tr AT B%TR B%Trn
At 31 December 2012 \ZE—-ZfF
+ZRA=+-H
GRADES: AR
Pass a8 1495006 18810942 12112179 4295917 70306 1205818 134538 12030 38847048
Special mention 1 I|EEER 13 446 8967 — — — 3978 461 — 26,852
Substandard or below RBHAT 603 2183 — — — 3,884 — — 26,300
Total bk 1509075 18841762 12112179 4295917 70306 1213640 134999 7122300 38900200
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 6. SMIE(@)
6B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 6B. MIBRMEEEIERIETR (&)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Credit risk (Continued) FERB: (&)
Financial services operations (discontinued in 2013 (note 13)) (Continued) — £ BRFFEH (ER =T — = F4L4F
(Btat13)) (&)
Credit quality (Continued) EEEZ(E)
(i) Loans and advances past due but not impaired iy EEHEEREER
Gross amount of loans and advances by class of customers that were EZEFE DM E @ IEIERENERLIE D
past due but not impaired were as follows: W -
THE CHB GROUP &I 3R{ T4 &
Personal
Instalment Term  Syndication Trade  loansand
Overdrafts loans loans loans finance  taxloans Others Total
AAER
PHER &
BEX X THER REER EBEIRE HBEEXR Htf, g
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
BETT BT A%t A%Tr AT B¥ETr BETr B%Tr
At 31 December 2012 A\—E-—F
+=RA=1+-H
Past due up to 30 days BE=THHUT 397 544 122,422 — 9,063 — — 132426
Pastduefrom31to90days #@EI=+—HZE
= 2815 4142 — — — 129 1,740 8,826
Pastdue morethan 90 days  @EIAL+HB £ 2,088 14,449 — 75,406 — 8 — 91,951
Total k] 5,300 19,135 122,422 75,406 9,063 137 1,740 233,203
Fair value of collateral EHRZAFE 20,573 96,049 308,434 1,276,692 29,412 370 — 1,731,530
Loans and advances secured AR ER
by collateral (note) (Bzt) 4,757 18881 121,200 75406 9,063 8 — 229315

Collateral is mainly properties and fixed deposits.

note: The amount of loans and advances secured by collateral is determined as the

lower of the market value of collateral or outstanding loan principal.

ERmERRMRREHEFR -
M - BERG ERENERR T ERRS TERE

SWERIEERE -
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 6. =TI EH(E) :z:
6B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 6B. MIBRMREEEIERIER (&) P
POLICIES (CONTINUED) E
Credit risk (Continued) FERB (&) %
Financial services operations (discontinued in 2013 (note 13)) (Continued) — & BRFFEH (ER =T — = F4L4F g
(B1aE13)) () g
Credit quality (Continued) EEEZ (&) o
(iii) Loans and advances individually impaired (i) MERIREER
The breakdown of the gross amount of individually impaired loans and &% 5 14 & 2 $8 A9 16 B 6k (B8 B 5% 48 58 7 BA 48
advances by class of customers are as follows: LU
THE CHB GROUP Bl Bk 1T & &
Personal
Instalment Term Trade  loansand
Overdrafts loans loans finance  taxloans Others Total
EAE®
PEER &
BX X THER E5RE HEKER Hity B

HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT A%TT A¥Tr BT A%Tx AE%Trt B%Tr

At 31 December 2012 R-E-——&
t=ZRA=+-H
Individually impaired loans ERREER 6,615 5,503 2,080 9,845 43 108 24,194
Fair value of collateral BHLZAEE 49,989 26,646 — — — — 76,635
Loans and advances secured BEBRZET ()
by collateral (note) 3,339 4,082 — — — — 7421
Collateral is mainly properties and fixed deposits. EHREZRMELTEBRER -
note: The amount of loans and advances secured by collateral is determined as the  Fii&E - AR 2 BREAK N R T 5 BRS8N ERA
lower of the market value of collateral or outstanding loan principal. EMEREERE -
(iv) Advances to banks and other financial institutions (v) RZEREMYBEEEER
As at 31 December 2012, the advances to banks are neither past duenor R -Z——F+ - A=+—H  RITERR
impaired and unsecured. FEB A EREROR B M -
213
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 EIZ=F—=#+_-A=+—HBILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

6B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Credit risk (Continued)

Financial services operations (discontinued in 2013 (note 13)) (Continued)

Debt securities

The following table presents an analysis of financial securities, other than
loans and advances, held by the Group by rating agency designation at
the end of the reporting period, based on Moody's ratings. Financial
securities not rated by Moody'’s are treated as unrated ones. No such
analysis is presented in 2013 as the financial securities of CHB Group are
presented as assets classified as held for sale as at 31 December 2013.

6. =T HR(E)
6B. HFRAREIZBIRRECK (&)

FERR (&)

TRREREE (ER—F—=F#KI
(KzE13)) (%)

BB

TREJNNARERFAEREFRAINN S BE
- NS HRAEE B IRERREB 2R -
BRERBFTENERESFSWEERBIR
D _T—=F+A=+—8  AIER
TEENEREFRIBAFTHEEERZS
HMERT 2R _Z—=FHDH -

THE CHB GROUP &I ER 1T B

Available-for-sale

investments
Financial assets (excluding equity Held-to-maturity
at FVTPL securities) securities Total
BATEETA AEHERE REHHAZ
BaRzepdE (TaRREAER) E5 B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT BETT BT
At 31 December 2012 RZZE——F
+=ZRA=+-H
Aaa Aaa = = = =
Aalto Aa3 hal 2 A3 470,820 379,724 4,270,459 5,121,003
ATto A3 MER 186,603 1,200,355 3,970,694 5,357,652
Lower than A3 ERM — 1,594,132 77,293 1,671,425
Unrated BB 555,726 819,329 1,281,574 2,656,629
Total k| 1,213,149 3,993,540 9,600,020 14,806,709
Repossessed collateral #2169 18 1

As at 31 December 2012, the CHB Group obtained assets by taking
possession of collateral held as security, as follows:

R-ZEBE-—Z_F+-RA=+—0" 8l8RTH
BEGZEMEE  FHWT

THE CHB GROUP

Nature of assets EEME Bl EERIT R
HK$'000

BT

Residential properties FEMmE 31,000
Others Eith 17,320

Repossessed assets are sold as soon as practicable with the proceeds
used to reduce the outstanding indebtedness.

BB EHEEREANTHBERTREREE
Hirsm e MAREIHRERET -



6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
6B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

6. EMTHR(#&)
6. MFRREIZEIRREK (&)

Credit risk (Continued) EERKE(E)
Non-financial services operations FEMREER
Maximum exposure to credit risk relating to financial assets is as follows:  BEG¢BEEMZREERBIT
THE GROUP A& &
2013 2012
“E-—=F —Z-——f
HKS$'000 HK$'000
BT T ok
Short-term funds HEEe 465,682 513,706
Placements with banks and other financial institutions maturing 72/t RIZ Rk Kt EER —F
between one to twelve months +-EBNEEzZE 122,620 54,602
Financial assets at FVTPL BATEBEABR ERERE 27,215 56,795
Advances to an investee company BAHRERF 193,424 322,539
Available-for-sale investments AHHERE 1,164 1,164
Trade and other receivables 25 R E RS 113,929 91,292
924,034 1,040,098

In order to minimise the credit risk of debts arising from other than
financial services segment, the management of the Group has delegated
a team responsible for determination of credit limits, credit approvals
and other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, management has regular
liaison with the borrowers to understand their financial position and to
identify any early sign of potential problems. Should any potential
default situation arise, management will take prompt actions to
safeguard the Company’s and Groups’ assets. In this regard, the directors
of the Company consider that the Company’s and Group’s credit risk is

significantly reduced.

As at 31 December 2013, other than the advance to a single investee
company of approximately HK$193 million (2012: HK$323 miillion), the
Group has no significant concentration of credit risk, with exposure
spread over a number of counterparties and customers. This investee
company is principally engaged in property development with strong

financial position.

The directors consider that no impairment allowance is necessary in
respect of these balances as there has not been a significant change in
credit quality of the counterparties and the balances are considered to

be fully recoverable.

AREERESRRESBUIINERZEER
Rk AEEEREEKRL—<Kh &R
EEEERE FEMRIEBERRER -
PAREOR Bt Ui [0 380 B (B TR SRR BRAE 1T &) LS -
EEEE BB AR - AR IR E 2 B
BRI RREBEMABEERE - WiFHEE
AT RERBEE R 2 1B - B IR E S SRR BB
TEHAREARBDRAKEEE - Bl &
REAEERER ARARAEEZEERR
2 ARIERE

R_ZE—=ZF+_A=+—8 BAEEM
— R E D T EFA ¥ 193,000,000 7T (=
T — — 4 ¥ 3230000007T ) S 0 AEE I
EREEETZEERR  BEBESBAEMAR
GHTREF - ZHBRERAETEREWE
B MBARRERRE -
HRRSGHATNEEEZWEEANET - 48
FEHREEBRBITESRKRD  WEERAEBE
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 EIZ=F—=#+_-A=+—HBILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

6B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Credit risk (Continued)

Non-financial services operations (Continued)

The Company

The Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk which will cause a

financial loss to the Company due to failure to discharge an obligation

by the counterparties is arising from:

the carrying amount of the respective recognised financial assets

as stated in the statement of financial position; and

the amount of contingent liabilities in relation to financial and

other guarantees issued by the Company as disclosed in note 49.

The Company does not have concentration of credit risk other than its
advances to various subsidiaries and bank deposits with CHB Group and
other banks. The directors of the Company consider that these balances

are fully recoverable.

6C. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

Some of the Group’s and the Company’s financial assets and financial
liabilities are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period.
The following table gives information about how the fair values of these
financial assets and financial liabilities are determined (in particular, the
valuation technique(s) and inputs used). During the year ended 31
December 2013, the Group's financial services operations were
discontinued. The disclosures in 2013 as set out below do not include

any amounts for these discontinued operations.

6. EHEIE(HIE)
6. WHRKREEERNIR (&)

FERR (&)

2 BIRIEFT5 (B)

77[(/\—

ARBAEARSE T REBTEEEMEAR

7%%%%%9&%;‘*%2?7{ =E R TR
g :

TR RKRFTYABEEREMEEY
BREE: &

B 5 49 AT 4% BB B AR 2 A 28 B 7 e EoAt
ERBBEIIARABETHE -

ARBZEERBRY &P - HERZRITE
RAEFR  RERERTEEZRITERRE
IRTTHEREIN - RAREERRABAER
QS e

6C. TREELTFEESE

AEEEARRMOEREEREBRABN
BEREHROLTFEEAE - TRIEHAH
TREERERMABBZATEEENANE
(R ’E‘% meE  BEETARFEANGE AR
B - BE_FT-—=Ft_A=1t—BL*F
g ZIS;’EI RIEBRESTBMBER - TX

Ef —Z—=FHEELTBETME LI
BRI FRER ©



6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
6C. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

6. =MITHR(&)

6C. TREELFERESE (/&)

2013
—E-=f
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
-5 SRR E=JA nE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BETT BT T BETT
THE GROUP KEE
Finandial assets at FVTPL BATEETARS
ZEREE
Non-derivative financial assets BIEEERG
held for trading FTESREE 11,042 — — 11,042
Financial assets designated asat FVIPL 5 E IR AFEBEA
B eREE — 27,215 — 27,215
Available-for-sale financial assets HESHEE
Listed equity securities LR AES 473 — — 473
Listed debt securities FESES 1,164 — — 1,164
Investment funds REES — — 404,651 404,651
Total ok 12,679 27,215 404,651 444 545
2013
—E-=F
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—R5 SRR E=RA B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BET T BT T
THE COMPANY KAT
Financial assets at FVTPL BATEEFARS
ZEREE
Non-derivative financial assets e A
held for trading FTESREE 11,042 — — 11,042
Financial assets designated asat FVTPL 5 E IR AFEBEA
B emEE — 27,215 — 27,215
Available-for-sale financial assets HEESREE
Listed equity securities LilRAES 96 — — 9%
Listed debt securities FEBES 1,164 — — 1,164
Investment funds HEES — — 110,886 110,886
Total ek 12,302 27,215 110,886 150,403
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
6C. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

6. EMTR(#&)

6C. TREELFEREGE (/&)

2012
—E——F
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—RA gt 4 E=H5 ek
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BETT BT BETT
THE GROUP REE
Financial assets and liabilities at FVTPL 12 A FBE ABR
ZEREERER
Non-derivative financial assets BEBEERE Y
held for trading FTESREE 8,917 — — 8,917
Financial assets designated asat FVIPL ~ $5E iR AFEBEA
BRZEREE — 850,843 419,101 1,269,944
Derivative financial assets not JERIEERMITE
used for hedging SREE — 21,146 — 21,146
Derivative financial assets used for hedging F{ESHHEIS T4 S
RMEE — 166,765 — 166,765
Derivative financial liabilities not FERESRRITE
used for hedging cEERE — (118,154) — (118,154)
Derivative financial liabilities FBEE RmITE
used for hedging ki 3=V — (130,502) — (130,502)
Available-for-sale financial assets ARHESHER
Listed equity securities iR AES 193,753 — — 193,753
Listed debt securities FHEEES 1,164 — — 1,164
Unlisted equity securities I ERAES — — 267,141 267,141
Unlisted debt securities FETERES — 3,990,368 2711 3,993,579
Investment funds HEES — — 134,743 134,743
Total k) 203,834 4,780,966 823,696 5,808,496




6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
6C. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

6. =MITHR(&)

6C. TREELFERESE (/&)

2012
—Z——fF
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—1R 5 EZHA E=1R5 ek
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETTT BETT BETT BETT
THE COMPANY NG|
Finandial assets at FVTPL BRATEEFARS
ZEREE
Non-derivative financial assets BEEERG
held for trading FTESREE 8,656 — — 8,656
Financial assets designated asat FVIPL 5 E IR AFEBEA
B eMEE — 56,795 — 56,795
Available-for-sale financial assets AHESREE
Listed equity securities LR AES 140 — — 140
Listed debt securities FESES 1,164 — — 1,164
Investment funds BEES — — 134,743 134,743
Total BE 9,960 56,795 134,743 201,498

There were no transfers between Level 1,2 and 3 in the year.

The fair values of listed equity securities are determined with reference

to quoted market bid prices from relevant stock exchanges.

The fair values of convertible bonds designated as financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss, debt securities classified as available-for-sale
securities, certificates of deposit and other debt securities classified as
held-to-maturity securities and loan capital are determined based on
indicative prices provided by the dealers and brokers. In addition, the
Group makes comparison of the indicative prices with the prices
obtained from pricing services providers and other service providers and
with the values calculated using valuation models such as discounted
cash flows method to substantiate the indicative prices of the debt
securities. The key inputs used in the valuation models are the interest
rate data, which are observable at the end of the reporting period. The
objective of valuation models is to arrive at a fair value estimation that
reflects the price of the financial instrument at the reporting date, which
would have been determined by market participants acting at arm’s

length.

RE - F— F_RE=ZRHzHEMEEE
EfER -

EHRAESFTI2LEERBR ST sl
BHRARMSEEABET A FEE-

BRARATEEFABRGSZZMEENT
BmkES  BREATHILERFNERKES
FREREMDBESFEEINHNANERE
SRFMEEEARSHAFERE  RIELH
B MRS AFTER IR RIS B EERE © o) -
AEBGHEREESEEEERBHEERK
HAb RIS HRER T LB FHER ALK A
FRREREEHERAFEMSNHEEMN
B - LS EBREFHREREER BRI
RE - HEEANTIZRAZHSFREE -
ZHBEREMRE A ABAGL - HER
ANERREMARRSBTAAERS B H
BHi52EEURTEAMSERNITE
BfAEH -
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

6C. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

The fair values of structured products designated as financial assets at

fair value through profit or loss are calculated using discounted cash

flows analysis derived from quoted interest rates, which are observable

at the end of the reporting period.

The fair values of investment funds are determined by using valuation
technique of market approach, which included some assumptions that
are not supportable by observable market prices or rates. The inputs
used in estimating the value of investment funds include the original
transaction price, recent transactions and market-multiple of the same
or similar instruments, completed or pending third-party transactions in

the underlying investment.

The fair values of unlisted equity securities are determined with
reference to market values of underlying assets, which mainly comprise
investment properties held by the investee company. The valuation of
the properties was principally arrived at using the basis of comparison
method, in which property is valued on the assumption that the
property can be sold with the benefit of vacant possession. Comparison
based on prices realised on actual sales of comparable properties is

made for similar properties in the similar location.

The fair values of foreign currency forward contracts are measured by
comparing the contracted forward rates and the quoted forward

exchange rates, which are observable at the end of the reporting period.

The fair values of interest rate swaps and cross-currency interest rate
swaps are measured by the present value of future cash flows estimated
and discounted based on the applicable yield curves derived from
quoted interest rates, which are observable at the end of the reporting

period.

6. =T HR(E)
6C. TREELFEREGE (/&)

BERBRATEEFAERNEREENLE
*%'|\Efzuuﬁl‘]/ FEE  ERAWRBRBESAES
WetE - EREMNEDRBREARERG
@JE’\J o

BEREETH ATV EELRARMMH GG
BNTA EFERTESREMSER LT

IR —LRE - BrHREESNEER
AN AZE  BREREMNKRIE TR

HEMEZERRSAELSTA -

FRE=ZTRXHHEBKXE -

FEESF EMIRAE ZH R FEELE2E AR
BENMSEE TEBREMRERAFRTEA
MREYMENTISEE MEBMEZIREN
HBOL - BEZMERXT L EERMEL S
WEMAE - LR ERIEER LY R AL
MMFEERUNUEERNERIEEERM

—_
iE °

SNSRI A KO TD IS LEBRET 40 38 BN 2K N R B
SMEM R REREE N FEE  SHINER

RRBEHEREHRSEEABRMFAE -
MERBHE O REEENXEHE L TR

MERBEEENWES MG EM T RRAR
TRE ﬁﬁfﬁﬁziﬁfﬁnﬁri MR BE TR
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

6. EHEIE‘(HIE)

6C. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF FINANCIAL 6C. TRHEELTEBEFZ(E)
INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
THE GROUP REE
Except as detailed in the following table, the directors of the Company BT —F%%ﬁ;’ﬂ\ CARBZEEZRRAEE
consider that the carrying amounts of the Group’s and the Company's & ZK A B8] A 4R & B 75 3% 7 LA B 85 A AN A BR
financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the — #14% mﬂﬁ@&i MEEZRAMEEEQFE
consolidated financial statements approximate their fair values. EGEESS
THEGROUP A& &
Carrying value BRI & Fair value A FEfE
2013 2012 2013 2012
—Z-=F —2—=F - 2%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT BT T BT
Financial assets PREE
— Held-to-maturity securities —EZIHAzEA — 9,600,020 — 9,634,003
Finandial liabilities TRIBE
— Loan capital —[EEER — 1,898,957 — 1,927,742
Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements of financial assets TREEZE=KH A FEFENALD
THE GROUP KEE
Financial
assets Available-
designated for-sale
at FVTPL investments Total
EEELTER
n‘i’ATEﬁﬁZ
SREE AHEERE ok
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
BT BT BB
Balance at 1 January 2012 R-B——F—HA— 417 647 319,450 737,097
Total net gains recognised in profit or loss RIBEER N Zﬂﬂlﬁl i'%ﬁ 47,759 — 47,759
Total net gains recognised in other REB2EREARR T
comprehensive income lhgatite] — 79,895 79,895
Purchases EE — 27,647 27,647
Matured/disposals IH/ e (45,506) (700) (46,206)
Return of capital contribution BETE — (21,697) (21,697)
Foreign exchange rate movements GBS & 7 (799) — (799)
Balance at 31 December 2012 R-_B——F+-A
—t—H&#® 419,101 404,595 823,696
Total net losses recognised in profit or loss RERENER 2 ZEBEE (493) — (493)
Total net gains recognised in other REMZERZNERZF
comprehensive income gyt — 66,301 66,301
Purchases BB — 28,425 28,425
Matured/disposals 3/ e (418,608) (84,594) (503,202)
Return of capital contribution REIE — (3,634) (3,634)
Transfer to assets classified as held for sale ERESEAGHELE — (6,442) (6,442)
Balance at 31 December 2013 —E-=F+4+-R
:‘l' H#t e — 404,651 404,651
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 EIZ=F—=#+_-A=+—HBILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

6C. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements of financial assets

(Continued)

6. =T HR(E)
6C. TREELFEREGE (/&)

TREES=R5 2 FEFTENED (&)

THE COMPANY AN
Available-for-sale
investments
AHERE
HK$'000
BT
At 1 January 2012 W-E——%—H—H 128,754
Gain recognised in other comprehensive income PR 2 R R 2 e 39
Purchases BE 27,647
Return of capital contributions (note 21) RETE (M) (21,697)
At 31 December 2012 RZE——F+-F=+—H 134,743
Gain recognised in other comprehensive income REMZEREAER 2 W 35,946
Purchases EE 28,425
Disposals HeE (84,594)
Return of capital contributions (note 21) RETE (et ) (3,634)
At 31 December 2013 R-ZB-=F+-A=+—H 110,886
Of the total net gains or losses for the year included in profit or loss, £ 8 &k 8= B A 4F 2 )5 U i sl B 1B AR
HK$493,000 losses (2012: HK$47,759,000 gains) are related to these ~ H A& # 493000 T BE(ZF —Z4F : B
investments held at the end of the reporting period. Fair value gains or 47,759,000 L4zt ) LR & HAR AR B A 6

losses of these investments are included in net gains on financial

instruments at fair value through profit or loss.

Included in other comprehensive income is a gain of HK$66,301,000
(2012: a gain of HK$79,895,000) related to available-for-sale investments
held at the end of the reporting period.

The majority of the Group’s and the Company’s investments are valued
based on quoted market information or observable market data. A
small percentage, 0.4% and 2.1% (2012: 0.9% and 2.5%), of total assets
recorded at fair value in the statements of financial position of the
Group and the Company, respectively, are based on estimates and
recorded as Level 3 investments. Whilst such valuations are sensitive to
estimates, it is believed that changing one or more of the assumptions
to reasonably possible alternative assumptions would not have a big

impact on the Group’s and the Company's financial positions.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

6C. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Fair value measurements and valuation process

The management performs regular reviews to determine the

appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for fair value measurement.

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group uses
market-observable data to the extent it is available. Where Level 1
inputs are not available, the Group engages third party qualified valuers
or other service providers to perform the valuation. The management
works closely with the qualified external valuers to establish the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to the model. The
respective management team reports the findings to the Board of
Directors of the Company and the Asset and Liability Management
Committee of the CHB Group regularly to explain the cause of

fluctuations in the fair value of the assets and liabilities.

Information about the valuation techniques and inputs used in
determining the fair value of various assets and liabilities is disclosed

above.

6. =MITHR(&)

6C. TREELFERESE (/&)

DFEETENFEBERE
BHEE TSRS UEEEEN A FEER
EnbBERMME AR -

AEBEGBFEEXRENAFEESRAR
RZmSBEBE - F— A5 W AR
B AEERAFE=STAERMEMIEML
RIGHEBETHE EEEESERNI
AEMEYAE  BIEE N EERIAN
BAKR - HEAEEEE D B EHRAARRF
MEFEMEBRTRENEENBEE R
ZEEREEENAEN R FEERINH
EHERIEERRA -

BREESBAENRENAT RENKE
B8 A A2 B SRR -

Al
4
>
z
o
>
—
o
m
9
2
_|
s
=
o
E
it

223

EVHBXITERS

=-&= |

B HEY



2

N
S

£102 1¥Od3Y TYNNNY | @ILIWI LINJWLSIANI DNIH ONOHD NIt

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

= /A B
TSy

87 5 ¥k 2 B 5F

For the year ended 31 December 2013 EIZ=F—=#+_-A=+—HBILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

6D. TRANSFER OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

The following were the Group’s held-to-maturity securities and
available-for-sale investments as at 31 December 2012 that were
transferred to an entity with terms to repurchase these securities at the
agreed dates and prices. As the Group had not transferred the
significant risks and rewards relating to these debt securities to the
entity, the full carrying amount of these debt securities continued to be
recognised. The cash received on the transfer was reported as liabilities
under “Financial assets sold under repurchase agreements” (see note 34).
The transferred debt securities serve as collateral to secure these
liabilities. During the covered period, the legal title of the debt securities
were transferred to the counterparty entity and there was no restriction
for the counterparty entity to sell or repledge the collateral. These debt
securities were either measured at amortised cost or carried at fair value

in the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position.

As at 31 December 2012

Available-for-sale

6. =T HR(E)
6D. BEZTEMEE
NTAREREER -_T——F+-_A=1+—H
EBEE-RERNBEIHE 2&ES LA #
HERE (A GRARBE 2 AR ERE

B%EFZH) EEEA$EI%15R$§;E§ZA¥{E%‘
BHzTERRNER - WAKEEE

ZEEHES 22 MREE Légﬁﬁ?%fﬁi
REEALERZTHEZSREE (M
34) CEBNEBIESFSREFELEED

i - RS RMBER  ELEHE
HY)ETE O BB R%IERE - ERAI AT

R BIMIEE L E R R EXBFER -
%ik‘;\" F A AN Gt EIA R FERA
BiRAMBANRAE -

e raaray
Z%

R=Z2-=f+=-A=+—H

Held-to-maturity

investments securities Total

AREERE HZHHAZES ok

HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000

BETT BT BT

Carrying amount of transferred assets CEEEERAE 393,490 117,621 511,117
Carrying amount of associated liabilities HREEREE 326,687 106,994 433,681




6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

GE. FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
SUBJECT TO OFFSETTING, ENFORCEABLE MASTER
NETTING ARRANGEMENTS AND SIMILAR AGREEMENTS

The disclosures set out in the tables below include financial assets and

financial liabilities that:

are offset in the Group’s consolidated statement of financial

position; or

are subject to an enforceable master netting arrangement or
similar agreement that covers similar financial instruments,
irrespective of whether they are offset in the consolidated

statement of financial position.

The Group, through the CHB Group, entered into International Swaps
and Derivatives Association (“ISDA”) Master Agreements and Global
Master Repurchase Agreements (“GMRA”") for derivatives and sale and

repurchase agreements.

The CHB Group’s derivative transactions that are not transacted on an
exchange are entered into under ISDA Master Agreements. The CHB
Group's sale and repurchase transactions are covered by GMRA with
netting terms similar to those of ISDA Master Agreements. The ISDA
Master Agreements and GMRA do not meet the criteria for offsetting
in the statement of financial position. However, they create a right of
set-off of different contracts that is enforceable only following an event
of default, insolvency and bankruptcy of the CHB Group or the
counterparties. In such circumstances, all outstanding contracts under
the agreements are terminated, the termination value is assessed and

only a single net amount is due or payable in settlement of all contracts.

In addition, the CHB Group received and pledged collateral in the form
of cash in respect of its derivative transactions and sale and repurchase
agreements. Such collateral is subject to the standard industry terms of
ISDA Credit Support Annex or GMRA. Collateral received or pledged
must be returned on maturity of the transactions.

Under the agreement of Continuous Net Settlement made between the
CHB Group and Hong Kong Securities Clearing Company Limited
("HKSCC") money obligations receivable and payable with HKSCC on
the same settlement date are settled on a net basis.

6. EMTHR(#&)

6. EfffiENENEEREMNERE -
OEFlMTRFPBEELHRE
foh 14 5%

TRV ZEBERETAATRENERE

ERERAE:

EARENEREEVBRRAERADHE
i %

W R AT SR BT 2 AR R A B 2 BE UK
ERSATRTANEURZE  THES
ERERERE MR R -

REEFE BRI BRTERBE R 7 BB B RT
AT EHE (MDAl TR HEEREHEEE
iz ([GMRAD) - RETTET AN RIHE
SEL

BIERITEBTNE R HHETHITET
AR P THRISDABE W EK - Bl EIRITE
EHEE REER 5 HGMRAKRE « EHEK
SHIRFRER ISDAB B IS s P O JA L o b 5F
ISDA 48 B 3 88 175 5 & GMRA I N & B IS AR
WIEEIRG - AT - ZEMEMEENY
TRE K H (& AT pE Al SR 1T B ok
WEFTHENEN  BEHEBREERITE
ERBAT  ZEBBETRTEHZEHEHE
BRE - RS IER Z BB - WA — R
ENREEREEH -

SO BOTET AR 5 RIHE R BB -
BIEERITRBEC WA TRE(E/EMR o
% 5 R 50 X ISDA(E AR 78 MY 1 3 GMRA K
REXARRAAR - WBISGE TEARLE
EXSEHERE -

REBASETEEERTETREZERAA
([EBPREE )R 2 FEFEIWH T
& ER-GERRFETRAEENEEK
ENEE R FRELELH
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

G6E. FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
SUBJECT TO OFFSETTING, ENFORCEABLE MASTER
NETTING ARRANGEMENTS AND SIMILAR AGREEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

No analysis is presented for 2013 as the Group's financial assets and

financial liabilities subject to above arrangement are presented as assets

classified as held for sale and liabilities associated with assets classified as

held for sale as at 31 December 2013.

The CHB Group has a legally enforceable right to set off the trades
receivable and payable with brokerage clients that are due to be settled
on the same date and the CHB Group intends to settle these balances

on a net basis.

As at 31 December 2012

Gross
amounts of
recognised

finandial

liabilities

offset

Gross inthe

amounts of consolidated

recognised statement of

finandial finandial

Types of financial assets SREERS assets position
ERASH

BER

REU%

ERALH  MEERP
EERYE W|ENAE
HK$'000 HK$'000

STATEMENTS

6. =T HR(E)

6. EFfIENENEERERNEE -
RGN TCRFIECELHRE
oA #3 % (%&)

XAERHFAR  AEER-_T-=F1+=
A=t—HAnEREERERABED HIRD
BARBHEBREM D BEABHEEREZHEH
BEEY BB TER-F-=FHHW -

BIERITER BB Rl & A/ TR AR - LA S
HESANEFHORRAINBRRZKZE S E
Wk JERTRR SR - T B BRER T Sk DAF 5 45
BZEHR o
R=Z—=%+=ZA=+—H

The CHB Group

AlERITEE

Net Related amounts not offset

amounts of in the consolidated
financial statement of
assets finandial position

presented RS BEMRRKARE
in the bicliy sk

consolidated Cash/
statement of finandial
finandial Financial collateral Net
position instruments received amount
REZEHH%
MR EH 2UE
2hiHeR 8%/

BEFE SRIA  MKER FH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT  BETr  BETr  #B%Tr  A%Tr  B%Tr
(note)
(FfE)
Derivatives — interest rate swapsand 07L& —FIRBH R
Cross-currency interest rate swaps S BRI 171,327 — 171,327 (17,029) — 154,298
Derivatives — foreign currency ITET A5
forward contracts RHAH 8,583 — 8,583 (5,479) — 3,104
Available-for-sale — debt securities  AJ it & — EKEE 393,490 — 393,490 (326,687) (502) 66,301
Held-to-maturity — debt securities 2 3|H B — &5 ES 117,621 — 117,621 (106,994) (164) 10,463
Amount due from HKSCC and [EREBTREE]
brokerage clients BERNREIE 444 937 (248,941) 195,996 — (33,837) 162,159

Total Fk 2] 1,135,958 (248,941)

887,017 (456,189) (34,503) 396,325




o
z
_ . >
6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 6. ERMTHR(#E) %
GE. FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 6E. EEFiENENEELEMNERE ,E
SUBJECT TO OFFSETTING, ENFORCEABLE MASTER ORHMTRFEEELYHLE E
NETTING ARRANGEMENTS AND SIMILAR AGREEMENTS At s (48) %
(CONTINUED) o
The CHB Group g
AIERITEE S
Gross
amounts of Net  Related amounts not offset
recognised  amounts of in the consolidated
financial financial statement of
liabilities assets financial position

offiet  presented HEHAHBRRETARE
Gross in the in the HENEESE

amounts of consolidated consolidated Cash/
recognised statementof statement of financial
financial financial financial Financial ~ collateral Net
Types of financial liabilities tREEEER liabilities position position  instruments received amount
ERR
tRAE RAEeME
Rl  HRERR 2UE
ERALH  MRRF E2HNER Be/

SEAE HBNEE ZHEFE SRIE  UBER e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT A%t A%t ERTr  BETr  B%Tx

(note)
GiES)
Derivatives — interest rate swapsand ~ $74 T A —FI =g K
cross-currency interest rate swaps SRR 227,276 — 227,276 (17,029) (75,817) 134430
Derivatives — foreign currency TETA MRS
forward contracts B4 20,561 — 20,561 (5,479) (15,082) —
Financial assets sold under repurchase  1BiEEE R EHERN
agreements TREE 433,681 — 433,681 (433,681) — —
Amount due to HKSCCand brokerage [N EERREE R
clients EEPNRFIE 412,923 (248,941) 163,982 — — 163,982
Total ek 1,094,441 (248,941) 845,500 (456,189) (90,899) 298,412

note: The cash and financial collateral received/pledged as at 31 December 2012 Mfit - RZZ——F+-—A=+—HHB KM EFRL
represent their fair value. RS AEL N FEEDER -

The gross amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities and their ~EXFIHENTREENSRABNEER
net amounts as presented in the consolidated statement of financial ~ HE#R & ALK T 258 FEETIRIA T &
position that are disclosed in the above tables are measured in the —EELFEBMBFANEKPE -

consolidated statement of financial position on the following basis: 2;7
derivative financial assets and liabilities — fair value; . MECREERSRAE — AFEE E
financial assets sold under repurchase agreements — amortised +  REEEBHAHENSHMEE — £y
Cost; B ®
available-for-sale debt securities — fair value; . AIHHEEKES — AT EE °

. held-to-maturity debt securities — amortised cost; . BEEREBERES — SBHER A A

amounts due from/to HKSCC and brokerage clients — amortised + B/ NEBFREBTREEFNEF
cost TR — AN

B HEY
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 EIZ=F—=#+_-A=+—HBILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

GE. FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
SUBJECT TO OFFSETTING, ENFORCEABLE MASTER
NETTING ARRANGEMENTS AND SIMILAR AGREEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

The amounts which have been offset against the related recognised
financial assets and financial liabilities in the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position or subject to enforceable master netting
arrangements or similar agreements are measured on the same basis as
the recognised financial assets and financial liabilities except for
available-for-sale debt securities, which are measured on different basis
as the related financial assets sold under repurchase agreements. The
directors of the CHB Group consider there are no material differences
arising from the measuring differences.

The tables below reconcile the net amounts of financial assets and

6. EMTR(#&)

6e. EFfIENERNEERETRNEE -
OBHMTRFPEBERHRE
A 1 5% (48)

RNEBEGRE MR ETEED HER éﬂﬁ
EMEREENZ I REINITHEFEE
SRR ER IS FED I JE
ELHECOEREMEENSRAEMER -
AHEEEHBESHMIN - TR TRE%E - 8
1% [0 B 175 5 ETﬁEﬁ%iﬂéﬁmg &t
E-fEETEENEERAFEEZET T
EEERER -

TRIRAEEEEVHRNK2I SR

financial liabilities presented in the Group’s consolidated statement of ﬁé&i MAEEFHE(R LXMINE) B
financial position, as set out above, to the line items presented in the EiFRaMBARRTHIER 28k -
Group'’s consolidated statement of financial position.
THE GROUP A& B
2013 2012
—E-=F =%
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BETT
Types of financial assets TREEESR
Derivatives — interest rate swaps and cross-currency PTETA—FIRRBRBEEEH XS
interest rate swaps as stated above (R E&RFT5E) — 171,327
Derivatives — foreign currency forward contracts MTETA—INEERBEH
as stated above (R LE&FFIE) — 8,583
— 179,910
Derivative financial assets not in scope of offsetting disclosures K H B ESE NN L LREE — 8,001
Total derivative financial assets stated in note 20 Ptz 0 B3 MAT A S BB EAE — 187,91
Available-for-sale — debt securities as stated above HHE —EEES(ALR Fﬁﬁ\]%) — 393,490
Available-for-sale securities not in scope of offsetting THEEHEBESRANRM T HLEE
disclosures — 4,232,461
Total available-for-sale securities stated in note 21 sty g A e B AH A = 4,625,951
Held-to-maturity — debt securities as stated above H2IMA —EBES (RLRMAE) = 117,621
Held-to-maturity securities not in scope of offsetting TR ERBRBRENNSES NGRS
disclosures — 9,482,399
Total held-to-maturity securities stated in note 21 Mzz o Bro MR R R EREHAE = 9,600,020
Amount due from HKSCC and brokerage clients as stated above B BB R EE R EERN T E T
(R E&MFIE) = 195,996
Other accounts not in scope of offsetting disclosures MEEERRSERN ML MERE = 506,927
Total other accounts stated in note 22 Pist 2 Frgl M E AR IR AR = 702923




6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

GE. FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
SUBJECT TO OFFSETTING, ENFORCEABLE MASTER
NETTING ARRANGEMENTS AND SIMILAR AGREEMENTS

(CONTINUED)

6. EMTHR(#&)

6e. EFfIENENEERERNEE -
RGN TCRFECELHRE
o #5 % (%&)

THE CHB GROUP
BIERITER
2013 2012
—E-=F —Z——fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT

Types of financial liabilities
Derivatives — interest rate swaps and cross-currency

TRAEER

ITETA —HEEHREEERN X

interest rate swaps as stated above (R ERF5E) — 227,276
Derivatives — foreign currency forward contracts TTETA—INEERBEH (R ERMIE)

as stated above — 20,561

— 247,837

Derivative finandial liabilities not in scope of offsetting TERBEREGRANTEEREE

disclosures — 819
Total derivative financial liabilities stated in note 20 IEFFIMITE SR A KR = 248,636
Financial assets sold under repurchase agreements as stated st F5IMRBEBHELENEREE

above and in note 34 — 433,681
Amounts due to HKSCC as stated above and included in other ~ FERTEBHR R EETE (R ERATIE &

accounts SFAHMERIER) — 163,982
Total account payable in relation to securities dealing not TEEBEREHEANEZFEEERL

in scope of offsetting disclosures JERERIAEE = 7,444
Total account payable in relation to securities st A EE S E BB N

dealing stated in note 37 RIEGH — 171,426
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 EIZ=F—=#+_-A=+—HBILFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the executive directors of the Company, being
the chief operating decision maker, for the purposes of resources
allocation or assessment of segment performance focuses on types of
goods and services delivered or provided. No operating segment
identified by the chief operating decision maker have been aggregated

in arriving at the reportable segment of the Group.

Specifically, the Group’s operating and reportable segments under
HKFRS 8 are as follows:

1. Property investment — investment and letting of properties
2. Property development — development and sale of properties

3. Property management — provision of property management

services

4. Treasury investment — dealings and investments in securities and

other financial instruments

5. Trading and manufacturing — manufacture and sale of magnetic

products
6. Hotel operation — management and operation of hotels

An operating segment comprising the financial services operations
carried out through the CHB Group was discontinued in the current
year. The segment information reported set out below does not include
any amounts for these discontinued operations, which are described in

more detail in note 13.

%

gy
ﬂﬁE% BEBEEREA
RS EERMEH L HEER
@iu%hfmﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ’
BARA I TR RRABS 2R
BHELERAEEY 2

o
L]

}
mﬂkm:]

EE mE

Sﬁ/

T‘
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/

HmoE -

BEBYBRELERE
WOBERINT

1 MERE -WERRENEE
2 PEBR -MEBRNEE
3. VEEE - RHUMEEERYE

SHMAKBMZ X RE

4 BIBRE—
k#EE

EFNEMERTANKS

5. BZRRE -HUERREREE

6. BERE - EELERER

—EZEBe HRITTRBEETH T RIRYE 2 E
MEEDBERAFERILZE - TX2HW
DREMUPIBRZEFERIEELENERE
B DRI EME—SRBENME S -



7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 7. PEERN(FE)

SEGMENT REVENUE AND RESULTS NEREREE

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results from AT AERZHRLEK DB AEEFELE
continuing operations by reportable and operating segment. Wozs R EBE DT ©

Property Property Property Treasury ~ Trading and Hotel Seqment

investment ~ development  management investment manufacturing  operation Total ~ Eliminations  Consolidated
NERE WMERR NXEER  UKRE EFREE BELE  HEAH Ef: e
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKY'000 HKS'000 HKY'000 HKS'000 HK'000 HKS'000
BRI E%TR BMTR BETr A¥Tn E%Tr B¥TR BETR BRTrx

2
Z
>
z
o
>
—
o
m
9
@)
=
m
=
o
-
it

Forthe year ended BE-Z-ZET1ZR
31 December 2013 Zt-ALEE
Segment revenue DR 210,109 12,538 16,022 24,056 424% ST 416,398 (12910) 403,488
Comprising: B
— revenue fiom customers —&PlE 267,99 12,538 8577 20,710 42,49 51177
—inersegment tansactions  — £EAR 5
(note) (FizE) 2119 - 7,445 3,346 = —
Operating expenses BERT (121,425) (15,828) (23,009) (4,007) (42,309) (52,009 (258,587) 16,116 24241

Ganonchangesinfairvalueon — RAFEE A
financia instruments at FVTPL JERMIAY

ATEEESNE — — — 1902 — — 1902 — 1902
Net exchange gains (losses) B B (Bi8) 4302 6943 (19) 9,054 (5) | 20,126 — 20,126
Netlosseson disposal of property, ~ HEWE - BER
plant and equipment REEER — (%) — (307) (32) — #37) — (®3)
Nt gains on dispasal of HEMRHERE
available-for-sale investments PG — — — 61429 — — 61,429 — 61,429
Ganonchangesoffarvalueon — REWEATBE
investment propertis 2Yhia 146,392 — — — — — 469 — 4639
Segment proft (oss) PEREH(EE) 299378 3,555 (7183) 92121 150 (804) 38783 3,06 390,429
Finance costs B (89133)
Shareofprofs o jontventures—— FRE A B A EEF L
Profthefore ta from SR ERT AR
continuing operations 301,403
note: Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market rates. BiE SEAHERERTEIE -
231
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 EIZ=F—=#+_-A=+—HBILFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 7. DEER (@)
SEGMENT REVENUE AND RESULTS (CONTINUED) NBREREE (&)

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results from

Wz K BT o

continuing operations by reportable and operating segment.

UNTRIZERREB OB AEERFELE

Property Property Property Treasry ~ Trading and Hotel Segment
ivesiment ~ development ~ management invesiment  manufacturing ~ operation Total  Eliminations  Consolidated
NERE MERR VEER UERE ZOREE BESE HREH Egfi &a
HK000 HRS'000. HKS000 HS'000. HKS000 HKS'000. HKS'000 HKS'000 HK'000
BETT B%Tr BETr A%t A%t AT AT BT BETr
For the year ended Bz-®--f
31 December 2012 +=ZA=t+-H
(restated) LLFE (BE3)
Segment revenue ARk 264,389 5109 15,761 19498 30044 914 384,563 (19,139) 365,428
Comprising: B
— revente from customers —EPlE 256,780 5109 6,830 16,903 30044 914
— inter-segment ransactions ~ —EERZ5H
(nte) (M) 7609 — 8331 2% = —
Operating expenses EERY (114553) (45,498) (22803 (234 (28975) (52.208) (206,400) 15,903 (250499)
Ganonchangesinfairvalueon SRR FEERTA
finandial instruments at FVTPL BRZEBIAY
ATEERERS - - —m — — 4 — 4
Net exchange gains (osss) R (5518) 3% (203) 1 (30) (1) = (1817 = (1817
Net losses) gainsondisposalof ~—~ HEHE - BIE R
property,plantandequipment  SREF (B1)
Wz ) (%) — 0 — — (54 - (54
Net gains on isposal of HEAHHERE
valable-for-saeinvestments Bz - - - 1] - - 191 - 3l
Ganonchangesin farvlie o REMEAFEE
investment propertes Elea 261240 — — — - — 261240 — 261240
Impairment losss on bR
other receivables REERE (1789) — — (2199 - — (2009) — (2009)
Seqment pft s AR (BE) BN 11F7 1 N 06 G0 WS BB) B
lossondisposal ofasbsidiary ~~ HEMBATEE il
Finance costs B AR (105124
Shareof profisofjointventures— Br{ A E R EEF Lt
Profitbefore tax rom SELERTA
continuing operations ikl 2518
note: Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market rates. M KEAHERERTEDE -



7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

SEGMENT REVENUE AND RESULTS (CONTINUED)

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as the
Group's accounting policies described in note 3. Segment profit/loss
represents the profit earned by/loss from each segment without
allocation of loss on disposal of a subsidiary, share of profits of joint
ventures and finance costs. In addition, administrative costs incurred by
the treasury investment segment on behalf of other segments are
allocated to respective operating segments on the basis of revenues
earned by individual operating segments. This is the measure reported
to the chief operating decision maker for the purposes of resource

allocation and performance assessment.

SEGMENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities by

reportable segment:

7. DEER (&)
NPBRERFE (&)

EBO R G BRARE Mtz ASEE
SRR - DR, BEEEARG AR
E—HMBARZER  MERLEREEF
REBRA 2 ER TS ERR 8, R
RZER - WIN IR E DB HMER
DERNTE R ZITBRERACRE R XKD
BERBM WSRO RERLEN R - AEE
ERED BT ENETELEREAZ®R I
RIEERD B RO BREA -

NPEERER

AT RBERDBZASEEERBEDIN

Segment assets PEEE
2013 2012
—E-=F —E-——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
(restated)
(s&3)

Continuing operations 18 T

Property investment MERE 6,423,380 6,305,802
Property development MEERE 1,965,283 1,784,382
Property management MEEIE 2,629 1,542
Treasury investment sRE 1,070,182 1,059,436
Trading and manufacturing 2 5 Nl 79,811 77,899
Hotel operation EEE 19,531 22,344
Total segment assets NBRBERE 9,560,816 9,251,405
Interests in joint ventures NEEPENES 2,768 2,661
Deferred tax assets ELEHEBEAE 680 680
Assets relating to discontinued operations HBERHEEHENEE 84,876,561 80,449,072
Consolidated assets SABE 94,440,825 89,703,818
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 EIZ=F—=#+_-A=+—HBILFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
SEGMENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

Segment liabilities

7. %*—E -i-‘l(mg)
NBPEEREE (&)
SEERE

2013 2012
—E-=F =%
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT
(restated)
(& =51)
Continuing operations BERE
Property investment MERE 140,851 126,532
Property development MEERE 51,677 90,224
Property management YEEE 3,740 6,444
Treasury investment BIHIRE 989 537
Trading and manufacturing e 8,379 9,191
Hotel operation BREE 7,029 6,170
Total segment liabilities =R EpEy 212,665 239,098
Taxation payable F DL 5,413 18,153
Borrowings N 3,782,176 3,730,120
Deferred tax liabilities ELEFIEEE 209,887 189,435
Liabilities relating to discontinued operations HE & e RENER 77,214,362 73,233,983
Consolidated liabilities AaR 81,424,503 77,410,789
For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and allocating #8518 %ﬁ&#”*ﬁ BAEEIR B
resources between segments, all assets are allocated to operating & ZEXRMNES LELEHBEEEIN  FIEE
segments other than interests in joint ventures and deferred tax assets. EHDEEXB DR - MEEMABRK - (£
All liabilities are allocated to operating segments other than taxation MELHBEREIN  FIEREGDREFXK
payable, borrowings and deferred tax liabilities. pa):



7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 7. PEERN(FE)
OTHER SEGMENT INFORMATION Hih @SR
Continuing operations BERE
Property Property Property Treasury  Tradingand Hotel

investment  development  management investment manufacturing operation  Consolidated
NERE NEBE PREE  UBRE EZRRE BELE )

HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
BETT BETr B%Tr #BETx BETr BT B%Tx
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Amounts induded inthe measureof B IEH2D4F

segment results and ¥ERARAE

seqment assets: kX
2013 —E-=F
(apital additions G 3,290 218 = 1,650 160 600 5918
Depreciation e 2,888 699 4 783 1,770 5,604 11,748
Interest income M A — — — 20,593 — — 20,593
2012 —E-CF
(restated) (&&E5)
(apital additions BAREN 3326 782 — 2 2,506 131 7457
Depreciation nE 2513 640 17 817 1428 8,367 13,782
Interest income M A — — — 16,792 — — 16,792
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7.  SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 7. QNEER (@)
OTHER SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) Hith @SR (48)
Geographical information & & R

The Group's operations are located in Hong Kong and other parts of ~AEEEBNUREERPELMIDRE -
the PRC.

Information about the Group’s revenue from continuing operations BRI AERIFELEINRETR 2 WS ER TS
from external customers is presented based on the location of the REEXBEMEZR - BEAAEBEIER
operations. Information about the Group’s non-current assets is  EVEEMERBIIREEMTHE 2R o

presented based on the geographical location of the assets.

Revenue Non-current assets
Wi FRBEE

2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-=F —Z-CF —E-=F —Z-CF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BT T BETT
(restated) (restated)
(mE7) (& E31)
Hong Kong BB 150,160 130,629 4,143,570 3,883,488
The PRC e 253,328 234,799 2,827,833 2,859,498
403,488 365,428 6,971,403 6,742,986

Non-current assets exclude available-for-sale investments, structured JERFBEETBIEAIHEERE  SE T

deposits and deferred tax assets. MR ERR IR B EE ©

Information about major customers FEEFER

There is no revenue from customers for the years ended 31 December #HEZT—=FR-_F——F+=-A=+—
2013 and 2012 contributed over 10% of the total operating revenue of HIEFE @ WEKEBETF 2 KB EAEE R
the Group. EIEW A 10%



8. REVENUE 8. W&
An analysis of the Group's revenue for the year from continuing TN AEREBEFELCENRFEFRESDN

operations is as follows:
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2013 2012
—T-=f —F-F
HK$'000 HKS'000
BT T BEFT
(restated)
(i E51)
Gross rental income FHlHEKA 267,990 256,780
Sales of properties held for sale EHEYEEE 12,538 5,729
Sales of goods EMHE 42,496 30,044
Interest income on structured deposits, available-for-sale RERER HNERE  RITEX
investments, bank deposits and bank balances Rits 2 FIBWA 20,593 16,792
Property management and agency fees METERREE 8,577 6,830
Hotel operation income B E A 51,177 49,142
Dividend income from listed investments held for trading TTREEERRRE ZRBMA 17 1
403,488 365,428
9. OTHERINCOME 9. Hfthlg A
2013 2012
—T-=f —F=F
HK$'000 HKS'000
BT T BT
(restated)
(i E51)
Continuing operations HELE
Imputed interest income on advances to an investee company Bt F—F IR E DA 2 EEF S WA 2,951 2,561
QOthers Hit 7,128 8,108
10,079 10,669
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10. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES

10. HhIRBE K B8

2013 2012
ZE-ZF —B—F
HK$'000 HKS$'000
BT BETT
Continuing operations HELE
Gains on changes in fair value on finandial instruments BRATEETAEZNERIAY
atFyTPL ATBEZH WE 1,902 4,076
(Gain on changes in fair value of investment properties RENMENTEBEEY 2 W 146,392 261,240
Gains on disposal of available-for-sale investments HEMEEERE 2 W 61,429 151
Net exchange gains (losses) B 53 s (1) 20,126 (1,817)
Losses on disposal of property, plant and equipment HENE BERREZEE (437) (254)
Impairment losses on other receivables HioEWEoR 2 RERK = (20,092)
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE—EHBAR BB = (41)
229,412 243,263
11.  FINANCE COSTS 11. 8 ¥ AR
2013 2012
E-ZF —B—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BETT
(restated)
(lg=3)
Continuing operations BERE
Interest on borrowings wholly repayable within five years: ARRENZHEEZEHFE
Bank loans BITER 100,583 108,067
Other borrowings HinfEm 1,125 1,057
101,708 109,124
Less: Amount capitalised as cost of properties B IERLHERRPNENLCEREE
under development for sale (12,575) —
89,133 109,124




12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

12. FRAEMXE

2013 2012
—E-=F “T——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BETT
(restated)
(BE71)
Continuing operations HEgE
The charge comprises: xR
Hong Kong Profits Tax BENER
Current year AEE 14,668 17,335
Overprovision in prior years BAFEBERE (9,575) (48)
5,093 17,287
PRC Enterprise Income Tax B ERTER 1,760 2874
PRC Land Appreciation Tax ("LAT") A £ IS (E T 525 415
2,285 3,289
71,378 20,576
Deferred taxation (note 32) EIERIE (530
Current year NEE 20,452 14,972
27,830 35,548
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Forthe year ended 31 December 2013 BZE=F—=F+-A=T—HItFE

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED) 12. FiI8MW (§&)
The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit per the AFE 2 MBS HBAGABERMRENZ
consolidated statement of profit or loss as follows: SR
2013 2012
—E-=F “T——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT
(restated)
(=351)
Profit before tax (from continuing operations) BRAEF (REHELE) 301,403 249,186
Hong Kong Profits Tax at the rate of 16.5% (2012: 16.5%) R E % (ZE—=F 165%) T8
BEMEH 49,731 41,116
Tax effect of share of results of joint ventures EEEREEELHBTE (18) (20)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax purpose AU HNBER G2 32,406 27,999
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose BRRRBMAZRET & (53,175) (38,781)
Overprovision in prior years BREFEHRERE (9,575) (48)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised KRB ER NS 2 12,085 3,740
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses previously not recognised &g AR &N 2 T 5518 Z%}ﬁx%’%“ (3,670) (272)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries operating in REMAZERLE ZHBR
other jurisdictions TRABE FE& 2,847 819
PRCLAT o 1 AR 525 415
Others Eff (3,326) 580
Tax charge for the year (relating to continuing operations) AFEEMBEY N (ERFELLEHERE) 27,830 35,548
notes: k3
(@)  Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (2012: 16.5%) of the estimated ~ (a)  BEFMEHIREM ESFE G ERTORFIHZ T X

assessable profit for both years.

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Enterprise Income Tax (the
"EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates prevailing on the

(b)

subsidiaries is 25%.
(©

relevant jurisdictions.
(d)

The Group has estimated the tax provision for PRC LAT according to the
requirements set forth in the relevant PRC tax laws and regulations. The actual
LAT liabilities are subject to the determination by the tax authorities upon
completion of the property development projects and the tax authorities might
disagree with the basis on which the provision for LAT is calculated.

165% (ZF— 4 : 165%) 5T & °

(b) RPEARKMBELEMSIE(RERSTED
RMEMSTEERAR - PEMBARMRERR
25%

(0 REMBEERELEVNERAMAAERZRTH

EHH -

) BEFETERRAGERRATE  AEERHART
Bt R E T o A IR EBRIURAR B BEE
MERERBORTREME - HRAATETR
REE Y IR ET B R E A% -



13. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS/ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS
HELD FOR SALE

On 25 October 2013, the Group entered into an irrevocable undertaking
with Yue Xiu Enterprises (Holdings) Limited (“Yue Xiu Enterprises”), an
independent third party to the Group, whereby the Group agreed to
accept the offer in respect of disposal of a maximum of 218,359,628 CHB
Shares (representing approximately 50.2% of the issued share capital of
CHB) held by the Group. CHB Group is engaged in the provision of
banking and related financial services. The disposal was completed in
February 2014. Upon the completion of the disposal, the Group remains
to hold 50,408,418 CHB Shares (representing approximately 11.59% of
the issued share capital of CHB) and classified as available-for-sale
investment. The assets and liabilities attributable to the CHB Group,
which as at 31 December 2013 were expected to be sold within twelve
months, have been classified as a disposal group held for sale and are
presented separately in the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2013 (see below). The net proceeds of disposal were
expected to exceed the net carrying amount of the relevant assets and

liabilities and accordingly, no impairment loss has been recognised.

13. BERIRE NERGFLEEE

RZE—=F+A=Z+HB AEEELEF
rEEE)ARAGR(HERE]D (BURAK
SENE=H) LT BEAERE B
I - AR E R BB A % 218,359,628 IR AN
S ERA 2 BIEIRITARG (GBI EERITE 81T
PRA#)502%) 2 BH) - BIFIRITERBEHEB R
RERTREESHES - HE—FERZ
T-NF-_ATK - HETKE  NEBE
F5B 50408418 IR B BLERTT IR D (MG BIEIRTTE
BITRANAI1159%) » WH AR HBERE -
BIERITEEMPREBHAR T —=F+=
A=+—BZz&N+_EAARNEENEER
BEESERFHEZHERAS YR _F
—=FFT A=+ —HZBEAEMBKRRAERA
BV 25 (RTX) - B EMSHIBFHE
ﬁﬁi@*ﬁ%ﬁé%&%fﬁz,ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ QL 3
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13. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS/ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS
HELD FOR SALE (CONTINUED)

The profit for the year from the financial services operations carried out

by the CHB Group, which are presented as discontinued operations, is

set out below. The comparative figures in the statement of profit or loss

have been restated to re-present the financial services operation as a

discontinued operation.

STATEMENTS

13. ERIEEE NERGHEEE
(%&)
KERIBRITRELENSRRY - RET
RERIEEBHARFEZENEIMT - Heh
B TRERANLEERET - UK 5 RS
EBEHZINR/ERILES -

2013 2012
—E-=F —T——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Interest income MEWA 1,593,618 1,561,914
Interest expense METH (578,116) (724.317)
Net interest income FIEWAEEE 1,015,502 837,597
Fee and commission income BRRBEKA 283,196 253,949
Fee and commission expenses BRRAETH (73,263) (64,584)
Net fee and commission income A ONEE 209,933 189,365
Net (losses) gains on change in fair value on BRATEBEFAEGZCERIAL
financial instruments at FVTPL APEEED (FE) S5 (22,414) 57,473
Net gains on fair value hedge ATEEH R OFE 536 1,200
Other operating income HipE@A 232,019 230,146
Operating expenses EEYH (780,401) (780,265)
655,175 535,516
(Impairment allowances) reversal of impairment ETCREER) E 0 B
allowances on loans and advances (35,237) 65,228
Net gains (losses) on disposal of property and equipment HEWE RREFIE (B18) 6,740 (1,861)
Net gains on disposal of available-for-sale securities HERHEEEASFIE 1,582 594
Gain on changes in fair value of investment properties KEMEZ N TEEEZHNE 1,910 9,390
Gain on disposal of investment properties HEREE 7 s 2,327 2816
Share of profits of associates Frib B2 AR A 32,103 36,028
Profit before tax B R F 664,600 647,711
Income tax expense FrEHiS (112,437) (103,045)
Profit for the year AEE R 552,163 544,666




o
Z
e ur p M == >
13. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS/ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS 13. ERIEEE NERFHELSE H
HELD FOR SALE (CONTINUED) (#&) >
=)
2013 02 P&
—E-ZF “Z-—F [«
HK$'000 HKS'000  fES
. _ ey — e
BT T ARTT
Profit for the year from discontinued operation BREEERFEREFEETIRE “
include the following:
Depreciation and amortisation WEREH 54,878 59,209
Auditor's remuneration G 4,607 4304
Directors’ emoluments Y 12,638 11,898
Employee benefit expenses EERAXH 451,402 442,470
Release of prepaid lease payments for land BNLHS 2 EE 66 66
Operating lease rentals in respect of land and building tiwhkEFEeRy s Ae 32,888 29,611
Gross rental income from investment properties REMEGEEWA 8,219 7,552
Less: direct expenses for investment properties that B FREERSRAZRENE
generated rental income during the year EREEER (1,034) (1,206)
7,185 6,346

During the year, the discontinued operations used HK$932.7 million  F R B ILEEXEBBA T A EE L L X

(2012: HK$1,340.8 million) in the Group’s net operating cash flows, #3572/ 888 ¥ 932700000 L (Z T — =

received HK$198.3 million (2012: paid HK$3,263.1 million) in respect of & : &% 13408000007T) * A X BEBHR S

investing activities and paid HK$168.2 million (2012: paid HK$167.1 it £ & #1983000007T (ZZ —Z4F : EfI &

million) in respect of financing activities. 3263100000 7C) AR BB EBENRERE
B # 168200000 (=T ——F: BB
167,100,000 7T.) ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 EIZ=F—=#+_-A=+—HBILFE

13. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS/ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS 13. ERIERE NERGHEEE

HELD FOR SALE (CONTINUED)

Except for the property to be sold by CHB to the Group upon disposal B‘?E'Jﬂﬂifﬁﬁ%% TAREBZMEIN

of CHB Group, the major classes of assets and liabilities of the CHB ~ #R1T% IﬁA —=%+-A=+—HZ&

(%&)

2l &

Group as at 31 December 2013 have been presented separately in the EREE W REGEMBRRIEANBILZH
consolidated statement of financial position and are set out below: TEERT -
2013
—E-=f
HK$'000
BT T
Cash and short-term funds EFReREHES 16,145,437
Placements with banks and other financial institutions maturing EHRERAMTBRER—E+ZEARIH 2T
between one to twelve months 7,920,502
Derivative financial instruments TSI A 170,135
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss BRA JF{“{E.#)\TE s EREE 92,179
Available-for-sale securities A EE 5,433,241
Held-to-maturity securities EEE|HE 8,326,722
Advances and other accounts ETREMEEE 45,761,325
Tax recoverable FEH R 796
Interests in associates Benngn 199,437
Investment properties (note a) REME (sta) 136,575
Property and equipment (note b) EPEAEL) 635,702
Prepaid lease payments for land (note ¢) BNTHAEER (Mo 2,403
Deferred tax assets ERFIEEE 1,501
Goodwill [SES 50,606
Assets classified as held for sale NEBFHELE 84,876,561

>~



13. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS/ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS 13.

ERIELE NERGLEEE

HELD FOR SALE (CONTINUED) (#8)
2013
—E-=F
HK$'000
BETT
Deposits and balances of banks and other financial institutions BESERuhprt 12 WS 1,674,231
Financial assets sold under repurchase agreements MEHETHECEREE 1,256,657
Deposits from customers ERPER 70,923,145
Certificates of deposit ex ) 563,003
Derivative financial instruments TSI A 100,653
Other accounts and accruals HitRBERENER 852,430
Current tax liabilities FERFIR 52,146
Loan capital BEER 1,766,436
Deferred tax liabilities ELEFIBEE 25,661
Liabilities associated with assets classified as held for sale PEAGLEEEZAHAE 77,214,362
notes: Mg -
(a)  The carrying amount of investment properties comprises: () REVEFREESE
2013
—E—=
HK$’000
BT T
Leasehold properties HEME
Held in Hong Kong on medium-term lease (1050 years unexpired) RRBRENTEERRENEE (FRFER+ERTFA) 102,300
Held outside Hong Kong on medium-term lease (1050 years unexpired) RRBRBENTEERRIMNGE (FRFER+ERTFA) 34,275
136,575
(b)  The carrying amount of property and equipment comprises: (b) WERERBEREERE :
2013
—E—=fF
HK$’000
BT T
Leasehold land and building HE L RETF 506,076
Equipment & 129,626
635,702
The carrying amounts of leasehold land and building shown above comprise: FAEE L RIEFREERT !
Leasehold land and buildings in Hong Kong EEBBANHEE L RET
Held on long-term lease (over 50 years unexpired) RREANER (HaFHBRR ) 50,151
Held on medium-term lease (1050 years unexpired) RHEANER (RSFHARTERTFR) 448,266
Leasehold land and buildings outside Hong Kong EEBBINNEE L RIEF
Held on medium-term lease (1050 years unexpired) RHEANER (HSFHARTERTFR) 7,659
506,076

(c) At 31 December 2013, the prepaid lease payments for land is held outside Hong ~ (c)

Kong with medium-term lease of 10-50 years unexpired.

RIEW) °

RZB—=F+-A=+—H BN EENK
TEEBEIMNGE - BB EHR (0-50%F -
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 EIZ=F—=#+_-A=+—HBILFE

13. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS/ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS

HELD FOR SALE (CONTINUED)

An amount of HK$13,618,000 relating to the disposal group classified as

held for sale has been recognised in other comprehensive income and

accumulated in equity.

14. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

13. ERIEKE NYERFHEERE
(£&)

SEAFHELEMAEE H KA’ 13618000

TLE R HE M 2 E WG AR 25T ARER

14. IRFE i@l

2013 2012
—T-=f —F-F
HK$'000 HKS'000
BB BT
Profit for the year from continuing operations SEE I AEE R R
has been arrived at after charging: EEIGANIIESER
Directors’ emoluments (note 15) SEHE (fI5E15) 23,207 18,952
Other staff costs EMEIKA 32,715 38,044
Staff retirement scheme contributions, net of HK$27,000 BTRINEFET B2tz
(2012: HK$6,000) forfeited contributions A0 (ZE——F  BEe007T) 2,078 1,505
Total staff costs 8 AL 58,000 58,501
Auditor's remuneration ZERMNE 3,296 3,077
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment mE - BENRETE 11,748 13,782
Operating lease rentals in respect of land and buildings THREFEERN HE 17,781 17,346
and after crediting: WEA
Gross rental income from investment properties REMEBAS WA 267,975 256,780
Less: direct expenses from investment properties that W EREEREBAZ
generated rental income during the year REVEELZER (36,144) (40,399)
231,831 216,381




-
z
15. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND EMPLOYEES’ 15. EF - THRIANESHE iZ:
EMOLUMENTS >
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the 14 (2012: 14) directors BB N F 4R (ZZT——F : 4H)EF E
were as follows: THemT %
Other emoluments E & §
Performance Retirement &
Salariesand  related incentive scheme Total i
Fees other benefits  payment (note c) contributions emoluments
R SERED RINER
ik HitfER  REE (M HE 58 Bme
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
2013 —E-=#
Liu Lit Mo (note d) BRI (3t a) 450 9,196 34 294 9,974
Liu Lit Chi (note e) BEVE (Fiste) 300 7,980 280 336 8,896
Liu Kam Fai, Winston B 150 4,904 170 233 5,457
Liu Kwun Shing, Christopher B2 400 2,542 140 153 3,235
Lee WaiHung FEE 150 2,563 154 212 3,079
Liu Lit Chung BAA 100 1,024 — — 1,124
Andrew Liu B 100 — — — 100
Liu Chun Ning, Wilfred BEE 250 2,433 135 162 2,980
Ng Ping Kin, Peter MR 200 — — — 200
Cheng Mo Chi, Moses Ef 0 200 — _ _ 200
Tong Tsin Ka EEXR 200 — — — 200
Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher FER 200 — — — 200
AuKam Yuen, Authur BB 100 — — — 100
Ma Hung Ming, John Bkt 100 — — — 100
Total w5t 2,900 30,642 913 1,390 35,845
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 EIZ=F—=#+_-A=+—HBILFE

15. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S AND EMPLOYEES’

EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

15.

S5 -THRIAKREEME (&)

Other emoluments E Bl &

Performance Retirement
Salariesand  related incentive scheme Total
Fees other benefits  payment (note ¢) contributions emoluments
M5 FEEmER RINER
e Hipfed  RES (M AR kA
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT

2012 —E-C—F

Liu Lit Mo (note d) BRI (3t a) 400 8,399 34 150 8,983

LiuLit Chi (note e) BAVE (Miste) 250 7515 280 318 8363

Liu Kam Fai, Winston BeiE 100 4,284 — 87 4471

Liu Kwun Shing, Christopher B 270 1,888 — 67 2,225

Lee Wai Hung TRk 100 1,980 — 78 2,158

Liu Lit Chung BRI 100 1,064 — — 1,164

Andrew Liu BEfm 270 23 — — 293

Liu Chun Ning, Wilfred BiEE 250 2,047 135 161 2,593

Ng Ping Kin, Peter hRE 150 — — — 150

Cheng Mo Chi, Moses g 150 — _ _ 150

Tong Tsin Ka EEXR 150 — — — 150

Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher LY 150 — — — 150

Au Kam Yuen, Authur BHR — — — — —

Ma Hung Ming, John oot — — — — —

Total wEt 2,340 27,200 449 861 30,850

notes: BHeE -

(@)  The five highest paid individuals in the Group in 2013 and 2012 were all directors () CEZERTE-_EAKERERRFAL
of the Group and details of their emoluments are included in above. No directors F2HRAREES  HFHE N EXARE -
waived any emoluments in the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012. HEZ—=FR-_F—-F+-A=+—HILF

B BEERERERIEC#SE o

(b)  During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the directors (b)) ~ #R - AREHERETAESHAATSHAT(E
or the five highest paid individuals (including directors) as an inducement to join BEE)XNEAME  (ERIMAREEHMAR
or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office. None of the S ER 2 RE S BER A E - FNRE EREEM
directors have waived any emoluments during the year. e -

(c)  The performance related incentive payment is determined by reference to the () BEZFT—=F+-A=+—RAILMEFELERS
individual performance of the directors and approved by the remuneration Bl ZERREFNERRRET - WHAEEH
committee of the Group for the two years ended 31 December 2013. WZEgitE -

(d)  Being the Chairman and Managing Director of the Company (resigned from  (d) AXAREFEREFHLE (BN T —NE-A
Managing Director on 26 February 2014). A NBREEHEE RALIE ) o

(e)  Being the Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer of the Company (with ~ (6) ~ BARARZEFAEIRITEAE (R _F —HF

effect from 26 February 2014).

ZAZHRBREEME) -



16. DIVIDENDS 16. IR
2013 2012
—E-=F —Z——fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Dividends recognised as distribution during the year: FRERRUPE RS
2013 interim dividend paid at HK$0.10 “E-ZFRRPHREERER 0T
(2012: 2012 interim dividend HKS0.10 per share) (ZZ——%F: T —FhHKs
SRAE®00TT) 37,858 37,858
2012 final dividend paid at HK$0.18 T ZFRIRARBREEREK 8T
(2012: 2017 final dividend HKS0.18 per share) (ZZ——F : T FRHERE
SlRAE®08T) 68,145 68,145
106,003 106,003

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final dividend in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2013 of HK$0.18 per share,
totalling HK$68,145,019 (2012: final dividend in respect of the year
ended 31 December 2012 of HK$0.18 per share, totalling HK$68,145,019)
and a special cash dividend due to the completion of Partial Offer for
disposal of CHB Shares of HK$2.80 per share, totaling HK$1,060,033,632
have been proposed by the directors and is subject to approval by the
shareholders in the forthcoming general meeting.

In addition, a special dividend by way of distribution in specie to the
shareholders of the Company in the proportion of 1 share in the issued
share capital of CHB for every 10 shares in the issued share capital of the
Company. The special dividend has been proposed by the directors and
is subject to approval by the shareholders in the forthcoming general

meeting,

17. BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE

FROM CONTINUING AND DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

The calculation of the basic earnings per share attributable to the
owners of the Company is based on the profit for the year attributable
to owners of the Company of HK$543,460,000 (2012: HK$480,010,000)
and on 378,583,440 (2012: 378,583,440) ordinary shares in issue during
the year.

FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS

The calculation of the basic earnings per share attributable to the
owners of the Company is based on the profit for the year attributable
to owners of the Company of HK$268,905,000 (2012: HK$210,447,000)
and on 378,583,440 (2012: 378,583,440) ordinary shares in issue during
the year.

RBEPRR HE-_T—=F+_A=+—
HIEFE 2 KRR ESRAE 18T - &1B
68145019 (ZE—ZF - HET—ZF
TZA=T—HLEFEZRARESRELE
01870 * & HE M eg1450197T) © AT H
ERFBITROT, ZOMRERERRER
BB 2807T + & H A 1,060,0336327T
KHhEFeES TEREERIAZLE
SRR -

AN - BRI B G A B W 5 IR VRS T AR
NARRE - BARAEEITRAT 10D
MBI FIRITE BT L AR © Z 455
REEEHESTEEZ:  WEAREERREX
g LREREE -

17. SBRERERN
REEFBENRERILEEE
AABREEIEFRERBF TEE D BR
AN B ER B AN i A HE 543,460,000 7T ( =
T — —F ¢ 5 #480,010000 7T ) M ANFE B B
77 E i@ fR378583440f8( = T — = F:
378,583,440 %) 51 & o

REFRERKE

RATRREEERERBF TIEESBLR
2R B AR B A AN A Vi ) B K 268,905,000 70 (=
T — 4 21044700070 ) RAFE B
17 % @ MRarssesasoft( — T — = F:
378,583,440 J% ) FHE o
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 EIZ=F—=#+_-A=+—HBILFE

17. BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE (CONTINUED)

FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

The basic earnings per share attributable to owners of the Company is
HK$0.73 (2012: HKS$0.71) which is based on the profit for the year of
HK$274,555,000 (2012: HK$269,563,000) and on 378,583,440 (2012:

378,583,440) ordinary shares in issue during the year.

No diluted earnings per share has been presented as there were no

potential ordinary shares in issue during the years 2012 and 2013.

18. CASH AND SHORT-TERM FUNDS

17. SBIRERRRN (§8)
RBEERIERS
ARABRREEBRERBF BB 0737T(Z
T——F BB onT)  DIKBERFEERN
B Wo74555000m( = F — = F: B K
2695630007C ) R AR FEE BT EBR
378583, 440% ( —Z — —4F : 378583 440% )5t & ©

R CFRIT-ZFRNHBEEMEEE
B A EEER BN TME2R

18. BFRENRQHESR

THE GROUP NE&E
2013 2012
—E_=F —Z—_f
HK$000 HK$'000
BET T BT
Cash and balances with banks and other financial institutions 847 R £ B B EBETFR S R4 463,785 6,574,516
Pledged bank deposits DIRRITER 1,897 —
Money at call and short notice BAERMEHEN — 10,472,554
Exchange fund bills INEESER — 798,513
465,682 17,845,583

The Group’s cash and short-term funds that are denominated in

currencies other than the functional currency of the relevant group

entity are set out below:

AEENEREEERDEEEAINEET
BZBEFEREMERESHIWNT

Denominated Denominated Denominated Denominated

in RMB in US$ in MOP in Others

AR PAZETT DY gk PAE &

Sl{E il Fl{E Sl{E

BT T BT T BT T BT T

As at 31 December 2013 RZE—=#+-A=+—H 305,656 78,311 — —
As at 31 December 2012 RZE——F+-F=+—H 1,681,400 2,559,347 77,404 2,021,144




19. FIXED BANK DEPOSITS WITH MORE THAN THREE
MONTHS TO MATURITY WHEN RAISED/PLEDGED BANK
DEPOSITS/BANK BALANCES AND CASH

THE COMPANY

The fixed deposits carry fixed interest rates ranging from 0.03% to 3.55%

(2012: 0.05% to 3.55%) per annum.

The Company'’s fixed bank deposits and other bank balances and cash
that are denominated in currencies other than the functional currency

of the Company are set out below:

19. FA-BBEREA EHRTEF
ROPIMBRITER RITER
}}iﬁﬁ
JIW/AN=]
T HATFE SR LA B TE MRS 8 5 003% 2 3.55%( =
T — & 1 005% 2= 355%) 5T B ©

RATAENEE S B AINE S E 2 EHIR
TERREMBITERIRESHINNT

Denominated Denominated

m
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>
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o
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=
P
m
9
2
_|
T
=
o
E
it

in RMB in US$
DARME UET
5i{E 5ifE
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
As at 31 December 2013 —“F-—=F+-A=1—H 449,649 162,776
As at 31 December 2012 RZZB——F+-A=+—H 226,731 111,724
20. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 20. fTEERMTE
THE GROUP A5
2013 2012
—E-=F —E——F
Fair values Fair values
Notional NP EE Notional NEEE
amount Assets  Liabilities amount Assets Liabilities
e ] BE Bff 4%&HE BE =0
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000
BETT BETIx B¥%Tx AT  B¥%Tr  A%Tn
Derivatives held for trading RHIEEBEREMITATA
— Foreign currency forward contracts  — SMERERA 4] — — — 6,037,758 16,584 21,380
— Interest rate swaps —MREHRED — — — 796,280 4,562 95,192
— (ross-currency interest rate swaps  — F &8 R R 214 4) — — — 36,040 — 1,582
Derivatives designated as REEEH AN
hedging instruments fTETE
— Interest rate swaps —F=REEHAEL — — — 5,286,364 166,765 120,792
— Cross-currency interest rate swaps  — B R R HIA 4 — — — 233,306 — 9710
— — 187911 48656 o
As the Group discontinued the financial services operations during the HRAEEREHEZ-ZT—=F+_A=1+— ;r):
year ended 31 December 2013, all derivative financial instruments were R IFFE A& HEESRBH XS - 0T @
transferred to assets classified as held for sale (note 13). e TEERESBAFLHERE (W >
13) ° -
:};
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 EIZ=F—=#+_-A=+—HBILFE

20. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
The currencies of foreign currency forward buy contracts as at 31
December 2012 mainly comprised Hong Kong dollars and Australian
dollars, and the currencies in the forward sale contracts mainly
comprised Renminbi and United States dollars. As at 31 December 2012,
all of these contracts have a settlement date within one year from the
end of the reporting period.

The remaining maturity of interest rate swaps and cross-currency

interest rate swap held for trading ranged from 1 to 8 years.

Of the interest rate swaps held for trading with a notional amount of
HK$796,280,000 as at 31 December 2012, the notional amount of
HK$60,000,000 was floating-to-fixed rate swaps, the remaining notional
amount of HK$736,280,000 was fixed-to-floating rate swaps.

The cross-currency interest rate swaps held for trading as at 31
December 2012 was a floating-to-floating rate swap paying Japanese yen
receiving United States dollars.

The derivative financial instruments including exchange rate contracts
and interest rate contracts had been recognised in the statements of

financial position at fair value.

The fair values of the derivative financial instruments did not take into

account the effect of any bilateral netting agreement.

FAIR VALUE HEDGE OF FIXED-RATE BONDS

As at 31 December 2012, the Group designated certain interest rate
swaps and cross-currency interest rate swaps as fair value hedges of the
fair value of available-for-sale debt securities with carrying amounts of
HK$3,990,868,000. The purpose was to minimise its exposure to fair
value changes of its fixed-rate bonds by swapping fixed-rate bonds from
fixed rates to floating rates. The interest rate swaps and cross-currency
interest rate swaps and the corresponding fixed-rate bonds had the
same terms and management of the Group considered that the interest
rate swaps and cross-currency interest rate swaps were highly effective
hedging instruments. The remaining maturity of these interest rate
swaps, cross-currency interest rates swaps and debt securities ranged

from 2 to 10 years.
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20. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

FAIR VALUE HEDGE OF FIXED-RATE BONDS (CONTINUED)

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the above fair value hedges
were effective in hedging the fair value exposures to interest rate
movements and as a result, both the gains in fair value of the bonds of
HK$25,349,000 and losses in fair value of the interest rate swaps of
HK$25,759,000 and cross-currency interest rate swaps of HK$478,000

were included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

FAIR VALUE HEDGE OF SUBORDINATED NOTE ISSUED

As at 31 December 2012, the Group designated an interest rate swap as
fair value hedge of the fair value change of the interest rate movement
of the US$225 million (approximately HK$1,755 million) subordinated
notes issued (see note 38 for details). The purpose was to minimise its
exposure to fair value changes of its fixed-rate note by swapping fixed-
rate notes from fixed rates to floating rates. The interest rate swap and
the hedged subordinated note had the same terms and management of
the Group considered that the interest rate swap was a highly effective

hedging instrument.

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the hedge was effective in
hedging the fair value exposure to interest rate movements and as a
result, both the gain in fair value of the note of HK$48,417,000 and gains
in fair value of the interest rate swap of HK$49,549,000 were included in

the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

20. TEEMTA(E)
BEMREHNL TFEEH D (E)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 EIZ=F—=#+_-A=+—HBILFE

21. INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES

21. BHKE

THEGROUP A5 THE COMPANY &2 7]
Financial assets at FVTPL Finandial assets at FVTPL
BATEEARR BATEEARR
LEREE LEREE
Available- Available-
Heldfor  Designated at for-sale Heldfor ~ Designated at for-sale
trading  fairvalue  investments Total trading  fairvalue investments Total
BE T
B BAVEE FHEE B BAVEE FHREE
BERZ 51l8% RE a% BERZ 51l8% RE ok
notes HK$'000 HK'000 HK$'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HKS'000
fizr  A%Tx BETr A¥Trn B%Tr B%Tx A%Tn BT B¥Tr
013 “E-=E
Equiy securies RAES
Listed in Hong Kong AR W 11,002 — — 11,01 11,002 — — 11,002
Listed overseas o T — = 4 n = = % %
11,082 — 473 11,515 11,042 — 9% 11,138
Unlisted F#Em (b) = — 293,765 293,765 = = = =
11,00 — 294238 305,280 11,042 — 9% 11,138
Debt securies: EBER:
Structured products HEHETA (d) — 0215 — 0.215 — 0,215 — 20,215
Other debt securiies EthEHES
— Listed — L 0] — — 1,164 1,164 — — 1,164 1,164
— 27,215 1,164 28319 — 2,215 1,164 28319
Investment funds RERS (h) — — 110,886 110,886 — - 110,886 110,886
Total K
Listed in Hong Kong BELT 11,042 — — 11,04 11,04 — — 11,04
Listed overseas B ET — — 1637 1,637 — — 1,260 1,260
Unlisted i3] — 725 404,651 431,866 — 705 110,86 138,101
11,08 0215 406,288 444545 11,042 0215 112,146 150403
s analysed by ssing enite: BEIADE
Banks and other financial institutions RELEM 7,780 2.5 112,050 147,045 7,780 N5 112,050 147,045
Corporate entlties BSEENE 3,60 — 294238 297,500 3,062 — 9% 3358
11,082 2725 406,288 444 545 11,042 2,215 112,146 150,403
Market value of listed securtes LTEHTE:
Listed in Hong Kong AB LT 11,082 — — 11,042 11,042 — — 11,02
Listed overseas N T — — 1,637 1,637 — — 1,260 1,260
11,082 — 1,637 12679 11,042 — 1,60 12,302
Analysed as: "BA:
Non-current assets FraEE 130399
Current assets REEE 20,004

150,403
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21. INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES (CONTINUED) 21. BFHFRE(E) %
THE GROUP AR 8] THE COMPANY K2 ] =
x
Financial assets at FVTPL Financial assets at FVTPL o
BATESARS RATE RS E
TEWAE JEMEE -
Available- Held-to- Available- ?‘:é
Held for ~ Desigated at for-sale maturity Held for  Designated at for-sale ;a...
trading fairvalue —investments ~ securities Total trading fairvalue  investments Total ot
BIE SE i
BE BATE WHENE FEBEZ BfE BRATE wEHE
BEER% 5|8 K& B 4% BEERAR kS RE B
notes HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
W BETr A%Tr B¥Tr BETr A¥Tr BETr A%Tr E¥Tr AT
2012 —E-ZF
Equity securiies: BAES - (a)
Listed in Hong Kong ES Al 8917 — 184012 — 192,929 8,656 — — 8,656
Listed overseas BN LT — — 9741 — 9741 — — 140 140
8917 — 193,753 — 202,670 8,656 — 140 8,79
Unlisted T () — — 302751 — 302751 — — — —
8917 — 496,504 — 505,421 8,656 — 140 8,79
Debt securites; EREL
(ertificates of deposit FaE (9 — — — 3693321 369332 — — — —
Structured products EEETA (d) — 475,8% — — 475,89 — 56,795 — 56,795
Convertible bonds R ES ) — 794,048 — — 794,048 — — — —
Other debt securites HtfERES
— Listed —Fm 0) — = 1,164 — 1,164 — — 1,164 1,164
— Unlisted —3E — — 3993540 5906699 9,900,239 — — — —
— 1004 304704 960000 14864668 — 560% e 5795
Investment funds REES (h) — — 1347483 — 1347483 — — 134743 134743
Total: 5
Listed in Hong Kong BB LT 8917 — 184012 — 192,929 8,656 — — 8,656
Listed overseas BN LT — — 10,905 — 10,905 — — 1304 1304
Unlisted il — 1,2600944 4431034 9600020 15300998 — 56,795 134743 191,538
8917 1,209944 4625951 9,600,020 15,504,832 8,656 56,795 136,047 201,498
As analysed by issuing RBIA
entites: LR
Central government R FTA
and central banks RRiRT — — — 338 338 — — — —
Publicsector entites REKE - - 56016 196401 2417 - - - -
Banks and other REREM
financial institutions B 6,093 475,89 489792 7809345 8781126 6,050 56,795 135,907 198,752
(orporate entities i 2804 794048 4075603 1590892 6,463,387 2,606 — 140 2146
Others Hith — — 4500 — 4500 — — — —
8917 1,2609944 4625951 9,600,020 15504832 8,656 56,795 136,047 201,498 255
Market value of rmEs :
lsted securities; IER B
Listed inHong Kong Fy il 8917 — 184,012 — 192929 8,650 — — 8,656 ;
Listed overseas ik i — - 10905 — 10,905 — - 1304 1304 m
=
8917 — 194917 — 203,834 8,656 — 1,304 9,960 =
gy
Analysed as: Y- _
Non-current assets ERBEE 158,035 I
Current assets EEEE B463 *
201498 o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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fn 6 B 15 R B 5F

Forthe year ended 31 December 2013 BZE=F—=F+-A=T—HItFE

21.

notes:

(a)

(0

(e)

INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES (CONTINUED)

For equity securities classified as available-for-sale financial instruments,
accumulated impairment losses of HK$44,879,000 had been provided by the CHB
Group as at 31 December 2012.

As at 31 December 2013, unlisted equity securities classified as available-for-sale
held by the Group amounting to approximately HK$293,765,000 (2012:
HK$267,180,000) are carried at fair value at the end of the reporting period. No
impairment has been recognised.

As at 31 December 2012, unlisted equity securities classified as available-for-sale
held by the CHB Group amounting to HK$35,571,000 were measured at cost less
impairment at the end of the reporting period because the range of reasonable
fair value estimates is so significant that the management was of the opinion that
the fair values cannot be measured reliably, and the management had no plan to
dispose the unlisted equity securities. No impairment had been recognised in
respect of these securities.

As at 31 December 2012, certain held-to-maturity certificates of deposit of
approximately HK$17,054,000 held by the San Francisco Branch of CHB had been
pledged to the State of California of the United States of America in compliance
with the requirements of the California Financial Code.

All structured products held by the CHB Group have been disposed during the
year ended 31 December 2013. As at 37 December 2012, included in structured
products are credit linked notes of HK$419,101,000. The credit linked notes held
by the CHB Group bore three-month London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”)
with spreads ranging from 1. 3% to 2.0% per annum and maturity dates ranging
from 2015 to 2016. The note issuers were not obligated to repay the debt to the
CHB Group if the reference entities (rated A1 or above by Moody's as at 31
December 2012) defaulted.

As at 31 December 2013, structured deposits of HK$27,215,000 (2012:
HK$56,795,000) held by the Group have maturity dates ranging from 2013 to 2015
and carry interest rates at coupon rate, LIBOR or LIBOR plus a variable margin per
annum. Such structured deposits are designated as financial assets at FVTPL.

As at 31 December 2012, the convertible bonds and the debt securities classified
as available-for-sale investments and held-to-maturity securities held by the CHB
Group were mainly guaranteed or issued by corporates and financial institutions
from the PRC, Hong Kong and Australia.

As at 31 December 2012, debt securities classified as held-to-maturity amounted
to HK$3,382,000 were issued by the Government of Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region and the Government of the PRC.

In addition, the certificates of deposit classified as held-to-maturity securities were
mainly issued by banks from the PRC, Japan and Hong Kong. As at 31 December
2012, held-to-maturity certificates of deposit amounting to HK$1,731,693,000 and
held-to-maturity debt securities amounting to HK$900,850,000 held by the Group
were with credit exposures to the PRC.

21.

BT -

()

HEHRE (1)

R-T——F+-A=+—0  AEETEERS
BARAELEENSMIANRARESATHEZ R5t
SRABRS1E BB 44879000 T ©

RIZZ—=F+ZA=+—8  AEEFMFH UK
LHERNATFEESE 2EATHEENIEL
TR E H L) BB 293765000 (ZF— =4 : B
#5267,1800007T ) ° 45 LR ARFE 52 B YEEADAE ©

R-T——F+-A=+—08 " AIBETEDHMT
BLARAMBRRE 2D EARHIENIE LR
RFEHFRIRE IR A 355710007 « BERERA
HREEEFATEENSEMEZEEL Fﬁﬂﬁﬁ

ERAFEINEZSHE ETRAES AR
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21. INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES (CONTINUED) 21. BHKRE(E) z
notes: (Continued) BT« (48 E
(g)  Asat 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012, debt securities listed outside  (g) RZE—=F+=ZR=+—AKR=FT—=F+=A E
Hong Kong comprise a debenture with fixed interest rate of 9.5% and maturity =+—H REBUIINETHEBESFEE—HE ;OU
date on 24 December 2014. EMERSNWHN —F—MFE+=F=+MAE :
o RS - =
B S
(h)  The investment funds invest in unlisted equity securities issued by private entities  (h) ~ ZFRAES NREREBABEMR I LEE B
incorporated in Asia Pacific region. They are measured at fair value at the end of AT LTRAES - BARENRERR H
the reporting period. Investment funds with less than 12 months operation period BRATEENE - BMEHIRARNRERFEAE
before voluntary liquidation from the end of reporting period are classified as BEHIRT —EAAZREESRESFBRARA
current portion in the consolidated statement of financial position. The Group DOERRBEE - NEBAERZSREREDE
has committed to contribute a pre-determined capital amount in these BEEARIECEMT MREESZCERNE
investment funds and the realised gains or losses of these funds are recognised in IEEDREBEREARR -BE_T—=F+_H
the profit or loss. During the year ended 31 December 2013, the investment funds =t—BLEE ZFREESCRAEERER
returned capital of HK$3,634,000 (2012: HK$21,697,000) to the Group and they ¥ 363400070 ( —F — — 4 : B 2169700070 ) 2%
may call upon further capital contribution if required up to the pre-determined & REEREINIER A - UTRTEEARE
capital amount. R o
22. ADVANCES AND OTHER ACCOUNTS — FINANCIAL 22. EMNHEMIRIE — TRLRTE
SERVICES
THE GROUP A&
2013 2012
“E-=F —Z-——f
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETR BETT
Advances to customers ZEFER
Bills receivable EREE = 373,401
Trade bills 252% — 453,669
Other advances to customers HEtEFER — 38,330,527
- 39,157,597
Interest receivable FEIFIE — 232,210
Impairment allowances A%
— Individually assessed — AR = (24,054)
— (ollectively assessed — SR — (164,506)
= 39,201,307
Advances to banks and other financial institutions AERHMM G BRESTR — 2,164,842
= 41,366,149
Other accounts HthfRE — 702,923
257
= 42,069,072 ]
»
)
*
o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

w6 B F5 ¥k K B 5F

For the year ended 31 December 2013 EIZ=F—=#+_-A=+—HBILFE

22. ADVANCES AND OTHER ACCOUNTS — FINANCIAL
SERVICES (CONTINUED)

As the Group discontinued the financial services operations during the

year ended 31 December 2013, advances and other accounts — financial

services were transferred to assets classified as held for sale (note 13).

As at 31 December 2012, included in the “Other Accounts” of the
Group was an amount of approximately HK$246,484,000 placed as
reserve funds with the financial institutions in the PRC by the Shantou
Branch of CHB. These comprise HK$64,861,000 and HK$13,699,000
mandatory reserve deposits, which were not available for the Group’s
daily operation, and surplus reserve deposits placed with the People’s
Bank of China, respectively, and HK$167,924,000 fixed deposits placed
with other financial institutions in the PRC in compliance with the
requirements of Regulations Governing Foreign Financial Institutions of
the PRC.

As at 31 December 2012, the remaining balance of “Other Accounts” of
the Group amounting to HK$456,439,000 mainly included account
receivables from customers in relation to securities dealing and a
variation margin of HK$94,479,000 deposited in a bank for certain

interest rate swaps, foreign currency forward contracts and repurchase

22, EMNREMEKRIE — & /bR

(£8)
BE-_Z—=f+-A=+—BLHFE &K
SEERIIELESRRBEEY  HERRA
hEEE - RMREEREDEAFLESE
(H3E13) °

R-ZT——F+-A=+—0:  B5&E4LE
B[ HEMmERE]ERA -—FERENEE
246,484,000 7T, 73 BI BLER T SE D 1T R P B 2
MSHBERRBRZNIE ERREFK
RABEARBITZEEFRER S REINMTF
HEHES - DB R 48610007 K 1
136990007 : SEEF R EBE W TRIERER
WHBEE - UHEPRIINESREEER
Bl 238 FHA T B H A B B R
HATF 3R A7 15 167,924,000 7T ©

R-E——F+-A=+—H AEE[HEM®
BRP ] MBREE BB 45643900070 * EEBIE
HEPEASBEE ZEIEFARE FTFHBR
RITOF XS  INERBEHO K BE
gk < B EVR B S 94,479,000 7T ©

agreements.
Impairment allowances on advances: ERUR %S -
THE GROUP A&
Individual Collective
assessment assessment Total
EGIEEr SR ok
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT T
At T January 2013 RZE—=F—F—H 24,054 164,506 188,560
Increase of impairment allowances (net) EIREERE (FE) 10,437 24,800 35,237
Increase in impairment allowances EEEER 20,726 24,800 45,526
Amounts reversed o (10,289) — (10,289)
Amounts written off STiHE (20,055) — (20,055)
Recoveries of advances written off in previous years WEFFEEFEIER 557 — 557
Unwinding effect of discount rate i EHHR (238) = (238)
Exchange difference [EHE% — 119 119
Transfer to assets classified as held for sale EBRENEAGHERE (14,755) (189,425) (204,180)

At 31 December 2013 RZE—=F+-F=1—H




22. ADVANCES AND OTHER ACCOUNTS — FINANCIAL 22 ERMKEMEKRIE — & /R
SERVICES (CONTINUED) (%)
THE GROUP K&
Individual Collective
assessment assessment Total
& 513k SR ]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT
At 1 January 2012 RZE——F—F—H 40,553 172,015 212,568
Reversal of impairment allowances (net) FEEELE(FE) (57,513) (7,715) (65,228)
Increase in impairment allowances 12 0 B A 6,214 — 6,214
Amounts reversed RO (63,727) (7,715) (71,442)
Amounts written off i (3,709) — (3,709)
Recoveries of advances written off in previous years W FFEFHEIER 45,097 — 45,097
Unwinding effect of discount rate FEHHR (374) = (374)
Exchange difference X =% — 206 206
At 31 December 2012 R-E——F+-F=+—H 24,054 164,506 188,560
Details of the impaired loans are as follows: BEERFEOAT
THE GROUP A £ [8
2013 2012
—E-=F —Z-——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Gross impaired loans REEHBE = 24,194
Less: Impairment allowances under individual assessment A RIS E — (24,054)
Net impaired loans FREER — 140
Gross impaired loans as a percentage of REEFABEEPER
gross advances to customers BEIZAN — 0.06%
Market value of collateral pledged EHRmzmE — 76,635

23. ADVANCES TO AN INVESTEE COMPANY

The advances are unsecured, non-interest bearing and have no fixed
repayment terms. The effective interest rate used in calculating the
present value of the estimated discounted future cash flows of the
advances is 2.36% (2012: 2.23%).

In the opinion of the Company's directors, the investee company will
not fully repay the advances in the next twelve months from the end of

the reporting period. There is no collateral for the advances.

23. BURKRELT

ZEBRZAEEERT REREBEBETERY -
AEZERR I EACHBERRRERER
ERRABZERF R B236%( —F — —F
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 EIZ=F—=#+_-A=+—HBILFE

24. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT/PROPERTIES
UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR SALE/PROPERTIES HELD
FOR SALE

THE GROUP

As at 31 December 2013, properties under development are properties

under a redevelopment project of HK$702,200,000 (2012:

HK$702,200,000). Details are set out in note 29(b).

The cost of property held for sale recognised as an expense during the
year amounted to approximately HK$10,946,000 (2012: HK$4,759,000).

THE COMPANY
As at 31 December 2013, the Company’s properties held for sale of
HK$2,808,000 (2012: HK$2,808,000) are expected to be recovered within

one year after the end of the reporting period.

24, BROIME /GHEBRRPY
%/ sHEm%
REE

RZBE—=F+-A=+—8 BZEFYX

Th—IEERIER - #BE7022000007T (=
— 4 7702200000 7T) © FEIG RS RAKTEE
29(b) °

FRN BERLSAIIFELEDEXRTNS
7 51094600070 ( = F — = £ : A 84,759,000
JT) e

YN
NZZE—Z=ZF+_A=+—H AQRAIZH
HEYE B 2808000 L ( ZF— ZF : B
2,808,000 7T ) TR BARA #R 5 B R —F 12 (@] o

25. INVENTORIES 25. 78
THE GROUP A&
2013 2012
—E-=& —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT
The Group’s inventories comprise: AERFERHE
Raw materials Bk 2,074 97
Work in progress 2R 4,490 4,552
Finished goods A 11,903 11,898
18,467 17,417
The cost of inventories recognised as an expense during the year RAFERRAI L 2 FERALN RABE

amounted to approximately HK$30,473,000 (2012: HK$22,464,000).

The inventories are expected to be realised in the next twelve months

from the end of the reporting period.

—4F
SHMREBEARKTZEARN

304730007 (& — P 22,464,000 7T) ©

T T B
23 -
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26. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES — NON-FINANCIAL 26 BHRAMERER — FEt H
SERVICES iR 75 >
THE GROUP < £ THE COMPANY A2 5] m
o
2013 2012 2013 2012 =]
—2-Z=F —2--F —B-=F —T—F K
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 ‘g
BETT BETT BT T BETT o
Trade receivables B S EWEED 15,373 15,461 — —
Deposits for construction costs BERARES 18,965 18,800 — —
Other deposits, prepayments HinRES - BREREHK
and receivables FEUER X 79,591 57,031 5,122 5,992
113,929 91,292 5,122 5992
notes: B E
(a) Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses the potential customer's () ENTATEER  NEEFGEEREEZEEY
credit quality and defines credit limits by customer. Limits attributed to customers ERRTEREVEELR - B FRTHRSE - X
are reviewed periodically. Majority of the trade receivables that are neither past DB SRR SR HERE - BEARNECEE o
due nor impaired have no default payment history.
The Group’s credit policy allows its trade customers an average credit period of 30 AEENEERERAZSHEE (FTRERBEEAY
— 90 days, other than proceeds from sales of properties which are settled in e ey IRETH30-08 2 ZEH  —#8
accordance with the sale and purchase agreements, normally within 60 days from AAYBE RN « RAIREHR - (KE=R S
the date of agreement. The aged analysis of trade receivables of HK$15,373,000 ANE 5 EWBRFRBE 15373000 L (ZF——F : B
(2012: HK$15,461,000) presented based on the invoice date at the end of the 515,461,000 7C) Z BREE DT LA -
reporting period which are included in trade receivables is as follows:
THE GROUP AR5
2013 2012
-2z —F-F
HK$'000 HKS'000
BETT BETT
Within 30 days = 5,451 6,785
Between 31 days to 90 days 31E90H 6,352 5,214
Over 90 days HBiBoo H 3,570 3,462
15,373 15,461
(b)  As at 31 December 2013, debtors with an aggregate carrying amount of ~ (b) ~ RZF—=F+ZA=+—0  FAXRKEEYKK

HK$3,570,000 (2012: HK$3,462,000) were past due and aged over 90 days at the
end of reporting period but the Group has not provided for impairment loss for
these balances as management considers that the fundamental credit quality of
these customers has not deteriorated. The Group does not hold any collateral

2R EABE 350000 (ZT——F « B
3462,0007T) © ABRE NS BRE AHBB0R -
REBVWERZSHEH REREBTEEE  RE
RERERRZSELPZEAEEERWEAIR -

over these balances. REE R Z S AR A EAERY - 261

®

(c) All of the Group’s trade receivables are denominated in the functional currency of () REEREESREERF AR EE BRI T2 VIR =
the individual entities within the Group. EHETIE - ;:

#

(d)  The Company had no trade receivables at the end of the reporting period. )  ARFERBERRLEE 5 EEEK n
S

a

I

"
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 EIZ=F—=#+_-A=+—HBILFE

27. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 27. BE R
THE GROUP A& & THE COMPANY A 7]
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-=F —Z-——F —E-=F —T——F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BT T BETT
Cost of investments in joint ventures R ERA LM E 7 A
— unlisted — 3L 3 3 3 3
Share of post-acquisition profits TG U 18 5 7l S B4
and other comprehensive income, 2 E Uz + MK
net of dividends received B IR 8 2,765 2,658 — —
2,768 2,661 3 3
notes: BT

(@)  Asat 31 December 2013 and 2012, the Group had the following interests in

principal joint ventures:

Place of incorporation/

(a) RZE—=ZFR_F
EHEATIEEAEDE I E

——F#+-A=+—8 K&

Name of joint venture operations (lass of shares held Ownership interest Proportion of voting power held  Nature of business
RELXAR ML B FrEERMER FrakkE HERREZILA SBME
2013 2012 2012
“E-=f %X ZE-=Z§f Z—Z-Zf%
Falconmate Limited Hong Kong Ordinary 50% 50% 50%  Property investment
2 LER MERE

(b)  The summarised financial information below represents the aggregate amount of

(b)  ATEDRZMBEREAEENMEREERZ &

the Group's share of its interests in joint ventures which are not individually B3 e AR -
material:
2013 2012
—E-=F —T——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BRI
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year RERHN RE M2 EK R 107 118

(c)  There are no significant restrictions on the ability of the joint venture to transfer
funds to the Group in the form of cash dividends, or to repay loans or advances

made by the Group.

(@  HRURSBEENFARNAEEAERESHEER
SEMREHERIBRZEECERBENITES
R o



-
z
28. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 28. BiENBER iZ:
THE GROUP A8 >
31.12.2013 31.12.2012 E
—E-=F —T——F E_%
T=HA=t-8 +-A=1+—-H =
HK$'000 HK$'000 g
BET T BT &t
Unlisted shares, at cost Ll - KA — —
Share of post-acquisition profits and FriE Uk R 7 R B 2
other comprehensive income net of dividends received Hk 2 W 2 — 182,970
notes: Bt sE

(a)  Asat 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012, the Group had the following  (a) RZE—=F+ZA=+—HK=ZT—=F+=A

interests in associates: =t+—R ANEEFHA TS ARMER
Place of incorporation Proportion of voting power
Name of company and operation (lass of shares held Ownership interest (note i) Nature of business
HEREREZILA
DRER AMALREE S s ERNER iger 23 (MzED) EBHE
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-=F —E--F —E-=F —E-—F
(note ii) (note ii)
(Mi=Ei) (Cop0)
Bank Consortium Holding Limited Hong Kong Ordinary 13.3% 13.3% 14.3% 143%  Investment holding and
rovision of trustee,
FUARARLT &% £k ’

administration and
custodian services for

retirement schemes
BERRRAERKETE
RftEE - EBR
ERE
BC Reinsurance Limited Hong Kong Ordinary 21.0% 21.0% 21.0% 21.0%  Reinsurance
BNBRBERAR B Tiwk BRR
Hong Kong Life Insurance Limited Hong Kong Ordinary 16.7% 16.7% 16.7% 16.7%  Life insurance underwriting
EEABRBBERRA B ERR ASRBAR
Net Alliance Co., Limited Hong Kong Ordinary 17.6% 17.6% 15.0% 150%  Provision of internet
[ (BE)BRRA Bk Eidk services
R RS

notes: MiEr -

(i) The Group is able to exercise significant influence over all these entities because it (i) ARAEBEFRIRERRBE L AEEZEZF AR

has the power to appoint one or two directors out of five to eight directors of RENBREEFZHEP—EME - WAKEERY
these companies under the provisions stated in the shareholder’s agreements. BREERTEEEZE N ZEN - 263
m
(i) As the Group discontinued the financial services operations during the year (i) ARASEERBEE - =F+-A=+—HILF ;i
ended 31 December 2013, interests in all these entitled were transferred to assets ERIFSRRBES - SR AEZSRSHER ;
classified as held for sale (note 13). BERESHRRFRESE (M13) - ot
B
(S
a
I
#
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Forthe year ended 31 December 2013 BZE=F—=F+-A=T—HItFE

28. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED) 28.

notes: (Continued)

BisE

(b)  The summarised financial information below represents the aggregate amount of ~ (b)

the Group's share of its interests in associates which are not individually material:

Hﬁi**/Aﬁ]” (ma)

(%)

LAt 2 B 75 B RHE A R ERME R SEER 2 B &
NI ERAEEE

2013 2012

—E-=F —T——fF

HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT BETT

Other comprehensive income Hizmka 464 430
Total comprehensive income PENGEE 32,567 36,458
Profit after tax Bt g 7l 32,103 36,028

(©) There are no significant restrictions on the ability of the associates to transfer ()

funds to the Group in the form of cash dividends, or to repay loans or advance

made by the Group, except for Hong Kong Life Insurance which has to maintain

net assets of not less than 150% of the required margin of solvency which is

determined in accordance with the Hong Kong Insurance Companies (Margin of

Solvency) Regulations and which may trigger restrictions to fund transfer.

BREBASINEAGRBSEFEETLRAREZ
wso%f"ﬁ“bjﬁfi$ CENENTRERTIIRBEE

R AT (B RE N TR R ) {5k f5) T AR SE - I AT RE
ﬁ%ﬁé‘ﬁﬁ?’.f%@%‘ ) HREBE AR AR SREH
FARAEEERE S R EEREEAEHRERK
B2 BRA B EARRS] -

29. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 29. REWME
THE GROUP
KEE

note HK$'000

i3 BETT
FAIR VALUE AEEE
At T January 2012 RZE——F—F—H 6,265,247
Currency realignment BHRE (418)
Additions b 37,010
Reclassification EEoip (b) (702,200)
Disposal of an investment property HEREME (1,500)
Net increase in fair value recognised in profit or loss R REBARER 2 A FEEENFE 270,630
At31 December 2012 R-Z——F+-A=+—H 5,868,769
Currency realignment BRRE 89,787
Disposal of an investment property HEREME (7,370)
Net increase in fair value recognised in profit or loss WEMSEEARR 2 AT EEEMFE 148,302
Transferred to assets classified as held for sale (note 13) BREVBAHFNEERE (D) (136,575)
At 31 December 2013 R-Z—=F+-A=+—H 5,962,913




29. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED) 29. HREME(E)

notes: B aE

(@)  The carrying value of investment properties shown above comprises: (@  RREVEZREERRE:

THE GROUP & @
2013 2012
-2z —F-F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT

Properties held under: BT E 2

Long leases in Hong Kong REBZEREMAL 2,939,500 2,877,800
Long-term land use rights in the PRC R Bz KA b 4 260,112 252,835
Medium-term land use rights in the PRC AR B 2 R Ef A b {5 F A 2,734,101 2,574,916
Medium-term leases in Hong Kong REBZF AL 29,200 129,890
Medium-term leases outside Hong Kong REBRINZ P EAELD — 33328
5,962,913 5,868,769

(b)  For the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group transferred an investment (b)) HE-ZT——F+-A=+—HILFE  BARAKE
property located in Hong Kong amounting to HK$702,200,000 to properties ECESBAHAERURESE —BEEBE
under development as the Group had obtained the approval from the 702,200000 7LH) L EHTE R - MG HIBIRE Y FHE
government to redevelop the land. The carrying amount of the properties as at BERRERMYE - ERVENEREACERER
the date of transfer approximates to the fair value of the properties. HRATEEBEES -

(c)  All of the Group's property interests held under operating leases to earn rentals ~ (c) ~ AEEZEEROFEURDNES 2 fMEYEER
are measured using the fair value model and are classified and accounted for as BRAFEERAHE - XHBRIIERREDE -
investment properties.

(d)  Fair value measurements and valuation processes (d) AFEEFENGHERE

In estimating the fair value of investment properties, it is the Group’s policy to
engage third party qualified external valuer to perform the valuation. The
management works closely with the qualified external valuers to establish the
appropriate valuation technique and inputs to the model.

On 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012, independent valuations were
undertaken by Vigers Appraisal & Consulting Ltd. and Vigers Hong Kong Limited
(collectively referred to as “Vigers”), independent firms of professional valuers not
connected to the Group and have appropriate professional qualifications and
recent experience in the valuation of similar properties in the relevant locations.

The valuations have been arrived at using direct comparison method and income
capitalisation method, where appropriate. In the valuation, the market rentals of
all lettable units of the properties are assessed by reference to the rentals achieved
in the lettable units as well as other lettings of similar properties in the
neighbourhood. The capitalisation rate adopted is made by reference to the yield
rates observed by the valuer for the similar properties in the locality and adjusted
based on the valuers’ knowledge of the factors specific to the respective
properties.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and best use of the
properties is their current use.

BERHREMENDFEER  ARENERTIER
FE=NAARIMNEBEMETHE EREESE
REINEBEMZ A E - RIDEE W A ERM
HEREEARE -

RIZE—=ZF+_A=+—BR=_Z—Z—F+=A
=+—H BUGERHEBETEETLEMAR
RAIREBIEHT (BE) BRAR (5 [BIEET ] &
1T o BT RIS BN RIS 2 1B B R (G ER
7 HERENEAUYEETHERARENS

BEAERLEERKREENMOE(RERE)F
H oo PMEET - MEMAAIELELNTSEETY
2EAAH EDED R EARDRL Y EA K
MARERFEME - EFAMANERCL XL
2EBEMMZBERNBUDEBRERGHKE
= BEREBEGEMAANEEEYES BN E
EZ AR -

EEFMEATEER  DENERIEKERES
HERME -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 HZE=F—=

29.

(d)

E+ZA=t-RIERE

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

notes: (Continued)

Fair value measurements and valuation processes (Continued)

The following table gives information about how the fair values of these
investment properties are determined (in particular, the valuation techniques and
inputs used), as well as the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value
measurements are categorised (Levels 1 to 3) based on the degree to which the =

inputs to the fair value measurements is observable.

As at 31 December 2013

Investment properties
held by the Group in the

consolidated statement  Fair value

of financial position hierarchy
AEEBENREYEST

RSB BRR R AP EERE

Valuation technique(s)
and key input(s)

RERGREESH

29. TY !I:m ¥ ( fig )

BiEE « ()
) AFEEFENGERREE

TRILEBRENEN A HEENFEEHOER
(BEHENETAANGERDREAZE) - UKk
BAFEEETOEAZHA ARG T2
BRTFEEFESREATEBELBETHRH
(BE—ZE=&3) -

R-ZE-=f+=A=+—H

Significant
unobservable input(s)

EATUBASHNEH

Relationship of unobservable

inputs to fair value

TR ERG Y R B R
DPEENBEEF

Investment properties in Hong Kong  Level 3

EEBNRENE E=45

Direct comparison method

BHELER

The key input is

(1) Unit sale rate
(1) BRI EHEERE

Unit sale rate, taking into account the time,
location, and individual factors, such as
frontage and size, between the comparable
and the property, of ranging from HK$2,100 to
HK$7,900 per square feet on gross floor area
basis for properties and ranging from
HK$350,000 to HK$462,000 per unit for car
park spaces.

EZRBINRE - B RERBRYER
MERS 2 HANERIEE - P9
HFAERFE - BAHEERTE
REEBHETHFREBEE 200
TTEE 79007t (L AAEE B A
5t) - FE IS A B 7B % 350,000
AW 462,000 7T ©

Anincrease in the unit sale rate used would
result in an increase in the fair value
measurement of the investment properties by
the same percentage increase, and vice versa.
FrAmEMHEEE—B EF -
ECREMENRFEEFER
FERRE B LIE M - RZ TR ©



29.

(d)

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

notes: (Continued)

Fair value measurements and valuation processes (Continued)

Investment properties

29. IREWME (L)

Bt - ()

(4 AFEEFEMGEEBRE(E)

held by the Group in the
consolidated statement  Fair value Valuation technique(s)  Significant Relationship of unobservable
of financial position hierarchy and key input(s) unobservable input(s) inputs to fair value
AEEBFEHIREWET TETERIS i 2 R
RS BRR R AFEEEE GEEROREIEZH EATTEABHNEY A EENBER
Investment properties in Hong Kong Level 3 Income capitalisation method
EEBNREMHE E=47 6 3-wN|d
The key input are
(1) Reversion yield Reversion yield, taking into account of the Aslightincrease in the reversion yield used
(1) FAHATR By [ 3R = capitalisation of rental income potential, would resultin a significant decrease in the
nature of the property and prevailing market ~ fair value measurement of the investment
condition, of ranging from 2.5% to 4.8%. properties, and vice versa.
EZEINESEBERAERNE ¥ FANABEZNDREEAFEM
EMERBERTR  BTRER A §REVENATEE
TEF525% & 48% AAEAEATH  RZMA -
(2) Monthly market rent Monthly market rents, taking into account of A sslight increase in the monthly market rent
QN EAmBEHES time, location and individual factors such as used would resultin a significant increase in
frontage and size, between the comparable the fair value measurement of the investment
and the property, of ranging from HK$29 to properties, and vice versa.
HKS280 per square feet per monthon lettable AT #) & A TS €& A &M
area basis. FeScREVENRTFEE
ZEINGH B RERYER SEFERNLA RZIFA-
MERE zHWEREE - 075
mRFE - GAWSHESR AR
A AEES G R EE 29
TTEEE280TT °
Investment properties in the PRC Level 3 Direct comparison method
EHENREYE FE=M7 HERBUA

The key input is

(1) Unit sale rate
(1) B EHEER

Unit sale rate, taking into account the time,
location, and individual factors, such as
frontage and size, between the comparable
and the property, of ranging from RMB6,440
to RMB24,700 per square meter on gross floor
area basis for properties and RMB138,000 per
unit for car park spaces.

Z BB - B R R 3
WMERE 2 R ERIEE - P9
HfEERPE - BHEEBRE
REAEBHF T KB ARB440
TE AR 247007 (FREIEEE
Bat)  FESHEDEABARK
138,000 7T °

An'increase in the unit sale rate used would
resultin an increase in the fair value
measurement of the investment properties by
the same percentage increase, and vice versa.
FTAMBMHEER—B LA
ELREMENATFEEFER
FEEMB DN - RZ IR -
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Forthe year ended 31 December 2013 BZE=F—=F+-A=T—HItFE

29. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

notes: (Continued)

(d)  Fair value measurements and valuation processes (Continued)

Investment properties
held by the Group in the

29. &
BT« (88)

L/E ¢ )]

(4 AFEEFENGEEBREE

consolidated statement  Fair value Valuation technique(s)  Significant Relationship of unobservable
of financial position hierarchy and key input(s) unobservable input(s) inputs to fair value
AEEBFEHREWET TEERIE 2R
RERE B BMRR R AFEEEE GEROREIEZH EATTEABHNEZY A EENBER

Investment propertiesinthe PRC~ Level 3 Income capitalisation method

EREEIRE DX E=HA & E-wN(d

The key input are
ZEHA

(1) Reversion yield
(1) KK ERE

(2) Monthly market rent
(WEsEhikoviika

Reversion yield, taking into account of the
capitalisation of rental income potential,
nature of the property and prevailing market
condition, of ranging from 6.5% to 7.0%.
EZRINESBEBABRE Y
EMERBRTR  EiIREX
TE B 65% 22 7.0%

Monthly market rents, taking into account of
time, location and individual factors such as
frontage and size, between the comparable
and the property, of ranging from RMB164 to
RMBB821 per square meter per month on
lettable area basis.

ZRERE - B R R Y R
MEAG 2 HANEREE W75
mkFE - §ATSESIIRR
AHEEEF ST RBARE
164 TTEARE 1T

Aslightincrease in the reversion yield used
would result in a significant decrease in the
fair value measurement of the investment
properties, and vice versa.

FfT R £ 18 HA 14 1 [B] ¥ 2 35 75 B0
A g<cREMENDTEE
SAEAEATH  RZMA -

Aslightincrease in the monthly market rent
used would result in a significant increase in
the fair value measurement of the investment
properties, and vice versa.
FIAMEAmSHEeEAEME
T goREMENDTEE
EHEERELA RZIFA -

The fair values of all investment properties at 31 December 2012 and 31
December 2013 were measured using valuation techniques with significant
unobservable inputs and hence were classified as Level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy.

In estimating the fair value of the Group's investment properties, the Group used
market observable data to the extent it is available. Where level 1 inputs are not
available, the Group engages third party qualified valuers to perform the valuation
of the Group's investment properties. At the end of each reporting period, the
Group works closely with the qualified external valuers to establish and determine
the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for Level 2 and Level 3 fair value
measurements. The Group will first consider and adopt Level 2 inputs where
inputs can be derived observable quoted prices in the active market. When level 2
inputs are not available, the Group will adopt valuation techniques that include
Level 3 inputs. Where there is a material change in the fair value of the assets, the
causes of the fluctuations will be reported to the directors of the Company.

—E— 4+ ZA=+—HBk=ZT—=F+=ZA=+—H
FIEREMENAFEEDFNBERTEHASLHNEKRS
ABHZEERDT  MOBARNTFEBERBE =47 -

EHFAEEREMENATEES  AKEERIFSER
MERGI TEERMMES LA BAEE - EFE —ABBAE
BYTAGE  AEESZBE= A EREENEAEE
REMEEHGEE  ESWEHR  ARERSERID
BEBAAE MBI RETESE - RFIRE=FH A TE
BEFfENAE[MERDREARY - AEEEH AR EA
f»éxﬂ%mﬁﬁj:ﬂ‘)—]éﬁﬁﬂtﬁfﬁqﬂﬁﬁjﬁm/\ AR gEER
E@%ﬁﬁ%*ﬁ&)ﬁu *%&HUEW\ AR AT R &
BEERXT

{Efﬁﬁﬁﬁ §JJE¢ B EEEAARRERER -
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30. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 30. M*% - MEK®% iZ:
Furniture, fixtures, E
Leasehold land motor vehicles g
and buildings Plantand and computer =]
(note a) machinery equipment Total g
BETHRESF B 2B =5 -
(HizEa) L REKZE BE o
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BET T BT BT
THE GROUP rEE
(0ST B
At 1 January 2012 WZE——F—F—H 941,610 26,404 621,254 1,589,268
Currency realignment EHs R — (6) 492 486
Additions N 15,896 2,506 59,160 77,562
Disposals HE — — (15,694) (15,694)
At 31 December 2012 RZE——F+-A=+—H 957,506 28,904 665,212 1,651,622
Currency realignment sk 406 780 3,192 4378
Additions 20 6,675 1,651 30,734 39,060
Transferred to assets classified as held  EREZ DI AF L EGE
for sale (note 13) (3 13) (659,066) — (565,426) (1,224,492)
Disposals HE (560) (320) (10,119) (10,999)
At 31 December 2013 RZE—=f+-A=1+—H 304,961 31,015 123,593 459,569
DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION B R # s
At 1 January 2012 RZE——F—F—H 144,041 13,498 467,745 625,284
Currency realignment EH AR — ?3) 21) (24)
Charge for the year KEEYH 19,413 1,428 52,150 72,991
Eliminated on disposals P ER — — (13,536) (13,536)
At 31 December 2012 RZE——&#+-A=+—H 163,454 14,923 506,338 684,715
Currency realignment BEAE 359 409 1,558 2326
Charge for the year KEEYRH 18,744 1,770 46,112 66,626
Transferred to assets classified as held EEENEAGHEELE
for sale (note 13) (F5E) (152,990) — (435,800) (588,790)
Eliminated on disposals A SR (195) (288) (8,347) (8,830)
At 31 December 2013 RZE-—=F+-A=+—H 29,372 16,814 109,861 156,047
CARRYING VALUE REE
At 31 December 2013 RZE-—=F+-A=+—H 275,589 14,201 13,732 303,522 2:9
At 31 December 2012 RZE——F+-A=1+—H 794,052 13,981 158,874 966,907 ;i
.
ot
=
I
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 EIZ=F—=#+_-A=+—HBILFE

30. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED) 30. ME - -HERFZREB ()
Furniture, fixtures,
Leasehold land motor vehicles
and building and computer
(note a) equipment Total
HETHREFT G £E =H
(FfizEa) REKGRE #E
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
BETT BET T BET T
THE COMPANY p /N
osT R
At 1January 2012 R-ZE-——%—-7—H 555 14,484 15,039
Additions N — 712 712
Disposals HeE — (1,123) (1,123)
At 31 December 2012 RZE-——F+=-fA=+—H 555 14,073 14,628
Additions 20 — 601 601
Disposals HE — (1,049) (1,049)
At 31 December 2013 RZE—=%+ZA=1—H 555 13,625 14,180
DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION TEREHE
At 1 January 2012 WZE—-——F—H—H — 12,602 12,602
Charge for the year AEESH 11 806 817
Eliminated on disposals PHERLH — (1,123) (1,123)
At 31 December 2012 R-ZE-——F+-fB=+—H N 12,285 12,296
Charge for the year AEELTH 11 772 783
Eliminated on disposals P ERLH — (1,049) (1,049)
At 31 December 2013 R-E—=F+-F=+—H 22 12,008 12,030
CARRYING VALUE IREE
At 31 December 2013 RZB-—=F+-A=+—H 533 1,617 2,150
At 31 December 2012 RZE-——F+=-fA=1+—H 544 1,788 2332
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30. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

notes:

(a)  This includes certain leasehold land as the allocation between the land and
building element of certain properties cannot be made reliably.

As at 31 December 2013, included in leasehold land and building is property with
carrying value of HK$269,268,000 to be sold by CHB to the Group upon disposal
of CHB Group.

(b)  The above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-
line basis at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold land and buildings Over the shorter of the term of the lease or 2% to 3%
Plant and machinery 10%

Furniture, fixtures, motor vehicles and computer equipment  10-20%

(c)  The carrying amounts of leasehold land and buildings shown above comprise:

30. MK MBERR
FiISE -

(%&)

() ARE TYEREEL W REFEEMAUSHY
fic - ETHET HMABRES -
RZT—=F+=-A=+—08 &8+ REF
¥E — {6 BR T 1B B 75 %5 269,268,000 L Z ¥ % © B A
RS BIFRT T4 - (RAIFRITE FASE -

(b)  LEtmE - BERREEE DREGEEATIE

RITE
HELHRETF TREE 2 MK F B 2% % 3%
B R s 10%

B £ EHLEMRE  10-20%

(0 LEAEETHRETFHREESE

THE GROUP &2 THE COMPANY AR 7]
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-cF —F--F —E-c=F =B==f
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
BETT BB BETT BB
Leasehold land and buildingsin Hong Kong: ~ AEBMBE L RET
Held on long-term lease BREHEORE
(over 50 years unexpired) (RIS EMBERTE) 269,268 317,336 — —
Held on medium-term lease RREABORE
(1050 years unexpired) (HBEMRTERTER) — 462,392 — —
Leasehold land and buildings outside Hong Kong:  IAE B ASMOTRE 3t RIET
Held on medium-term lease RREABORE
(10-50 years unexpired) (FFEERtEa+ER) 6,321 14,324 533 544
275,589 794,052 533 544
31. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 31. RffifAEZ N
THE GROUP A& [E
2013 2012
—E-=F —T——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BETT
The Group's prepaid lease payments comprise: AREzENESTHEE
Leasehold land outside Hong Kong held on medium term RRBANOREBIMNGE CHELH — 2423
Analysed as: DM :
Current portion REEH — 66
Non-current portion EREHES = 2,357
— 2423

As the Group discontinued the financial services operations during the
year ended 31 December 2013, prepaid lease payments were transferred

to assets classified as held for sale (note 13.)

BE-F-SFT-AST-ALFE &
REEELEESRRBRY  GANES
X E SR ARG EEE (W) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
w6 B F5 ¥k K B 5F

For the year ended 31 December 2013 EIZ=F—=#+_-A=+—HBILFE

32. DEFERRED TAXATION 32. IRFEEMIA

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement of Bt 254 MR X ET KR REM S -
financial position and statement of financial position, certain deferred ETELERBEEERBEDIEE - L TAR
tax assets and liabilities have been offset. The following is the analysis of ~ Bf TS 3R B ) 2 IEEFR B DT

the deferred tax balances for financial reporting purposes:

THE GROUP A £ & THE COMPANY 222 7]
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-=F —Z—_fF —E-=F —T——F
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
BT T BB BT T BT
Deferred tax assets EEHIBEE 680 2,182 680 680
Deferred tax liabilities ELFHIEEE (209,887) (213,009) — —
(209,207) (210,827) 6380 680

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities and assets recognised A N RAEE R AR T RARFERANEFE
by the Group and the Company and movements thereon during the B R FEZRLENIBEEEREEANREE

current and prior years. g o
Difference of (ollectively Revaluation Revaluation
accounting asessed ofnvestment ofavallable- -~ Remeasurement
and tax impaiment properties for-ale of etrement
Qepreciation llowance inthe PRC investments benefits Taklosses Total
EHERA SR EfnrE Eftmh EifitE
fEzER AERE  RENE HERE EiEA REFE a3t
HKS'000 HKS 000 Hk§'000 Hks'000 k000 HkS'000 HKS'000
BETT BETR BETR BETR BRETR BT BT
THE GROUP pis:4E]
At January 2072 RZ5-Z%-A-H %17 (17569 158340 Al 6% (1319 163819
(harg ) o e s RERERR GIA)
—fiomoniningoperatios - RERERE 148 - 111 - - (68 17
— fom discontiued opetions - KEE&HEE W 1% % - - - m
Gagetooterompelensienomefrtieyer — RAEEAB2EAERNR
— fiom discontnued opratons - RERARE - - - 29816 - - 1816
At31 December 2012 RZF-ZF+-A=1+-A 38465 (36331) 17258 30603 16% (6,000) 1080
(harge ) o it s REGERIRGIA)
— fom contining opereions - RERETE i - 19497 - - (%] iy
— from discontnued opratons -RECKHER 418 (.5) 198 - - - 2463
(reitto ohercomprenensiencomefor heyer RAFEEEANERTA
— fiom discontnued opratons -REBHKHES - - - () - - (77)
Tansered assesCessiedasheld orsde (e 1) ERZEHBAEHELE (Hiin) (15579 Bk (L837) (1839 (169 - (L160)
31 ecember 2013 RB-=F+-R=1-H % - 189574 - - 8350 15207
THE COMPANY piON
At ey 072 WZF-2%-F-H (61 - - - - - (610
Ceditoprftrlos WERERE A m - - - - - ]
31 December 2012and RZE-—F+-R=+-Hk
31 December 013 “E-=E+CA=1-H (680) - - - - - (680)




32. DEFERRED TAXATION (CONTINUED)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had unused tax losses of
approximately HK$357 million (2012: HK$304 million) available for
offset against future profits. A deferred tax asset has been recognised in
respect of approximately HK$50 million (2012: HK$48 miillion) of such
losses. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the
remaining tax loss of approximately HK$307 million (2012: HK$256
million) due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. The tax

losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

The Company had no unused tax losses at the end of the reporting

period.

Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed on dividends
declared in respect of profits earned by PRC subsidiaries and CHB's PRC
branch from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation has not been
provided for in the consolidated financial statements in respect of the
temporary differences attributable to accumulated profits of the PRC
subsidiaries amounting to HK$18,139,500 (2012: PRC subsidiaries and
CHB's PRC Bank, HK$31,984,800) as the Group is able to control the
timing of the reversal of these temporary differences and it is probable

that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

32. IRFEMIA (F8)

RS EIR - NEE =B 4978 % 357,000,000 7T
(ZZ—ZF : #¥30400000070) Z A B) A
BHEBAAEEEARREN - BF 0B
50,000,000 7% ( =& — = 4 : 73 % 48,000,000 7T )
ERRBAELERIEEE - AREETRARK
i A RO - H 8 4978 ¥ 307000000 ( = F
— 4+ ##256000000 T ) Z FLIBE 1B I K
BRAELERIEEE - BIEBEERIL
i3 o

ARRRREHERRLEREH 2 HIAEE -

BEBEFBRECERESE BT N\F— A
—B# FEMEBRRREIERITHRES
FTHRECH A E IR 2 REBAFHNTENT - B
RAEBEHEGRE R ER 2R M
EAERERA TGN RAERER - i
MARGEEVBREMPEMB LR RER
Mz By = BB 18139500 L (=T — =4 ¢
REME AR RAIEBITHRBE ST B
31,984,800 7T, ) 1 IR AE R TR o

33. GOODWILL 33. B2
THE GROUP K&
2013 2012
—EB-=F —E—CfF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BRI BT
osT XA
At 1 January R—A—H 110,606 110,606
Transferred to assets classified as held for sale (note 13) BEZHIEAFHELE (1) (110,606) —
At 31 December R+—A=+—8 — 110,606
IMPAIRMENT A
At 1 January »—A—H 60,000 60,000
Transferred to assets classified as held for sale (note 13) HERENAAFHEEE (M:E3) (60,000) —
At 31 December R+—A=+—H — 60,000
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 37 December W+-—A=+—H — 50,606
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

= © B #5 ¥ X B 5
For the year ended 31 December 2013 EIZ=F—=#+_-A=+—HBILFE

33. GOODWILL (CONTINUED)

The Group acquired 100% of issued share capital of Chong Hing
Insurance Company Limited. The amount of goodwill arising as a result
of acquisition was HK$110,606,000.

For the year ended 31 December 2012, management had reviewed
goodwill for impairment testing purpose. The review comprised a
comparison of the carrying amount and value in use of an acquired
subsidiary (the smallest cash-generating unit) to which the goodwill had

been allocated. The acquired subsidiary is involved in insurance business.

The value in use calculations primarily used cash flow projections based
on the three-year financial budgets approved by management of the
subsidiary and estimated terminal value at the end of the three year
period. There were a number of assumptions and estimates involved for
the preparation of cash flow projections for the period covered by the
approved budget and the estimated terminal value. Key assumptions
include the expected growth in revenues (growth rate at 3.5% to 4%)

and selection of discount rates (12%).

Value in use was derived at by discounting the expected future cash

flows.

The management of the Group determined that there is no impairment

loss on the goodwill for the year ended 31 December 2012.

34. FINANCIAL ASSETS SOLD UNDER REPURCHASE

33. BHE(8)
A& B B U R A ER B A BR A B 100% B 31T
RS o R U B 2 AE RO P2 5B #5110,606,000 7T ©

HE-_ZT——-F+-A=+—HLEFE B
BESAENARTEE - R B2ELEEEK
BHBAR(RIMREEEEL) REEM
D EHEREREB - WEKB A AR
SRBER

FEREEFZZNAEMERREIREIEDN
ZEMBHEEREEZReREWARN=
FHRZ M HEETE - RESENTER
M REMRENRAR RS REEA
B R ERER R c TEBRRBEREZ
TEHIE R (R EA35%E 4%) MR E 28
1 (12%) °

EREELRRARARKREREESE -

AEEEREERTETHZ —_T——F1+—- A

=t+—BLLEFE HELERERX-
34. ROBHRBATLEEZEMNEE

AGREEMENTS
THE GROUP A&

2013 2012
—ZT-=F —E_F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT

Analysed by collateral type: MR mEER AT -

Debt securities classified as: BEEFIEAR
Available-for-sale AfELE — 326,687
Held-to-maturity BEZIHH — 106,994
— 433,681

As the Group discontinued the financial services operations during the
year ended 31 December 2013, all financial assets sold under repurchase
agreements were transferred to liabilities associated with assets classified

as held for sale (note 13).

BE_T—=Ft_A=+—HLEFE XK
SEERIIELSRRBES - KOBHE
THEZERMEELRBEREZVEAFHE
BEZHBAE (ME3) -



34. FINANCIAL ASSETS SOLD UNDER REPURCHASE
AGREEMENTS (CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2012, debt securities which were classified as

available-for-sale and held-to-maturity with carrying amount of

HK$393,490,000 and HK$117,621,000 respectively were sold under

repurchase agreements with other banks. All repurchase agreements

were due within 12 months from the end of the reporting period.

35. DEPOSITS FROM BANKING CUSTOMERS

34. ROBHRBZITEHECEMEE
(%)

R-E——F+-_A=+—8  nHEAA#

TEREEEIHA REES N ABE

393,490,000 7T M 75 5 117,621,000 TT KU (E 15 B 5 &

HEAMIRITAI BB & S - PrE DS

MBI ESAEE AR+ @A NI -

35. IRTBFER

THE GROUP A&
2013 2012
—E-=F —T——F
HK$000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Demand deposits and current accounts ERERRERER — 5,189,09
Savings deposits REER — 21,460,179
Time, call and notice deposits FHERRBAER — 40,712,171
— 67,361,446

As the Group discontinued the financial services operations during the
year ended 31 December 2013, all deposits from banking customers
were transferred to liabilities associated with assets classified as held for

sale (note 13).

36. CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSIT

The CHB Group issued certificates of deposit which were measured at
amortised cost with a total carrying amount of HK$667,636,000 as at 31
December 2012. Included in certificates of deposit were certificates of
deposit of HK$100,000,000 issued at the rate of three-month HIBOR
plus 1% which was matured in 2013 and certificates of deposit of
approximately HK$567,636,000 issued at interest rate between 1.0% to
2.9% per annum which was matured in 2013. All certificates of deposit

issued were not secured by any collateral.

As the Group discontinued the financial services operations during the
year ended 31 December 2013, all certificates of deposit were transferred

to liabilities associated with assets classified as held for sale (note 13).

HE-_T-—=-"F+-_A=Z+—AHLEFE &
SEERIEEESRMBER  WBRTERP
FREHERESHEARLEELEEZEHES
& (FE13) ©

36. TF A&
BIERITRBBITUNEBHEKATE  RF
—ZF+ A=+ HRLEEEALE
667,636000 T 2 17 5K 5E - FHRFEABEE R
T-=FIH R=EABBRITRAERFS
S N11% 317745 100,000,000 7 2 F507E © RE
RZZT—=FHHR21.0% = 29% F FI R EEITH
P8 ¥ 567,636,000 7L 2 FF 3R FE © FT B BT
R B MERHE R mEE A -
HE-_T—=F+-A=+—BLFE K
SEERIEKERBRBEER  HFERER
FEEBEEZHHAFLELEE 2 HBAE (MM
13) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
w6 B F5 ¥k K B 5F

For the year ended 31 December 2013 EIZ=F—=#+_-A=+—HBILFE

37. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 37. B KEMEREKRMR
THE GROUP A £ & THE COMPANY 7822 7]
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-=F “ZT-CF —E-=F —T-CF
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
BETT BT BET T BT
Trade payables B S ENER 4,601 11,304 — —
Construction costs payables e SR AR 58,181 117,791 — —

Deposits received and receipt in REMEZ
advance in respect of rental of BlEe K

investment properties el ¢tk 98,147 122,484 — —

Account payable in relation to BHRHENER
securities dealing — 171,426 — —
Interest payable to banking customers  fERFSR1TR P A8 — 188,428 — —
Other payables H i ETERA 51,736 367,894 10,352 8,238
212,665 979,327 10,352 8,238

At the end of the reporting period, included in trade and other payables ~ &R - B 5 BN ERFEE 46010007T( =
are trade payables of HK$4,601,000 (2012: HK$11,304,000) and the aged ~ T — =% : B¥ 11304000 70) EXER BT A

analysis of which presented based on the invoice date is as follows: B 5 REMBEMERR - KRR HTIAT ¢
THE GROUP A £
2013 2012
—E-=f —T--F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BETT
Within 30 days AR 4,601 11,304
The Company had no trade payables at the end of the reporting period. AR BIR¥RE BRI #HE 5 EAIRK ©

The average credit period on purchases of goods is 30 days. The Group BEE Sz FHEEHA308 - KEED 4
has financial risk management policies in place to ensure that all FHHERERBREE - AR A EMNER
payables are settled within the credit timeframe. PREERAZA -

2
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38. LOAN CAPITAL 38. fEE&EMN :z:

THE GROUP A8 >

2013 m B

—E-=F —T——F ;_C%

HK$ 000 Hesoo

BT T BT g

155225 million fixed rate subordinated note due 2020 R-E=TFE 82 0500000 T EE B E ol

under fair value hedge (after adjustment of BEZBRUATEEE R (BIENE

hedged interest rate risk) (note) BB 5 2 ) (BT ) — 1,898,957

note: This represented a subordinated note qualifying as tier 2 capital with face value of

US$225,000,000 issued on 5 November 2010. The note will mature on 4 November
2020. If at any time (on or) after 1 January 2013, the note no longer fully qualifies
as term subordinated debt for inclusion in Category Il — Supplementary Capital
of CHB upon changes to regulatory requirements, CHB may, at its option and
subject to the prior written approval of the HKMA, exercise a change of the status
of the note by serving the “Change in Status Notice” to the noteholders. Upon a
“Change in Status Notice” becoming effective, the note shall thereafter constitute
unsubordinated obligations and the interest rate on the note shall be reduced
from 6% per annum to 5.5% per annum. As “Change in Status Notice” has not
been served, the rate of interest on the note remains at 6% per annum.

All subordinated notes issued were not secured by any collateral.

As the Group discontinued the financial services operations during the year
ended 31 December 2013, all subordinated notes issued were transferred to assets

classified as held for sale (note 13).

BRE - WRER

R ZHEE A225000000F TR =T —F
FH—ARAET  WAIERANBRER o IERIEE
HEA_ZT_ZTH+—ANH - MR T —=F—
A—Bsz BEAEE AREERERTES -
I RBETBTE/EEIBIRITEAN I — M & RF
MEERE  AERRTEERESEREMMELL
AT HEBESAERH [RRESRMNE ] UE
SBEHEMRR - B [MAEEBNE] A8 HE
BHEERBRIBERT  URBFLEHw ME
Fs5%c BIVRAEL MAEZBNE]  ZEY
FRERFES °

FrABBITHRERRIDRAE AKIRRERA -

HRAEERBE_Z—=F+ _A=+—HLF
REAKIESRRBEE  MACBETREZSRER
ENERFHEEAE (HE13) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
w6 B F5 ¥k K B 5F

For the year ended 31 December 2013 EIZ=F—=#+_-A=+—HBILFE

39. BORROWINGS 39. {8
THE GROUP A58 THE COMPANY ZX A 5]
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-=F —Z——F —E-=F —Z——F
notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
s BETT BETT BT T BETT
Bank loans RITER
Secured pogeigii 842,525 909,141 258,267 299,067
Unsecured IR 2,917,592 2,799,549 2,917,592 2,799,549
Total bank borrowings RITEREE 3,760,117 3,708,690 3,175,859 3,098,616
Amounts due to joint ventures ERABNEIE (@) 1,886 1,639 1,886 1,639
Amounts due to non-controlling FEAIEIR R
interests shareholders SN (b) 20,173 19,791 — —
3,782,176 3,730,120 3,177,745 3,100,255
The maturity of borrowings ET Pl
is as follows: NS
Carrying amount repayable: BIERREE - ()
Within one year —FR 1,731,715 399,067 1,731,715 399,067
More than one year but —FRETBH
not exceeding two years ME 418,952 — 406,802 —
More than two years but MERBTER
not exceeding five years 1E 1,529,450 = 957,342 =
3,680,117 399,067 3,095,859 399,067
Carrying amount of bank loans that (A& R EFZAM
are repayable on demand due to HEEX(ERY
breach of loan covenants RITEFREE (d) — 3,229,623 — 2,619,549
Carrying amount of bank loans that /8 8R4 £
are not repayable within REFH—FRA
one year from the end of BE KA
the reporting period but contain EEREEZHIT
arepayment on demand clause EXEREE 80,000 80,000 80,000 80,000
Amounts due to joint ventures [ERNAENERE 1,886 1,639 1,886 1,639
Amounts due to non-controlling e
interests shareholders HIE 20,173 19,791 — —
3,782,176 3,730,120 3,177,745 3,100,255
Amount due within one year R—FRFIH xR
— Bank borrowings —RITER 1,811,715 3,708,690 1,811,715 3,098,616
— Amounts due to joint —EREELE
ventures B 1,886 1,639 1,886 1,639
— Amounts due to — R
non-controlling FHER
interests shareholders PR IR 20,173 19,791 — —
1,833,774 3,730,120 1,813,601 3,100,255
Amounts due after one year R—F & BIH xR
— Bank borrowings —HRITER 1,948,402 — 1,364,144 —
3,782,176 3,730,120 3,177,745 3,100,255




39. BORROWINGS (CONTINUED) 39. & (5&)

notes: B aE

(a)  These borrowings are unsecured, bear variable interest at an effective interest rate ()  ZEERABEE  FERFHF NS BRF
at 0.10% (2012: 0.15%) per annum (repriced monthly) and are repayable on L755010% (=T —=4F : 015%) (B ABATFEK) » 1
demand. RIEERIEE -

(b)  These borrowings are unsecured and repayable on demand. An amount of — (b) & E {55 A KR K78 8 2 S8 E 4755 9,260,000
approximately HK$9,260,000 (2012: HK$9,469,000) bears variable interest at an T(ZZ—ZF : B 94690007T) 2 HIBHFIZF
effective interest rate of 2.02% (2012: 1.96%) per annum (repriced monthly), while BFRTE - BEFNERE200%(ZF—ZF : 196%)
the remaining amounts are non-interest bearing. (BRETNE)  fBEANRRE -

(c)  The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan  (c)  ARIRGILE 5% AT 78 38 71 B #8751 0R
agreements.

(d)  During the year ended 31 December 2012, as a result of the consolidation of the — (d) HEZZ—ZF+ZA=+—HILFEAX - ARE

CHB Group, certain bank loan covenants in respect of the Group's total liabilities ERTEENGH  BERTHRAKEEBRELE
were breached. Upon discovery of the breach, the directors of the Company FIRITERRY - ERRENE  AARESHA
informed the relevant lenders and commenced negotiation for the revision of the HEERA - TEREREREKREEEERAR
terms of the loans with the relevant lenders. As at 31 December, 2012, such FER - RZT——F+-A=+—8 BEEHkX
negotiation had not been concluded and accordingly, the Group had reclassified ERHH  WERGIL ST B RRE - REBHFT
all relevant loans as current liabilities for the purpose of these financial statements. EHRBERENDERRBDEME -
In March 2013, consents for non-compliance of such loan covenants were E<‘_7 ZFZR ARERTETFHEEREZLY
obtained by the Group from all relevant lenders. Accordingly, the directors are of SHARBERANRE - Bt EFRR8 A
the opinion that all such borrowings will continue to be repaid in accordance EEZI ?%#\H%QLE%&E”*iﬁiﬂ’]@%ﬁ?ﬂﬁ%lﬁi
with their original repayment schedules from one to five years. No non- E3& - EA_gffiJr R=+—8 U\ERT
compliance of loan covenants was noted at 31 December 2013. BTERZLHNER

(e)  The Group's borrowings that are denominated in a currency other than the  (e)  AEEUEBEEBEENGEEEIAINZ A EEST]
functional currency of the relevant group entities are set out below: BEzEROT :

Denominated in HK$
LA HTIE
HK$'000

BYTT

As at 31 December 2013 ﬁé:?*EEJr:H +—H 258,292

As at 31 December 2012 RZE—-F+-A=1+—H 272,839

() Asat31December 2013, bank loans of HK$3,397,324,000 (2012: HK$3,336864000) ()  WM-F—=%+ZA=+—H RITEFEE

and HK$362,793,000 (2012: HK$371,826,000) are variable-rate borrowings which
carry interest at HIBOR and prevailing interest rates offered by the People’s Bank
of China, plus a margin per annum, respectively. The effective interest rates ranged
from 1.87% to 6.60% (2012: 1.60% to 4.86%) per annum. Interest rates are repriced
monthly. Details of assets pledged are set out in note 48.

3397,324,000 70 ( =% — Z4F : 3,336,864,000 7T ) M2 5 B
362,793,000 70 ( =& — Z 4 : 15371826000 7T) 5 5
RUBBRTRERSTENZLER - REP
ARRITUARGTEEBEFS NN EZRENZEE
o BEFMENTEF187%E660%( —T— 4 :
160% Z 486%) © FIE G AEHEE - CIEMEEF
TEHEARMI 48 ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 EIZ=F—=#+_-A=+—HBILFE

40. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

40. BRI ZIRE

THE COMPANY 22 &
2013 2012
—E-=F —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Cost of unlisted shares/deemed capital contribution FELTRG / BEETER A 565,257 514,800
Less: Impairment loss recognised w ERRRESE (201,803) (199,045)
363,454 315,755

In view of the accumulated losses and net liabilities position of certain
subsidiaries, the directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amount of investments in these subsidiaries are not recoverable and
accordingly the investment costs in these subsidiaries have been fully

impaired.

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 December
2013 and 2012 are set out in note 53.

41. AMOUNTS DUE FROM SUBSIDIARIES

THE COMPANY

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured and have no fixed
repayment terms. Of the amounts, approximately HK$2,673,878,000
(2012: HK$4,111,613,000) bears variable interest at an effective interest
rate ranging from 1.97% to 2.04% (2012: 1.87% to 1.98%) per annum
(repriced semi-annually) and the remaining balance is non-interest
bearing. The effective interest rate used in calculating the present value
of the estimated discounted future cash flows of the non-interest

bearing amounts due from subsidiaries is 2.02% (2012: 1.96%).

In the opinion of the Company’s directors, the amounts due from
subsidiaries will not be repayable in the next twelve months from the
end of the reporting period and, accordingly, the amounts have been
classified as non-current assets. The carrying amounts of the amounts
due from subsidiaries approximate to its fair value. The credit risk on
amounts due from subsidiaries is limited as the subsidiaries are in sound
financial positions. There is no collateral for the amounts due from

subsidiaries.

ERETHBARZ REBERMABEFEN
N RRAEZERR REFMBRARZEK
ARREEDTRKE - FHik 2 s % EH B
RALZ BB BRI E R -

N—E—=ER-—FT——F+—-_A=+—H
N

ZARBEBZMB AR FBEHNMIFESS
41. [EULBRE 2 SRR
VNS

JRE M5B B 2 ) B R A A R e R [ TR AR KR
FEHERERF - 4788267387800 L( = F
—ZF A% 411161300070 BFIRERIFE
FENF197% FE204% ( —F— —4F 1 187% %
198%) 5t B (BHFBFIFX) AERRE °
REtE R E AR R BERR 2 AT ERER
RERBRERERERKA 2 EBEFIER202%
(ZT—ZF 1 196%) °
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42. NON-INTEREST BEARING ADVANCES FROM
SUBSIDIARIES

THE COMPANY

The amounts are unsecured, non-interest bearing and are not repayable
in the next twelve months from the end of the reporting period.
Accordingly, the amounts have been classified as non-current liabilities.
The effective interest rate used in calculating the present value of the
estimated discounted future cash flows of these advances is 2.02% (2012:

1.96%) per annum.

42, BRI ERM
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Z2ERBRAEER  RERBANERE!
ﬁiﬂﬁ+9ﬁ5}5+:1ﬁﬂ WEE - Bt ZER
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FMEE200%(ZF—ZF : 196%) °

43. SHARE CAPITAL 43. BRIK
Number of shares Share capital
ROEE R
2013 & 2012 2013 & 2012
“E-ZFR “E-ZFR
—B-CF —E-CF
HK$'000
BT
Ordinary shares of HK$ 1 each SREEAE T ERR
Authorised: EERAE
At T January and 31 December R—B—-BEk+=-A=1+—H 600,000,000 600,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRERRA -
At T January and 31 December R—B—-BEk+=-A=1+—H 378,583,440 378,583
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44. RESERVES 44. bR
Property Investment Capital
revaluation revaluation redemption  Accumulated
reserve reserve reserve profits Total
WEERGEE REERGEE REAEDRHE EXynyl w@ct
HK$"000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BET T BET T BET T BT
THE COMPANY VN
At 1 January 2012 RZZ——%—A—H 448 52,725 2,955 1,790,525 1,846,653
Fair value gain on AHHEREZ
available-for-sale investments NEEENRE — 745 — — 745
Profit for the year NEEHF — — — 10,954 10,954
Total comprehensive income AEE2ENE
for the year ek — 745 — 10,954 11,699
Dividends recognised as EERRAIRL
distribution RE — — — (106,003) (106,003)
At 31 December 2012 RZE——F+-F=1+—H 448 53,470 2,955 1,695,476 1,752,349
Fair value loss on AHHEREZ
available-for-sale investments NEEEEE — (24,819) — — (24,819)
Profit for the year KEERR — — — 21,238 21,238
Total comprehensive (expense) AFEL2E(IL)
income for the year lgyets — (24,819) — 21,238 (3,581)
Dividends recognised as BERBADIEL
distribution RE — — — (106,003) (106,003)
At 31 December 2013 RZE—=F+-F=+—H 448 28,651 2,955 1,610,711 1,642,765




45. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

(A) SHARE OPTION SCHEME OF THE COMPANY

The Company's share option scheme (the “2002 Scheme”) was adopted
pursuant to a resolution passed on 25 April 2002, for the primary
purpose of providing incentives to directors and eligible employees, and
expired on 24 April 2012. Under the 2002 Scheme, the Company could
grant options to eligible employees, including executive directors of the
Company and its subsidiaries, to subscribe for shares in the Company at
HKS$10 per option. Additionally, the Company could, from time to time,
grant share options to outside eligible third parties at the discretion of

the Board of Directors.

Without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders, the total
number of shares in respect of which options could be granted under
the 2002 Scheme was not permitted to exceed 10% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any point in time. The number of shares in respect
of which options could be granted to any individual was not permitted

to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any point in time.

Options could be exercised at any time from the date of grant of the
share option to the 5th anniversary of the date of grant. The exercise
price was to be determined by the directors of the Company, and
would not be less than the higher of the nominal value of the
Company's share on the date of grant, the average closing price of the
shares for the five business days immediately preceding the date of

grant, or the closing price of the shares on the date of grant.

No options were granted under the 2002 Scheme since it was adopted.
The 2002 Scheme expired on 24 April 2012.

A new share option scheme was approved and adopted by the
Company pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on 9 May 2012 (the
“2012 Scheme”). The terms of the 2012 Scheme and the 2002 Scheme

are broadly similar. The 2012 Scheme is effective for a period of 10 years.

No share option has been granted under the 2012 Scheme since its

adoption.
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45. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (CONTINUED)

(B) SHARE OPTION SCHEME OF CHB

CHB adopted a new share option scheme (the “2012 CHB Scheme”)
pursuant to a resolution passed on 9 May 2012 for the primary purpose
of providing incentives to directors and eligible employees of the CHB
Group to replace the share option scheme which expired on 24 April
2012. The terms of the 2012 CHB Scheme were the same as the expired
scheme. Under the 2012 CHB Scheme, the Board of Directors of CHB
could grant options to eligible persons of the CHB Group, including
directors and employees of CHB and its subsidiaries, to subscribe for
shares in CHB.

The total number of shares in respect of which options could be
granted under the 2012 CHB Scheme was not permitted to exceed 10%
of the shares of CHB in issue at the date of approval of the 2012 CHB
Scheme, without prior approval from the shareholders of CHB. No
option may be granted to any person which, if exercised in full, would
result in the total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the option already granted and to be granted to such person
(including exercised, cancelled and outstanding options but excluding
lapsed options) in the 12-month period up to and including the date of
such new grant exceeding 1% of the shares in issue as at the date of
such new grant, provided that options may be issued in excess of such
limit if, among other things, such grant shall have been separately
approved by shareholders of CHB in a general meeting at which that
proposed grantee and his associates (as defined in the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange) shall have

abstained for voting.

Options granted had to be taken up within 28 days of the date of offer,
upon payment of HK$10 per option, and the exercise period shall not in
any event be longer than 10 years from the date of grant of the relevant
options. The exercise price was to be determined by the Board of
Directors of CHB, and would be the highest of the closing price of CHB
shares on the date of offer, the average closing price of the shares for the
five trading days immediately preceding the date of offer and the

nominal value of the shares.

No options were granted under the 20172 CHB Scheme since it was

adopted.

45. BRIDHEATESH B (48)
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46. LOANS TO OFFICERS
The aggregate relevant loans to officers, included in note 13 (2012:
“advances to customers” in note 22), and disclosed pursuant to Section

161B of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance are as follows:

46. SMABER
BEBEEQMEDNF 16BIERTE  BEEH
AR(ZE—ZF - HME2IEFPERDEHA
BRABZEFBBEHBENT

THE GROUP A&
2013 2012
—E-=F —Z——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT
Aggregate balance of all relevant loans outstanding at the end RBREPR2HEFETFOZ
of the reporting period etk 185,209 96,649
THE GROUP A4
2013 2012
—E-=F =%
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT

Maximum aggregate balance of relevant loans during the year

201,839 115,103

The loans bear interest at rates ranging from 0% to prime rate plus 10%.
As at 31 December 2013, included in the loans to officers are loans of
HK$83,550,000 (2012:HKS$95,766,000) secured by collateral. These

collateral were mainly properties, securities and fixed deposits.

FRARERF Oz REEHES
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95766000 7T ) = B A ER - ZEHEFE
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47. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY

T+ A=+—-RBILFE

Details of the disposal by the Group of a subsidiary during the year

47. HE—RKEB RS
AEFRHE-_E——F+=-_A=+—8H1

ended 31 December 2012 were as follows: FELE—HMWBARZEFBNT :
2012
—Z——F
HK$'000
BT
(note)
(FizE)
Total cash consideration received BloReRELSE 12,332
Assets and liabilities of subsidiaries at the date of disposal: MEARKNEERSHNEERER
Property, plant and equipment nE - BER&E 2
Other receivables =] 12,348
Bank balance RITHS 8
Other payables HAbERFE )
Net assets disposed of EHEEETE 12373
Loss on disposal HEBE (41)

Net cash outflow arising on disposal:
Total cash consideration received

REHENRRRHFE

EWRERBRE

note: On 8 March 2012, the Group entered into a sale and purchase agreement to
dispose of its 100% equity interest in Beijing Onsec Information Technology
Company Limited, the disposal was completed on 1 October 2012, resulting in a

loss on disposal of HK$41,000.

48. PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At the end of the reporting period, the assets shown as below were

pledged to banks to secure general banking facilities made available to

the Group and the Company.

M RZE——F=ZANR AEBITLHEENEER
& HEHMBAIL REELTRIEN RIZ BRI
ARATE 100% R AR - HER=_T—=F+A
—HZEK - WL EEEER 41,000 7T ©

48, BEWEW

REEBR - THEEDHEF TRT - WUE

AEBEARNAERT—RIBITRE

THE GROUP A& THE COMPANY &4 &)
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-=F —Z—_fF —E-=F —T——F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BT
CARRYING VALUE FEE
Investment properties BEME 3,505,501 3,335,717 = =
Structured deposits HEEMER 8,857 = 8,857 =
In addition, as at 31 December 2012, the Group also pledged the shares koM RZE——_F+-_HA=+—H &%
of a subsidiary in favour of a bank in support of the facilities granted to BBt — KW B AR ER TEE - 15 ZH &
that subsidiary. The subsidiary did not utilise the facilities as at 31 R A ZKRHERFRT - RZT—ZF+=

December 2012.

A=+—8  #MBARLREEHRRE -



49. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS 49. INEBBRAIE
(A) CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS — (A) TREERRE —NEHR
CONTRACTUAL AMOUNTS
THE GROUP K& 8 THE COMPANY KA ]
Continuing operations Discontinued operations Total
57 (i BALEE L5
2013 01 2013 0 2013 01 2013 01
%-f -F--f Z8-=f -F--fF C-§-=f -FT--f -§-=f -F--f
HK$'000 HKS 000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS1000 HK$'000 HKS 000
AMTn  AYTn  BRTn  BRTr  EBTn AT Mt BETn
Diect et substiues noe o)) HEERRER @) - - 1,041,747 0730 1,041,747 107735 - -
Trade-telated contngencies BESEH ANER - - 479,056 45309 479,056 125309 - -
Captlcommiments fornon-cuent FRBEENERALE
assets (note () (M5 (0) 83,290 174858 7,049 7864 90,339 18722 83,200 174858
Other commitments i
Which are unconionally cancelable KRBT R E
ihoutpior nofices EHEAE - - 6864582 6UBEN 6864582 6913604 - -
Withan original matuty o one year FHHMBR-FR—ENT
and under - = 8,212,601 8,137,008 8,212,601 8,137,008 - =
Withan rigina maturty RIHBR—FUNE
ofoverone year - - 1,899,267 20087 1,899,267 28087 - -
Lease commitments (note (1) e REWED) 141,542 155692 55,424 5515 196,966 2407 5975 230
Financialquarantes forsubsdais HBERTHEAR
(ot ) (P3E (a)v) - - - - - - 728,464 684600
24,832 30550 18,559,726 19040537 18,784,558 19371087 817,729 881778
notes: BEE
0] The credit risk weighted amount of contingent liabilities and commitments of the (i) AEBMNSBIRTGESS 2 kA B ERAE ZNERE
Group is HK$3,196,283,000 (2012: HK$3,507,559,000) for financial services BB E /3196283000 (ZF——F : &
operations. The credit risk weighted amount is calculated based on “standardised 3507550000 7T) ° MEEE Rl S EIVIRE [1R4
approach”. The risk weights used in the computation of credit risk weighted EIFE - A ENREEERB SR AR EN Fo0%
amounts range from 0% to 100% (2012: 0% to 100%) which is assessed in F100%( ZF—ZF : 0% = 100%) WIZRGEEITE(E
accordance with the Banking (Capital) Rules. ) IRADVERT A -
(i) Most of contingent liabilities and commitments are denominated in Hong Kong (i) REPOD A B ERAPEE B EVEREN -
dollars.
(i) Direct credit substitutes included financial guarantees given by the Group. (il  EAAEBRHMBEROEZEERER
(iv)  Asat 31 December 2013, the Company had financial guarantees given to a bank  (v) RZZ—=F+ZA=+—8 AR AHHEBERA

in support of banking facilities granted to subsidiaries, of which an amount of
HK$621,085,000 (2012: HK$644,666,000) was utilised by the subsidiaries and
recognised in the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position as liabilities.
The aggregate amounts that the Company could be required to pay if the
guarantees were called upon in entirety amounted to HK$728,464,000 (2012:
HK$684,600,000). The directors of the Company considered that the fair value of
such guarantees on initial recognition and at the end of the reporting periods
were insignificant.

FIERRITREMRITIELMBER - EhEE
621,085,000 7T ( = F — — 4 : %5 644,666,000 7T ) 8 Ff
BRASATRAEBGEMBRALTRRAE
& ARFRZSEREERK2ABITR R T A8
BRI 2 RTEIEE T 7284640000 (Z T —ZF -
P51 6846000007T) ° R ARIERRRZZRRNL
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49. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(B) LEASE COMMITMENTS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments for

future minimum lease payments under these non-cancellable operating

leases which fall due as follows:

49. ARBBRAE(FE)

(B) THEIAIE

R E BRR - NS BT A] BSH 48 2 4 i
ER T FHI BN o RAREEEES TN
UM

THE GROUP A58 THE COMPANY 523 5
Continuing operations  Discontinued operations Total
BEgE BRI RE FH)
2013 012 2013 012 2013 012 2013 012
~8-=f -%--f -Z%-=f -T--F ZB-=f -T--F Z5-=f —T--f
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
BETT AETr  B%Tn A% Tr  B%Trn A% Tr  B%Trn BT
Within one year —& 13,447 21,200 26,614 1416 40,061 45416 5,975 13,560
Inthesecond tofifthyearsincusie ~~ RE-ZFHER
(PHEERE) 74,466 68,583 28,810 3627 103,276 102210 - 8,760
Over fiveyears T 53,629 65,909 - n 53,629 66,381 - -
141,542 155,692 55,424 58515 196,966 24007 5,975 2300

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable for certain of the
Group’s offices, hotel premises and staff quarters. Leases are negotiated
for a range of one to sixteen years and rentals are fixed throughout the

lease period.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group as lessor had contracted

with tenants for the following future minimum lease payments:

REBEHORBREAEBETRTE BED
ENBIEEZENEZ - HEEMAS—2
TARENE  BRESANESEEHEE
HIBSTRTE o

RBEHR  AEREERSEEADRATR
RREHESHEBRTL

THE GROUP A 58] THE COMPANY K22 &)
Continuing operations Discontinued operations Total
BEgE BRLEE EH
2013 2012 2013 012 2013 012 2013 2012

—g-=f % ZE-Zf ~F-—F ZB-=F -_F-—F “EBE-=E —T-—&

HK$'000 MG HK$'000
BMTn  AETT  ARTR

HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000

AT  EMTn  ERTR  BEBTR  ERTR

Within one year —fF 236,142 103,492 16,077 14881 252,219 118373 1,080 3%
Inthe second t it yearsinclusive RE_ZERER

(REBEME) 320,860 91881 1,901 5% 322,761 107835 2,070 -

Overfive years hER - - 2,730 - 2,730 = - =

557,002 195,373 20,708 30835 577,710 26,208 3,150 335

Property rental income earned during the year was HK$270,109,000
(2012: HK$264,389,000). All of the properties held have committed

tenants for the next one to five years.

FREYEMRS WA BB 270,109,000 7T ( =
T— T B 0264389,0007T) © P M R
BEEZEA A —EREMNMEL -



49. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(C) CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Capital commitments outstanding at the end of the reporting period

are as follows:

49, HAEBRAIE(E)

(C) BMNAIE
RB|EIR - BAAREEHOT

THEGROUP A58 THE COMPANY 7R 23 7]
Continuing operations Discontinued operations Total
RELE BALEE At
2013 012 2013 012 2013 012 2013 012
Z8-Zf -“E--F ZB-Zf —%--f Z%-=f -—%--f -“B-Zf -—T-_%
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
BT A%t BT YT EMTn  E¥Tr  A%Tn  ARTx
(apitd ependture contacted orbutnot B KB AR A BT
provided in the consolicated financial BERBEZER
Statements nrespect of R :
— Property, plantand equipment 0% BEREE - - 7,049 7864 7,049 7864 - -
— Contrbuton o the capitalof —REESMELRER
investment funds 83,290 174858 = = 83,290 174858 83,290 174858

50. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

(A) RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME OF THE GROUP
(EXCLUDING THE CHB GROUP)

For its eligible employees in Hong Kong, the Group operates a defined

contribution schemes registered under the Mandatory Provident Fund

Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”).

Contributions payable by the Group to the MPF Scheme are
determined based on the rules underlying the respective schemes and
are charged to consolidated statement of comprehensive income. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group,
in funds under the control of trustees. Under the MPF Scheme, the
employees contribute 5% of the relevant payroll to the MPF Scheme
while the Group contributes 5% of the relevant payroll to the MPF

Scheme.

In addition, certain employees of the Group’s subsidiaries established in
the PRC are members of state-managed retirement benefits schemes.
The subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage of their
payroll costs to the retirement benefits schemes to fund the benefits.
The only obligation of the Group with respect to these retirement

benefits schemes is to make the specified contributions.

50. 3R{R1g il st Sl
(A) KBRS st 8 (A5 R H R
T%8)

AEERBEZAEREEET —AMEMH
Aatd) > UERBIELBES A E T EM (M98

BEatEll) -

AEERBERESHE ZABRUREETE
F&‘HZTﬁ\?X HBEHFEEHEBERTE - ﬁ
S EEARTEARES T AZS -
KEIZQF DRI IR o $ETJ§€§$§<£E+§‘J :
BT RREARARHFRw RS8R
MAEETRBEEBE TASN%MABRES

FHEIfER -

goN AEERFEKIZHMBRARZET
BEABERERRABHEZKE - %F
B ARAREMESE T A DL AERKER
TEIEL R NBENERERH - REEY
RARENF B 2 M —BETDEREER
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50. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES (CONTINUED)

(B) RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME OF THE CHB GROUP

At the end of the reporting period, the CHB Group had two retirement
schemes in operation including a defined contribution plan and a
defined benefit plan (the “ORSO (Defined benefit) Scheme”) which
were both registered under the Occupational Retirement Scheme
Ordinance in 1995, and a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) established under the Mandatory Provident Fund Ordinance
in December 2000. Employees of the CHB Group who were members of
the ORSO Scheme prior to the establishment of the MPF Scheme could
stay within the ORSO Scheme or switch to the MPF Scheme, whereas
all new employees joining the CHB Group on or after December 2000
are required to join the MPF Scheme. Most of the employees of the
CHB Group enrolled in the MPF Scheme in replacement of the ORSO
Scheme (the “participating members”). The assets of the schemes are
held separately from those of the CHB Group, in funds under the
control of trustees. Under the MPF Scheme, the employees contribute
5% of the relevant payroll to the MPF Scheme while the CHB Group
contributes 5% to 10% of the relevant payroll to the MPF Scheme

depending on the years of service completed.

The CHB Group operates the ORSO (Defined benefit) Scheme for
qualifying employees. Under the ORSO (Defined benefit) Scheme, the
employees of the CHB Group are entitled to retirement benefits varying
between 0% and 100% of total contributions on attainment of a
retirement age of 55. Upon retirement, the employees of the CHB
Group are entitled to monthly pension until death varying between 0
and 100 percent of final salary depending on years of service completed

at the time of retirement.

The most recent actuarial valuation of the ORSO (Defined benefit)
Scheme was carried out as at 31 December 2011 by the qualified
actuaries of Towers Watson Hong Kong Limited. The actuarial valuation
is carried out periodically, but at least triennially. No valuation was
carried out as at 31 December 2013. The present value of the defined
benefit obligation and the current service cost have been measured

using the Projected Unit Credit method.

At the date of the latest formal independent actuarial valuation made
on 31 December 2011, the net retirement asset of the ORSO (Defined
benefit) Scheme was HK$10,747,000.

50. Rfft@mlstEl (&)

(B) B R {T & BRIl 33 il 5t Bl
BIEBITRERRERRAETRERKET
2 BEE - NN AFEREEERKGE
BB R 2 HRRET B R R R BLE B FIR K
HE(TREAED mME-TTZEF+=A
B AR R o il 14 N T8 & 5T B 651 )BK 37 2 58
MRABEeTE((RERFE - ERESE
ZI AT REEIKB ZAIBERITEES
IR ERAESEAMARESE
AMAIBE_SZTF+ = A A& MAE
FWIRTEBE 2B TAELMAESE -
REBHEIERITE THRIZELMAB TS
UEBREEEEI(T2EAL]) - RESTE
CEERBUERAZNZESHER  WHE
BIRBTRECEESR - ERBIESTE
KB BTHEREGHAANSHN% - el
RITEE 2 HFARTFETIRBFEMIEHE
BRAANBETHE 5%ZE10% °

IBBTERERAESEBBEIRERAR
E(RERA) - ERAHE(RERA) T -
BIEIRITEBMEIFER T RARRINGFHR -
BRI RKEN R AHRITHEAERE%
£ 100% © Bl FRITE B B T RNRIKK R IR AR
BFEANEHARGARNERZRT ZEK
© 18 5 R B 18 3 BN L 91 0% 2= 100% ©

g

BEMEEENBERARARRIN - F
——F+ZA=t—BHRBEAEEEERF)
tFHEEME BEAEESEHM(ERI=F
—REFT -RZE—=F+"A=+—HBL
EEITHAE - AT A AR B EBUEK
STEBRERNE ENIRELRREKAE

RZEBE——F+-_A=+—0  &FEER
TRBNEETG  ERAE(BEERF)
KRR E B A7 HE 10,747,000 TC ©
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50. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES (CONTINUED) 50. Rfft@mIsHEl (&) z
(B) RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME OF THE CHB GROUP (B) BIMIRITEBERIMISH S (1) E
(CONTINUED) E
0
. =
—= __E E
HKS'000 K
wefr  Bs
/ JC o
Amounts recognised in consolidated statement profit or loss in R A EEREPHERMT R EFImT
respect of the defined benefit plans are as follow:
Interest cost on benefit obligation BAEANFEZ S (610)
Interest income on plan assets SEEENFISMA 1,09
Net interest income MEWRANFE 486
Current service cost BB AR (59)
427
Amount recognised in consolidated statement of profit or loss and Rzt EM2ARERTP B EEF
other comprehensive income in respect of RANERIFEIFTIMT -
the defined benefit plans is as follow:
Difference between actual return on plan assets and interest, FEARMEFNEROREEEEENEE
and actuarial losses 10,268

The amount included in the consolidated statement of financial 4R & B #5AR S B B4R 17 & B &9 BE 7E 42 7
position arising from the CHB Group’s defined benefit retirement  ERBFIFHEIFHIAT -

benefit plan is as follows:

2011
—2——F
HK$'000

BETT
Present value of defined benefit obligation T EFEENRE (24,073)
Fair value of plan assets FEEENATE 34,820

10,747
Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as ~ BEE @A & (FHIRE 2 EEHFIMT -
follow:
2011
—2——F
HK$'000 2;1

ABTLT =
Opening defined benefit obligation BT RAERL 25,450 5
Interest cost FELH 610 ;
Current service cost BRI A 59 o
Actuarial losses (resulting from changes of financial assumptions) BEEE (RN HERES) 502 -
Benefits paid B 2549

I

Closing defined benefit obligation AR TRAEL 24,073 n

B HEY
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 EIZ=F—=#+_-A=+—HBILFE

50. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES (CONTINUED)
(B) RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME OF THE CHB GROUP

(CONTINUED)

Changes in fair value of plan assets are as follow:

50. RIR1GHI 5t &l (48)
(B) RIERRTHRERINE M E (1&)

AEIBENRFEEZEZFHINWT

2011

—Z2——F

HK$'000

BETT

Opening fair value of plan assets B EEN D TERE 25,502
Interest income FEHA 1,09
Return on plan assets ATEEEN DR 10,770
Benefits paid B R (2,548)
Closing fair value of plan assets ARG EIBENATEE 34,820

The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of the fair value of

total plan assets are as follow:

SEEENE BRI R WEENATE
YEE A LHFIT

2011

—Z——F

%

Cash Be 20
Equities (note) R (Fst) 80

note: The equities represented investments in two equity securities which are securities

of The Hong Kong & China Gas Limited and of the Company of which are listed

on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

The fair value of the plan assets as at 31 December 2011 for each

category, are as follows:

i RREERANE MR LTS BRAE
BATRARTBE -

KoZ——F+-A=+—8 HENEE
RIEEZ AT BESIIWT -

2011

—B——F

HK$'000

BT

Deposits with the CHB REIBBITHER 6,814

Interest receivable FEUHI 2 9
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong REB L HRAES

The Hong Kong & China Gas Limited BEEPERRERDA 15,044

Liu Chong Hing Investment Limited BRIEGEXERAR 12,863

34,820




50. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES (CONTINUED)

(B) RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME OF THE CHB GROUP
(CONTINUED)

The ORSO (Defined benefit) Scheme exposes the CHB Group to the

interest rate risk, longevity risk and price risk as at 31 December 2011.

The fair values of the equity instruments are determined based on

quoted market prices in active markets.

The amounts of assets of the ORSO (Defined benefit) Scheme invested

in CHB's own deposit account as at 31 December 2011 were:

50. Rif#@MIstE (4&)
(B) RIERTHRERINE M E (&)

REHE (RERN) SAHEBTEREN_-F

——F+_A=-+—HEBANXRRAR S
B B ERE -
ETEANFEEDERTE FOTIEHRE
EE -
EAFEEIEEM)IRERAIERITE B

BRFOBENR-_ZT——F+-A=+—8H
RFREA

2011

—E——F

HK$'000

BETT

Deposits with the CHB REIEBITNER 6,814

INTEREST RATE RISK

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using
a discount rate determined by reference to the yields of the Hong Kong
Government Exchange Fund Notes. A decrease in the discount rate

would increase the plan liability.

LONGEVITY RISK

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by
reference to the best estimate of the mortality of qualifying employees
both during and after their employment. An increase in the life

expectancy of the qualifying employees will increase the plan’s liability.

PRICE RISK
As stated above, 80% of the assets were invested into two equity
securities as at 31 December 2011. Such high concentration may expose

to the CHB Group to price risk when the equity prices fluctuate.

il 5 @ R
BEE B IS BB R E 2% BB HATINE
ESBHMREERRE - B EEH
B TRETHESHBRELA -

RSEARK
BERMFBAEREN2ELERERE
B RBERANECXSEEAEBFERSY
M- RERREEBRASHLERESIAR
EFte

& 1% = b2

wmEXA RZFT——F+ZA=+—H
80% BERENMIBREZRSF L - itS &P
- e g Rl ERITRE B R REEKKE
i B B A% E e o
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50. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES (CONTINUED) 50. RIMIEHI 2 (E)
(B) RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME OF THE CHB GROUP (B) BIE SR 1T & @R if 8 7l 5 B (4&)
(CONTINUED)

The significant assumptions used in determining the defined benefit ~ FARRERNEF ETHEZRELT ¢
obligations are shown below:
201
—F—F
%

Discount rate BEIE =& 1.5 perannum
BE1S
Expected rate of salary increase EHFHRIL X 3.0 per annum
BE3
Expected rate of pension increase BHERSREER 0.0 per annum
BEFW
Interest credited on welfare balance BB 2.0 perannum
BEWN

The table below indicates the potential effect of change of the EMERHMETHNERNBRRBEMELNE

significant assumptions on the defined benefit obligation: EXE  FHT
2011
—FF
(Change in assumption
{Ej = gt 4
+0.25% —0.25%
HK$'000 HK$'000
BB BT
Discount rate BRIR X (547) 572
Expected rate of salary increase BRI R 65 (63)
Expected rate of pension increase BHRKSEER 404 —
Interest credited on welfare balance BB E 9 8

As at 31 December 2011, the weighted average duration of the defined R-ZE——F+-A=+—B BREBHME
benefit obligation is approximately 9.3 years. ER TR ERIIF -

The costs for providing benefits to the members of the ORSO (Defined ~ Al IRTTERE A B RHEFR A8 (BEERF)
benefit) Scheme are funded by the CHB Group. The contributions X B B # zm 8 A A AR IRCE 5 R IR ET 81 15
required by the Group to fund the costs are determined by periodic ~ #I) - EAHIMEESHERMREAEEREHES
funding valuations in accordance with the Occupational Retirement AR LAUZ B R ER -

Scheme Ordinance.



50. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES (CONTINUED)
(B) RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME OF THE CHB GROUP
(CONTINUED)

As of 31 December 2011, the CHB Group is not required to contribute
to the ORSO (Defined benefit) Scheme with respect to the members of
the ORSO (Defined benefit) Scheme according to the results of the last
statutory funding valuation of the ORSO (Defined benefit) Scheme as at
31 December 2011. The Group’s contribution rate may be subject to
change when the results of the next statutory funding valuation of the
ORSO (Defined benefit) Scheme as at 31 December 2014 become

available.

51. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES
(A) RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
During the year, the Group and the Company entered into the

following significant transactions with related parties:

50. Rif#@MIstE (4&)
(B) RIERTHRERINE M E (&)

BRELAR-_F——F+-_A=1T—H%XK
MREEI(BEERAN ) EAEMRE R=2F
——F+-A=+—H AEBEILRHKRE
HEI(BEERA) P eypk B R R B -
ETARN-_Z-—MOF+_-_A=+T—HNRA
AEI(BEERM) AEESHBETXE KK
B RO SRR A AT AR o

51. FABEALTIRESIR

(A) FABALXRZ

MNARFE  AEENARFEEBA LA
NTEARS :

THE GROUP A58 THE COMPANY A 7]
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-=F —E—_F —E-=F 2——F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT
Income received and receivable B R EKRB AT
from subsidiaries ZWA
Management and other service ERREMREBERA
fee income — — 1,200 1,680
Interest income MEWA — — 57,469 108,492
— — 58,669 110,172
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 EIZ=F—=#+_-A=+—HBILFE

51. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

(A) RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

51. FIBEATIRESIA (18)
(A) FABEALXRZ (18)

THEGROUP A5 & THE COMPANY &2 T
2013 2012 2013 2012
“E-=F —E—F SRS T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT BT T BT
Expenses paid and payable to ERREMRBAF
subsidiaries ZYH
Rental expenses s — — 4,380 4517
Income received and receivable Bl R & A R)
from associates ZWA
[nterest income MEWA 384 313 — —
Commission income AElA 23,919 19,539 — —
24,303 19,852 — -
Expenses paid and payable to BN RERNEE DT
associates 23
Interest expenses MELH 389 486 — —
Other service expenses HM RS H 2,873 2,774 — —
3,262 3,260 — —
Income received and receivable BUREKEEEEAR
from key management personnel  REREZ WA
and close family members
Interest income FMEWA 6,673 5,496 — —
Other service fee income Hib R Z WA 241 17 — —
6,914 5513 — —
Expenses paid and payable to ERNRENTEERAS
key management personnel and RERB 2 E
close family members
Interest expenses MELH 10,615 10,960 — —

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had financial
guarantees issued to a bank in support of banking facilities granted to

subsidiaries, details of which are set out in notes 48 and 49.

RBMERR - NAR M E AR ATERIETT
R E M ERITIEL A IELR o RSP RA M FE
48 249 ©
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51. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED) 51. BABEATHRESIE(8) z

(B) RELATED PARTY BALANCES (B) RAAT &R E

THE GROUP A8 m

O

2013 m B

—EB-=F —E—_fF f_ﬂ,;

HK$'000 HK$'000 g

BT T BETT o
Loan to associates EFBHEDRZER 11,503 14337
Loan to key management personnel and close family members EFFEEBAERERBZER 507,899 417,568
Deposit from associates BENRZER 110,166 97,147

Deposit from key management personnel and TEEEABRERBZEX

close family members 786,463 653,558

Details of the Group'’s and the Company's outstanding balances with  RZZE—=F+ZA=+—H  KEE K&K
other related parties, including bank accounts with the CHB Group at A RJEEMEAM A T2 REELL - 2ER
37 December 2013, are set out in the Group'’s consolidated statement of ~ AIER/TEE 2 E17F O - EFAN AL EH
financial position and the Company’s statement of financial position — #x Bf 7 Ak 0 2= ] 2N & B) B 75 ik e 5% R BT 2%
and notes 39, 41 and 42. 39~ 41842 °

N
)

(C) COMPENSATION OF KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL (c) TEEBASHSE
The emoluments of key management personnel of the Group during  FR - AEBZZEERAB Z2HHMMAT

the year were as follows:

THE GROUP A& & THE COMPANY 7872 7]
2013 2012 2013 2012
—2-=f —F-F —¥-=F =
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
BT T BETT BET T BETT
Short-term benefits RHEEA 99,105 96,024 32,202 27,226
Post-employment benefits REERKEHN 6,281 5,493 1,477 590
105,386 101,517 33,679 27,816

The emoluments of directors and key executives are determined by the ZTEERFETHABZHMIBHFMEE S

remuneration committee having regard to the performance of REAXRBELTISBEETTE -

individuals and market trends.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 EIZ=F—=#+_-A=+—HBILFE

52. EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 25 October 2013, the Group entered into an irrevocable undertaking
with Yue Xiu Enterprises, an independent third party to the Group,
whereby the Group agreed to accept the offer in respect of disposal of a
maximum of 218,359,628 CHB Shares (representing approximately 50.2%
of the issued share capital of CHB) held by the Group. At the same time,
the Group and CHB entered into an agreement in respect of the
transfer and the lease of Chong Hing Bank Centre (the “Property”),
CHB’s head office building in Central, pursuant to which the Property
would be transferred by CHB to the Group at HK$2,230 million, and the
ground floor and 18 other floors of the Property would then be leased

by the Group to CHB for a term of five years.

Approval was granted by the HKMA on 8 January 2014 for each of
Guangzhou Yue Xiu Holdings Limited (“Guangzhou Yue Xiu Holdings”),
Yue Xiu Enterprises and Yuexiu Financial Holdings Limited (“Yuexiu
Financial”) (hereinafter collectively referred to as “Yue Xiu Group”) to
become a controlling shareholder of CHB. Yuexiu Financial is a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Yue Xiu Enterprises. Yue Xiu Enterprises is a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Guangzhou Yue Xiu Holdings, which is a state-
owned limited liability company established in the PRC beneficially
wholly-owned by the Guangzhou Municipal People’s Government of
the PRC.

The acquisition by Yue Xiu Group of a controlling shareholding interest
in CHB, amounting to 75% of CHB's issued share capital, was completed
on 14 February 2014. Upon the completion of the disposal, the Group
remains to hold 50,408,418 CHB Shares (representing approximately
11.59% of the issued share capital of CHB) and classified as available-for-

sale investment.

On 19 February 2014, the sale of the Property was also completed.

52. IREHBESIA
R-ZT—=F+A=+HA A5EHELE
BB E= T MAECET LA RE A -
Bt AEEREEXZENHERAEER
BHRIEIRITARM » £ % 218359628 A% (15 &l
FIRTT O BITRRAA) 502%) - EIRF - ANEHE
BIEIRTTEK S SR LA EAIEEITH
D% D) » BAIERITHFRIRBAZTET -
Bkt - Y i Al R 1T LA 5 2,230,000,000
TRARREEBZETASE MYWENTR
TNEBEMEE SRR EEME T AIBRTT
BHRF -

TERR T —MF— A\ BHERMN B
SEER2B(EMNBEEE]) BELE
kSFEeERARAR (BESE]) AT
FRE (A RE )R REIFRTTHERACR -
BESTRASBEFEENEEMBARTR - BFE
CEREMBEFEENZERBAR - BN
BMAEEE R —FKAEPBEKZHPEEMNTA
RBNzEEaEANBAEBEERAELA
Al e

5 75 5 8] 5 ) SRR 1T 12 AR AR BR AR (115 B B
RITEBITRAT7S%) R_E—MF=A+H
HEHK © e &R - REEHFFA 50,408,418
P& Bl B R 17 AR 19 (M5 Al BLER 1T B AT AR AR
1159%) » WHBRAMEHERE -

—T-ME_ATNAE MEHETRETK °



53. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
(A) GENERAL INFORMATION OF SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 December

2013 and 2012 are as follows:

53. TBHBEAT
(A) WEASH—BRER

RZBE—=FF-_ZT——F+-A=+—8"

ARAZEEMBRBERAT

Place of Issued ordinary
incorporation or share capital/
establishment/ registered Proportion of nominal value of issued capital/
Name of subsidiary notes operations capital registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
AL BR{TE ARAREERTRAEE/
WEAREH Wat Rt/ gE  BRE/ERER a2 L hl TERH
Directly Indirectly
BE# 5t
2013 2012 2013 2012
ZE£-=f -T--F ZE-Zf —T--f
% % % %
Abaleen Enterprises Limited Hong Kong HK$100,000 100 100 — —  Property investment
BA B 100000 7T NERE
Alain Limited Hong Kong HK$9,500 100 100 — —  Investment holding
KBER A BE 9507 REER
Bonsun Enterprises Limited Hong Kong HK$2,000,000 100 100 — —  Property investment
ERCEBRATA G VB 2000000 7T NERE
(ard Alliance Company Limited () HongKong HK$18,000,000 — — 50.2 502 Credit card management
THERRA BE P 18000000 7T ERARER
(HB (i) HongKong HK$217,500,000 — — 502 502 Banking and related
BIBRTT 0 B 17,500,000 7T financial services
RITRAEE S BART
Chong Hing Commadities and (v} HongKong HK$5,000,000 — — 50.2 502 Investment holding and
Futures Limited 0 FHE 5,000,000 7T commodities and
EEEmAEERAA futures broking
REREMHEEER
(hong Hing Finance Limited () HongKong HK$25,000,000 = — 50.2 502 Deposit-taking and
BB BRATF B30 FASHE 25,000,000 7T lending
BXERRER
(hong Hing Information (v} Hong Kong HK$100,000 — — 502 50.2  Provision of electronic
Technology limited 0 AR 1000007 data processing
BIEARBBRARAA services
RESTENRE
R
Chong Hing Insurance Company () Hong Kong HK$85,000,000 — — 50.2 502 Insurance underwriting
Limited BB 71 85,000,000 7T R

BIERBRBR ]
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53. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 53. TZMBLE(FE)
(A) GENERAL INFORMATION OF SUBSIDIARIES (A) BRI —BER ()
(CONTINUED)
Place of Issued ordinary
incorporation or share capital/
establishment/ registered Proportion of nominal value of issued capital/
Name of subsidiary notes operations capital registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
Rl BRTER RAAFEERIRAEE/
WEBLAREH Wi Rt/ SE  BRE/ERER EMER Ll IEXH
Directly Indirectly
B 54
2013 2012 2013 2012
“E-=f —F-—f “F-=f —T--F
% % % %
Chong Hing (Nominees) Limited (v} HongKong HK$100,000 — — 50.2 50.2  Provision of nominee
BIE (RIE)BRAF BE R 100000 7T services
RERE AR
(hong Hing Securities Limited () Hong Kong HK$10,000,000 = — 50.2 502 Stockbroking
BIBESBR AT 6 78 10,000,000 7T REEE
Chong Yip Finance Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 100 100 — —  Money lending
BIZMBERA BA VB 1000000 7T BRER
Devon Realty Limited Hong Kong HKS$200 100 100 = —  Property investment
BEREBRAA 6 BT NERE
Donington Company Limited Hong Kong HK$200 100 100 = —  Property investment
BB BT NERE
Gallbraith Limited () Hong Kong HK$16,550,000 — — 50.2 50.2  Property investment
BEEARL BE FE B 16550000 7 NERE
Heng Kin Investment Limited Hong Kong HKS2 100 100 = —  Property investment
BEREFRRA BB BEIT NERE
Hero Marker Limited () HongKong HK$100,000 — — 50.2 502 Property investment
BEARAR BA AR 100000 7T NERE
Hugh Glory Limited Hong Kong HK$100 — — 90 90 Investment holding
NG| BB BRI REER
Hugh Wealth International Limited Hong Kong HK$100 100 100 = —  Investment holding
BRERERAF 0 B0 REZRKR
Jacot Limited Hong Kong HKS2 100 100 — —  Investment holding
IERIBR R B BT REER
Ko Yew Company Limited Hong Kong HKS$200 100 100 = —  Property investment
BEARARF BE B0 NERE



53. T2MELT (&)
(A) BRI —RER (&)

53. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)
(A) GENERAL INFORMATION OF SUBSIDIARIES
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(CONTINUED)
Place of Issued ordinary
incorporation or share capital/
establishment/ registered Proportion of nominal value of issued capital/
Name of subsidiary notes operations capital registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
B BRILE ARARRERTRAEE/
WEARER MEE At/ EEt RE/EMER HMER 2l TEEH
Directly Indirectly
=8 4
2013 2012 2013 2012
“E-=F % ZE-ZE “%-f
% % % %
Liu Chong Hing Estate Company, Hong Kong HK$10,000,000 100 100 — —  Investment holding
Limited BE FEH 10,000,000 7T RERK
BEIEEXBRAT
Liu Chong Hing Godown Company, Hong Kong HK$72,000,000 100 100 = —  Property investment
Limited BA P 12000000 7T NERE
BEIEAEAERAA
Liu Chong Hing Property Management Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 100 100 — —  Property management
and Agency Limited 0 K 1,000,000 7T and agency
BRIENZEERRE MEEBRRE
AR
Luxpolar Limited Hong Kong HKS2 = — 100 100 Property investment
BB BEIT NERE
Queen Profit International Investment Hong Kong HKS61,540 83.75 83.75 — —  Investment holding
Limited BA B 61507 REZ
BNERREFRAR
Sino Pink Development Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 100 — —  Property investment
BIRERERAA BB B 100007 NERE
Speed World Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$100 = — 60 60 Investment holding
ZBERBARAF B30 B 007T REHER
Top Benefit Enterprise Limited (v} HongKong HK$100,000 — — 50.2 50.2  Property investment 301
BECEARAF 3 B 100000 7T NERE =
Top Team Limited Hong Kong HKS$200 100 100 — —  Investment holding P
BA B N0 T RER 2
k)
>
Trade Castle Limited Hong Kong HKST — — 100 100 Investment holding i
EmARAH BB BRI REER 1
L]
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 EIZ=F—=#+_-A=+—HBILFE

53. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)
(A) GENERAL INFORMATION OF SUBSIDIARIES

53.

TEHMELS (1E)

(A) MEBRIN—RER (1&)

(CONTINUED)
Place of Issued ordinary
incorporation or share capital/
establishment/ registered Proportion of nominal value of issued capital/
Name of subsidiary notes operations capital registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
Rl BRTER RAAFEERIRAEE/
WEBLAREH Wi RI/EEH  RA/EMEXR EMER Ll IEXH
Directly Indirectly
=8 54
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-=fF -“FT-—F ZE-ZF _E-_F
% % % %
Truegrow Investments Limited Hong Kong HKST = = 100 100 Investment holding
EMRERRRA BB BRI REER
Wealth Good Investment Limited Hong Kong HKS2 100 100 = —  Investment holding
HHREBRAA BE BEIT REER
Yue Tung Ching Kee Company Limited Hong Kong HK$2,000,000 100 100 = —  Property investment
WRIEZBBAA BA 2000007 NERE
Foshan Nanhai Hugh Glory Property (i) PRC RMB500,000,000 — — 90 90 Property development
Development Company Limited H ARE MERR
FlLEEEREEERR 500,000,000 7T
BRAA
Guangzhou Chong Hing Property (iv)  PRC RMB170,000,000 — — 60 60 Property development
Development Company Limited H ARE MERR
BMNEEEHEERAR AT 170,000,000 7T
Guangzhou Trade Castle Property (i) PRC HK$6,500,000 — — 100 100 Property investment
Consultancy Limited h T 6,500,000 7T NERE
EMmEMEHERA
AR
Guangzhou Wealth Smart Property (i) PRC HK$1,000,000 = — 100 100 Property management
Management Company Limited H FEH 1,000,000 7T nEER
BEMmARNEERERAF
Maanshan Gaoke Magnetic (i) PRC RMB65,370,000 — — 51.5 515 Manufacturing of
Material Company Limited H ARE magnetic materials
BRILGREEMHERAR 65,370,000 7T SUEREATRL
Shanghai Huang Pu Liu Chong Hing (i) PRC US$34,600,000 — — 100 100 Property investment
Property Development HF 34,600,000 % 7T NERE
Company Limited

LEERBAIREE
FMEBRARF



53. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)
(A) GENERAL INFORMATION OF SUBSIDIARIES

53. T2MELT (&)
(A) BRI —RER (&)

(CONTINUED)
Place of Issued ordinary
incorporation or share capital/
establishment/ registered Proportion of nominal value of issued capital/
Name of subsidiary notes operations capital registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
B BRILE ARARBERTRAEE/
WEARER MEE At/ EEt RE/EMER HMER 2l TEEH
Directly Indirectly
=8 i
2013 2012 2013 2012
“E-=f —F-—f ZF-=f —T-_F
% % % %

Shanghai Truegrow Hotel (i) PRC RMB32,500,000 — — 100 100 Hotel operation and
Management Company Limited HF AR management
HEERBEERERAR 32500007 BEEEERER
Blossom Success Investments Limited British Virgin Islands/ Us$1 100 100 = —  Investment holding

SIEREBRAA Hong Kong ES BREER
ERELES/
07
China Link Technologies Limited British Virgin Islands/ US$100 100 100 = —  Investment holding
Hong Kong MET AR
RERLES/
0]
Determined Resources Limited British Virgin Islands/ 151,000 100 100 — —  Share investment
Hong Kong 100%E7T RiHRE
RERLES/
BE
Terryglass Limited British Virgin Islands/ U5$1,000 100 100 — —  Investment holding
Hong Kong 100%E7T REZK
RERLES/
BE
Multi Eternal Limited British Virgin Islands/ US$100 — — 90 90 Property development
PRC 103 7T management
RERLES/ NEERER
i
Sharp Talent International Limited British Virgin Islands/ US$100 = — 90 90 Marketing and sales
PRC ETT support
RERLES/ s REEX R
i
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53. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)
(A) GENERAL INFORMATION OF SUBSIDIARIES
(CONTINUED)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in the opinion
of the directors, principally affected the results or assets of the Group.
To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the

directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end of the

year.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has other subsidiaries
that are not material to the Group. A majority of these subsidiaries
operate in Hong Kong. The principal activities of these subsidiaries are
summarised as follows:

53. T Z2MBER
(A) BRI —RKRE

__](ma)
5 (48)

EERA HAKRBXEIEEREARE
ZASENBAREECDHIN LR -EF
R BREEMHEAREHN  BIFEER
RILE

BENEB AR B EAFRBETEMERES

RARERR - ARA WA HME A KEM

ETEBEANHMBEAR - ZFMBRBHT A
MOEREBEEE HEWNBRABAMEIEE
BRI T -

Number of subsidiaries

HEARHE

Principal activities Principal place of business 2013 2012
TEXH TEERBH —E-z=f —T——fF
Hotel operation and management PRCH 4 4
BELERER
Investment holding 1% & 2% Hong Kong &7 9 9
Property Investment #1 £ & & Hong Kong &% 2 2
Inactive B4 £ 7% Hong Kong & & 8 9
notes: BiaE -
(i) The shares of CHB are listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and classified as (i) BRI ITHIRO RN BB LT R E—=4

assets held for sale at 31 December 2013 (refer to note 13). T+ A=t HOBEAFHEAE (Z2RME13) -
(i) The companies are sole foreign equity ventures established in the PRC. iy  ZFRARRRPEKLZIEEERE -
(i) The companies are sino-foreign equity joint ventures established in the PRC, @iy EREFRARRKFABMRLZPINEELERT] o
(iv)  The company is sino-foreign co-operative joint venture established in the PRC. (v)  ZRFRARHREIRLZ PINSIERERT
(

v)  The companies are subsidiaries of the CHB Group and classified as assets held for
sale at 31 December 2013 (refer to note 13).

(B) DETAILS OF A NON-WHOLLY OWNED SUBSIDIARY

THAT HAS MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS
CHB is the only subsidiary in the Group that has material non-
controlling interests. Financial information of CHB has been disclosed in
note 13.
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LIU CHONG HING INVESTMENT LIMITED

25/F Chong Hing Bank Centre

24 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong
Tel: (852) 3768 9038

Fax: (852) 3768 9008

E-mail: info@Ichi.com.hk

Website: www.lchi.com.hk

Stock Code: 194
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